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We offer franchises for distinctive recreational entertainment facilities featuring trampolines, obstacle
courses, and other recreational activities, and offering and selling other related products and services under
the “Altitude Trampoline Park®” name and marks. The total investment necessary to begin operation of
an Altitude Trampoline Park® facility ranges from $2,225,000 to $3,258,500. This includes $45,000 that
must be paid to us or our affiliates.

We also offer the right to acquire franchises for and develop multiple “Altitude Trampoline Park®”. If we
grant you an area development business, the initial development fee that you must pay us will depend on
the number of Parks you agree to develop. The total investment necessary to begin operation of an area
development business with a 5 Park commitment ranges from $78,500 to $83,500. This includes $77,500
that must be paid to us or our affiliates. The estimated initial investment for an area development business
does not include the cost of developing each Park required to meet the commitment under the area
development agreement.

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other
information in plain English. Read this Disclosure Document and all accompanying agreements carefully.
You must receive this Disclosure Document at least 14 calendar days before you sign a binding agreement
with, or make any payments to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise
sale. Note, however, that no government agency has verified the information contained in this
document. You may wish to receive your Disclosure Document in another format that is more convenient
for you. To discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact ATP Franchising, LLC,
Michael Stout, 12222 Merit Drive, Suite 1300, Dallas, Texas 75251 (866) 414-0616.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don’t rely on this Disclosure Document
alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show your contract and this
Disclosure Document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant. Buying a franchise is a complex
investment. The information in this Disclosure Document can help you make up your mind. More
information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide to Buying a Franchise,” which can help you
understand how to use this Disclosure Document, is available from the Federal Trade Commission. You
can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW,
Washington, D.C. 20580. You can also visit the FTC’s home page at www.ftc.gov for additional
information. Call your state agency or visit your public library for other sources of information on
franchising. There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.

ISSUANCE DATE: March 29, 2024, as amended April 2, 2024
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to
find more information:

QUESTION WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can I earn? Item 19 may give you information about outlet sales,
costs, profits or losses. You should also try to obtain
this information from others, like current and former
franchisees. You can find their names and contact
information in Item 20 or Exhibits D-1 and D-2.

How much will I need to invest? [[tems 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the
franchisor or at the franchisor’s direction. Item 7
lists the initial investment to open. Item 8
describes the suppliers you must use.

Does the franchisor have the [tem 21 or Exhibit E includes financial
financial ability to provide statements. Review these statements carefully.
support to my business?

Is the franchise system stable, Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the

growing, or shrinking? number of company-owned and franchised outlets.

'Will my business be the only [tem 12 and the “territory” provisions in the

Altitude Trampoline Park® franchise agreement and the area development

business in my area? agreement describe whether the franchisor and
other franchisees or area developers can compete
with you.

Does the franchisor have a Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or its

troubled legal history? management have been involved in material

litigation or bankruptcy proceedings.

'What’s it like to be an Item 20 or Exhibits D-1 and D-2 lists current
Altitude Trampoline Park® and former franchisees. You can contact them to
franchisee? ask about their experiences.

What else should I know? These questions are only a few things you should

look for. Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in
this disclosure document to better understand this
franchise opportunity. See the table of contents.
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What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even if
you are losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change its
manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require you to make
additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your franchise business.

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited
group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than similar
items you could buy on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement and/or the area development agreement may
prohibit you from operating a similar business during the term of the franchise. There are
usually other restrictions. Some examples may include controlling your location, your access
to customers, what you sell, how you market, and your hours of operation.

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement and/or the area development
agreement grants you a territory, the franchisor may have the right to compete with you in
your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement and/or the area development agreement may not permit
you to renew. Even if it does, you may have to sign a new agreement with different terms and
conditions in order to continue to operate your franchise business.

When vour franchise ends. The franchise agreement and/or the area development agreement
may prohibit you from operating a similar business after your franchise ends even if you still
have obligations to your landlord or other creditors.

Some States Require Registration

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to register before
offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that the state recommends
the franchise or has verified the information in this document. To find out if your state has a
registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the agency information in Exhibit A.

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be made to your
franchise agreement and/or the area development agreement. If so, you should check the State
Specific Addenda. See the Table of Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda.
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Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise
Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

1. Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement and area
development agreement require you to resolve disputes with us by mediation,
arbitration and/or litigation in Dallas, Texas. Out-of-state mediation, arbitration
or litigation may force you to accept a less favorable settlement for disputes. It
may also cost you more to mediate, arbitrate or litigate with us in Dallas, Texas
than in your home state.

2. Spousal Liability. Your spouse must sign a document that makes your spouse
liable for all financial obligations under the franchise agreement and/or the area
development agreement even though your spouse has no ownership interest in the
franchise and/or the area development rights. This guarantee will place both you
and our spouse’s marital and personal assets, perhaps including your house, at risk
if your franchise fails.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State Specific Addenda”
(if any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted.
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THE FOLLOWING APPLY TO TRANSACTIONS GOVERNED BY
MICHIGAN FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW ONLY

THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT ARE
SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING
PROVISIONS ARE IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID
AND CANNOT BE ENFORCED AGAINST YOU.

(a) A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees.

(b) A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver, or
estoppel which deprives a franchisee of rights and protections provided in the Michigan Franchise
Investment Act. This shall not preclude a franchisee, after entering into a franchise agreement from
settling any and all claims.

(c) A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration of
its term except for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply with
any lawful provision of the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given written
notice thereof and a reasonable opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure
such failure.

(d) A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly
compensating the franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of
expiration of the franchisee’s inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings. Personalized
materials which have no value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and
furnishings not reasonably required in the conduct of the franchise business are not subject to
compensation. This subsection applies only if: (i) the term of the franchise is less than 5 years and
(i1) the franchisee is prohibited by the franchise or other agreement from continuing to conduct
substantially the same business under another trademark, service mark, trade name, logotype,
advertising, or other commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to the expiration of the franchise
or the franchisee does not receive at least 6 months advance notice of franchisor’s intent not to renew
the franchise.

(e) A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally
available to other franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This section does
not require a renewal provision.

3] A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state. This
shall not preclude the franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration, to conduct
arbitration at a location outside this state.

(2) A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a
franchise, except for good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from exercising a
right of first refusal to purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not limited to:

(1) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor’s then current
reasonable qualifications or standards.

(i)  The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or
subfranchisor.

(iii))  The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with
all lawful obligations.
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(iv)  The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to
the franchisor or to cure any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of the
proposed transfer.

(h) A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not
uniquely identified with the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants to a
franchisor a right of first refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and conditions
as a bona fide third party willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this subdivision prohibit
a provision that grants the franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a franchise for the market or
appraised value of such assets if the franchisee has breached the lawful provisions of the franchise
agreement and has failed to cure the breach in the manner provided in subdivision (c).

(1) A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or
otherwise transfer its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless provision
has been made for providing the required contractual services.

If the franchisor’s most recent financial statements are unaudited and show a net worth of less
than $100,000, the franchisor shall, at the request of a franchisee, arrange for the escrow of initial
investment and other funds paid by the franchisee until the obligations to provide real estate,
improvements, equipment, inventory, training, or other items included in the franchise offering are
fulfilled. At the option of the franchisor, a surety bond may be provided in place of escrow.

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE
ATTORNEY GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION,
OR ENDORSEMENT BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to:

State of Michigan
Consumer Protection Division
Attn: Franchise
670 G. Mennen Williams Building
525 West Ottawa
Lansing, Michigan 48933
Telephone Number: (517) 373-7117

Note: Despite subparagraph (f) above, we intend to fully enforce the arbitration provisions of the area
development agreement and franchise agreement. We believe that paragraph (f) is preempted by
federal law and cannot preclude us from enforcing these arbitration provisions. We will seek to enforce
this section as written.

THE MICHIGAN NOTICE APPLIES ONLY TO FRANCHISEES WHO ARE RESIDENTS
OF MICHIGAN OR LOCATE THEIR FRANCHISES IN MICHIGAN.
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Item 1.
THE FRANCHISOR AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES

To simplify the language in this franchise disclosure document (this “Disclosure Document”),
“franchisor,” “we,” “us,” or “our” means ATP Franchising, LLC. “You” or “your” means the person or
entity who buys the franchise from us. If you are a corporation, partnership, limited liability company, or
other business entity, your owners will have to guarantee your obligations and be bound by the provisions
of the Franchise Agreement (defined below), Area Development Agreement (defined below) and other
agreements described in this Disclosure Document. We offer and grant franchises to operate recreational
entertainment facilities featuring trampolines, obstacle courses, and other recreational activities, and

offering and selling other related products and services we authorize (each a “Park”).

The Franchisor

We were organized in Delaware in October 2018 as a limited liability company. Our principal business
address is 12222 Merit Drive, Suite 1300, Dallas, Texas 75251. Our principal telephone number is (866)
414-0616. Our agents for service of process are listed on Exhibit A. We do business under our company
name and the name “Altitude Trampoline Park.” We do not do business under any other name. We do not
currently directly own or operate any Parks, though certain Parks are owned by entities that are under
common control with us. We began offering franchises for Parks in February 2019, though our
Predecessors (defined below) sold franchises for Parks from January 2016 to December 2018.

Our Parents, Predecessors and Affiliates

We are wholly-owned by our parent, ATP Holding Company, LLC (“ATPH”), which is in turn wholly-
owned by ATP Investment Company, LLC, which is in turn wholly-owned by Indoor Active Brands LLC,
which is in turn majority-owned by NRD Partners II, L.P. (“NRD Fund”). ATPH, ATP Investment
Company LLC, Indoor Active Brands, LLC and NRD Fund each share the principal business address of
2859 Paces Ferry Road; Ste 412, Atlanta, GA 30339. None of our parents own or operate a Park or offer
franchises for Parks or any other concepts (though certain of their affiliates do).

ATPH acquired substantially all of the assets of the “Altitude Trampoline Park®” franchise system in
December 2018 (the “Acquisition”) from Altitude Franchising, LLC (now known as SR Franchising, LLC)
and J&C IP, Inc. (together, our “Predecessors”). As of the date of this disclosure document, the principal
business address of our Predecessors is 729 Wyndsor Creek Dr., Southlake, Texas 76092. Prior to the
Acquisition, our Predecessors did not directly own or operate any Parks, though certain of their affiliates
did, and did not grant franchises for any concepts other than “Altitude Trampoline Park™. Since the
Acquisition, our Predecessors do not own, operate, or grant franchises for Parks.

Our affiliate, ATP IP, LLC (“ATP IP”) owns the Marks (as defined below) and will provide trademark
license rights in the Marks to us, enabling us to license those Marks to franchisees. ATP IP does not
currently own or operate any Parks or offer franchises for Parks or any other concept. ATP IP has a
principal business address of 2859 Paces Ferry Road, Suite 412, Atlanta, Georgia 30339.

Our affiliate, ATP Operations, LLC (“ATP Operations”) provides us certain services, equipment, support,
and personnel that we use to satisfy our obligations to franchisees. ATP Operations also provides
franchisees access to a proprietary online training portal (“ATP Academy”). ATP Operations does not

1
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currently directly own and operate any Parks, but may do so in the future. ATP Operations does not offer
franchises for Parks or any other concept. ATP Operations shares our business address.

Our affiliate, ATP Brand Fund LLC (“ATP Brand Fund”) administers the Brand Fund (defined in Item 11)
for the “Altitude Trampoline Park®” franchise system. ATP Brand Fund does not currently own or operate
any Parks or offer franchises for Parks or any other concept. ATP Brand Fund shares our business address.

Affiliated Franchise Programs

We are also under common control with the following entities which offer franchises:

Frisch’s Franchising, LLC franchises a full-service restaurant concept under the “Frisch’s Big
Boy” trademarks featuring hamburgers, fish sandwiches, pies, salads, breakfast, and other food
and beverage offerings. Frisch’s Franchising, LLC has offered franchises for the “Frisch’s Big
Boy” concept since June 2016. As of the end of its most recent fiscal year (May 30, 2023), there
were 14 franchised “Frisch’s Big Boy” restaurants in operation. Frisch’s Franchising, LLC has the
principal place of business at 2800 Gilbert Avenue, Cincinnati, Ohio 45206.

TPP Franchising LLC franchises recreational facilities featuring pickleball courts, merchandise,
other social games, food and beverages, and other related products and services under “The Pickle
Pad” name and marks. TPP Franchising has offered franchises for “The Pickle Pad” concept since
November 2023. As of the end of its most recent fiscal year (December 31, 2023), there were no
franchised “The Pickle Pad” clubs in operation. TPP Franchising LLC shares our business address.

TOHC Franchising, LLC franchises restaurants featuring southern-style hot chicken tenders and
sandwiches, chicken and waffles, and other products and services under the “The Original Hot
Chicken” name and marks. TOHC Franchising, LLC has offered franchises for “The Original Hot
Chicken” restaurants since May 2023. As of the end of its most recent fiscal year (May 31, 2023),
there were no franchised “The Original Hot Chicken” restaurants in operation. TOHC Franchising
LLC also offered a co-branded “The Original Hot Chicken” and “Inked Tacos” franchise from
May 2023 to November 2023, and an associated area representative franchise from June 2023 to
December 2023, though in each case none were sold. TOHC Franchising LLC has its principal
place of business at 2859 Paces Ferry Road, Suite 412, Atlanta, Georgia 30339.

None of the affiliates described above have owned, operated, or offered franchises for Parks. Other than
as listed above, neither we nor any of our affiliates offers franchises for any other concept, though they
may do so in the future. Except as described above, we do not have any parents, predecessors, or other
affiliates required to be disclosed in Item 1.

The Franchise

Parks operate under the name “Altitude Trampoline Park®” and other trademarks, service marks, logos,
and commercial symbols we periodically authorize (the “Marks”). Parks also operate using distinctive and
proprietary business formats, methods, procedures, designs, layouts, standards, and specifications, all of
which we may improve, substitute, further develop, or modify periodically (together, the “System”). We
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call the Park that you will operate “your Park.” You must comply with all of our mandatory standards,
specifications, operating procedures, and rules that we prescribe for operating a Park (“System Standards”).

You must sign a franchise agreement with us to acquire the right to develop, own and operate a Park (the
“Franchise Agreement”) using the Marks and the System at a site selected by you and accepted by us (the
“Premises”). Our current form of Franchise Agreement is attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit
B-1. We may also elect to grant qualified persons the right to acquire multiple franchises for Parks within
a specifically described geographic territory according to a designated development schedule. Our current
form of area development agreement is attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit B-2 (the “Area
Development Agreement”). If we approve you to sign an Area Development Agreement, we will mutually
agree with you on the number of Parks that you will develop under your Area Development Agreement
and the development schedule for those Parks before you sign your Area Development Agreement.
Currently, we require a minimum development commitment of 5 Parks for new area developers; however,
we will make all decisions about the number of Parks that an area developer will develop based on our
then-current criteria (including, for example, relevant business experience, financial resources, the
geographic market, and other factors). You must sign our then-current Franchise Agreement for each Park
that you develop under your development schedule, which may have terms that are materially different
than the Franchise Agreement that is attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit B-1, except that we
will lock-in our current Royalty rate (currently, 6% of Gross Sales) for all Parks that you develop under
your Area Development Agreement.

If you are acquiring your franchise from an existing franchisee, in addition to signing a Franchise
Agreement, you and your owners and the existing franchisee and its owners must also sign our then-current
form of Consent to Transfer (the “Consent to Transfer”). Our current form of Consent to Transfer is
attached as Exhibit B-3 to this Disclosure Document.

Market Competition.

Y our competition will include national, regional, and local chains of trampoline parks as well other venues
that offer similar recreational activities, such as locations offering bounce houses, ropes and obstacle
courses, sports and games, and other recreational activities and services. You will be competing with such
businesses both for customers and for real estate locations. The indoor trampoline market is a developing
but highly competitive market. Well-established indoor trampoline park owners exist in this market.
Because Parks are indoor facilities, Parks in hot or cold climates may experience some seasonality (i.e.
increased sales when outside temperatures are not conducive to outdoor activities).

Laws and Regulations.

Certain aspects of operating a Park are regulated by federal, state and local laws, rules and ordinances. For
example, regulations may require trampoline parks and/or similar recreational facilities to carry certain
minimum insurance, obtain a license, post safety warnings and signs at the premises, keep a log of injuries,
show safety videos or training to customers before allowing entrance, limit the number of customers on
equipment, maintain supervisory employees, maintain first aid equipment or defibrillators on site, comply
with safety specifications for equipment, and/or submit to periodic inspections. In addition to regulations
applicable to trampoline parks and recreation facilities, you must also comply with laws generally
applicable to all businesses, including laws relating to compensation of employees (including minimum
wage and overtime requirements), business licensure, zoning, real estate and occupational permitting,
construction permitting, accessibility for persons with disabilities, sales and use tax, food service, health
and safety, and emergency orders related to public health or safety.
3
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There may also be other laws applicable to your Park. You should consult an attorney and consider all of
these laws and regulations when evaluating your purchase of a franchise for a Park. You are solely
responsible for ensuring that you and your Parks operations comply with all applicable laws.

Item 2.

BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

Aziz Hashim — Chairman of Board of Parent

Aziz Hashim has served as Chairman of the Board of Managers of our parent ATPH since December 2018.
Mr. Hashim has also served as: (i) Executive Chairman of TPP Holding Company LLC (the parent of “The
Pickle Pad” brand) since August 2023; (i1) Executive Chairman of Indoor Active Brands, LLC since
November 2023; (ii1) Executive Chairman of TOHC Holding Company, LLC (parent of the “The Original
Hot Chicken” brand) and certain of its affiliates since January 2023 (iv) the Managing Member of NRD
Capital Management, LLC and NRD Partners I GP, LLC since November 2014, (v) the Managing Member
of NRD Capital Management II, LLC and NRD Partners II GP, LLC since August 2016, (vi) Chairman
and a Director of Frisch’s Restaurants, Inc., since April 2016 and August 2015, respectively, and Chairman
of Frisch’s Franchising, LLC since June 2016, (vii) the Manager of Restaurant Management Services LLC
since January 2005, (viii) a Director, President, and Secretary of Franklin Junction, Inc. since March 2021,
(ix) President and a member of the Board of Managers of TP Opportunity Group, LLC (the parent of
certain entities owning Parks) since March 2021, and (x) managing member of Experiential Brands LLC
since October 2021 and its Chairman and President since November 2022. Mr. Hashim previously served
as: (a) the Chairman of the Board of FTO Holding Company, LLC (the parent of the “Fuzzy’s Taco Shop”
brand) from February 2016 to December 2022, (b) Chairman and Director of Ruby Tuesday, Inc. from
December 2017 to February 2021, and President of Ruby Tuesday, Inc. from December 2017 to November
2021 (c) sole director of Mikes Kitchen Franchising (Pty) Ltd (franchisor of the “Mike’s Kitchen” brand
in South Africa) from May 2017 to November 2019, and (d) a member of the Board, President and
Secretary of TCB Canada Holding Company Inc. (the parent of “The Captains Boil” brand in Canada)
from March 2018 to May 2022. All positions are and were held by Mr. Hashim from Atlanta, Georgia.

Mike Rotondo — Chief Executive Officer

Mike Rotondo has been our Chief Executive Officer since December 2019. Mr. Rotondo has also served
as Chief Executive Officer of TPP Franchising LLC (franchisor of the “The Pickle Pad” brand) and certain
of its affiliates since August 2023. From March 2021 to March 2023, Mr. Rotondo was also on the board
of managers of TP Opportunity Group LLC (the parent of certain entities owning Parks). Prior to that, Mr.
Rotondo served as the Chief Executive Officer at Edible Arrangements from June 2018 to November 2019.
All positions are and were held by Mr. Rotondo from Atlanta, Georgia.

Doug Williams — Chief Financial Officer

Doug Williams has been our Chief Financial Officer since March 2023. Mr. Williams has also served as
Chief Financial Officer of TPP Franchising LLC (franchisor of the “The Pickle Pad” brand) and certain of
its affiliates since August 2023. Prior to that, Mr. Williams was the Chief Financial Officer of Sun Holdings
and Sun Steak LLC in Dallas, Texas from June 2020 to March 2023, the Chief Financial Officer of
Whitebridge Pet Brands in Creve Coeur, Missouri from September 2019 to February 2020, and the Chief
Financial Officer of Thomas Industrial in Pevely, Missouri from May 2015 to September 2019. From
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February 2020 to June 2020, Mr. Williams was between positions. All positions with us and TPP
Franchising, LLC are held by Mr. Williams from Dallas, TX.

Michael Stout — Vice President of Franchise Development

Michael Stout has been our Vice President of Franchise Development since January 2024. From April
2021 to December 2023, Mr. Stout served as Senior Director of Franchise Development at Shipley
Franchise Company in Houston, Texas. From November 2018 to March 2020, Mr. Stout served as the
Director of Licensed Business Development at Beltone, Inc. in Eureka, Missouri. From February 2009 to
December 2021, Mr. Stout served as Vice President and Board Member of Stephens-Frost Farms in
Eureka, Missouri. Mr. Stout holds his position with us from Dallas, Texas. All positions with us are held
by Mr. Stout from Houston, TX.

Nicholas Doll — Vice President of Operations

Nicholas Doll has been our Vice President of Operations since March 2022. From June 2020 to March
2022, Mr. Doll was the Director of Franchise Support of Buff City Soap in Dallas, Texas. From May 2017
to June 2020, Mr. Doll was the Director of Operations at Mod Pizza in Lexington Kentucky. All positions
with us are held by Mr. Doll from Dallas, TX.

Gina Elliot —Director of Training

Gina Elliot has been our Director of Training since December 2021. From September 2006 to October
2021, Ms. Elliot was employed at HOA Brands LLC, in Atlanta Georgia, including most recently as
Director of New Store Openings and Franchise Training and Senior Director of Learning and
Development. Between October 2021 and December 2021, Ms. Elliot was between positions. All positions
with us are held by Ms. Elliot from Columbus, OH.

Joseph Steen —Vice President of Technology

Joseph Steen has been our Vice President of Technology since August 2022. From January 2022 to August
2022, Mr. Steen served as our Director of Technology. From September 2016 to January 2022, Mr. Steen
served as Director of Technology of Old Republic Aerospace in Kennesaw, Georgia. All positions with us
are held by Mr. Steen from Atlanta, GA.

Sean Turner — Vice President of Real Estate

Sean Turner has been our Vice President of Real Estate since August 2023. From August 2021 to April
2023, Mr. Turner served as Real Estate Manager for City BBQ, in Dublin, Ohio. From April 2005 to
August 2021, Mr. Turner served as Real Estate Manager for White Castle, in Columbus, Ohio. Between
April 2023 and August 2023, Mr. Turner was between positions. All positions with us are held by Mr.
Turner from Columbus, OH.

Item 3.

LITIGATION
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Pending Proceedings:

Richard and Michelle Kenyon, individually and as next friend of MK v. Lonestar TPLD 1, LLC d/b/a
Altitude Trampoline Park, SR Franchising, Fun Spot Manufacturing, LLC and ATP Franchising, LLC,
126th Judicial District Court, Travis County, Texas, Case No. D-1-GN-20-004897, filed September 14,
2020. Plaintiffs filed suit against us, one of our franchisees, one of our Predecessors, and an equipment
supplier. Plaintiffs allege that a minor child was injured while using the rock wall attraction at a franchised
Park. Plaintiffs assert claims for strict product liability (defective design); strict product liability
(manufacturing defect); strict product liability (defect in warnings and instructions); negligent design,
manufacturing, and marketing; negligent undertaking; and negligent misrepresentation. The negligent
misrepresentation claim alleges we misrepresented that Parks meet certain safety standards. Plaintiffs seek
actual, punitive, and exemplary damages exceeding $1 million. On November 2, 2020, we answered the
complaint, denying any liability and asserting various affirmative defenses. We also filed cross-claims for
indemnification against the franchisee and its personal guarantors because the damages arose from the
operations of the franchised Park. The parties have nearly completed discovery and are engaged in
settlement discussions. We intend to vigorously defend against plaintiffs’ claims.

Erik Fisher v. LMN Group LLC, Altitude Trampoline Parks, ATP Operations, LLC, ATP Franchising,
LLC, Sports Designed LLC, Trampoline Sports LL.C, and Doe Defendants 1-20, Court of Common Pleas,
Bucks County, Pennsylvania, Case No. 2021-02998-0, filed June 10, 2021. Plaintiff filed suit against us
and certain of our affiliates, one of our franchisees, certain equipment suppliers, and unknown defendants.
Plaintiff alleges that he was injured while jumping on a trampoline at a franchised Park. Plaintiff asserts
claims against us for negligence; negligence per se; premises liability (negligent condition of premises);
attractive nuisance; premises liability (negligently preventing assistance); negligent performance of
undertaking to render services; and violation of Pennsylvania’s unfair trade practices and consumer
protection law. The unfair trade practices claim alleges we deceptively promoted the safety of the
franchised Park. Plaintiff seeks compensatory and punitive damages in excess of $50,000. On August 23,
2021, plaintiff stipulated to the dismissal without prejudice of our affiliate ATP Operations. On August 27,
2021, we filed our answer to the complaint denying that plaintiff is entitled to any relief against us, and we
filed cross-claims against the equipment suppliers and unknown defendants for indemnification and
contribution. The parties have nearly completed discovery and plan to mediate in April of 2024. We intend
to vigorously defend against plaintiff’s claims.

Rebecca White-Baker, ex rel. Elizabeth Hawkins v. Altitude NJ, LL.C d/b/a Altitude Trampoline Park;
ATP Operations, LLC; ATP Franchising, LL.C; Fun Spot Manufacturing LLC; ABEO North America,
Inc.; and John Does 1-5, Middlesex County, New Jersey, Case No. MID-L-006212-23, filed November 2,
2023. Plaintiff filed suit against us and one of our affiliates, one of our franchisees, certain equipment
suppliers, and unknown defendants. Plaintiff alleges that her minor daughter suffered a fractured tibia at a
franchised Park. Plaintiff asserts claims against us for negligence, reckless conduct, gross negligence, and
wanton conduct. Plaintiff also asserts claims for equitable fraud, consumer fraud, and for violations of the
New Jersey Truth-In-Consumer Contract, Warranty and Notice Act, alleging that the franchisee’s
participant waiver was intended to mislead the Plaintiff and that it misrepresented that Parks are ASTM
and TATP certified. We intend to vigorously defend against plaintiff’s claims.

Felicia Perez v. Altitude NJ, LLC d/b/a Altitude Trampoline Park; ATP Operations, LLC; ATP
Franchising, L.L.C; Fun Spot Manufacturing LL.C; ABEO North America, Inc.; and John Does 1-5,
Middlesex County, New Jersey, Case No. MID-L-006210-23, filed November 2, 2023. Plaintiff filed suit
against us and one of our affiliates, one of our franchisees, certain equipment suppliers, and unknown
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defendants. Plaintiff alleges that she suffered a fracture ankle at a franchised Park. Plaintiff asserts claims
against us for negligence, reckless conduct, gross negligence, and wanton conduct. Plaintiff also asserts
claims for equitable fraud, consumer fraud, and for violations of the New Jersey Truth-In-Consumer
Contract, Warranty and Notice Act, and the New Jersey Consumer Fraud Act, alleging that the franchisee’s
participant waiver was intended to mislead the Plaintiff and that it misrepresented that Parks are ASTM
and IATP certified. We intend to vigorously defend against plaintiff’s claims.

Bedrock Property Solutions, LLC v. Altitude Franchising, LI C; SR Franchising, LLC; ATP Franchising,
LLC, American Arbitration Association, Case No. 01-24-0000-0279, filed January 3, 2024. Our franchisee
Bedrock Property Solutions, LLC filed a demand for arbitration naming us and certain of our Predecessors
as respondents, seeking unspecified monetary damages and alleging that respondents: (i) made negligent
misrepresentations and fraudulently induced the franchisee to enter into the franchise agreement, including
alleged misrepresentations about market potential, required initial investment, revenue projections,
management and marketing support, and effects of nearby competition; (i1) breached the franchise
agreement and one or more express or common law warranties, including failing to provide support and
training; and (ii1) violated the Texas Deceptive Trade Practices Act. The January 3, 2024 arbitration
demand follows two separate matters that Bedrock Property Solutions, LLC filed on October 6, 2023: a
federal lawsuit in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Texas, Case No. 4:23-cv-
01026-0 alleging similar claims against certain of our Predecessors and their owners (which plaintiff
voluntarily dismissed on February 9, 2024); and a separate American Arbitration Association (“AAA”)
Demand, Case No. 01-23-0004-4093 alleging similar claims against certain of our Predecessor’s owners.
On February 9, 2024, the arbitration against us was stayed indefinitely by agreement of the parties. If the
arbitration does proceed, we intend to vigorously defend against claimant’s claims.

Eliana Lozano and Lincon Frost v. Altitude NJ, LLC D/B/A Altitude Trampoline Park, ATP Operations,
LLC, ATP Franchising, LLC, Fun Spot Manufacturing LLC, ABEO North America, Inc., and John Does
1-5, Superior Court of New Jersey, Middlesex County, New Jersey, Case No. MID-L-001714-24, filed
March 18, 2024. Plaintiffs filed suit against us and one of our affiliates, one of our franchisees, two
equipment suppliers, and unknown defendants. Plaintiffs allege that Eliana Lozano suffered a fracture of
her foot at a franchised Park. Plaintiffs assert claims against us for negligence, reckless conduct, gross
negligence, and wanton conduct, as well as loss of companionship and services. Plaintiffs also assert claims
for equitable fraud, consumer fraud, and for violations of the New Jersey Truth-In-Consumer Contract,
Warranty and Notice Act and the New Jersey Consumer Fraud Act, alleging that the franchisee’s
participant waiver was intended to mislead the Plaintiffs and that it misrepresented that Parks are ASTM
and IATP certified. We intend to vigorously defend against plaintiffs’ claims.

Concluded Proceedings:

ATP Holding Company, LLC v. Curtis Skallerup, Jeffrey A. Rutten, SR Franchising, LLC f/k/a Altitude
Franchising, LL.C, SR Management 2018, LLC f/k/a L&A Altitude Management LL.C, Spike Apparel,
LLC, SR Metal, LLC f/k/a ATP Metal, LLC, J&CIP, INC., SR IP, LLC f/k/a ATPIP, LLC, SR Little Rock
Management, LL.C f/k/a ATP Little Rock Management, LL.C, SR Park Enterprises, LLC f/k/a Vertical
Trampoline Park Enterprises, LLC, SS RR Park, LLC f/k/a Altitude At Round Rock, LLC, Virgo LLC,
SR Concept 2, LLC f/k/a Altitude H20, LL.C, SR Concept 2 Franchising, LLC f/k/a Altitude H20
Franchising, LLC, Superior Court, Delaware, Case No. N20C-05-098 MMJ CCLD, filed May 11, 2020.
ATPH filed suit against our Predecessors and certain of their affiliates and owners (the “Predecessor
Parties”). ATPH asserted that the Predecessor Parties made inaccurate and fraudulent representations to
ATPH in connection with the Acquisition. ATPH’s claims include breach of representations and warranties
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under the asset purchase agreement governing the Acquisition (the “APA”), fraud, and indemnity. ATPH
sought rescissory, actual and punitive damages, costs and attorneys’ fees, and other remedies. In response,
on July 15, 2020 the Predecessor Parties filed a motion to dismiss ATPH’s complaint. In addition, the
Predecessor Parties filed Curtis Skallerup, Jeffrey A. Rutten, SR Franchising, LLC f/k/a Altitude
Franchising, LL.C, SR Management 2018, LLC f/k/a L&A Altitude Management LLC, Spike Apparel,
LLC, SR Metal, LLC f/k/a ATP Metal, LLC, J&C IP, INC., SR IP, LLC f/k/a ATPIP, LLC, SR Little Rock
Management, LLC f/k/a ATP Little Rock Management, LLC, SR Park Enterprises, LLC f/k/a Vertical
Trampoline Park Enterprises, LLC, SS RR Park, LLC f/k/a Altitude At Round Rock, LLC, Virgo LLC,
SR Concept 2, LLC f/k/a Altitude H20, LL.C, SR Concept 2 Franchising, LLC f/k/a Altitude H20
Franchising, LL.C v. ATP Holding Company, LLC, Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware, Case No.
2020-0582, filed July 15, 2020. The Predecessor Parties sought a declaratory judgment that ATPH is not
entitled to indemnity under the APA. The Predecessor Parties further alleged that ATPH fraudulently
induced its former executives, Skallerup and Rutten, to enter into separation agreements, breached the
separation agreements, and breached the APA and other agreements signed in connection with the
Acquisition. The Predecessor Parties sought actual and consequential damages and other remedies, or in
the alternative, that the court compel the parties to arbitrate their disputes. On December 4, 2021, ATPH
and the Predecessor Parties entered into a Settlement Agreement under which: (i) Mr. Skallerup and Mr.
Rutten relinquished their respective equity interests in ATPH; (ii) Mr. Skallerup and Mr. Rutten waived
all outstanding amounts owed by ATPH to them under certain promissory notes; (iii) the remaining balance
of the purchase price under the APA, which was held in escrow, was divided among the parties, such that
Mr. Rutten and Mr. Skallerup each received approximately $1,500,000 in proceeds, and ATPH received
approximately $470,000 in proceeds; and (v) the parties released each other from all additional claims. On
December 9, 2021, the proceedings in the Delaware Court of Chancery were dismissed with prejudice, and
on December 15, 2021, the proceedings in the Delaware Superior Court were dismissed with prejudice.

Jim Kamp v. SR Park Enterprises, LLC f/k/a Vertical Trampoline Park Enterprises, LL.C and d/b/a Altitude
Trampoline Parks; SR Franchising, LC f/k/a Altitude Franchising, LLC; J&C IP, Inc.; and Curtis Skallerup,
District Court, Tarrant County, Texas, Case No. 017-302814-18, filed September 11, 2018. Jim Kamp sued
our Predecessors, certain of their affiliates of our Predecessors, and Curtis Skallerup seeking damages,
punitive damages, and attorneys’ fees relating to an alleged breach of an alleged oral agent development
agreement between Mr. Kamp and our Predecessors. Mr. Kamp alleged that he was owed compensation
for introducing prospective franchisees to our Predecessors and performing other services. He also alleged
that the defendants were his employers, joint employers, or co-employers. In addition to a claim for breach
of contract, the complaint includes claims for quantum meruit, a common law claim for wages, and fraud
and fraudulent inducement. On December 20, 2018, Mr. Kamp filed a First Amended Petition changing
his breach of contract claim to also allege quasi contract and changing his fraud claim to also allege fraud
in the factum and fraudulent inducement. He sought damages in excess of the amount of $917,575.75.
Defendants entered into a settlement agreement with Mr. Kamp, which required our Predecessors to pay a
settlement amount of $200,000 to Mr. Kamp, and Mr. Kamp executed an amendment to his license
agreement which terminated and relinquished any right of first refusal he may have had, and under which
Mr. Kamp would be entitled to certain assistance in finding a potential buyer to purchase his existing Park.
On November 4, 2019, Mr. Kamp dismissed all claims with prejudice.

Bump It Up, LLC v. SR Park Enterprises, LLC, f/k/a Vertical Trampoline Park Enterprises, LLC and d/b/a/
Altitude Trampoline Parks; SR Franchising, LLC f/k/a Altitude Franchising, LLC; J&C IP, Inc.; SR
Concept 2, LLC f/k/a Altitude H20, LLC, SR Concept 2 Franchising, LLC f/k/a Altitude H20 Franchising,
LLC and Curtis Skallerup, District Court, Tarrant County, Texas, Case No. 067-302989-18, filed
September 17, 2018. Bump It Up, LLC (“BIU”), a franchisee, filed suit against our Predecessors, certain
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affiliates of our Predecessors, and Curtis Skallerup seeking unspecified damages, punitive damages and
attorneys’ fees relating to an alleged breach of the license agreement BIU had entered into with our
Predecessor on or about December 1, 2013. BIU alleged that defendants have violated the exclusive
territory provision in the license agreement and the right of first refusal provision by allowing third parties
to open Altitude Trampoline Parks in the exclusive territory or without first offering locations located in
the right of first refusal area to BIU. On December 20, 2018, BIU filed a First Amended Petition, adding
claims for fraud in the factum and fraudulent inducement, violation of the Texas Deceptive Trade Practices
Act and Texas Business Opportunities Act, negligent misrepresentation, civil conspiracy and aiding and
abetting, and declaratory judgment based on the same facts. Defendants entered into a settlement
agreement with BIU dated April 16, 2019, under which our Predecessors were required to pay BIU a
settlement amount of $1,075,000, and BIU executed an amendment to its license agreement which
terminated and relinquished any right of first refusal it may had, and to further limit the geographic scope
of its protected territory. On July 2, 2019, BIU dismissed all claims with prejudice.

William Pruitt v. Gastonia ATP, LLC d/b/a Altitude Trampoline Park, ATP Alpha, LLC, Tim Kurtz,
Altitude Franchising, LL.C, ATP Franchising, LLC, SR Franchising, LL.C, ATP Holding Company, LLC,
ATP Investment Company, LLC, NRD Partners II, L.P., SR Management 2018, LLC, ATP 1P, LLC, SR
IP, LLC, Fun Spot Manufacturing, LL.C, ABEO North America, Inc., ATP Operations, LLC, L&A Altitude
Management, LLC, and Curt Skallerup, Superior Court, Gaston County, North Carolina, Case No. 20-
CVS-4241, filed December 1, 2020. Plaintiff filed his amended complaint on August 27, 2021, against us
and certain of our affiliates, two of our franchisees and their principal, one of our Predecessors and certain
of its affiliates and owners, and an equipment supplier and its predecessor. Plaintiff alleges that he was
injured while jumping at a franchised Park. Plaintiff asserts claims for negligence, gross negligence,
negligence per se, product liability, and unfair and deceptive practices in violation of North Carolina’s
consumer protection statute, N.C.G.S. § 75-1.1, ef seq. The unfair and deceptive trade practice claim
alleges we misrepresented the safety of the trampolines. Plaintiff seeks compensatory and trebled damages,
punitive damages, and attorneys’ fees and costs. On October 11, 2021, we filed our answer to the amended
complaint denying that plaintiff is entitled to any relief against us. On January 12, 2022, plaintiff
voluntarily dismissed without prejudice NRD Fund, ATP Investment Company, LLC, our parent ATPH,
and our affiliate ATP IP. In January 2023, the parties reached a global settlement agreement in principle
whereby ATPH agreed to pay $10,000.00, and plaintiff agreed to dismiss all claims with prejudice. On
March 27, 2024, plaintiff submitted notice of voluntary dismissal of claims to the court.

Other than these actions, no litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.
Item 4.
BANKRUPTCY

In re: Ruby Tuesday, Inc., et. al., U.S. Bankruptcy Court, District of Delaware (Wilmington), October 7,
2020: Case Nos. 1:20-BK-12456 to 124507. Ruby Tuesday, Inc. and each of its subsidiaries and its direct
parent voluntarily filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy relief on October 7, 2020. The debtors owned and
operated the “Ruby Tuesday®” brand, system of restaurants, and related business enterprises. The debtors’
reorganization plan became effective by order of the court on February 24, 2021. Pursuant to the
reorganization plan, certain of the debtors’ assets and operations were re-organized and distributed among
their creditors. The court issued a final decree closing the Chapter 11 case on December 10, 2021. Aziz
Hashim, Chairman of our parent ATPH’s Board of Managers, was an officer of Ruby Tuesday, Inc. and
certain of its affiliates at the time they filed for bankruptcy relief. At the time of filing, Ruby Tuesday, Inc.
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and each of its subsidiaries had the address and principal place of business of 333 East Broadway Avenue,
Maryville, TN 37804, and its parent RTI Holding Company LLC had the principal place of business 4170
Ashford Dunwoody Road, Suite #390, Atlanta, GA 30319.

In re: Sun Steaks, LL.C, U.S. Bankruptcy Court, Middle District of Florida (Tampa), October 16, 2020:
Case No. 8:20-bk-07727-CED. Sun Steaks, LLC filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy relief on October 16,
2020. Sun Steaks, LL.C was the operator of certain “Golden Corral®” branded restaurants in Florida. The
debtor’s reorganization plan became effective by order of the court on June 15, 2021. Pursuant to the
reorganization plan, the debtor would cease all operations, and the assets of the debtor would be liquidated
to pay its creditors. The claims process remains ongoing. At the time of filing the petition for relief, Doug
Williams, our Chief Financial Officer, was the Chief Financial Officer of the debtor. Sun Steaks, LLC has
the principal business address of 4515 Lyndon B. Johnson Highway, Dallas, TX 75244.

Other than these actions, no bankruptcy information is required to be disclosed in this Item.

Item 5.

INITIAL FEES
Initial Franchise Fee

Y ou must pay us an initial franchise in a lump sum on the date that you sign the Franchise Agreement (the
“Initial Franchise Fee”). The Initial Franchise Fee will be $45,000 for the 1% Park developed by you or
your affiliates, $35,000 for the 2" Park developed by you or your affiliates, or $25,000 for the 3™ or
subsequent Park developed by you or your affiliates. The Initial Franchise Fee is fully earned when paid
and not refundable under any circumstances. In our previous fiscal year, we accepted Initial Franchise Fees
that ranged from $15,000 to $45,000 as a result of certain negotiated transactions.

Area Development Fee

If you execute an Area Development Agreement to acquire franchises to develop multiple Parks, you must
pay us a development fee (“Development Fee”) equal to 50% of the Initial Franchise Fee for each Park
that you propose to develop, when you sign your Area Development Agreement. The full amount of the
Development Fee per Park will be credited towards the Initial Franchise Fee due for that Park. As discussed
in Item 1, we currently require a development commitment of at least 5 Parks; therefore, when you sign an
Area Development Agreement, you would pay an initial Development Fee of $77,500 for a 5-Park
commitment. The Development Fee is fully earned when paid and not refundable under any circumstances.
In our previous fiscal year, we accepted Development Fees ranging from $50,000 for a 5-Park commitment
to $90,000 for a 6-Park commitment as a result of certain negotiated transactions.

Referral Fees.

We may use one or more franchise brokers or referral sources to assist us in selling our franchise. If we
use a franchise broker or referral source, we may pay them a referral fee if you purchase a franchise.

Item 6.

OTHER FEES
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TYPE OF FEE ! AMOUNT

DUE DATE

REMARKS 2

Royalty 6% of Gross Sales *

Monthly

Y ou must pay us a Royalty in the manner we prescribe.
Currently, we collect the Royalty through electronic
funds transfers.” If you sign an Area Development
Agreement, we will lock-in this Royalty for all Parks
you develop under the Area Development Agreement.

Brand Fund 2% of Gross Sales
Contribution (subject to change)

Monthly

You must pay your Brand Fund Contribution through
electronic funds transfers to our affiliate ATP Brand
Fund. The amount of the Brand Fund Contribution is
subject to change, but the amount of your Brand Fund
Contribution, together with your Local Advertising
Cooperative Contribution and your Local Advertising
Expenditure will not collectively exceed 5% of Gross
Sales (your Maximum Advertising Expenditure, as
defined below).

Additional $400 per day, per
Training Fee trainer, plus expenses
(subject to change)

As incurred

You will pay us an additional training fee for any
additional training we offer because: (1) we determine
that any of your Key Personnel have not completed
the Management Training Program to our satisfaction;
(2) you appoint a new Approved Manger or your
Principal Owner changes; (3) you are not performing
to our System Standards; (4) you request, and we
agree, to provide any additional training, after the
Management Training Program; or (5) we provide any
on-site services at your Park for any reason. We may
also charge our then-current fees for other
conferences, meetings, webinars, and other ongoing
training programs as we determine (currently, only the
annual conference fee, described below).
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TYPE OF FEE !

AMOUNT

DUE DATE

REMARKS 2

Local
Advertising
Cooperative
Contribution

Determined when
established (currently
not collected) *

Determined
when
established

Payable to the Local Advertising Cooperative (as
defined in Item 11) if a Local Advertising Cooperative
is established in your area. The amount of the Local
Advertising Cooperative Contribution will be
determined when it is established but the amount of
your Local Advertising Cooperative Contribution
together with your Brand Fund Contribution and your
Local Advertising Expenditure will not collectively
exceed 5% of Gross Sales (your Maximum
Advertising Expenditure, as defined below). If a Local
Advertising Cooperative is established, we expect that
the amount of the Local Advertising Cooperative
Contribution will be established by a vote of the
members of that Local Advertising Cooperative (and
franchisor or affiliate-owed Parks will have the same
voting rights as franchisee-owned Parks in that
geographic region).

Local
Advertising
Expenditure

Determined when
established (currently
not required) *

Determined
when
established

We may require you to pay the Local Advertising
Expenditure (as defined in Item 11) to advertise your
Park. We may also require you to pay this amount to
us or our designees. The amount of the Local
Advertising Expenditure will be determined when
established but the amount of your Local Advertising
Expenditure together with your Brand Fund
Contribution and Local Advertising Cooperative
Contribution will not collectively exceed 5% of Gross
Sales (your Maximum Advertising Expenditure, as
defined below).

Conference Fee

$199 per person
(subject to change)

As incurred

We require you and your Key Personnel to attend an
annual meetings of franchise owners and pay the fee
per person, regardless of attendance.

Renewal Fee

$11,250 (subject to
change)

Before renewal
is approved

You must pay 25% our then-current franchise fee, if
you renew your franchise after the expiration of the
Franchise Agreement. Your right to renew your
franchise is subject to certain terms and conditions.

Transfer Fee

$15,000 (per
Franchise Agreement,
and/or Area
Development
Agreement)

Before transfer
completed

Payable as a condition of transfer; unless the transfer
occurs because you (or your Principal Owner) die or
is disabled, if transfer is to an immediate family
member, or an entity wholly-owned by you, provided
that in such cases you reimburse us for our costs
incurred in reviewing and processing such transfer,
including legal fees. Your right to transfer is subject to
certain terms and conditions.
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TYPE OF FEE !

AMOUNT

DUE DATE

REMARKS 2

Financial Audit

Understated amounts,
plus interest.

Within 15 days
after receiving
the

Due if you fail to furnish any reports we require or
understate Gross Sales. If the understatement is more
than 3% of Gross Sales, you must also reimburse our

examination audit fees and related expenses.
report
Interest 2% per month or As incurred Due on all overdue amounts and accruing as of the
highest commercial original due date.
contract interest rate
allowed by law,
whichever is lower
Insufficient $100 per instance On demand You must pay our then-current fee each time we
Funds (subject to change) attempt to debit your business account and we receive
a notice of insufficient funds.
Maintenance You must reimburse | On demand If you fail to maintain your Park in accordance with
our expenses our System Standards, and do not complete any
required maintenance for more than 30 days after we
notify you, then we can undertake the repairs and you
must reimburse our costs.
Membership You must reimburse | On demand If we are contacted by a member of your Park who
Complaints our expenses wishes to lodge a complaint, we may address the
member’s complaints, which may include refunding
money to the complaining member, in which case you
must reimburse us for these amounts.
Insurance Estimated $5,000 per | On demand If you fail to obtain insurance, we may obtain
occurrence, plus costs insurance for you, and you must pay us a reasonable
(subject to change) fee we determine, plus our direct costs.
Tax Will vary under On demand You are responsible for all taxes related to your Park.
Reimbursement | circumstances If we, for any reason, pay taxes to any state or federal
taxing authority on account of either your operations
or payments that you make to us (except for our
income taxes) you must reimburse us for such
amounts, plus our expenses.
Indemnification | Will vary under On demand Y ou must reimburse us and our affiliates if an of us are
circumstances held liable for claims related to your operations, your
Park, or your breach of the Franchise Agreement, or
Area Development Agreement.
Costs and Will vary under As incurred Prevailing party in a dispute or proceeding must pay
Attorney’s Fees | circumstances all damages, costs and expenses, including mediation,
arbitration and court costs and reasonable attorneys’
fees.
Testing of new | Our direct costs As incurred We may charge you a fee if you ask us to evaluate any
product/supplier | (subject to change) proposed alternative suppliers. Our current fee is
simply reimbursement of our costs.
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TYPE OF FEE !

AMOUNT

DUE DATE

REMARKS 2

Interim
Operations Fee

$550 per day, plus
costs (subject to
change)

As incurred

You must pay our then-current fee if we step-in to
operate your Park on an interim basis if you abandon
or fail actively to operate your Park or the Franchise
Agreement expires or is terminated and we are
transitioning your Park operations to us or another
person we designate, or determining whether to do so.

Technology Fee

$250 per month
(subject to change)

Monthly

We may charge you our then-current technology fee
for support and development, website and email
hosting, and other technology services. We may
modify the amount of the Technology Fee periodically
up to $500 per month during the first 5 years of
operation for any Park, or up to $1,000 per month after
5 years of operation. The amount of your Technology
Fee may vary in part by factors that are determined by
you or your Park (such as the number of email
addresses you request). Other franchisees may pay a
different amount.

Reinspection Fee

Reimbursement of our
expenses

As incurred

If any inspection of your Park reveals violations of
System Standards, you must reimburse us for our cost
of any re-inspection or follow-up visits to your Park to
determine if all violations have been cured.

Mystery Shopper
Fee

Reimbursement of our
expenses

As incurred

You must reimburse us for the cost of any mystery
shoppers that we engage to inspect your Park.

Lost Revenue
Damages

Will vary under
circumstances

Within 15 days
of termination

If we terminate your Franchise Agreement because of
your default (or you terminate without cause), you
must pay us lost revenue damages equal to the net
present value of the balance of your Royalties, Brand
Fund Contributions and Local Advertising
Cooperative Contributions, from the date of
termination until the earlier of (i) 2 years from the date
of termination, or (ii) the scheduled expiration date of
your Franchise Agreement (based on the average
monthly amount of your Gross Sales during the
preceding 12 months, or if you have been operating
your Park for less than 12 months, on the average
monthly Gross Sales of all Parks during our previous
fiscal year).

Explanatorv Notes

1. Except as described in this Item 6, all fees are imposed and collected by and payable to us, though
we may transfer these rights to our affiliates. These fees are not refundable. Not all our fees are uniformly
imposed due to individual negotiated terms with certain franchisees. All amounts payable by you to us or

our affiliates must be in United States Dollars ($USD).
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2. Y ou must pay the Royalty, the Brand Fund Contribution and other amounts due under the Franchise
Agreement or Area Development Agreement as we periodically prescribe. Currently, we require all
payments to be made through an electronic funds transfer system that allows us to debit a business account
you designate for all amounts you owe us on their due dates or the next business day if the due date is a
national holiday or a weekend day. You must ensure that funds are available in your designated account to
cover our withdrawals. If the amounts that we debit from your account are greater than the amounts you
actually owe us, we will credit the excess against the amounts we otherwise would debit from your business
account on the next payment due date. We may require you to make payments through any other method
at any time, and you must comply with our payment instructions. We may change the timing and intervals
of your payments with 30 days prior notice to you.

3. “Gross Sales” means the total gross revenue or consideration derived from your sale of products
and services and all other income of every kind and nature, directly or indirectly, from operating your Park,
including, all revenue or consideration you receive at or away from the Premises, and whether from cash,
check, credit and debit card, barter exchange, trade credit, or other credit transactions. There will be no
deductions allowed for uncollected or uncollectible credit accounts and no allowances will be made for
bad debts. Gross Sales includes the proceeds of any business interruption insurance or similar insurance.
If we authorize or require participation in online group-bought deals, gift certificate and/or gift card
programs, the payments you receive for those online group-bought deals, gift certificates or gift cards will
be included in Gross Sales in accordance with our then-current guidelines for calculating Gross Sales.
Gross Sales does not include the amount of any tax imposed by any federal, state, municipal or
governmental authority directly on sales and collected from customers if such tax is added to the selling
price and actually paid by you to such governmental authority. We will require that you provide your profit
and loss statements to us on a monthly basis for our review in a manner that we prescribe. If we cease to
have access to your Gross Sales via the Computer System (defined in Item 11) and you fail to report your
Park’s Gross Sales when due, then for each payment calculated based on Gross Sales, we may debit your
business account 110% of the average of the last 3 applicable payments we debited. If the amount we debit
is more than the amount you actually owe us, we will credit the excess against the amounts we otherwise
would debit from your account on the next payment due date. If the amounts that we debit from your
business account are less than the amounts you actually owe us (once we have determined your Park’s
correct Gross Sales), we will debit your business account for the balance on any day we specify.

4. We may, upon 60 days prior written notice to you, change the required Brand Fund Contribution,
Local Advertising Expenditure or Local Advertising Cooperative Contribution. However, the combined
Brand Fund Contribution, Local Advertising Expenditure and Local Advertising Cooperative Contribution
will not at any time exceed the Maximum Advertising Expenditure of 5% of your Gross Sales (as described
further in Item 11).

5. You must pay all travel and living expenses (including wages, transportation, food, lodging and
workers’ compensation) incurred by you and your personnel incur during any and all meetings and/or
training courses and programs. You must also pay all travel and living expenses (including transportation,
food, and lodging) incurred by any of our trainers or staff we send to your Park to provide training courses
Or programs.
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Item 7.

ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT
(AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT)

TO WHOM
TYPE OF METHOD OF
AMOUNT 1 WHEN DUE PAYMENT IS
EXPENDITURE PAYMENT TO BE MADE
Development Fee 2 $77,500 Lump sum See Note 2 Us
Professional Fees 3 $1,000 - $5,000 As incurred Before you sign your | Third-Party
Area Development Suppliers
Agreement
Additional Funds — 3 $0 - $1,000 As incurred As incurred Third-Party
months Suppliers
TOTAL $78,500 to $83,500
ESTIMATED
INITIAL
INVESTMENT ¢
Explanatory Notes
1. Except as otherwise provided, none of the amounts payable to us or our affiliates in this table are

refundable under any circumstances. All amounts payable to third parties will be paid under the terms of
your agreement with these respective third parties.

2. As described in Item 5, your Development Fee will depend on the number of Parks you agree to
develop under your Area Development Agreement. The Development Fee will be 50% of the Initial
Franchise Fee per Park paid on the date you sign your Area Development Agreement. The full amount of
the Development Fee per Park will be credited towards the Initial Franchise Fee due for that Park. The
Development Fee estimate provided above is for our current minimum 5 Park commitment.

3. We recommend that you consult with an attorney and accountant to advise you in connection with
forming an entity to act as the area developer, acquiring the area development rights from us, and
developing a business plan for development of Parks. However, the amount of professional fees you incur
will depend on the number of representatives you engage, the experience and sophistication of those
representatives, and the geographic market in which you operate. This estimate does not include
professional fees you may incur in hiring business consultants or other representatives to assist you.

4. This estimate includes the cost of certain office supplies and other miscellaneous expenses. The
figures shown above are based on the experience of our affiliates in the recreational activity industry.

5. As described further in Item 1, for each Park that you develop under the terms of an Area
Development Agreement, you must execute an individual Franchise Agreement, and incur the costs
associated with developing a Park under the terms of that Franchise Agreement. The estimate provided
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above does not include an estimate of any costs incurred under the terms of any individual Franchise
Agreement. Our current estimated initial investment for the development of a single Park is outlined below.

6. The estimated initial investment figures provided in this chart assume that you (or your Principal
Owner) are not paid any salary or wages, and do not include an estimate of such amounts or any other
associated payroll costs for you (or your Principal Owner). We do not offer financing directly or indirectly

for any part of the initial investment.

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

(FRANCHISE AGREEMENT)
VP OF AMOUNT ME”(I;I;OD TO WHOM
WHEN DUE PAYMENT IS TO
EXPENDITURE LOW HIGH PA?\;IEN BE MADE
Initial Fees:
Initial Franchise Fee $45,000 $45,000 Lump sum | At signing of Us
Franchise
Agreement
Subtotal: $45,000 $45,000

Development
Expenses:
Architect and Design $35,000 $75,000 | As Before you open | Third-Party
Plans 3 incurred your Park Suppliers
License and Permits * $5,000 $15,000 As Before you open | Government

incurred your Park Agencies
Leasehold $750,000 $850,000 | As Before you open | Third-Party
Improvements * incurred your Park Suppliers
Trampolines and $750,000 $850,000 | As Before you open | Third-Party
Activity Equipment ¢ incurred your Park Suppliers
Optional Park $0 $350,000 | As Before you open | Third-Party
Equipment ’ incurred your Park Suppliers
Computer System 8 $50,000 $56,000 As Before you open | Third-Party

incurred your Park Suppliers
Telephone/Security $40,000 $75,000 As Before you open Third-Party
and Sound Systems * incurred your Park Suppliers
Music Player $25,000 $50,000 As Before you open Third-Party
System/Lighting incurred your Park Suppliers
Furniture, Fixtures, $75,000 $100,000 As Before you open Third-Party
and Other Equipment incurred your Park Suppliers
1
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YPE OF AMOUNT ME"gIl-:IOD TO WHOM
WHEN DUE PAYMENT IS TO
EXPENDITURE LOW HIGH PA‘?\:[EN BE MADE
Signage 12 $50,000 $75,000 | Ag Before you open | Third-Party
incurred your Park Suppliers
Subtotal: | $1,780,000 | $2,496,000
Operating
Expenses:
Real Estate Costs — 3 $120,000 $240,000 As Before you open | Landlord
Month’s Rent 2 incurred your Park
Opening Inventory of |  $30,000 $45,000 As Before you open | Third-Party
Socks 13 incurred your Park Suppliers
Other Opening $10,000 $15,000 As Before you open Third-Party
Inventory 4 incurred your Park Suppliers
Insurance '® $35,000 $50,000 As As incurred Insurance
incurred Companies
Management $7,500 $15,000 As Before you open | Third-Party
Training & Materials incurred your Park Suppliers
16
Crew Training & $5,000 $7,500 As Before you open | Third-Party
Materials 7 incurred your Park Suppliers
Crew Uniforms 18 $2,500 $5,000 As Before you open | Third-Party
incurred your Park Suppliers
Professional Fees " $10,000 $15,000 As Before you open | Third-Party
incurred your Park Suppliers
Grand Opening $30,000 $75,000 As Before you open | Third-Party
Advertising 20 incurred your Park Suppliers
Additional Funds — $150,000 $250,000 As As incurred Third-Party
3 months 2! incurred Suppliers
Subtotal: | $400,000 $717,500
TOTAL $2,225,000 | $3,258,500
ESTIMATED
INITIAL
INVESTMENT 2
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Explanatory Notes

1. Except as otherwise provided, none of the amounts payable to us or our affiliates in this table are
refundable under any circumstances. All amounts payable to third parties will be paid under the terms of
your agreement with these respective third parties.

2. The cost of leasing or acquiring your Premises will depend upon the market in which the proposed
site is located. The range above reflects our estimate of the triple-net real estate costs for the lease of a
typical site that we would accept. You should carefully investigate such costs in your market area. A
suitable space for a Park will be approximately 25,000 square feet. Local market conditions, changes in
the economy and inflation will also contribute to your occupancy costs. The location of the parcel of real
property, its relationship to and the nature of any adjoining uses, and its accessibility will affect both its
size and price. We must accept your Premises and any Lease (as defined in Item 11) that you wish to sign
to secure the Premises. You may also incur other costs and expenses, which we cannot predict, under the
terms of your lease with the landlord of the Premises. Lease agreements vary but usually require the lessee
to pay (in addition to rent) for maintenance, insurance, taxes and any other charges or expenses for the land
and building or they may require that the lessee reimburse the lessor for its proportionate share of these
payments (plus interest).

3. We will provide you our system standards for a Park, but you must obtain and submit to us for
approval detailed construction plans and specifications and space plans for your Park, at your own cost,
for our acceptance. You must use a vendor we approve or designate (which may be us or our affiliates) for
design, engineering, construction management and purchasing services in connection with the
development of your Park. The amount of fees you incur, will depend on design, layout and specifications
of your Premises and the geographic market in which you operate.

4. The licenses and permits you must obtain or pay to operate your Park will depend upon the state,
county, municipality, or other political subdivision in which your Park is located.

5. The cost of your leasehold improvements will depend on a number of factors, including the
condition and size of your Premises and your geographic market. We have assumed for our estimate above
that your Premises are approximately 25,000 sq ft, and that it was previously operated as a recreational or
retail facility, including that it has existing plumbing, HVAC, lighting, and similar systems. The estimate
also assumes that the Premises is in good condition structurally and mechanically. Depending on the terms
you negotiate with your landlord, the landlord may contribute to your leasehold improvements, and your
costs will vary based on the level of contribution of the landlord.

6. The cost of trampolines, airbags, and other activity equipment will depend on the size of your Park.
You must purchase or lease the trampoline equipment and other activity equipment for your Park
through a preferred vendor. The estimate is for the minimum required equipment only, but you may elect
to purchase additional equipment for your Park.

7. There are several different optional equipment packages available to you. The cost for Augmented
Reality Attractions will range from $50,000 to $175,000. The cost of a Sport Court will range from $50,000
to $75,000. The cost for Slick Slides will range from $50,000 to $100,000. The low range of the estimate
provided above item is $0 because you may elect to not purchase any optional equipment packages. The
high end of our estimate is for the high-end price of each of these options, including Augmented Reality
Slick Slides, and Sport Court.
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8. The cost of your Computer System will depend on whether you already own any components that
must be purchased, freight and installation costs, the cost of internet and connectivity services in your area,
applicable state and local taxes and other factors.

9. This estimate includes telephone systems, security systems and sound systems. The high end of
this estimate includes high-definition cameras for your security system and a proper storage system. The
cost of this equipment will depend on the local market conditions, the size of your Park, and other factors.

10. This estimate includes the music player package and lighting system. The cost of this equipment
will depend on the local market conditions, the size of your Park, and other factors.

11. This estimate includes furniture, televisions, office equipment, and miscellanecous similar
equipment. The cost of furniture and equipment will depend on the brands purchased, local market
conditions, the size of your Park and other factors.

12. You will need indoor and outdoor signage for your Park. The cost of your signage will depend on
several factors, including the size of your Park, the complexity of your building, as well as local ordinances
and regulations as well as landlord restrictions and requirements for signage.

13. The cost for the initial inventory of socks will depend on the size of your Park and other factors.

14. In addition to your initial inventory of socks, described in the preceding footnote, start-up inventory
includes birthday shirts, badges, bands, park supplies, cleaning supplies, and other products we may
require. The cost to purchase the initial inventory will depend on the local market conditions, the size of
your Park, and other factors.

15. You must obtain and maintain certain types and amounts of insurance. Insurance costs depend on
policy limits, types of policies, nature and value of physical assets, Gross Sales, number of employees,
wages paid, square footage, location, business contents, and other factors bearing on risk exposure.
Insurance providers may require either an annual payment or semi-annual installments. Your insurance
costs will depend on the location of the Park, the specifications of the Premises, the number of employees
you hire and your own background. Y ou should review the rates in the state in which your Park will operate
for an estimate of premiums. The amounts listed above estimate the cost of your premiums for the first 3
months of operations.

16. You must pay for the transportation, food, lodging, and other expenses that you and your Key
Personnel will incur when they attend the Management Training Program. These expenses may vary based
on the distance traveled and the standard of living your attendees desire while attending the Management
Training Program. You may also request that we provide any portion of the Management Training Program
on-site at your Park, but we are not required to grant your request. If you request (and we elect to provide)
any portion of the Management Training Program on-site at your Park, you must pay our then-current on-
site training fee (currently, $400 per day per trainer, plus expenses) to provide such on-site assistance. The
figure provided above assumes that we are not providing any portion of the Management Training Program
on-site.

17. You are responsible for ensuring all of your employees and personnel are appropriately trained
to operate a Park. The amount that you spend on pre-opening employee training will vary based on the
location of the Park, the specifications of the Premises, and the number of employees you hire.
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18. You are responsible for outfitting your employees in uniforms that meet our System Standards.
The amount that you spend on uniforms will depend based on the location of the Park and the number of
employees you hire.

19. We recommend that you consult with an attorney and accountant to advise you in connection with
forming a franchisee entity, entering into a franchise relationship with us, developing a business plan for
your operation of the Park. However, the amount of professional fees you incur will depend based on the
number of representatives you engage, the experience and sophistication of those representatives, and the
geographic market in which you operate. This estimate does not include professional fees you may incur
in hiring business consultants, general contractors, or other representatives to assist you.

20. The Franchise Agreement requires you to spend at least $30,000 for grand opening marketing
program for your Park to take place on the dates we designate before and after your Park opens. You must
spend this amount in addition to all other amounts you must spend on advertising specified in your
Franchise Agreement. However, you may elect to spend more than the minimum amount on your grand
opening marketing program. The amount you spend will depend on several factors, including the local
market conditions and the amount of competition in your area, and other factors.

21. This item estimates your initial start-up expenses (other than the items identified separately in the
table) for your Park’s first 3 months of operation, including employee wages, utilities, payroll taxes, legal
and accounting fees, advertising, promotion, outside services, operating supplies, maintenance and repair,
office supplies, cash shortages, as well as additional opening capital for other variable costs. The estimated
initial investment figures shown above are based on the experience of us and our affiliates.

22. The estimated initial investment figures provided in this chart assume that you (or your Principal
Owner) are not paid any salary or wages, and do not include an estimate of such amounts or any other
associated payroll costs for you (or your Principal Owner). This estimate also assumes that your Principal
Owner operates the Park and does not include any estimated salary or wages for an Approved Manager.
The estimate does not include the costs and fees associated with any financing you obtain, and the
availability and terms of financing depend on many factors, including the availability of financing
generally, your creditworthiness and collateral, and the policies of bank from which you request a loan.
We do not offer financing directly or indirectly for any part of the initial investment.
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Item 8.
RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Specifications for Products, Services and Suppliers

We have developed or may develop standards and specifications for types, models and brands of required
fixtures, furniture, equipment, components of the Computer System, furnishings, and signs, and other
products, materials, supplies and services to be used at the Park (collectively, the “Operating Assets”). We
may require that you purchase and use only the products and services meeting our System Standards for
Operating Assets. We may also require that you purchase the Operating Assets only from suppliers that
we have designated or approved (or that otherwise meet our System Standards). We may designate certain
suppliers as the exclusive supplier of certain Operating Assets. We or our affiliates may be an exclusive or
approved supplier of certain Operating Assets, or otherwise be a party to these transactions.

We may condition our approval of a product or supplier on requirements relating to product quality, prices,
consistency, reliability, financial capability, labor relations, customer relations, frequency of delivery,
concentration of purchases, standards of service or other criteria. We may elect not to issue to you or any
of our approved suppliers (except as we deem necessary for purposes of production) these standards and
specifications. Our standards and specifications for products and services and criteria for suppliers are not
currently issued to franchisees or approved suppliers.

If you would like us to consider approving a vendor that is not an approved vendor, you must submit your
request in writing before purchasing any items or services from that vendor. We will make all
determinations about whether to approve an alternative vendor based on our then-current criteria, which
may change periodically. Currently, we estimate that we will provide notice of our decision to approve or
disapprove an alternative supplier within 30 days of receiving the request. We may also refuse to consider
and/or approve any proposed alternative vendor for any reason whatsoever. We may charge you a fee if
you ask us to evaluate any proposed alternative vendors (currently, our direct out costs). We may, with or
without cause, revoke our approval of any vendor at any time with notice to you.

Currently, you must purchase or lease (i) trampoline and activity equipment and mats, socks, point-of-sale
hardware and software, email services, and website design services from our designated exclusive suppliers
of such products and services, and (ii) vending machines, gaming machines, food and beverage, employee
uniforms, arcade games, site selection services, construction and architecture services, interior and exterior
signage, furniture and fixtures, activity and gaming equipment, safety equipment, software, marketing
services, online promotions, party favors, branded apparel, payroll services, A/V and lighting systems,
insurance, and internet and TV services from suppliers that we have approved. We may add, remove,
and/or otherwise modify our designated and approved suppliers at any time. Neither we nor our affiliates
are suppliers of any required products or services, though we may be in the future. Additionally, we may
occasionally pay any of our designated or approved suppliers for products and services they provide to you
on your behalf, and you must reimburse us for such amounts. Neither we nor our affiliates derived any
revenue in our prior fiscal year from the sale of products or services to franchisees.

Collectively, the purchases you obtain according to our specifications or from approved or designated
suppliers represent approximately 80% to 85% of your total purchases to establish your Park and 80% to
85% of your total purchases to operate your Park.
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Insurance

In addition to the purchases or leases described above, you must also obtain and maintain the minimum
insurance coverage that we periodically require under the Brand Standards Manual, at your own expense
and from carriers who maintain a Best’s Financial Strength rating of “A/VIII” or above, Currently, we
require the following types of minimum coverage: (i) General Liability Insurance with minimum coverage
of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence and $2,000,000.00 in the aggregate; (ii) Excess Liability Insurance with
minimum coverage of $1,000,000.00 in the aggregate; (iii) Workman’s Compensation as required by state
statute; and (iv) Business Interruption Insurance. We may require that you obtain all or a portion of your
insurance policies from a designated supplier, though we do not currently do so. We may periodically
increase the amounts of coverage required under these insurance policies and/or require different or
additional insurance coverages (including reasonable excess liability insurance) at any time to reflect
inflation, identification of new risks, changes in law or standards of liability, higher damage awards or
other relevant changes in circumstances. Each insurance policy for liability coverage must name us and
any affiliates we designate as additional named insureds, using a form of endorsement that we have
approved, and provide for 30 days’ prior written notice to us before the cancellation or material change of
the policy. Each insurance policy must contain a waiver of all subrogation rights against us, our affiliates
and their successors and assigns. You must furnish us copies of your certificates of insurance or other
evidence of your maintaining this insurance coverage and paying premiums. If you fail or refuse to obtain
and maintain the insurance we specify, in addition to our other remedies including termination, we may
(but are not required to) obtain such insurance for you and your Park on your behalf, in which event you
must cooperate with us and reimburse us on demand for all premiums, costs and expenses we incur in
obtaining and maintaining the insurance, plus a reasonable fee.

Purchase Agreements, Material Benefits and Revenue

We have negotiated purchase arrangements, including price terms, for the benefit of franchisees with
manufacturers and suppliers of socks, vending machines, gaming machines, certain food and beverage
supplies, frozen beverages, branded apparel, employee uniforms, arcade games, point-of-sale systems,
trampoline and activity equipment and mats, website development services, site selection services, interior
and exterior signage, furniture, marketing services, online promotions, merchant services, party favors,
insurance premiums, and email, internet and TV services. You may be required to purchase these items at
a price or on other terms we have negotiated in advance. We do not currently provide material benefits to
franchisees for purchasing particular products or services or using particular suppliers.

We and/or our affiliates may derive revenue in the form of rebates, vendor promotions, or other
consideration from suppliers based on your purchases and leases, though currently neither we nor our
affiliates do so. In our most recently completed fiscal year, neither we nor our affiliates received any
consideration from suppliers based on franchisees’ purchase of required goods and services.

As of the issuance date of this Disclosure Document, none of our officers owns any interest in any of the
approved suppliers, other than an interest in our affiliates such as ATP Operations. As of the issuance date
of this Disclosure Document, we have not established purchasing or distribution cooperatives.
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Item 9.
FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS

This table lists our principal obligations under the Franchise Agreement and Area
Development Agreement. It will help you find more detailed information about your obligations in

these agreements and in other items of this Disclosure Document.

SECTION DISCLOSURE
QIEILIGAIION IN AGREEMENTS DOCUMENT ITEM
(a) Site selection and Sections 2A and 2B in Franchise Item 11

acquisition/lease

|Agreement

Section 2 in Area Development
|Agreement

(b) Pre-opening purchases/leases

Sections 2B and 6B in Franchise
|Agreement

Item 5, 7, 8 and 11

(c) Site development and other pre-
opening requirements

Section 2 in Franchise Agreement

Section 2 in Area Development
|Agreement

Items 7, 8, and 11

(d) Initial and ongoing training

Sections 4A, 4B and 4C in Franchise
|Agreement

Items 6, 7, and 11

(e) Opening

Sections 2C in Franchise Agreement

Item 11

(f) Fees

Section 3 in Franchise Agreement

Section 3 in Area Development
|Agreement

Items 5, 6, 7 and 11

(g) Compliance with standards and
policies / operating manual

Sections 4C, 4D and 7 in Franchise
|Agreement

Items 8, 11 and 16

(h) Trademarks and proprietary
information

Sections 5 and 11 in Franchise
|Agreement

Section 4 in Area Development
|Agreement

Items 13 and 14

(1) Restrictions on
products/services offered

Sections 7C and 7D in Franchise
|Agreement

Items 8, 11, 12, and 16

(j) Warranty and customer service [Section 7E in Franchise Agreement Item 11
requirements
(k) Territorial development and Section 2A in Area Development Item 1

sales quotas

|Agreement

(I) On-going product/service
purchases

Sections 6B, 6C, 7C and 7D in
Franchise Agreement

[tems 6 and 8

(m)Maintenance, appearance and
remodeling requirements

Sections 6A and 7B in Franchise

|Agreement

Items 6, 8, 11 and 17
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OBLIGATION

SECTION
IN AGREEMENTS

DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT ITEM

(n) Insurance

Section 7H in Franchise Agreement

[tems 7 and 8

(o) Advertising

Section 8 in Franchise Agreement

Items 6, 7, 8, and 11

(p) Indemnification

Sections 5F and 17D in Franchise
|Agreement

Sections 9D in Area Development
|Agreement

Item 6

(q) Owner’s participation/
management/staffing

Sections 1C and 7A in Franchise
|Agreement

Section 1E in Area Development
|Agreement

Items 11 and 15

(r) Records and reports

Section 9 in Franchise Agreement

Section 2D in Area Development
|Agreement

Item 6

(s) Inspections and audits

Section 10 in Franchise Agreement

Items 6 and 11

(t) Transfer

Section 13 in Franchise Agreement

Section 6 in Area Development
|Agreement

Item 17

(u) Renewal

Sections 7B and 14 in Franchise
|Agreement

Item 17

(v) Post-termination obligations

Section 16 in Franchise Agreement

Section 8 in Area Development
|Agreement

Item 17

(w) Non-competition covenants

Sections 12 and 16F in Franchise
|Agreement

Sections 8B in Area Development
|Agreement

Item 17

(x) Dispute resolution

Section 18 in Franchise Agreement
Section 10 in Area Development

|Agreement

Item 17

Item 10.

FINANCING

We do not offer direct or indirect financing. We do not guarantee your promissory notes, mortgages, leases

or other obligations.
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Item 11.
FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS AND TRAINING
Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any assistance.

Assistance to Begin Operation of a Park

Before you begin operation of your Park, we or our designees will:

1. Provide the Management Training Program to your Key Personnel. (Franchise Agreement —
Section 4A)

2. Make our Brand Standards Manual available to you. (Franchise Agreement — Section 4D)

3. Review and either accept or reject a proposed site for your Park. (Franchise Agreement — Section

2A; Area Development Agreement — Section 2B)
4. Review and either approve or disapprove your Lease. (Franchise Agreement — Section 2B)

5. Provide you then-current prototypical plans showing the standard layout and placement
specifications for all required Operating Assets. We do not directly provide, deliver, or install any
equipment, signs, fixtures, opening inventory, and supplies for our franchisees. (Franchise
Agreement — Sections 2C)

6. Review your proposed development and construction plans and specifications (including, any
revisions to such plans and specifications) for your Park and approve or disapprove such plans and
specifications. (Franchise Agreement — Section 2C)

7. Provide on-site advice, guidance, and initial operations support in connection with the opening of
your first Park for 4 to 6 days prior to your Opening Date (as defined below) and for 2 days after
your Opening Date. (Franchise Agreement — Section 4B)

8. Review and either approve or disapprove your Park to open for business and use by customers.
(Franchise Agreement — Section 2C)

Site Selection

If you have not yet located a site for the Premises when you sign your Franchise Agreement, then you must
select a suitable site for your Premises and obtain our acceptance of that site as your Premises. We will
identify a site selection area in your Franchise Agreement, and unless you have our prior written approval
you will not be permitted to search for a proposed site outside of that site selection. Neither we nor our
affiliates generally own the sites for Parks and lease those sites to franchisees. Currently, we require you
to use an approved supplier of site selection services to assist you in finding a suitable site. We must accept
the site of your Park before you sign any Lease (defined below) and before that site will be deemed your
Premises under the Franchise Agreement. You must send us all of the information we require for the
proposed site.
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If you have signed an Area Development Agreement, you must give us all information we request to assess
any site that you propose to develop a Park, including your financial and operational ability to develop and
operate a Park at that site, and any letter of intent or other information about the proposed lease or
acquisition of the real property of that site. You must obtain our approval of the site for the proposed Park
before you sign a Franchise Agreement for that Park.

We will make all determinations about whether to accept a site based on our then-current criteria, which
may change periodically. Currently, we estimate that we would provide notice of our decision to accept or
reject a proposed site within 30 days of receiving the request. The criteria we use to evaluate the selected
site include visibility, size, layout, adjacent uses, parking, demographics, local competition, and other
factors we determine periodically.

Lease of Premises

After you obtain our acceptance of a site for your Premises, you must execute a lease, sublease, or other
document that we approve to secure its possession (the “Lease”). The Lease must contain certain provisions
we require, including collateral assignment of lease, under the form of lease rider attached as Exhibit D to
the Franchise Agreement (“Lease Rider”). It is your sole responsibility to obtain a fully-executed Lease
Rider in connection with executing your Lease. We may reject any request for modifications to the Lease
Rider for any reason. You must obtain our acceptance of a site that will be the Premises of your Park,
secure possession of that site under the terms of a Lease we have approved, and deliver executed copies of
that approved Lease and the Lease Rider, each within 180 days after you sign your Franchise Agreement,
otherwise we may terminate your Franchise Agreement.

Opening Requirements

We estimate that you will begin operating your Park by the earlier of: (i) 180 days after the Lease is
executed, or (i) 365 days from the date you sign your Franchise Agreement. We may terminate the
Franchise Agreement and retain your Initial Franchise Fee if you fail to open your Park by the preceding
deadlines. The date that you open your Park for business (your “Opening Date’’) will depend on when your
Key Personnel complete the Management Training Program, secure an accepted site and Lease, secure
approval of design plans, acquire the required insurance policies, install all Operating Assets, and meet all
of our other criteria to begin operating a Park to our satisfaction.

Assistance During the Operation of Your Park

During your operation of your Park, we or our designees will:

1. Provide you additional training if you request such training, subject to availability and scheduling,
and subject to your payment of our then-current training fee (currently, $400 per trainer per day,
plus expenses). (Franchise Agreement — Section 4A)

2. Advise you regarding your Park’s operation based on your reports or our inspections. (Franchise
Agreement — Section 4C)

3. Continue to make our Brand Standards Manual available to you. (Franchise Agreement —
Section 4D)
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4. Let you use our Marks and certain copyrighted and copyrightable materials. (Franchise Agreement

— Section 5)

5. Administer the Brand Fund until such time as it may be terminated. (Franchise Agreement —
Section 8C)

6. We may periodically set a maximum or minimum price that you may charge for products and

services offered by your Park. We may also require you to comply with an advertising policy which
will prohibit you from advertising any price for a product or service that is different than our
suggested retail price. (Franchise Agreement — Section 7J)

Brand Standards Manual.

We will make our System Standards and other suggested specifications, standards and procedures, and
information for the operation of Parks available to you during the term of the Franchise Agreement, which
may include one or more separate manuals, as well as electronic files and software, information available
on an internet site, and other media, bulletins and/or other written materials (collectively, the “Brand
Standards Manual”). We may modify the Brand Standards Manual periodically, including changes in
System Standards. The current table of contents of the Brand Standards Manual is attached to this
Disclosure Document as Exhibit C. There are currently 31 pages in our Brand Standards Manual.

Advertising and Promotion.

Grand Opening Advertising. You must spend at least $30,000 for a grand opening marketing program for
your Park to take place on the dates we designate before and after your Park opens. You must spend this
amount in addition to all other amounts you must spend on advertising specified in the Franchise
Agreement. The amount you spend on grand opening advertising will not count towards your Local
Advertising Expenditure (defined below) or your Maximum Advertising Expenditure (defined below).
Y ou must use the media, materials, programs and strategies we develop or approve in connection with the
grand opening advertising program.

Brand Fund. We have established and will administer a brand promotion fund (the “Brand Fund”) to
administer certain advertising, marketing, and public relations programs for the Altitude Trampoline
Park® system and brand and the promotion of Parks. You must contribute to the Brand Fund the amount
that we determine (the “Brand Fund Contribution”) (currently, 2% of your Park’s Gross Sales). The amount
of the Brand Fund Contribution is subject to change, though the amount of your Brand Fund Contribution,
together with your Local Advertising Cooperative Contribution and your Local Advertising Expenditure
will not collectively exceed your Maximum Advertising Expenditure.

The purpose of the Brand Fund is to promote the Marks, the System, the brand, and Parks generally, and
you may not benefit in proportion to your Brand Fund Contribution. We are not required to spend any
specific amount on advertising in your geographic area. We expect Parks operated by us and our affiliates
to contribute to the Brand Fund on the basis as franchisees. Certain franchisees may contribute to the Brand
Fund in different amounts than described in this Disclosure Document, or may not contribute to the Brand
Fund at all, on the basis of prior Franchise Agreements with us and/or negotiated terms.

We will have exclusive control over all programs and services administered by the Brand Fund, including
all creative concepts, materials, and campaigns and their geographic market, media placement and
allocation. The Brand Fund may pay for preparing and producing video, audio, and written materials and
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electronic media; developing, implementing, and maintaining any Online Presences or other software or
applications; administering advertising and marketing campaigns; administering regional and
multi-regional marketing and advertising programs; using advertising, promotion, and marketing agencies
and other advisors to provide assistance; supporting public relations, market research, and other
advertising, promotion, and marketing strategy or implementation activities; and/or any other expenditures
that are directly or indirectly related to promoting the Marks, the System, the brand, and/or Parks. The
Brand Fund may pay for its administrative and overhead costs, including the reasonable salaries and
benefits of personnel who manage and administer the Brand Fund, and any other expenses that we or our
affiliates incur that are related to administering or directing the Brand Fund and its programs. We may also
elect to use (but will not have the obligation to use) the Brand Fund to pay for or reimburse franchisees for
such costs they may incur for promoting their Parks and/or complying with updated branding guidelines.
We may modify Brand Fund programs, services, or expenditures at any time.

We will account for the Brand Fund separately from our other funds, but neither we nor any of our affiliates
has any fiduciary obligation to you or any other person for administering the Brand Fund or for any other
reason. The Brand Fund may spend in any fiscal year more or less than the total Brand Fund Contributions
in that year, borrow from us or others (paying reasonable interest) to cover deficits, or invest any surplus
for future use. We will prepare an annual, unaudited statement of Brand Fund collections and expenses
and give you the statement on written request, within 120 days after the end of each fiscal year, but not
less than 30 days’ notice from you of such request. We may have the Brand Fund audited annually, at the
Brand Fund’s expense. We may also administer the Brand Fund through a separate entity, and such entity
will have all of the rights and duties specified here. Currently, the Brand Fund is administered by our
affiliate ATP Brand Fund.

We have the right, but no obligation, to use collection agents and institute legal proceedings to collect
Brand Fund Contributions at the Brand Fund’s expense. We may also forgive, waive, settle, and
compromise all claims by or against the Brand Fund as we determine.

We may at any time, on 30 days’ prior written notice to you, reduce or suspend Brand Fund Contributions
and/or operations of the Brand Fund for any length and terminate (and, if terminated, reinstate) the Brand
Fund and associated Brand Fund Contributions. If we terminate the Brand Fund, we will spend the
remaining balance until such amounts are exhausted. We may elect to maintain multiple Brand Funds,
whether determined by geographic region, country, or otherwise, or consolidate or merge multiple Brand
Funds or the administration thereof, in each case provided that each such Brand Fund will otherwise remain
subject to the terms of your Franchise Agreement.

In our most recently ended fiscal year, the Brand Fund spent funds in the following manner: 10% on
production, 50% on media placement, 1% administrative expenses, and 39% on other expenses (including
website development and maintenance and customer relationship management services). We did not spend
any amounts principally to solicit franchise sales.

Local Advertising. You are solely responsible for conducting all local advertising for your Park. You must
advertise and market your Park in any advertising medium we determine, using forms of advertisement we
approve. You must also list your Park with the online directories and subscriptions we periodically
prescribe (such as Yelp® and Google®), and/or establish any other Online Presence (as defined in Item
13) we require. You must comply with all of our System Standards for your advertising, including any
Online Presences.
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Y ou must spend an amount that we designate to advertise and promote your Park (the “Local Advertising
Expenditure”). We may change the amount of your Local Advertising Expenditure periodically, subject to
your Maximum Advertising Expenditure. We will determine what type of expenditure will count towards
your Local Advertising Expenditure. Indirect costs you incur in managing your local advertising
campaigns, such as salaries and benefits of employees administering the campaigns, will not be counted
towards your Local Advertising Expenditure. Additionally, any costs you incur for advertising conducted
at the Premises, such as in-store materials and signage, will not be counted towards your Local Advertising
Expenditure. At our request, you must send us, in the manner we prescribe, an accounting of your Local
Advertising Expenditures during the preceding months.

We may require you to pay part or all of the Local Advertising Expenditure to us or our designee. If we
exercise this option, we will contribute the amount you pay us to the Brand Fund. We may at any time, on
one or more occasions, cease collecting all or part of the Local Advertising Expenditure or change the
proportion of the Local Advertising Expenditure that you must pay us or our designees.

Your advertising, promotion, and marketing must be completely clear, factual, and not misleading and
conform to the highest standards of ethical advertising, the System Standards, and any marketing and the
advertising and marketing policies that we prescribe. At least 30 days before you intend to use them, you
must send us samples of all advertising, promotional and marketing materials that we have previously not
approved. If we do not approve of the materials within 14 days of our receipt of such materials, then they
shall be deemed disapproved. You may not use any advertising, promotional, or marketing materials that
we have not approved or have disapproved.

Local Advertising Cooperative. We or our affiliates or designees may establish or direct the establishment
of a local advertising cooperative (“Local Advertising Cooperative”) in geographical areas (as determined
by us) in which 2 or more Parks are operating. The Local Advertising Cooperative will be organized and
governed by written documents in a form and manner, and begin operating on a date, that we determine in
advance. We will approve all terms and conditions for the operation and administration of the Local
Advertising Cooperative at the time it is established. We may change, dissolve, merge and reinstate any
Local Advertising Cooperatives. Each Local Advertising Cooperative’s purpose is to administer
advertising programs and develop advertising, marketing and promotional materials for the area that the
Local Advertising Cooperative covers, in accordance with our System Standards.

If we have established a Local Advertising Cooperative for the geographic area in which your Park is
located, as of the time you sign the Franchise Agreement, or if we establish a Local Advertising
Cooperative in that area during the term of the Franchise Agreement, you must sign the documents we
require to become a member of the Local Advertising Cooperative and to participate in the Local
Advertising Cooperative as we require, including by contributing your share to such Local Advertising
Cooperative (“Local Advertising Cooperative Contribution”). The amount of your Local Advertising
Cooperative Contribution will be determined when the Local Advertising Cooperative is established,
subject to your Maximum Advertising Expenditure.

The Local Advertising Cooperative Contributions will be accounted for separately by us from our other
funds and will not be used to defray any of our general operating expenses. You must submit to us and the
Local Advertising Cooperative any reports that we require.

Your Park might not benefit directly or in proportion to its Local Advertising Cooperative Contribution.

Local Advertising Cooperatives for Parks will be developed separately, and no Local Advertising

Cooperative will be intended to benefit the others. We will have the right, but not the obligation, to use
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collection agents and to institute legal proceedings to collect a Local Advertising Cooperative
Contributions on behalf of and at the expense of the Local Advertising Cooperative and to forgive, waive,
settle and compromise all claims by or against the Local Advertising Cooperative. We assume no direct or
indirect liability or obligation to you with respect to the maintenance, direction or administration of the
Local Advertising Cooperative.

Maximum Advertising Expenditure. The maximum combined Brand Fund Contribution, Local
Advertising Expenditure and Local Advertising Cooperative Contribution that we impose will not exceed
5% of your Park’s Gross Sales (the “Maximum Advertising Expenditure””). We may change the amount of
the Brand Fund Contribution, Local Advertising Expenditure or Local Advertising Cooperative
Contribution with 60 days prior notice to you so long as any change does not result in a combined Brand
Fund Contribution, Local Advertising Expenditure and Local Advertising Cooperative Contribution
greater than the Maximum Advertising Expenditure.

Franchise System Website. We may establish, acquire, or host any website(s) to advertise, market, and
promote Parks, the products and services that they offer and sell, and/or a Park franchise opportunity (a
“Franchise System Website”). We may (but are not required to) provide you with a webpage on a Franchise
System Website that references your Park. If we provide you with a webpage on a Franchise System
Website, you must: (i) provide us the information and materials we request to develop, update, and modify
your webpage; (ii) notify us whenever any information on your webpage is not accurate; and (iii) if we
give you the right to modify your webpage, notify us whenever you change the content of your webpage.
We will own all intellectual property and other rights in all Franchise System Websites, including your
webpage and all information it contains (including the domain name, any associated email address, any
website analytical data, and any personal or business data that visitors supply).

Even if we provide you a webpage on a Franchise System Website, we will only maintain that webpage
while you are in full compliance with your Franchise Agreement and all System Standards we implement.
If you are in default of any obligation under your Franchise Agreement or our System Standards, then we
may temporarily remove your webpage from any Franchise System Website until you fully cure the
default. We will permanently remove your webpage from all Franchise System Websites when your
Franchise Agreement expires or is terminated.

We may require you to provide notice of any Franchise System Website in the advertising, marketing, and
promotional materials that you develop for your Park in the manner we designate. We have the sole and
exclusive right to sell the products sold by Parks through any Online Presence.

We may require you to obtain from us and use an email address associated with our registered domain
name. If we require you to obtain and use such an email address, you must do so according to our then-
current System Standards. We may charge you a fee for each email address we provide you as part of the
Technology Fee (currently, $250 per month). We will have unrestricted access to and sole ownership of
all such email accounts, and all documents, data, materials, and messages shared from or by such accounts.
We may deactivate any such account or limit your or your users’ access to it at any time.

Except as provided above, or as approved by us in writing or in the Brand Standards Manual, you may not
develop, maintain or authorize any Online Presence that mentions your Park, links to any Franchise System
Website or displays any of the Marks, or engage in any promotional or similar activities, whether directly
or indirectly, through any Online Presence. If we approve the use of any such Online Presence in the
operation of your Park, you will develop and maintain such Online Presence only in accordance with our
guidelines, including our guidelines for posting any messages or commentary on other third-party websites.
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We will own the rights to each such Online Presence. At our request, you must grant us independent access
to each such Online Presence, and to take whatever action (including signing assignment or other
documents) we request to evidence our ownership of such Online Presence, or to help us obtain exclusive
rights in such Online Presence.

Advertising Council. Other than our Franchisee Advisory Board (the “FAB”), we do not currently maintain
an advertising council composed of franchisees to advise us on advertising policies. The FAB was
established by us to discuss with our senior leadership matters of common interest to franchisees, which
may periodically include matters relating to advertising, but is not limited to such topics. The FAB serves
in an advisory and consultative capacity only and the advice of the FAB is not binding on us. The FAB
will be comprised of up to 10 board members, of which 9 will be qualified franchisee representatives, and
1 member will be a representative of ours. All appointments to the FAB will be made by us from candidates
that are nominated by members of the FAB. Each FAB member is eligible to serve no more than 3
consecutive terms of 2 years (with some adjustments to address partial terms if an appointment was made
to fill an immediate vacancy). To qualify to serve on the FAB, a franchisee must be in compliance with its
agreements with us, have been operating at least one Park for at least 12 months, and not be in litigation,
mediation, and/or have threatened legal action against us or our affiliates. We will only appoint 1 member
of the FAB from each affiliated franchisee group. We may remove any person from the FAB at any time
with notice. We may modify, terminate, or suspend the FAB at any time.

Computer System

You must obtain and install the computer hardware, software, and point-of-sale system that we approve
for Parks (collectively, the “Computer System”). We may modify our System Standards for the Computer
System periodically, including the designated or approved suppliers for certain components of the
Computer System, and you must update your Computer System to comply with our modified System
Standards promptly after you receive notice. There are no contractual limitations on the frequency and cost
of'this obligation, and we are not required to reimburse you for these costs. Currently, the Computer System
is comprised of the following components:

Roller Software is the Only Approved POS Software

POS Workstations (5-8 Terminals)

POS Waiver Stations (2-3 Terminals)

POS Provider Card Terminals (Same Number as Terminals)
Cash Drawer (Same Number as Terminals)

Self Service Kiosks (Optional)

Wireless Scanners (Optional)

Associated cables and ancillary components

Except as specified above, you may purchase the components of the Computer System from any vendor
of your choosing, and it may be a brand and model that you select as long as it meets our System Standards.
We estimate the cost of acquiring and installing the Computer System will be approximately $50,000 to
$56,000. Currently, we estimate the ongoing cost of maintaining and upgrading the Computer System to
be approximately $2,000 to $4,000 per year. Additionally, you must pay fees to third-parties for support
and services on your Computer System, including: (i) $700 per month for all access and licensing, support
services and software updates, and unlimited online transactions for the point-of-sale system software; (ii)
$75 per month for scheduling software; (iii) $200 per month for website maintenance, hosting fees and
search engine optimization; and (iv) $250 per month for the Technology Fee you pay us for technology
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services. Neither we nor our affiliates have any obligation to provide ongoing maintenance, repairs,
upgrades, or updates to your Computer System. All maintenance, repair, upgrade and update obligations
of the third-party vendors selling or licensing you components of the Computer System will be determined
by your contract with that vendor.

You must use the Computer System to maintain certain sales data, customer information and other
information. We will have independent access to your Computer System at all times and we will have the
right to collect and retain from the Computer System any and all data concerning your Park.

If you become aware of a suspected or actual breach of security or unauthorized access involving your
Computer System, you will notify us immediately and specify the extent to which information was
compromised or disclosed. You must follow our instructions regarding curative actions and public
statements relating to the breach. We may conduct a data security and privacy audit of any of your Park
and your Computer Systems at any time.

Training

Management Training Program. Prior to opening your Park, we will provide you (or if you are conducting
business as an entity, your Principal Owner) and up to 2 additional attendees that we approve (one of which
must be your Approved Manager, if applicable) (together, your “Key Personnel”) training in the material
aspects of operating a Park (the “Management Training Program”). You may invite additional attendees
to the Management Training Program if space allows, subject to our approval, and subject to all attendees
participating at once. You must pay our then-current training fee for any additional attendees (currently,
$400 per day per trainer, plus expenses). Your Key Personnel must successfully complete the Management
Training Program prior to the Opening Date to our satisfaction.

Currently, we conduct the Management Training Program at a certified training Park that we designate.
Scheduling and frequency of the Management Training Program vary based on the availability of our
training staff and the number of prospective franchisees attending. Currently, we estimate that you and
your Key Personnel will undertake our Management Training Program approximately 6 to 8 weeks prior
to your projected Opening Date. We will determine the identity and composition of the trainer(s)
conducting all portions of the Management Training Program. We will provide the Management Training
Program at the times and locations we determine. We will also determine the length and content of the
Management Training Program. We may vary the Management Training Program based on the experience
and skill level of the individual(s) attending. Scheduling of the Management Training Program is based on
your and our availability, training facility availability and the projected Opening Date for your Park. If any
of your Key Personnel fail to successfully complete the Management Training Program to our satisfaction,
then we may require such person(s) to attend additional training at a time and location of our choice, and
we will charge you our then-current training fee for such additional training (currently, $400 per day per
trainer, plus expenses). If your Key Personnel are unable to successfully complete the Management
Training Program to our satisfaction, we may also terminate your Franchise Agreement.

If you appoint a new Approved Manager to supervise your Park at any time, or your Principal Owner
changes at any time, he or she must attend the then-current Management Training Program within 30 days
of the appointment (currently, $400 per day per trainer, plus expenses).
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MANAGEMENT TRAINING PROGRAM '*3

HOURS OF
HOURS OF
SUBJECT CLASSROOM ON-THE- LOCATION FOR ON SITE
TRAINING JOB TRAINING
TRAINING
Day One — Orientation & Introduction to Brand, 6 Certified Training Park
Guest Experience, Park Tour, Systems & Tools, 2
C3 Program
Day Two — Court Monitor AORs, Attraction 2 6 Certified Training Park
Inspections, Safety & Incident Reporting
Day Three — Front Desk AORs, Front Desk POS 1.5 6.5 Certified Training Park
Functions, Cash Handling, Register Checkouts,
Memberships
Day Four — Party Host AORs, Party Procedures, 1.5 6.5 Certified Training Park
Party Bookings
Day Five — Concessions F&B Ordering, F&B Certified Training Park
Safety, Food Certification, Suggestive Selling, 1 7
Weekly Feedback
Day Six — Management AORs, Management POS 1.5 6.5 Certified Training Park
Functions, Opening & Closing Procedures, Priority
Matrix, Payroll
Day Seven-360 Management, Management POS 1 7 Certified Training Park
Functions, Reporting, Team Member Selection
Process
Day Eight- Inventory Control, Management POS 1 7 Certified Training Park
Functions, Local Store Marketing, Altitude
Programs, Event Management, Social Medica
Management
Day Nine-Facility Emergency Response, Facility 1.5 6.5 Certified Training Park
Emergency Awareness, Guest Conflict
Management, Coaching vs Counseling
Day Ten- Labor & Scheduling, Ecosure Audit, 1 7 Certified Training Park
Mystery Shop, End of Training Review
TOTAL 14 66

Note 1: The hours devoted to each module are estimates and may vary based on how quickly
trainees learn the material, their prior experience with the subject and scheduling. We may vary the length
and content of the Management Training Program based upon the experience and skill level of the

individuals attending.

Note 2: The training materials used during the Management Training Program will include ATP
Academy, the Brand Standards Manual, and other manuals and guides we develop from time to time.
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Note 3: Gina Elliot manages franchisee training for the franchise system. Gina has 3 years of
experience with us and our affiliates and 17 years of experience in the subjects taught. Certain other
employees may also provide assistance or services to franchisees in connection with the training programs.

Personnel Training: You must ensure that all of your employees and personnel are appropriately trained to
operate the Park. We may periodically establish certain minimum requirements for your employee training
programs, including minimum safety certifications or programs and/or requiring the Management Training
Program for Key Personnel, to protect our System and the goodwill of the Marks. Currently, our System
Standards include the minimum requirement that all Park personnel complete our ATP Academy
certification program to ensure they have appropriate safety training and understand certain other critical
System Standards. You are responsible for ensuring that all of your personnel complete the ATP Academy
certification program prior to providing services at your Park.

Additional Training: If you and your Key Personnel complete the Management Training Program to our
satisfaction and have not expressly informed us at the end of the Management Training Program that they
do not feel sufficiently trained in the operation of a Park, then you and your Key Personnel will be deemed
to have been trained sufficiently to operate a Park.

You may periodically request additional training in the operation of a Park. If we agree to provide you
additional training, we and you will jointly determine the duration of this additional training, and we may
charge you our then-current training fee for such additional training (currently, $400 per day per trainer,
plus expenses). In addition, if we determine that you are not operating your Park in compliance with our
System Standards, we may require additional training for your Key Personnel, and we may charge you our
then-current training fee for such additional training (currently, $400 per day per trainer, plus expenses).

We may require you and your Key Personnel attend various franchisee conferences, meetings, trade shows,
ongoing education or certification programs, and/or training courses or webinars at the times and locations
designated by us, including as provided by third-parties we designate. These events and programs will be
held at locations and times we designate. We may charge a fee associated with these events and programs,
regardless of actual attendance. Currently, we charge a fee of $199 per person for our annual franchisee
convention, regardless of actual attendance.

Training Costs and Expenses: You must pay all travel and living expenses (including, wages,
transportation, food, lodging, and workers’ compensation insurance) that you and your personnel incur
during any and all meetings and/or training courses and programs of any kind, including the Management
Training Program. You are also responsible for the travel and living expenses and out-of-pocket costs we
incur in sending our trainer(s) to your Park to conduct training, including food, lodging and transportation.

On-Site New Park Training: We will provide on-site advice, guidance, and initial operations support in
connection with the opening of your Park, at no cost to you, for 4-6 days prior to your Opening Date and
for 2 days after your Opening Date. The number of days of on-site assistance will be determined by us,
and the new park opening schedule, and may not necessarily be consecutive. We will determine the identity
and composition of the training team that we send, and it may be comprised of only one person.
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Item 12.
TERRITORY

Area Development Agreement

You will not receive an exclusive territory under the Area Development Agreement. You may face
competition from other franchisees, from outlets that we own or from other channels of distribution or
competitive brands that we control. However, if we wish to offer a franchise for another Park within the
geographic area designated in your Area Development Agreement (your “Development Area”), we will
first send you a notice of the proposed franchise development, and upon receiving such notice, you will
have a right of first refusal to acquire a franchise for such Park (your “Right of First Refusal”), provided
that: (a) you notify us that you intend to exercise your Right of First Refusal within 14 days after receiving
our notice of the proposed development; (b) you and your affiliates have been in full compliance with all
agreements with us or our affiliates; (c) you meet all of our then-current criteria for new franchisees of
Parks, including by having the financial resources to develop and operate the proposed Park; (d) you sign
our then-current franchise agreement for such Park and pay any required fees under such franchise
agreement within 14 days after receiving our notice of the proposed development (or any later date that we
may notify you is required to comply with applicable law); and (e) we have determined that the cost of
developing the proposed Park and payment terms under the franchise agreement for that Park will not
adversely affect the operation of your existing Parks. If you do not meet the conditions specified above to
exercise your Right of First Refusal, we may grant any other person the right to develop that franchised
Park in the Development Area on any terms we approve.

If your Development Area is comprised of one or more specified municipalities, then unless expressly
indicated otherwise in your Area Development Agreement, each municipality in your Development Area
is intended for the development of one Park. To that effect, after we approve a proposed site for a Park
under your Area Development Agreement, and you sign a Franchise Agreement for such Park, such
municipality will no longer be part of the Development Area. Rather, all territorial protection for such Park
will be governed by the terms of the Franchise Agreement that you execute.

Other than your right to exercise your Development Rights within your Development Area, and your Right
of First Refusal described above, you have no territorial protection of any kind, and we and our affiliates
retain all rights with respect to the placement and development of Parks and other businesses using the
Marks, the sale of the same, similar or dissimilar products and services, and any other business activities
in any manner or in any location whatsoever, including, the right to:

(D) establish and operate, and allow others to establish and operate, other Parks using
the Marks and the System in any location, on such terms and conditions we deem appropriate,
subject only to your Right of First Refusal,

(2) establish and operate, and allow others to establish and operate, any other type
business, including any business that may offer products and services which are identical to, similar
to, or competitive with products and services offered by Parks, under trade names, trademarks,
service marks and commercial symbols other than the Marks in any location;

3) establish, and allow others to establish businesses and distribution channels other
than a Park (including, selling products at retail or through any online presence), wherever located
or operating, regardless of the nature or location of the customers with whom such other businesses
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and distribution channels do business, including businesses that operate under trade names,
trademarks, service marks or commercial symbols that are similar to, the same, or competitive with
the Marks, and/or that sell products or services that are similar to, the same, or competitive with,
those that Parks customarily sell;

4) establish and operate, and allow others to establish and operate, any Park, or other
business using the Marks and/or the System, and/or offering and selling any of the products or
services that are similar to, the same, or competitive with those products or services offered by
Parks, at or through any nontraditional venues, including, temporary or seasonal facilities, outdoor
recreation parks or facilities, or business operated within any larger venue or closed market such
as a stadium or entertainment center, in any location;

(5 be acquired by or acquire (whether through acquisition of assets, ownership
interests or otherwise, regardless of the form of transaction), any other business, including
businesses that operate or allow others to establish and operate businesses similar to, the same, or
competitive with Parks, in any location, and in the event of such an acquisition, the acquirer and
its affiliates will have the right to continue to establish and operate, and authorize others to establish
and operate, such businesses, in any location; and

(6) engage in all other activities not expressly prohibited by the Area Development
Agreement.

If you fail to comply with the development schedule specified in your Area Development Agreement, we
may terminate your Area Development Agreement. In addition to terminating your Area Development
Agreement and asserting any other rights we have under your Area Development Agreement as a result of
such failure, we may elect to terminate your Right of First Refusal or reduce the Development Area.
Otherwise, continuation of your Right of First Refusal under the Area Development Agreement does not
depend on your achieving a certain sales volume, market penetration, or other contingency.

We are not required to pay you if we exercise any of the rights specified in this Item 12.

Franchise Agreement

You will not receive an exclusive territory under the Franchise Agreement. You may face competition
from other franchisees, from outlets that we own or from other channels of distribution or competitive
brands that we control. However, if you are in full compliance with the terms and conditions of your
Franchise Agreement and all other agreements with us and our affiliates, we will not, during the term of
the Franchise Agreement, operate or grant others the right to operate a Park in the geographic area
designated in your Franchise Agreement as your “Protected Territory.” If a Protected Territory is not
designated in your Franchise Agreement, you have not been awarded any Protected Territory. If we identify
a site selection area in your Franchise Agreement, that area is strictly to limit your site selection activities.
You will receive no territorial protection of any kind in the site selection area, or any other geographic
area, other than your Protected Territory

If you are acquiring a franchise for a newly developed Park, and we have not specified your Protected

Territory at the time you execute your Franchise Agreement, we will determine your Protected Territory

when the Premises are approved. The designation of the Protected Territory by us depends on various

market conditions around the proposed Premises, including density of population, number of competitors

in the market, site availability, growth potential and geographic barriers. We typically define the
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boundaries of your Protected Territory as a circle with your Park as its center and a specific radius ranging
from 2.5 to 7.5 miles. We may also define the boundaries of your Protected Territory by political
subdivisions (e.g., cities or counties), streets and highways, zip code boundaries, or other similar
designations.

Other than your Protected Territory, if any, you have no territorial protection and we and our affiliates
retain all rights with respect to the placement of Parks and other businesses using the Marks, the sale of
the same, similar or dissimilar products and services, and any other business activities in any manner or in
any location whatsoever, including the right to:

(D) establish and operate, and allow others to establish and operate, other Parks using
the Marks and the System, at any location outside the Protected Territory, on such terms and
conditions we deem appropriate;

(2) establish and operate, and allow others to establish and operate, any other type of
business, including any business that may offer products and services which are identical to, similar
to, or competitive with products and services offered by Parks, under trade names, trademarks,
service marks and commercial symbols other than the Marks, in any location;

3) establish, and allow others to establish businesses and distribution channels other
than a Park (including, selling products at retail or through any Online Presence), wherever located
or operating, regardless of the nature or location of the customers with whom such other businesses
and distribution channels do business, including businesses that operate under trade names,
trademarks, service marks or commercial symbols that are similar to, the same, or competitive with
the Marks, and/or that sell products or services that are similar to, the same, or competitive with,
those that Parks customarily sell;

4) establish and operate, and allow others to establish and operate, any Park, or other
business using the Marks and/or the System, and/or offering and selling any of the products or
services that are similar to, the same, or competitive with those products or services offered by
Parks, at or through any nontraditional venues, including, temporary or seasonal facilities, outdoor
recreation parks or facilities, or business operated within any larger venue or closed market such
as a stadium or entertainment center, in any location;

(5 be acquired by or acquire (whether through acquisition of assets, ownership
interests or otherwise, regardless of the form of transaction), any other business, including
businesses that operate or allow others to establish and operate businesses similar to, the same, or
competitive with Parks, in any location; and in the event of such an acquisition, the acquirer and
its affiliates will have the right to continue to establish and operate, and authorize others to establish
and operate, such businesses in any location; and

(6) engage in all other activities not expressly prohibited by the Franchise Agreement.

We may offer and sell and grant others the right to offer and sell goods and services to customers located
anywhere, including in your Protected Territory. There are no limitations on your ability to solicit
customers in any location. However, you may not engage in any promotional or similar activities, whether
directly or indirectly, through any Online Presence. You may not sell any Park product or service through
any alternative channel of distribution, including any Online Presence.
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We are not required to pay you if we exercise any of the rights specified in this Item 12.

You may only operate your Park at the Premises and you may not use your Premises for any operations
other than the operation of your Park. You may not relocate your Park to a location other than the Premises
without our approval. Our approval will depend on our then-current criteria for relocations, which may
change periodically, including the prospects of obtaining a favorable replacement site, the real estate
market in your area, your compliance with System Standards, the financial performance of your Park, and
other factors we determine.

Provided you are in full compliance with your Franchise Agreement and any other agreement with us and
our affiliates, continuation of your territorial protection under the Franchise Agreement does not depend
on your achieving a certain sales volume, market penetration, or other contingency.

Additional Franchise Rights

Unless you have signed an Area Development Agreement to develop additional Parks, we do not grant any
rights to obtain additional franchises. If you wish to obtain an additional franchise location, you must enter
into a separate Franchise Agreement for that location.

Affiliated Brands

As described further in Item 1, we are under common control with entities that offer other franchised
brands. Currently, none of our affiliated brands offers trampoline parks, but they may offer one or more
other products that are also offered by Parks. For example, restaurants operated under the “Frisch’s Big
Boy”, and “The Original Hot Chicken” brands may offer chicken fingers and/or other food and beverage
products that are similar to those offered at Parks. Additionally, facilities operated under the “The Pickle
Pad” brand may offer recreational games, sports, or other activities that are similar, the same, and/or
competitive with those offered by Parks, including that both The Pickle Pad businesses and Parks may
offer event and party packages. Our affiliates that offer franchises may operate, grant franchises, or solicit
or accept orders, within your Protected Territory or Development Area, as applicable. If a conflict arises
between any Park and any business operated or franchised by us or an affiliate of ours, we will analyze the
conflict and take any action or no action as we deem appropriate. The principal business address of our
affiliates that offer franchises are in Item 1. Other than TPP Franchising, LLC, each of these affiliates
currently operates from separate corporate offices and training facilities from us. TPP Franchising, LLC
operates from the same corporate office as us, but separate training facilities.
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Item 13.
TRADEMARKS

Our affiliate ATP IP owns the following Marks, which have been registered on the Principal Register of
the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office:

Mark Reg. Number Reg. Date

N/

Reg. No. 4648197 December 2, 2014
\
TRA]J!FDLINE PARK
ALTITUDE TRAMPOLINE PARK Reg. No. 4526302 May 6, 2014
JUMP LIFE Reg. No. 6986904 February 21, 2023

All required affidavits of use will be filed in a timely manner. There is presently no effective determination
of the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office, the Trademark Trial & Appeal Board, the trademark
administrator of any state or any court, nor any pending infringement, opposition or cancellation
proceeding or any pending material litigation involving our principal Marks.

We grant you a non-exclusive license to use the Marks to operate your Park, subject to the terms of your
Franchise Agreement. You must at all times faithfully, honestly, and diligently promote the Marks in
connection with operating your Park. You may use the Marks only for your Park, and only according to
your Franchise Agreement and in accordance with System Standards. You have no right to sublicense or
assign your right to use the Marks. You may not use any other trademarks, service marks or commercial
symbols to identify or operate your Park.

You must identify yourself as the independent owner of your Park in the manner we prescribe. You may
not use any Mark (1) as part of any corporate or legal business name; (2) with any prefix, suffix, or other
modifying words, terms, designs, or symbols (other than logos we have licensed to you); (3) in selling any
unauthorized services or products; (4) as part of any website, domain name, email address, social media
account, other online presence or presence on any electronic, virtual, or digital medium of any kind
(“Online Presence”), except in accordance with our System Standards; (5) in advertising the transfer, sale,
or other disposition of your Park or an ownership interest in you; or (6) in any other manner that we have
not expressly authorized in writing. You must give the notices of trademark registrations that we specify
and to obtain any fictitious or assumed name registrations required under applicable law.

We license the Marks from ATP IP under a Trademark License Agreement dated December 3, 2018 (the
“License Agreement”). The term of the License Agreement will continue for 99 years from its effective
date unless terminated. The License Agreement may be terminated (resulting in the loss of our right to use
and to sublicense the use of the Marks to you) by mutual agreement of the parties, or by ATP IP for a
number of reasons, including if we default on any obligations, we are dissolved, make an assignment for
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the benefit of creditors, become insolvent, consent to appointment of a receiver, or our business is seized,
or the parties cease to be affiliates. All rights in and goodwill from the use of the Marks accrue to ATP IP.
Except as described above, no agreement significantly limits our rights to use or sublicense the Marks in a
manner material to the franchise.

The Marks may evolve over time, including after you sign the Franchise Agreement, as we evaluate the
best way to promote the System. If we decide to modify, substitute, add or discontinue the use of any
Marks for the System, we may at any time require you to modify, substitute, add, or discontinue using any
Mark and/or use one or more additional or substitute Marks. Y ou must replace the Marks at your Park with
the modified, additional or substitute Marks we specify and to comply with all other directions we give
regarding the Marks at your Park within a reasonable time after receiving notice from us. We are not
required to reimburse you for any costs or expenses associated with making such changes or promoting a
modified or substitute Mark, or for any loss of revenue due to any modified or discontinued Mark.

We know of no superior rights or infringing uses that could materially affect your use of the Marks in any
state. You must notify us immediately of any apparent infringement or challenge to your use of any Mark,
or of any person’s claim of any rights in any Mark, and you may not communicate with any person other
than us and our and our affiliates’ attorneys, regarding any infringement, challenge or claim. We and/or
ATP IP may take the action we deem appropriate and exclusively control any litigation or proceeding from
the infringement, challenge or claim or otherwise concerning any Mark. You must sign the documents and
take the actions that, in the opinion of our attorneys, are necessary or advisable to protect and maintain our
interests in the Marks. We will reimburse you for all damages and expenses that you incur in responding
to any trademark infringement proceeding disputing your use of any Marks, if you have notified us
immediately of the proceeding, and complied with our directions in responding to it. Y ou must not contest,
or assist any other person in contesting, the validity of our and ATP IP’s ownership of the Marks. Your
use of the Marks and any goodwill established by that use are exclusively for our and ATP IP’s benefit.

Under the Franchise Agreement, we must indemnify you against, and reimburse you for, all damages for
which you are held liable in any proceeding in which your use of any Mark in compliance with the
Franchise Agreement is held to constitute trademark infringement, and for all reasonable costs you incur
in the defense of any claim brought against you or in any proceeding in which you are named as a party,
only if you have timely notified us of the claim or proceeding and comply with our directions in responding
to the proceeding. At our option, we and/or ATP IP may defend and control the defense of any proceeding
from your use of any Mark under the Franchise Agreement.

Item 14.

PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

Copyrights

We do not own any patents that are material to the franchise. We have not filed any patent applications
that are material to the franchise. We and/or our affiliates claim copyrights in the Brand Standards Manual,
all Franchise System Websites, advertising and marketing materials, any or all of the design elements
contained within the Marks, and other advertising or marketing materials used in operating the Parks and
the System. We have not registered these copyrights with the United States Copyright Office but need not
do so at this time to protect them. You may use the copyrighted works only as we specify while operating
your Park (and must stop using them if we so direct you). There currently are no effective adverse
determinations regarding the copyrighted materials. No agreement limits our right to use or allow others
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to use the Confidential Information (defined below) or copyrighted works. We know of no infringing uses
of our copyrighted works which could materially affect your using the copyrighted works. We need not
protect or defend our copyrighted works. We may control any action involving the copyrighted works,
even if you voluntarily bring the matter to our attention. We need not participate in your defense nor
indemnify you for damages or expenses in a proceeding involving the copyrighted works.

Confidential Information

In connection with your franchise, you and your owners and personnel may from time to time be provided
and/or have access to non-public information about the System and the operation of Parks, including
information arising from your Park (the “Confidential Information”), including: (1) training and operations
materials (including the Brand Standards Manual); (2) the System Standards and the System, including
trade secrets; (3) market research and marketing strategies (including expansion strategies and targeted
demographics); (4) specifications for, suppliers of, and methods of ordering, products and services
(including, Operating Assets); (5) any software or technology which is proprietary to us or the System,
including digital passwords and identifications and any source code of, and data, reports, and other printed
materials generated by, the software or similar technology; (6) knowledge of the operating results and
financial performance of Parks; (7) information generated by, or used or developed in, any Park’s
operation, including information relating to customers such as customer names, addresses, telephone
numbers, e-mail addresses, buying habits, preferences, demographics and related information; and (8) any
other information designated as confidential or proprietary by us.

All Confidential Information is exclusively owned by us and is proprietary to our System (other than
personally identifiable information relating to your employees and personnel, and/or certain other data that
we do not have access to or are otherwise designated or restricted by us).

You must and must cause your representatives to: (a) process, retain, use, collect, and disclose our
Confidential Information strictly to the limited extent, and in such a manner, as necessary for the
development and operation of the Park in accordance with your Franchise Agreement, (b) process, retain,
use, collect, and disclose our Confidential Information strictly in accordance with the privacy policies and
System Standards we establish, and our and our representative’s instructions; (c) keep confidential and not
disclose, sell, distribute, or trade our Confidential Information to any person other than those of your
employees and representatives who need to know such Confidential Information for the purpose of
assisting you in operating the Park in accordance with your Franchise Agreement (you will be responsible
for any violation of this requirement by any of your representatives or employees); (d) not make
unauthorized copies of any of our Confidential Information; (e) adopt and maintain administrative,
physical and technical safeguards to prevent unauthorized use or disclosure of any of our Confidential
Information, including by establishing reasonable security and access measures, restricting its disclosure
to Key Personnel, and/or by requiring persons who have access to such Confidential Information to be
bound by contractual obligations to protect such Confidential Information and preserve our rights and
controls in such Confidential Information, in each case that are no less protective or beneficial to us than
the terms of the Franchise Agreement; and (f) at our request, destroy or return any of the Confidential
Information. Confidential Information does not include information, knowledge, or know-how, which is
lawfully known to the public without violation of applicable law or an obligation to us or our affiliates.

As it relates to any “personally identifiable information” that constitutes part of our Confidential

Information, you must also: (a) process, retain, use, collect, and disclose all such personally identifiable

information only in strict accordance with all applicable laws, regulations, orders, the guidance and codes

issued by industry or regulatory agencies, and the privacy policies and terms and conditions of any
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applicable Online Presence; (b) assist us with meeting our compliance obligations under all applicable laws
and regulations relating to such personally identifiable information, including the guidance and codes of
practice issued by industry or regulatory agencies; and (c) promptly notify us of any communication or
request from any customer or other data subject to access, correct, delete, opt-out of, or limit activities
relating to any such personally identifiable information.

Innovations

All ideas, concepts, techniques, or materials relating to a Park created by you, your owners or your
employees (or for you, your owners or your employees), whether or not protectable intellectual property,
must be promptly disclosed to us and will be our sole and exclusive property, part of the System, and works
made-for-hire for us. To the extent that any item does not qualify as a “work made-for-hire” for us, you
must assign ownership of that item, and all related rights to that item, to us and agree to take whatever
action (including signing assignment or other documents) we request to evidence our ownership or to help
us obtain intellectual property rights in the item.

Contact Information

We have the sole right to all telephone numbers, directory listings, and/or any other type of contact
information or directory listing for your Park or that you use in the operation or promotion of your Park
(the “Contact Information”). The Contact Information may be used only for your Park in accordance with
the Franchise Agreement and our System Standards. may notify any telephone company, listing agencies,
website hosting company, domain registrar, social network, and any other third-party owning or controlling
any Contact Information, if any information relating to your Park is inaccurate or violates our System
Standards, and request that they modify such Contact Information, and/or remove such Contact
Information until it can be corrected.

Item 15.

OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISE
BUSINESS

If you are an entity, you must identify one of your owners who is a natural person with at least a 51%
ownership interest and voting power in you (your “Principal Owner””). We must approve the person that
will act as your Principal Owner. If you do not (or if you are conducting business as an entity, your Principal
Owner does not) wish to supervise the day-to-day operation of your Park, then you must designate a person
that we approve to supervise the day-to-day operation of your Park (your “Approved Manager”). We must
approve your Approved Manager before he or she begins to provide services at your Park. We may
establish conditions for approving any such Approved Manager, which may include the completion of
training, confirmation that it will have no competitive businesses activities, and/or execution of a non-
disclosure agreement (that we approve or designate) or other covenants we require. During any period in
which no Approved Manager is approved (including because the Approved Manager resigns or otherwise
indicates to us or you that he or she wishes to cease acting as your Approved Manager, or we disapprove
of your Approved Manager for any reason), you (or if you are conducting business as an entity, your
Principal Owner) must supervise the day-to-day operations of your Park. Your Park must always be under
the direct on-site supervision of one or more persons who have completed our Management Training
Program.
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Y our Principal Owner will be authorized to deal with us on your behalf for all matters whatsoever that may
arise with respect to your Franchise Agreement. Any decision made by the Principal Owner will be final
and binding on you and we will be entitled to rely solely on the decision of the Principal Owner without
discussing the matter with any other party. We will not be held liable for any actions based on any decision
or actions of the Principal Owner. The person acting as your Principal Owner must have full corporate
power and authority to enter into the Franchise Agreement and any other documents to which you are a
party, and to make binding decisions on your behalf.

If you operate through a business entity, your direct and indirect owners must personally guarantee your
obligations under the Franchise Agreement and must agree to be bound personally by every contractual
provision, whether containing monetary or non-monetary obligations, including the covenant not to
compete. Our current form of guaranty is attached as Exhibit B to the Franchise Agreement. In addition, if
these owners are married, their spouse may have to consent in writing to the signing of the guaranty.

We may require that any employee, agent, or independent contractor that you hire and that will have access
to Confidential Information execute a non-disclosure agreement that we approve or designate.

Item 16.
RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

Y ou must offer and sell at your Park the attractions, products, or services that we specify from time to time.
You may offer and sell such approved attractions, products, or services only in the manner and at the
locations we have prescribed and may not offer or sell any attractions, products, or services through
alternative channels of distribution (including, the internet or retail stores) without our approval. You may
not offer or sell any attractions, products, or services we have not approved at any location. If we at any
time disapprove an attraction, product, or service, you must immediately discontinue offering or selling it
at your Park. As our System evolves, we may authorize one or more Parks to offer additional, different, or
modified attractions, products, or services, and we are under no obligation to authorize every Park to offer
the same attractions, products, or services. We may condition our approval for any such attractions,
products, or services on our then-current criteria, and/or additional terms and conditions that we establish.

If we at any time (including after our initial approval) determine that you fail to meet our System Standards
for offering or selling any attractions, products, or services, we may permanently or temporarily terminate
your right to offer or sell such attractions, products, or services (and without waiving our right to terminate
your Franchise Agreement for a default).

We may periodically set a maximum or minimum price that you may charge for products and services
offered by your Park. If we impose a maximum price for any product or service, you may not charge more
for the product or service than the maximum price we impose. If we impose a minimum price for any
product or service, you may not charge less for such product or service than the minimum price we impose.
For any product or service for which we do not impose a maximum or minimum price, we may require
you to comply with an advertising policy adopted by us which will prohibit you from advertising any price
for a product or service that is different than our suggested retail price. Although you must comply with
any advertising policy we adopt, you will not be prohibited from selling any product or service at a price
above or below the suggested retail price unless we impose a maximum price or minimum price for it.

Y ou must obtain a signed liability release and waiver (a “Liability Waiver”) from every customer of your
Park (and for any customer that is a minor, from an authorized parent or guardian) before they enter the
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recreational areas of the Premises or participate in any recreational services or activities. We must approve
the form of Liability Waiver that you will use before you begin to use it with any customers, and we may
regulate the form of Liability Waiver. We may disapprove any Liability Waiver at any time, and you must
update your Liability Waiver periodically to meet our then-current standards. You are solely responsible
for obtaining your own professional advice with respect to the adequacy of the terms and provisions of any
Liability Waiver, and its compliance with any applicable laws in your specific jurisdiction.

You must offer and sell membership rights for the Park (“Memberships™) after your Opening Date. You
may not offer or sell any Memberships prior to your Opening Date without our prior written approval. All
Memberships must be evidenced by a written agreement (a “Membership Agreement”) and must not be
for a term that extends beyond the expiration of your Franchise Agreement without our prior written
consent. You must comply with the System Standards we establish from time to time regarding
Memberships, standards for the following: (1) the types and terms of Memberships you may offer; (2) the
form(s) of Membership Agreement; (3) the terms and conditions upon which a member may transfer his
or her Membership from your Park to another Park and vice versa; (4) admission of members of your Park
to other Parks; (5) procedures to follow when members transfer to or from your Park; (6) use and
acceptance of coupons, passes, and certificates; (7) group accounts and group Memberships (and discounts
applicable thereto); and (8) payment terms for Memberships. If we are contacted by a member of your
Park who wishes to lodge a complaint, we may address the member’s complaints, which may include
refunding money to the complaining member, in which case you must reimburse us for these amounts.

We may modify the types and terms of Memberships to be offered, terminate your right to offer certain
types of Memberships, and/or approve or require other types of Memberships for sale. We may suspend,
revoke, or terminate your right to offer Memberships at any time.

Item 17.

RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION
THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

This table lists certain important provisions of the Franchise Agreement and Area Development
Agreement and related agreements. You should read these provisions in the agreements attached to
this Disclosure Document.

SECTION IN
PROVISION AGREEMENT SUMMARY
(a) Length of the Section 1B in Terms of Franchise Agreement is 10 years.

franchise term  [Franchise Agreement

Section 1B in Area  |Term of Area Development Agreement ends on the earlier of (1) the
Development date on which the last Park which is required to be opened to satisfy
Agreement the development schedule opens for regular business, or (2) the last
day of the last development schedule.
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PROVISION

SECTION IN
AGREEMENT

SUMMARY

(b)

Renewal or
extension of the
term

Sections 7B and 14A
in Franchise
|Agreement

|Area Development
|Agreement

If you are in substantial compliance with the Franchise Agreement,
you may acquire a franchise for one successive term of 10 years.

INot Applicable.

(©)

Requirements for
franchisee to
renew or extend

Sections 7B and 14 in
Franchise Agreement

|Area Development
|Agreement

The following conditions must be met to qualify for a renewal: (i) you
give us written notice no more than 540 days and no less than 180
days before the expiration; (ii) you have substantially complied with
the Franchise Agreement and all System Standards, (iii) you maintain
possession of and agree to remodel and/or expand your Park, add or
replace improvements and Operating Assets, or secure and develop a
new premises we approve, (iv) you sign our then-current Franchise
IAgreement, which may materially differ from your current Franchise
IAgreement, (v) you and your owners sign (if state law allows) general
releases, (vi) you pay a renewal fee, and (vii) we offer franchises in
your geographic market at the time of your notice.

INot Applicable.

(d)

Termination by
franchisee

Section 15A in
Franchise Agreement

IAND

Section 7A in Area

You may terminate the Franchise Agreement or Area Development
IAgreement if you are in full compliance with the applicable
agreement and we materially breach the agreement and do not cure
the default within 30 days after notice from you, or, if we cannot
correct the failure within 30 days, we fail to give you reasonable
evidence of our effort to correct the failure within 30 days after your

Development notice (subject to state law).
|Agreement
(e) Termination by [Not applicable 'We may not terminate the Franchise Agreement or Area Development

franchisor
without cause

without cause.

(H

Termination by
franchisor with
cause

Section 15B in
Franchise Agreement

IAND

Section 7B in Area
Development

|Agreement

We may terminate the Franchise Agreement or Area Development
IAgreement only if you or your owners commit one of several
violations.
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PROVISION

SECTION IN
AGREEMENT

SUMMARY

“Cause” defined
— curable
defaults

(2)

Section 15B in
Franchise Agreement

Section 7B in Area
Development
|Agreement

\Under the Franchise Agreement, you have 10 days to pay past due
amounts owed to us; applicable cure period to pay past due amounts
owed third-parties; 72 hours to cure health and safety violations; 10
days to cure any insurance requirements; 30 days to cure an
attachment, seizure, warrant, writ, or levy on your Park, or any order
appointing a receiver, trustee, or liquidator on a substantial part of
your property; and 30 days to cure a breach of any other provision or
obligation under the Franchise Agreement or any agreement between
you (and your affiliates) and us (and our affiliates).

[Under the Area Development Agreement, you have 30 days to cure
an attachment, seizure, writ, or levy on your Park, or any order
appointing a receiver, trustee, or liquidator on a substantial part of
your property; and 30 days to cure a breach of any other provision or
obligation under the Area Development Agreement or any agreement
between you (and your affiliates) and us (and our affiliates).

“Cause” defined
—non-curable
defaults

(h)

Section 15B in
Franchise Agreement

Section 7B in Area
Development
|Agreement

INon-curable defaults under the Franchise Agreement include:
material misrepresentations or omissions; failure to satisfy all
development obligations; failure to obtain lawful possession of a
Premises we have approved, or failure to sign Lease and Lease Rider;
abandonment; unapproved transfers; failure to complete Management
Training Program; conviction or pleading guilty to crime; default or
termination of Lease or loss of right to occupy the Premises;
unauthorized use or disclosure of Confidential Information; violation
of restrictive covenants; failure to pass 3 or more quality assurance
audits or inspections in 12 months; immediate health or safety risks;
failure to have sufficient funds in your account 3 or more times in 12
months; failure to correctly state your Park’s Gross Sales 3 or more
times or by more than 3% on any one occasion; bankruptcy or
insolvency; terrorist activities; and below average or unsatisfactory
grade on 3 or more mystery shopper examinations in 12 months.

Non-curable defaults under the Area Development Agreement
include: material misrepresentations or omissions; failure to satisfy
development schedule; abandonment; ceasing or threatening to cease
development, or to make good faith progress in exercising your
development rights; unapproved transfers; conviction or pleading
cuilty to crime; unauthorized use or disclosure of Confidential
Information; violation of any restrictive covenants; bankruptcy or
insolvency; terrorist activities.

Franchisee’s
obligations on
termination/non-
renewal

()

Section 16 in
Franchise Agreement

Under the Franchise Agreement, you must: close the Park for
business; cease using Marks; cease identifying yourself as a franchise
owner; remove all materials bearing the Marks and remove all
proprietary trade dress to de-identify the Premises; cease using
Contact Information and Online Presences and transfer controls to us;

return or destroy all Confidential Information (including the Brand
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PROVISION

SECTION IN
AGREEMENT

SUMMARY

Section 8 in Area
Development
|Agreement

Standards Manual and any and all customer data or other information
from your Computer System); and comply with all other System
Standards and applicable laws for closure and de-identification. You
must also pay us Lost Revenue Damages if we terminate for your
breach, or you terminate other than as permitted under the Franchise
|Agreement.

Under the Area Development Agreement, you must: cease to conduct
business, exercise development rights, and search for sites for Parks;
cease identifying yourself as a franchise owner area developer; return
to us or destroy any and all Confidential Information; and comply
with all other System Standards and all applicable laws in connection
with the termination.

(j) Assignment of Sectiog I3A in There is no restriction on our right to assign.
contract by Franchise Agreement
franchisor
AND
Section 6A in Area
Development
|Agreement
(k) “Transfer” by Sectiog 13B in A transfer includes a voluntary, involuntary, direct, or indirect
franchisee—  [franchise Agreement |assionment, sale, gift, or other disposition, including transfer by
defined reason of merger, consolidation, issuance of additional securities,
AND death, disability, divorce, insolvency, encumbrance, foreclosure,
: : surrender or by operation of law.
Section 6B in Area yop
Development
|Agreement
(1)  Franchisor Sections 1_3B and 13C |you may not transfer the Franchise Agreement or Area Development
approval of in Franchise IAgreement without our prior written approval.
transfer by Agreement
franchisee
AND
Sections 6B and 6C in
|Area Development
|Agreement
(m) Conditions for [Sections 13B and 13C [You submit an application for transfer and provide all information we

franchisor
approval of
transfer

ATP Franchising, LLC
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transferee; you execute all documents we require, including a general
release of claims against us and our affiliates; all monetary obligations
are paid; you and your owners are not in default of any provisions of
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PROVISION

SECTION IN
AGREEMENT

SUMMARY

the Franchise Agreement or any other agreement with us; transferee
and its Key Personnel complete the Management Training Program;
all necessary actions under the Lease are completed; transferee signs
our then-current franchise agreement and other documents, provisions
of which may differ materially from those contained in the Franchise
\Agreement; transferee or its owners sign our then-current form of
personal guaranty; you pay a transfer fee; we determine that the
financial terms of the transfer will not burden your Park; transferee
financing is subordinate to the Franchise Agreement; you correct
existing deficiencies in your Park and/or the transferee agrees to
upgrade or remodel your Park for which we may require transferee to
escrow an amount we approve for the payment of this update, or
remodel; and you provide evidence that all other appropriate measures
have been taken to transfer operations of the Park to transferee. If the
transfer is to a legal entity that you own 100%, and you are in full
compliance with the Franchise Agreement, our consent will not be
required, but you must transfer all Park operations and assets to such
entity; that entity must conduct no business other than your Park; that
entity must assume all of your obligations under the Franchise
IAgreement; you must reimburse us for all direct costs we incur in
connection with the transfer; and you must provide us with
organizational documents for the new entity.

(m) Conditions for
franchisor
approval of
transfer

Section 6B and 6C in
IArea Development
|Agreement

Y ou submit an application for transfer and provide all information we
request about transferee; transferee meets our standard for area
developers; you provide us executed versions of all agreements with
transferee; you execute all documents we require, including a general
release of claims against us and our affiliates; all monetary obligations
are paid; you and your owners are not in default of any provisions of
the Area Development Agreement or any other agreement with us; all
transfer conditions are satisfied, including transfer of any applicable
leases, contracts or fees; transferee or its owners sign our then-current
arca development agreement and other documents, provisions of
which may differ materially from those contained in the Area
Development Agreement; transferee or its owners sign our then-
current form of personal guaranty; you pay a transfer fee; we
determine that the financial terms of the transfer will not burden the
development rights or Parks; transferee financing is subordinate to
transferee’s obligations to amounts due to us, our affiliates, or to
otherwise comply with the Area Development Agreement and each
Franchise Agreement; and you provide evidence that all other
appropriate measures have been taken to transfer operation of the
development rights to transferee. If the transfer is to a legal entity that
you own 100%, and you are in full compliance with the Area
Development Agreement, our consent will not be required, but you

must transfer all operations and assets to such entity; that entity must
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SECTION IN
AGREEMENT

SUMMARY

conduct no business other than your Parks; that entity must assume
all of your obligations under the Area Development Agreement; you
must reimburse us for all direct costs we incur in connection with the
transfer; and you must provide us with organizational documents for
the new entity.

(n)

Franchisor’s right
of first refusal to
acquire
franchisee’s
business

Section 13D in
Franchise Agreement

Section 6D in Area
Development
|Agreement

[f you receive an offer to sell or transfer an interest, direct or indirect,
in the Franchise Agreement, your Park, substantially all of the assets
of your Park, or any direct or indirect ownership interest in you, we
have a right of first refusal to purchase such interest offered for the
price and on the terms and conditions contained in the offer with
certain provisions; if this right is not exercised within 30 days of our
receipt of such intention to sell or transfer, then you may sell or
transfer in accordance with items (k) to (m) in this Item 17.

If you receive an offer to sell or transfer an interest, direct or indirect,
in the Area Development Agreement, your business operated under
the Area Development Agreement, or any direct or indirect ownership
interest in you, we have a right of first refusal to purchase such interest
offered for the price and on the terms and conditions contained in the
offer with certain provisions; if this right is not exercised within 30
days of our receipt of such intention to sell or transfer, then you may
sell or transfer in accordance with items (k) to (m) in this Item 17.

(0)

Franchisor’s

Section 16E in

'We may purchase your Park at fair market value upon the termination

option to Franchise Agreement |or expiration of the Franchise Agreement. We may exercise this right
purchase by giving you written notice of our election within 30 days after the
franchisee’s termination or expiration.
business
IArea Development _
Agreement Not Applicable
(p) Death or Sectioq 13E in Upon death or disability of you or your Principal Owner, such
disability of Franchise Agreement person’s executor, administrator, conservator, guardian, or other
franchisee ersonal representative must transfer the ownership interest within 9
AND P p p
months of the date of death or disability. Such transfer upon death or
. . disability of a franchisee or area developer is a transfer requiring our
Section 6E in Arca t. See (k) in this Item 17 above. W but need not t
Development consent. See ( )_1n lis Item 17 above. We may, but need not, operate
Aeve P . the Park on an interim basis (or appoint a third party to operate the
greemen Park on an interim basis).
(qQ) Non-competition [Section 12 in Neither you, nor any of your owners, may have any involvement,

covenants during
the term of the
franchise

Franchise Agreement

IAND

directly or indirectly, in a “Competitive Business.” “Competitive
Business” means any business (excluding Parks operated under a
franchise agreement with us or an affiliate) operating or granting
franchises or licenses to others to operate any recreational facility or

similar business that: (i) features trampolines, obstacle courses, and/or
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SECTION IN

PROVISION AGREEMENT SUMMARY
Section 5 of Area other attractions, products, or services substantially similar to those
Development offered by Parks, and/or (ii) that derives more than 20% of its gross
|Agreement revenue from children’s parties and events (subject to state law).

(r) Non-competition
covenants after
the franchise is
terminated or
expires

Sections 16F in
Franchise Agreement

Sections 8B and 8C in
IArea Development
|Agreement

For 2 years beginning on the effective date of termination expiration
of the Franchise Agreement (or after transfers, for the transferor) or
the date you and your owners begin to comply, you and your owners
may not have any direct or indirect interest in a Competitive Business
located or operating (a) at the Premises or within a 15-mile radius of
the Premises, or (b) within a 10-mile radius of any other Park operated
by us, our affiliates, or any franchisee of us or our affiliates (subject
to state law).

For 2 years beginning on the effective date of termination or
expiration of the Area Development Agreement (or after transfers, for
the transferor) or the date you and your owners begin to comply, you
and your owners may not have any direct or indirect interest in a
Competitive Business located or operating (a) within the
Development Area, or (b) within a 10-mile radius of any other Park
operated by us, our affiliates, or any franchisee of us or our affiliates
(subject to state law).

(s) Modification of
the agreement

Section 18] in
Franchise Agreement

IAND

Section 101 in Area
Development
|Agreement

INo modification unless by written agreement of both parties, but
Brand Standards Manual and System Standards are subject to change
at any time.

(t) Integration/merger
clause

Section 18N in
Franchise Agreement

IAND

Section 10M in Area
Development
|Agreement

Only the written terms of the Franchise Agreement and Area
Development and other related written agreements are binding
(subject to state law). Any representations or promises outside the
Disclosure Document, Franchise Agreement and Area Development
|Agreement may not be enforceable. However, nothing in the
Franchise Agreement or Area Development Agreement is intended to
disclaim the representations we made in the Disclosure Document that
we furnished to you.

(u) Dispute
resolution by
arbitration or

mediation

Sections 18A and 18B
in Franchise
|Agreement

IAND

Either of us may initiate a mediation proceeding by notifying the other
in writing. Regardless of who initiates the mediation, the mediation
will be conducted at a location in or within 50 miles of our then-
principal place of business (currently, Dallas, Texas) (subject to state
law, if applicable) unless we and you agree upon a mutually
acceptable alternative location.
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SUMMARY

Sections 10A and 10B
in Area Development
|Agreement

IAll controversies, disputes or claims between us must be submitted
for binding arbitration to the American Arbitration Association on
demand of either party. We and you must arbitrate all disputes at a
location in or within 50 miles of our then-principal place of business
(currently, Dallas, Texas) (subject to state law, if applicable).

(V)

Choice of forum

Section 18C in
Franchise Agreement

'Y ou must sue us in the state or federal court closest to our then-current
principal place of business (currently, Dallas, Texas) (subject to state

IAND law, if applicable).

Section 10D in Area
Development
|Agreement

(w) Choice of law

Section 18D in
Franchise Agreement

IAND
Section 10C in Area

Development
|Agreement

of the State of Delaware governs (subject to state law).

Item 18.
PUBLIC FIGURES
We do not use any public figure to promote our franchise.
Item 19.
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential
financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable basis for
the information, and if the information is included in the disclosure document. Financial performance
information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a franchisor provides the
actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying; or (2) a franchisor supplements the
information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing information about possible performance
at a particular location or under particular circumstances. Written substantiation for the financial
performance representation will be made available to you upon reasonable request.

We have used historical financial information submitted by our franchisees to compile the information
contained in this Item 19. All Gross Sales information reported in this Item 19 for franchised Parks was
obtained from franchisee’s reports and point-of-sale systems. For the purposes of this Item 19, “Gross
Sales” is calculated in the same manner as under the Franchise Agreement, namely as the total gross
revenue or consideration derived from the sale of products and services and all other income of every kind
and nature, directly or indirectly, from operating the Park, including, all revenue or consideration received
at or away from the Premises, and whether from cash, check, credit and debit card, barter exchange, trade
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credit, or other credit transactions. Gross Sales did not include deductions allowed for uncollected or
uncollectible credit accounts and no allowances were made for bad debts. The payments received for online
group-bought deals, gift certificates or gift cards were included in Gross Sales in accordance with our
guidelines for calculating Gross Sales. Gross Sales did not include the amount of any tax imposed by any
federal, state, municipal or governmental authority directly on sales and collected from customers.

Annual Gross Sales of Franchised Reporting Parks in 2023 by Quartile

As of December 31, 2023, 66 franchisee-owned Parks were open and operating in the franchise system in
the United States. For the purposes of this Item 19, we exclude 3 Parks: (i) 1 franchisee-owned Park that
opened for business during 2023 and was therefore not open and operating during the entire year, and (ii)
2 franchisee-owned Parks that were undergoing construction during 2023. We have also not included any
data from our international franchised Parks. The following annual Gross Sales information is presented
for the remaining 63 franchised Parks operating in the United States (“Franchised Reporting Parks”). These
Franchised Reporting Parks were divided into 4 quartiles based on each Franchised Reporting Park’s
annual Gross Sales in the calendar year ended December 31, 2023 (with Quartile 1 represents those
Franchised Reporting Parks with the highest annual Gross Sales and the other Quartiles are in descending
order with Quartile 4 representing those Franchised Reporting Parks with the lowest annual Gross Sales).

4 Parks in Average # of Parks Highest Lowest Median

Quartile Quartile Annual Above Annual Annual Annual
Gross Sales | Average Gross Sales | Gross Sales | Gross Sales
Quartile 1 15 $3,170,878 5(33%) $4,600,676 | $2,601,812 | $2,848,444
Quartile 2 16 $2,304,188 8(50%) $2,595,137 | $2,039,572 | $2,293,650
Quartile 3 16 $1,809,741 9(56%) $2,023,577 | $1,532,335 | $1,847,574
Quartile 4 16 $1,241,087 9(56%) $1,517,979 $977,370 $1,263,926
TOTAL 63 $2,114,975 | 28(44%) $4,600,676 $977,370 $2,023,577

Cost of Goods Sold, Payroll Costs, and EBITDA for Franchised Accounting Parks in 2023

The following cost information is based on the 29 the Franchised Reporting Parks that provided us the
requested financial reporting data on a timely basis (“Franchised Accounting Parks”). The remaining
Franchised Reporting Parks did not report on a timely basis or provided incomplete records. The following
chart reflects certain costs for the Franchised Accounting Parks for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2023, as a percentage of Gross Sales of such Franchised Accounting Parks during the same time period.

Average % | Median % | Lowest % | Highest % Units Higher

than Avg

Cost of Goods Sold as o o o 0 0
% of Gross Sales | 10.53% 10.00% 4.36% 20.57% 12 (41%)

o
Payroll Costs as %o of |, 269 19.96% | 10.00% | 32.61% 14 (48%)
Gross Sales
53
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EBITDA as % of
Gross Sales 3

22.04% 19.34% -4.65% 48.53% 12 (41%)

Note 1: Cost of Goods Sold includes food, beverage, socks, branded merchandise, and related items. The
percentages in the chart above reflect the average, median, lowest, and highest percentage of total Gross
Sales for the Franchised Accounting Parks represented by Costs of Goods Sold in the prior fiscal year.

Note 2: Payroll Costs includes wages and the employer portion of employment taxes. The percentages in
the chart above reflect the average, median, lowest, and highest percentage of total Gross Sales for the
Franchised Accounting Parks represented by Payroll Costs in the prior fiscal year.

Note 3: EBITDA is earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization. The percentages in the
chart above reflect the average, median, lowest, and highest percentage of total Gross Sales for the
Franchised Accounting Parks represented by EBITDA in the prior fiscal year.

ek

Some outlets have earned this amount. Your individual results may differ. There is no assurance
that you’ll earn as much.

Other than the preceding financial performance representation, ATP Franchising, LLC does not make any
financial performance representations. We also do not authorize our employees or representatives to make
any such representations either orally or in writing. If you are purchasing an existing outlet, however, we
may provide you with the actual records of that outlet. If you receive any other financial performance
information or projections of your future income, you should report it to the franchisor’s management by
contacting Michael Stout, 12222 Merit Drive, Suite 1300, Dallas, Texas 75251, (866) 414-0616, the
Federal Trade Commission, and the appropriate state regulatory agencies.

Item 20.
OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION
TABLE NO. 1

SYSTEMWIDE PARK SUMMARY
FOR YEARS 2021 to 2023

Parks at the Parks at the End
Outlet Type Year Start of the Year of the Year Net Change
Franchised 2021 69 70 +1
2022 70 67 -3
2023 67 66 -1
Affiliate-Owned 2021 2 7 +5
or Managed 2022 7 12 +5
2023 12 9 -3
Total 2021 71 77 +6
2022 77 79 +2
2023 79 75 -4
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TABLE NO. 2
TRANSFERS OF OUTLETS FROM FRANCHISEES TO
NEW OWNERS (OTHER THAN FRANCHISOR OR AN AFFILIATE)
FOR YEARS 2021 to 2023

State Year Number of Transfers
Arizona 2021 1
2022 0
2023 0
California 2021 1
2022 0
2023 0
Florida 2021 0
2022 1
2023 0
Tennessee 2021 0
2022 1
2023 0
Texas 2021 0
2022 0
2023 1
Totals 2021 2
2022 2
2023 1
TABLE NO. 3
STATUS OF FRANCHISED OUTLETS
FOR YEARS 2021 to 2023
Ceased
Outlets at Reacquired | Operations- |Outlets at
Start of Outlets Non- by Other End of
State Year Year Opened [Terminations| Renewals | Franchisor Reasons Year
Alabama | 2021 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
2022 3 0 0 0 1 0 2
2023 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
Arizona 2021 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
2022 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
2023 2 1 0 0 0 0 3
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State

Year

Outlets at
Start of
Year

Outlets
Opened

Terminations

Non-
Renewals

Reacquired
by
Franchisor

Ceased
Operations-
Other
Reasons

Outlets at
End of
Year

2021

(e}
(e}
(e}
(e}
(e}

Arkansas

2022

2023

California | 2021

2022

2023

Colorado 2021

2022

2023

Delaware 2021

2022

2023

Florida 2021

2022

2023

Georgia 2021

2022

2023

Idaho 2021

2022

2023

Illinois 2021

2022

2023

Kentucky | 2021

2022

2023

Louisiana | 2021

2022

2023

Maryland | 2021

2022

2023

Massachusetts| 2021

2022
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State

Year

Outlets at
Start of
Year

Outlets
Opened

Terminations

Non-
Renewals

Reacquired
by
Franchisor

Ceased
Operations-
Other
Reasons

Outlets at
End of
Year

Michigan

2021

(e

(e

(e

(e

(e

2022

2023

Mississippi

2021

2022

2023

Nebraska

2021

2022

2023

New
Hampshire

2021

2022

2023

New Jersey

2021

2022

2023

New York

2021

2022

2023

North
Carolina

2021

2022

2023

Ohio

2021

2022

2023

Pennsylvania

2021

2022

2023

Puerto Rico

2021

2022

2023

Tennessee

2021

2022

2023
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Texas

2021

2022

2023

Utah

2021

2022

2023

Washington

2021

2022

2023
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State

Year

Outlets at
Start of
Year

Outlets
Opened

Terminations

Non-
Renewals

Reacquired
by
Franchisor

Ceased
Operations-
Other
Reasons

Outlets at
End of
Year

Wisconsin

2021 1

0

0

0

0

2022 1

2023 |

— [ — | —

Total

2021

69

70

2022

70

67

2023

67
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TABLE NO. 4
STATUS OF AFFILIATE-OWNED OUTLETS
FOR YEARS 2021 to 2023

State

Year Year

Outlets at
Start of

Outlets
Opened

Outlets
Reacquired
from Franchisee

Outlets
Closed

Outlets
Sold to
Franchisee

Outlets at
End of Year

Alabama

2021

(e

(e

(e

(e

(e

(e

2022

2023

Ohio

2021

2022

2023

Florida

2021

2022

2023

Pennsylvania

2021

2022

2023

Louisiana

2021

2022

2023

Nebraska

2021

2022

2023

North
Carolina

2021

2022

2023

South
Carolina

2021

2022

2023

Texas

2021

2022

— RN (== O = O[O |ON OO = O|—O

2023
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Outlets at Outlets Outlets
Start of Outlets Reacquired Outlets Sold to Outlets at
State Year Year Opened | from Franchisee | Closed | Franchisee | End of Year
Virginia 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0
2022 1 1 0 0 0 1
2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
Totals 2021 2 5 0 0 0 7
2022 7 4 3 0 2 12
2023 12 0 0 3 0 9
TABLE NO. 5
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023, PROJECTED OPENINGS FOR 2024
State Franchise Agreements Projected New Clg;szc;eflol\i::; d
Signed But Not Opened Franchised Openings pany
Openings

Alabama 1 1 0
California 2 2 0
Colorado 0 0 0
Florida 2 2 0
Georgia 1 1 0
Tlinois 1 2 0
Massachusetts 1 1 0
Michigan 1 1 0
New Jersey 1 0 0
New Mexico 1 0 0
Oklahoma 1 0 0
Pennsylvania 0 0 1
South Carolina 1 0 0
Texas 5 2 0
Utah 1 0 0
Washington 1 0 0
Totals 20 12 1

Notes to Item 20 Tables:

1. The numbers in the tables above are as of December 31 of each year.

2. The Parks listed as affiliate-owned in the tables below are owned and operated by entities that share

common control with us. We have never directly owned or operated any Parks.
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3. AsofDecember 31, 2023, 5 franchised Parks operated internationally in: (i) Cibeles, Mexico, (ii)
Malaga, Spain, (iii) Madrid, Spain, (iv) Buenos Aires, Argentina, and (v) Avellaneda, Argentina.
skkk

Exhibit D-1 contains a list of the names, addresses and telephone numbers of our current franchisees in the
United States as of December 31, 2023; and Exhibit D-2 contains a list of the names and last known address
and telephone number of each franchisee in the United States who had a Franchise Agreement terminated,
cancelled, not renewed or who otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business under the
Franchise Agreement during the most recently completed fiscal year, or who had not communicated with
us within 10 weeks of the issuance date of this Disclosure Document. If you buy this franchise, your contact
information may be disclosed to buyers when you leave the franchise system.

Within the last three years, franchisees have signed confidentiality clauses. In some instances, current and
former franchisees sign provisions restricting their ability to speak openly about their experience with our
franchise system. You may wish to speak with current and former franchisees but be aware that not all
such franchisees will be able to communicate with you.

We have established the FAB to engage in meetings with our senior leadership. To contact the FAB, please
reach out to Tim Kurtz at tim@pditdfw.com. The FAB is not incorporated or organized under state law.
Other than the FAB, we are not aware of any franchisee organizations associated with our franchise system.

Item 21.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Exhibit E contains our audited balance sheets as of December 31, 2023, December 31,2022, and December
31,2021, and the related statements of operations, changes in member’s equity, and cash flow for the fiscal
years then-ended. Our fiscal year end is December 31.
Item 22.
CONTRACTS

The following contracts are attached as exhibits to this Disclosure Document:

Exhibit B-1 — Franchise Agreement

Exhibit B-2 — Area Development Agreement
Exhibit B-3 — Consent to Transfer

Exhibit F — Representations Statement
Exhibit G — Sample General Release

Item 23.
RECEIPTS

Exhibit I contains detachable documents acknowledging your receipt of this Disclosure Document.
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STATE ADMINISTRATORS/AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

Listed here are the names, addresses and telephone numbers of the state agencies having responsibility
for the franchising disclosure/registration laws. We may not yet be registered to sell franchises in any
or all of these states. There may be states in addition to those listed below in which we have appointed
an agent for service of process. There may also be additional agents appointed in some of these states.

CALIFORNIA

Department of Financial Protection &
Innovation:
Toll Free: 1 (866) 275-2677

Los Angeles

Commissioner of Financial Protection &
Innovation

320 West 4™ Street

Suite 750

Los Angeles, California 90013

(213) 576-7505

Sacramento

Commissioner of Financial Protection &
Innovation

2101 Arena Blvd.

Sacramento, CA 95834

(916) 445-7205

San Diego

Commissioner of Financial Protection &
Innovation

1455 Frazee Road, Suite 315

San Diego, California 92108

(619) 610-2093

San Francisco

Commissioner of Financial Protection &
Innovation

One Sansome Street, Suite 600

San Francisco, California 94104-4428
(415) 972-8559
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HAWAII
(state administrator)

Business Registration Division
Securities Compliance Branch
Department of Commerce

and Consumer Affairs

P.O. Box 40

Honolulu, Hawaii 96810
(808) 586-2727

(agent for service of process)

Commissioner of Securities of the State of Hawaii
Department of Commerce and Consumer

Affairs

Business Registration Division

Securities Compliance Branch

335 Merchant Street, Room 205

Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

(808) 586-2744

ILLINOIS

Franchise Bureau

Office of the Attorney General
500 South Second Street
Springfield, Illinois 62706
(217) 782-4465



INDIANA
(state administrator)

Indiana Secretary of State
Securities Division, E-111
302 West Washington Street
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204
(317) 232-6681

(agent for service of process)

Indiana Secretary of State

200 West Washington Street, Room 201
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

(317) 232-6531

MARYLAND
(state administrator)

Office of the Attorney General
Securities Division

200 St. Paul Place

Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2021
(410) 576-6300

(agent for service of process)

Maryland Securities Commissioner
at the Office of the Attorney General
Securities Division

200 St. Paul Place

Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2021
(410) 576-6360

MICHIGAN
(state administrator)

Michigan Attorney General’s Office
Consumer Protection Division

Attn: Franchise Section

G. Mennen Williams Building

525 West Ottawa Street

Lansing, Michigan 48909
(517)373-7117
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(agent for service of process)

Michigan Department of Commerce,

Corporations, Securities, and Commercial

Licensing Bureau
P.O. Box 30018
Lansing, Michigan 48909

MINNESOTA
(state administrator)

Commissioner of Commerce
Minnesota Department of Commerce
85 7th Place East, Suite 280

St. Paul, Minnesota 55101

(651) 539-1600

(agent for service of process)

Commissioner of Commerce
Minnesota Department of Commerce
85 7th Place East, Suite 280

St. Paul, Minnesota 55101

(651) 539-1600

NEW YORK
(state administrator)

NYS Department of Law
Investor Protection Bureau
28 Liberty St. 21* F1

New York, NY 10005
(212) 416-8222

(agent for service of process)

Attention: New York Secretary of State
New York Department of State
One Commerce Plaza

99 Washington Avenue, 6™ Floor
Albany, NY 12231-0001

(518) 473-2492



NORTH DAKOTA

(state administrator)

North Dakota Securities Department
600 East Boulevard Avenue

State Capitol — 14 Floor

Bismarck, North Dakota 58505
(701) 328-4712

(agent for service of process)

Securities Commissioner

600 East Boulevard Avenue
State Capitol — 14 Floor
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505
(701) 328-4712

OREGON

Department of Business Services
Division of Financial Regulation
350 Winter Street, NE, Room 410
Salem, Oregon 97310-3881

(503) 378-4387

RHODE ISLAND

Department of Business Regulation
Division of Securities

John O. Pastore Complex Building 69-1

1511 Pontiac Avenue
Cranston, Rhode Island 02920
(401) 462-9645

SOUTH DAKOTA

Division of Insurance
Securities Regulation

124 S. Euclid, Second Floor
Pierre, South Dakota 57501
(605) 773-3563
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VIRGINIA
(state administrator)

State Corporation Commission

Division of Securities and Retail Franchising
1300 East Main Street, Ninth Floor
Richmond, Virginia 23219

(804) 371-9051

(agent for service of process)

Clerk, State Corporation Commission
1300 East Main Street, 1* Floor
Richmond, Virginia 23219

(804) 371-9733

WASHINGTON

(state administrator)

Washington Department of Financial Institutions

Securities Division

P.O. Box 41200

Olympia, Washington 98504-1200
(360) 902-8760

(agent for service of process)

Director

Department of Financial Institutions
Securities Division

150 Israel Road, S.W.

Tumwater, Washington 98501



WISCONSIN
(state administrator)

Securities and Franchise Registration
Wisconsin Department of Financial Institutions
4822 Madison Yards Way, North Tower
Madison, Wisconsin 53705

(608) 266-0448

(agent for service of process)

Office of the Secretary

Wisconsin Department of Financial Institutions
P.O. Box 8861

Madison, Wisconsin 53708-8861

(608) 261-9555
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ALTITUDE TRAMPOLINE PARK

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

FRANCHISEE

UNIT NO.
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FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

THIS FRANCHISE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into by and
between ATP FRANCHISING, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, with its principal
business address at 12222 Merit Drive, Suite 1300, Dallas, Texas 75251 (“we,” “us,” or “our”), and _

,a whose principal business address is __
(“you” or “your”) as of the date signed by us
on the signature page of this Agreement (the “Effective Date”).

1. GRANT OF FRANCHISE.

1A. BACKGROUND

(D) We and our predecessors and affiliates have developed (and continue to
develop and modify) a franchise system to establish, operate and promote distinctive trampoline park
businesses providing recreational entertainment facilities featuring trampolines, obstacle courses, and
other recreational activities, and offering and selling other related products and services using the
Marks (defined below) (each a “Park”).

(2) We and our affiliates use and promote, and license others to use and promote,
certain trademarks, service marks and other commercial symbols in operating Parks, which have
gained and will continue to gain public acceptance and goodwill, and we and our affiliates may create,
use, and license other trademarks, service marks and commercial symbols to identify the Parks in the
future (collectively, the “Marks”).

3) Parks will operate using distinctive and proprietary business formats, methods,
procedures, designs, layouts, standards, and specifications, all of which we may improve, substitute,
further develop, or otherwise modify from time to time (together, the “System”).

4) We grant franchises to persons who meet our qualifications and are willing to
undertake the investment and effort to own and operate a Park, and you have applied and been approved
for a franchise to own and operate a Park.

1B. GRANT AND TERM OF FRANCHISE.

Subject to this Agreement’s terms, we grant you a franchise to use the System and the Marks
to operate a Park (“your Park™) for a term beginning on the Effective Date and expiring ten (10) years
from the Effective Date (the “Term”), unless this Agreement is sooner terminated as provided herein.
You agree at all times faithfully, honestly, and diligently perform your obligations under this
Agreement and to use your best efforts to promote your Park.

1C.  CORPORATION, LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, OR PARTNERSHIP.

If you are a corporation, limited liability company, or general or limited partnership or other
form of legal business entity (collectively, an “Entity”) you agree and represent that Exhibit A to this
Agreement presents complete and accurate information about such Entity as of the Effective Date. You
also agree and represent that you are validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the state
of your incorporation or formation, and have the authority to execute this Agreement, and perform
your obligations under this Agreement. You agree to maintain organizational documents at all times
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that state that this Agreement restricts the issuance and transfer of any of your ownership interests, and
all certificates and other documents representing your ownership interests will bear a legend referring
to this Agreement’s restrictions.

You must identify one of your owners on Exhibit A who is a natural person with at least a
fifty-one percent (51%) ownership interest and voting power in you to act as your “Principal Owner”
and supervise the day-to-day operation of your Park in accordance with Section 7A. You acknowledge
and agree that your Principal Owner is authorized to deal with us on your behalf for all matters
whatsoever that may arise with respect to your Park and/or this Agreement. Any decision made by the
Principal Owner will be final and binding on you and we will be entitled to rely solely on the decision
of the Principal Owner without discussing the matter with any other party. We will not be held liable
for any actions based on any decisions or actions of the Principal Owner. You represent and agree that
the person acting as your Principal Owner has full power and authority to enter into this Agreement
and any other documents to which you are a party, and to make binding decisions on your behalf. The
execution and delivery by your Principal Owner of this Agreement has been duly authorized by all
requisite corporate action.

Each of your owners and their respective spouses must execute a guaranty in the form we
prescribe, agreeing to be personally bound, jointly and severally, by all provisions of this Agreement
and any ancillary agreements between you and us and/or our affiliates. Our current form of guaranty
is attached hereto as Exhibit B.

If you are an Entity, your Park will be the only business that such Entity operates, unless we
approve you to acquire and operate additional Parks pursuant to additional Franchise Agreements
between us and you.

1D. PROTECTED TERRITORY.

Subject to our reservation of rights in Section 1E below, and subject to your continued
compliance with this Agreement, during the Term, neither we nor any of our affiliates will establish or
operate or authorize any other person to establish or operate a Park in the area described in Exhibit C
(the “Protected Territory”). If no geographic area is specified on Exhibit C, you have not been
awarded any Protected Territory, and notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, we and our affiliates reserve all rights not granted to you and we will not be limited with
respect to the placement of Parks and other businesses using the Marks, the sale of the same, similar
or dissimilar products and services, and any other business activities in any manner or in any location
whatsoever. If you have not selected a site for your Park as of the Effective Date, we reserve the right
to define or modify your Protected Territory at the time the Premises is identified and approved by us.

1E. RESERVATION OF TERRITORIAL RIGHTS.

Other than your Protected Territory, you have no territorial protection and we and our affiliates
retain all rights with respect to the placement of Parks and other businesses using the Marks, the sale
of the same, similar or dissimilar products and services, and any other business activities in any manner
or in any location whatsoever, including, the right to:

(D) establish and operate, and allow others to establish and operate, other Parks
using the Marks and the System, at any location outside the Protected Territory, on such terms
and conditions we deem appropriate;
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2) establish and operate, and allow others to establish and operate, any other type
business, including any business that may offer products and services which are identical to,
similar to, or competitive with products and services offered by Parks, under trade names,
trademarks, service marks and commercial symbols other than the Marks, in any location;

3) establish, and allow others to establish businesses and distribution channels
other than a Park (including, selling products at retail or through any Online Presence, as
defined in Section 5A), wherever located or operating, regardless of the nature or location of
the customers with whom such other businesses and distribution channels do business,
including businesses that operate under trade names, trademarks, service marks or commercial
symbols that are similar to, the same, or competitive with the Marks, and/or that sell products
or services that are similar to, the same, or competitive with, those that Parks customarily sell;

4) establish and operate, and allow others to establish and operate, any Park, or
other business using the Marks and/or the System, and/or offering and selling any of the
products or services that are similar to, the same, or competitive with those products or services
offered by Parks, at or through any nontraditional venues, including, temporary or seasonal
facilities, outdoor recreation parks or facilities, or business operated within any larger venue
or closed market such as a stadium or entertainment center, in any location;

(5 be acquired by or acquire (whether through acquisition of assets, ownership
interests or otherwise, regardless of the form of transaction), any other business, including
businesses that operate or allow others to establish and operate businesses similar to, the same,
or competitive with Parks, in any location; and in the event of such an acquisition, the acquirer
and its affiliates will have the right to continue to establish and operate, and authorize others
to establish and operate, such businesses, in any location; and

(6) engage in all other activities not expressly prohibited by this Agreement.

2. ACQUIRING YOUR PARK

2A. SITE SELECTION.

You must operate your Park at a specific address and location that you select and we accept
(the “Premises”). You must use the Premises only for your Park. You must operate your Park only at
the Premises. If you have already located a site for the Premises as of the Effective Date, and we have
accepted the location, the specific address and location is identified on Exhibit C. If you have not yet
located a site for the Premises as of the Effective Date, then you must select a suitable site for your
Premises and obtain our acceptance of that site as your Premises. Unless you have our prior written
approval to search for a proposed site outside of the site selection area designated on Exhibit C (the
“Site Selection Area”), all site reports that you submit to us must be for a site within your Site Selection
Area. You acknowledge and agree that you will receive no territorial protection of any kind in the Site
Selection Area, or any other geographic area, other than your Protected Territory. We have the right to
accept or reject the site of your Park before you sign any Lease (as defined in Section 2B) and before
that site will be deemed your Premises under this Agreement. You agree to send us all of the
information we require for the proposed site. We will make all determinations about whether to accept
or reject a site based on our then-current criteria, which may change periodically. You may not relocate
your Park to a location other than the Premises without our prior approval.
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If we provide you any information regarding a site for the Premises or the Site Selection Area,
such information is not a representation or warranty of any kind (express, implied or collateral) of the
site’s suitability for a Park or any other purpose. Our acceptance of your proposed site is not intended
to be relied on by you as an indicator of likely success, but that we believe the site meets our then-
current criteria, which we have established for our own purposes. Applying criteria that have appeared
effective with other sites and premises might not accurately reflect the potential for all sites and
premises, and demographic or other factors included in or excluded from our criteria could change,
even after our acceptance of the Premises or your development of the Park, altering the potential of a
site and premises. The uncertainty and instability of these criteria are beyond our control, and we are
not responsible if a site and premises we accept fails to meet your expectations. You acknowledge and
agree that your selection of any site as your Premises is based on your own independent investigation
of the site’s suitability..

2B. LEASE OF THE SITE

After you obtain our acceptance of a site, you must execute a lease, sublease or other document
that we approve to secure its possession (the “Lease”). If you have not yet located a site for the
Premises as of the Effective Date, then after you secure possession of the site of the Premises we have
accepted, we will insert its address on Exhibit C. The Lease must contain certain provisions we require,
including collateral assignment of lease, pursuant to the form of lease rider attached as Exhibit D
(“Lease Rider”). It is your sole responsibility to obtain a fully-executed Lease Rider in connection
with executing your Lease. Our approval of your Lease is subject to our receipt of the Lease Rider in
the form attached as Exhibit D, without modification or negotiation, executed by you and the landlord.
The Lease Rider is intended to provide us certain protections under your Lease and may not benefit
you or the landlord. We may reject any request for modifications to the Lease Rider for any reason.

You acknowledge and agree that you have the sole responsibility to negotiate and execute your
Lease. If we or our affiliates provide you a form of Lease to execute, or any information,
recommendations or assistance in negotiating or executing a Lease, it is not a representation by us or
our affiliates of any kind (express, implied or collateral) that you should sign that Lease or that the
terms of that Lease are favorable to you. You are solely responsible for ensuring that you are capable
of meeting all terms and conditions set forth in your Lease, including the financial provisions
applicable to rent and fees. You must deliver to us a fully executed copy of your Lease and Lease Rider
within ten (10) days after its execution.

You must satisfy all of the obligations under Section 2A and this Section 2B to obtain our
acceptance of a site that will be the Premises of your Park, secure possession of that site pursuant to
the terms of a Lease we have approved, and deliver executed copies of that approved Lease and the
Lease Rider, each within one hundred eighty (180) days after the Effective Date.

2C. DEVELOPMENT OF YOUR PARK.

We will provide you our then-current prototypical plans showing the standard layout and
placement specifications for all required Operating Assets (as defined in Section 6B) as part of our
Brand Standards Manual. You agree at your expense to do all things necessary and appropriate to
develop and prepare your Park for opening in accordance with this Agreement and our System
Standards (as defined in Section 4D), including that you must:
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(D) obtain and submit to us for approval detailed construction plans and
specifications and space plans for your Park that comply with any design specifications or
prototypical plans provided by us and all applicable federal, state, or local law, code, or
regulation, including those arising under the Americans with Disabilities Act or similar rules
governing public accommodations for persons with disabilities, other applicable ordinances,
building codes, permit requirements, and lease requirements and restrictions;

(2) obtain all required zoning changes, planning consents, building, utility, sign
and business permits and licenses, and any other consents, permits and licenses necessary to
lawfully open and operate your Park;

3) construct all required improvements in compliance with construction plans and
specifications approved by us;

4) purchase and install all Operating Assets and decorate your Park, in all respects
in compliance with System Standards; and

(5 obtain all customary contractors’ sworn statements and partial and final
waivers of lien for construction, remodeling, decorating and installation services.

You agree to use supplier(s) we approve or designate (which may include or be limited to us
or our affiliates) for design, engineering, construction management and purchasing services in
connection with the development of your Park. You must satisfy all of our System Standards for
developing and opening a Park, and open your Park for business, by the earlier of: (i) one hundred and
eighty (180) days after the Lease is executed, or (ii) three hundred and sixty five (365) days from of
the Effective Date. We must approve the date that you open your Park for business (the “Opening
Date”).

3. YOUR FEES TO US.

3A. INITIAL FRANCHISE FEE.

You agree to pay us a nonrecurring initial franchise fee on the Effective Date (the “Imitial
Franchise Fee”). The Initial Franchise Fee will be $45,000 for the 1% Park developed by you or your
affiliates, $35,000 for the 2™ Park developed by you or your affiliates, or $25,000 for the 3™ or
subsequent Park developed by you or your affiliates. The Initial Franchise Fee is fully earned by us on
the Effective Date and is not refundable. You must pay us the Initial Franchise Fee by wire transfer of
immediately available funds to an account we designate, or by any other method we specify.

3B. ROYALTY FEE.

You agree to pay us a weekly royalty fee (the “Royalty”) equal to six percent (6%) of your
Park’s Gross Sales (as defined in Section 3C) for the preceding week on the date we specify.

3C. GROSS SALES DEFINED.

For purposes of this Agreement, “Gross Sales” means the total gross revenue or consideration
derived from your sale of products and services and all other income of every kind and nature, directly
or indirectly, from operating your Park, including the sale of Memberships (as defined in Section 7K),
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and all revenue or consideration you receive at or away from the Premises, and whether from cash,
check, credit and debit card, barter exchange, trade credit, or other credit transactions. There will be
no deductions allowed for uncollected or uncollectible credit accounts and no allowances will be made
for bad debts. Gross Sales includes the proceeds of any business interruption insurance or similar
insurance. If we authorize or require participation in online group-bought deals, gift certificate and/or
gift card programs, the payments you receive for those online group-bought deals, gift certificates or
gift cards will be included in Gross Sales in accordance with our then-current guidelines for calculating
Gross Sales. Gross Sales does not include the amount of any tax imposed by any federal, state,
municipal or governmental authority directly on sales and collected from customers if such tax is added
to the selling price and actually paid by you to such governmental authority.

3D. TECHNOLOGY FEE.

We may require you to pay a fee to us, or a service-provider we designate (which may be one
of our affiliates) for technology related services, including website or email hosting, help desk support,
software or website development, enterprise solutions and other services associated with your
Computer System (as defined in Section 6B) and/or any Franchise System Website (as defined in
Section 8G) (your “Technology Fee”). We may modify the amount of your Technology Fee
periodically, in our discretion, up to $500 per month during the first 5 years of operation of your Park,
or up to $1,000 per month after 5 years of operation of your Park. The Technology Fee is in addition
to all direct out-of-pocket costs you must otherwise incur under the terms of this Agreement or the
Brand Standards Manual to acquire, maintain, or service your Computer System. You must pay the
Technology Fee at the times, and in the manner, designated by the provider of such services. We may
require you to enter into a written agreement with the provider of any technology services, with terms
and conditions we approve or require. If we travel to your Park to provide any technological support
and/or installation services, you must also reimburse us for the costs we incur for such site visit,
including travel, food and lodging, which amounts will not be subject to any cap.

The amount of your Technology Fee may be determined in part by factors that are unique to
your Park (such as the number of email addresses we provide you and your employees). Different
franchise owners may pay different Technology Fees based on the peculiarities of their businesses.

3E. INTEREST ON LATE PAYMENTS.

All amounts that you owe us for any reason will bear interest accruing as of their original due
date at the lesser of two percent (2%) per month or the maximum rate of interest permitted by law. We
may debit your bank account automatically for service charges and interest. You acknowledge that this
Section 3E is not our agreement to accept any payments after they are due or our commitment to extend
credit to you or finance the operation of your Park.

3F. APPLICATION OF PAYMENTS.

Despite any designation you make, we may apply any of your payments to us or our affiliates
to any of your past due indebtedness to us or our affiliates. We may set off any amounts you or your
owners owe us or our affiliates against any amounts we or our affiliates owe you or your owners. You
may not withhold payment of any amounts you owe us or our affiliates for any reason, including for
any alleged nonperformance by us.
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3G. METHOD OF PAYMENT.

Y ou must make all payments due under this Agreement in the manner we designate from time
to time and you agree to comply with all of our payment instructions. All amounts payable by you or
your owners to us or our affiliates must be in United States Dollars ($USD).

You agree to sign and deliver to us the documents we require to authorize us to debit your
business checking account automatically for any or all amounts due under this Agreement (the “Pre-
Authorized Debit Agreement”). Such Pre-Authorized Debit Agreement will remain in full force and
effect during the Term. Our current form of Pre-Authorized Debit Agreement is attached as Exhibit
E, but we may periodically ask you to sign additional documents in connection with authorizing us to
debit payments from your account, and you agree to do so promptly upon request. We or our designee
will debit the business account you designate in the Pre-Authorized Debit Agreement for amounts you
owe us on their due dates (or the next business day if the due date is a national or statutory holiday or
a weekend). You must ensure that funds are available in your designated account to cover our
withdrawals. If there are insufficient funds in your designated account to cover our withdrawals, we
may charge you our then-current insufficient funds fee for each instance.

We may receive information regarding your Gross Sales through our access to the Computer
System or we may require you to submit weekly Gross Sales reports in the format we require. If we
ever stop having access to information from your Computer Systems, and you fail to report your Park’s
Gross Sales when due, then for each payment due under this Agreement that is calculated based on
Gross Sales, we may debit your business account one hundred ten percent (110%) of the average of
the last three (3) applicable payments that we debited. If the amounts that we debit from your business
account are less than the amounts you actually owe us (once we have determined your Park’s true and
correct Gross Sales), we will debit your business account for the balance on any day we specify. If the
amounts that we debit from your business account are greater than the amounts you actually owe us,
we will credit the excess against the amounts we otherwise would debit from your business account on
the next payment due date.

You must pay us the Royalty, Brand Fund Contribution and all other fees and amounts you
owe us or our affiliates under this Agreement on the days and at the intervals that we specify. We may
change the timing, frequency and intervals of any such payments from time to time, but with no less
than thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to you.

4. TRAINING AND ASSISTANCE.

4A. INITIAL AND ONGOING TRAINING.

Prior to opening your Park, we will provide you (or if you are conducting business as an Entity,
your Principal Owner) and up to two (2) additional attendees that we approve (one of which must be
your Approved Manager, if applicable) (together, your “Key Personnel”) training in the material
aspects of operating a Park (the “Management Training Program”). You may invite additional
attendees to the Management Training Program if space allows, subject to our approval, and subject to
all attendees participating at once. Your Key Personnel must satisfactory complete the Management
Training Program prior to the Opening Date.

We will determine the identity and composition of the trainer(s) conducting all portions of the
Management Training Program in our discretion. We will provide the Management Training Program
7
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at the times and locations we determine, which may include conducting any portion of the Management
Training Program online or via other virtual means. We will also determine the length and content of
the Management Training Program. We reserve the right to vary the Management Training Program
based on the experience and skill level of the individual(s) attending. Scheduling of the Management
Training Program is based on your and our availability, training facility availability and the projected
Opening Date for your Park. If any of your Key Personnel fail to satisfactorily complete the
Management Training Program, then we reserve the right to require such person(s) to attend additional
training at a time and location of our choice, and we will charge you our then-current training fee for
such additional training. If your Key Personnel are unable to satisfactorily complete the Management
Training Program, we reserve the right to terminate this Agreement. If you appoint a new Approved
Manager to supervise your Park at any time, or your Principal Owner changes at any time, he or she
must attend the then-current Management Training Program within thirty (30) days of the appointment
and you must pay our then-current training fee for such attendance.

If you and your Key Personnel complete the Management Training Program to our satisfaction
and have not expressly informed us at the end of the Management Training Program that they do not
feel sufficiently trained in the operation of a Park, then you and your Key Personnel will be deemed to
have been trained sufficiently to operate a Park.

You may request additional training in the operation of a Park for any of your Key Personnel
from time to time during the Term. If we agree to provide you such additional training, we and you
will jointly determine the duration of this additional training, and we reserve the right to charge you
our then-current training fee for such additional training. In addition, if we at any time and from time
to time determine that you are not operating your Park in compliance with our System Standards, we
may require additional training for your Key Personnel, and we reserve the right to charge you our
then-current training fee for such additional training.

You have the ultimate and exclusive responsibility for ensuring that all of your employees and
personnel are appropriately trained to operate the Park in accordance with this Agreement and our
System Standards, regardless of any training or support that we provide, including the Management
Training Program. We may periodically establish certain minimum requirements for your employee
training programs, including minimum safety certifications or programs and/or requiring the
Management Training Program for Key Personnel; however, you understand that these minimum
requirements are solely intended to protect our System and the goodwill of the Marks.

During the Term, we may require you and your Key Personnel attend various franchisee
conferences, meetings, trade shows, ongoing education or certification programs, and/or training
courses or webinars at the times and locations designated by us, including as provided by third-parties
we designate. These events and programs will be held at locations and times we designate. We may
charge a fee associated with these events and programs, regardless of actual attendance.

You agree to pay all travel and living expenses (including, wages, transportation, food, lodging,
and workers’ compensation insurance) that you and your personnel incur during any and all meetings
and/or training courses and programs of any kind, including the Management Training Program. You
are also responsible for the travel and living expenses and out-of-pocket costs we incur in sending our
trainer(s) to your Park to conduct training, including food, lodging and transportation.
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4B. ON-SITE ASSISTANCE.

We will provide on-site advice, guidance, and initial operations support in connection with
your opening of the Park, at no fee to you. The number of days of on-site assistance will be determined
by us in our sole discretion and which may not necessarily be consecutive. We will determine the
identity and composition of the training team that we send in our discretion and may be comprised of
only one person. You may request that we provide additional assistance on-site at your Park, and if we
elect to provide any additional assistance on-site we reserve the right to charge our then current fee for
such assistance. We are not required to provide on-site assistance to you and we may determine the
amount (if any) that we will provide in our discretion.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, we will not be required to send
any of our representatives to your Park to provide any training, assistance or services of any kind if, in
our sole determination, it is unsafe to do so. Such determination by us will not relieve you from your
obligations under this Agreement (including, without limitation, to pay monies owed) and will not
serve as a basis for your termination of this Agreement.

4C. GENERAL GUIDANCE.

Subject to limitations on scheduling, availability and similar resources, we may provide you
advice from time to time regarding your Park’s operation, including advice regarding: (1) standards,
specifications, and operating procedures and methods that Parks use, including, facility appearance,
guest service procedures, and quality control; (2) equipment and facility maintenance; and (3)
advertising, marketing and branding strategies. Our advice and guidance will be furnished in the form
of our Brand Standards Manual (as defined in Section 4D) and via telephone and/or consultation at our
offices. If you request, and we agree to provide, additional or special guidance, assistance, or training,
we may charge you our then-applicable fee, including our personnel’s per diem charges and travel and
living expenses. You understand and agree that any specific ongoing training or advice we provide
does not create an obligation (whether by course of dealing or otherwise) to continue to provide such
specific training or advice, all of which we may discontinue and modify from time to time.

4D. BRAND STANDARDS MANUAL.

We will make our brand standards for the operation of Parks available to you during the Term,
which may include one or more separate manuals, as well as electronic files and software, information
available on an internet site, and other media, bulletins and/or other written materials (collectively, the
“Brand Standards Manual”). The Brand Standards Manual contains the mandatory specifications,
standards, operating procedures and rules that we periodically prescribe for operating Parks in general
or your Park in particular (“System Standards”), and other suggested specifications, standards and
procedures, and information on your other obligations under this Agreement. We may modify the
Brand Standards Manual periodically, including changes in System Standards. If there is a dispute over
its contents, our master copy of the Brand Standards Manual will control. You agree that the Brand
Standards Manual’s contents are considered Confidential Information (as defined in Section 11) and
that you will not disclose the Brand Standards Manual to any person other than any employee who
needs to know its contents. You may not at any time copy, duplicate, record, or otherwise reproduce
any part of the Brand Standards Manual without our approval.

At our option, we may make some or all of the Brand Standards Manual available through an
Online Presence. If we do so, you agree to monitor and access that Online Presence for any updates to
9

ATP Franchising, LLC
2024 04 FDD | Ex. B-1 Franchise Agreement
1360.001.013/405742



the Brand Standards Manual. Any passwords or other digital identifications necessary to access the
Brand Standards Manual on any Online Presence will be deemed to be part of Confidential Information
(as defined in Section 11 below).

S. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY.

SA. YOUR LICENSE.

We grant you a non-exclusive license to use the Marks and the System to operate your Park,
subject to the terms of this Agreement. Your right to use the Marks and the System is derived only
from this Agreement, and you may use the Marks and the System only for your Park, and only
according to this Agreement and in accordance with System Standards. You have no right to sublicense
or assign your right to use the Marks or the System.

5B. USE OF MARKS.

You agree at all times to faithfully, honestly, and diligently promote the Marks in connection
with operating your Park. You agree to identify yourself as the independent owner of your Park in the
manner we prescribe. You may not use any Mark (1) as part of any corporate or legal business name;
(2) with any prefix, suffix, or other modifying words, terms, designs, or symbols (other than logos we
have licensed to you); (3) in selling any unauthorized services or products; (4) as part of any website,
domain name, email address, social media account, other online presence or presence on any electronic,
virtual, or digital medium of any kind (“Online Presence”), except in accordance with our System
Standards; (5) in advertising any prospective transfer that would require our approval under this
Agreement; or (6) in any other manner that we have not expressly authorized in writing. You agree to
give the notices of trademark registrations that we specify and to obtain any fictitious or assumed name
registrations required under applicable law. You may not use any other trademarks, service marks or
commercial symbols other than the Marks to identify or operate your Park.

5C. OWNERSHIP AND GOODWILL.

We and/or our affiliates are the sole and exclusive owners of the Marks and the System and all
goodwill arising from the Marks and the System. Y our unauthorized use of the Marks or the System is
a breach of this Agreement and infringes our and our affiliates’ intellectual property rights. Your
unauthorized use of the Marks or the System will cause us and our affiliates irreparable harm for which
there is no adequate remedy at law and will entitle us and our affiliates to injunctive relief. You
acknowledge and agree that your use of the Marks and the System and any goodwill established by
that use are exclusively for our and our affiliates’ benefit and this Agreement does not confer any
goodwill or other interests in the Marks and the System to you or your affiliates, other than the right to
operate your Park under this Agreement. All provisions of this Agreement relating to the Marks and
the System apply to any changes and/or additions to the Marks or the System that we authorize from
time to time. You may not at any time during or after the Term contest or assist any other person in
contesting the validity of the Marks or the System or our or our affiliates’ rights to the Marks or the
System.

5D. NOTIFICATION OF INFRINGEMENTS AND CLAIMS.

You agree to notify us immediately of any apparent infringement or challenge to your use of
any Mark or component of the System, or of any person’s claim of any rights in any Mark or component
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of the System, and not to communicate with any person other than us, our attorneys, and your attorneys,
regarding any possible infringement, challenge, or claim. We and/or our affiliates may take any action
we deem appropriate (including no action) and exclusively control any litigation, U.S. Patent and
Trademark Office proceeding, or other administrative proceeding arising from any infringement,
challenge, or claim or otherwise concerning any Mark or the System. You agree to sign any documents
and take any other reasonable action that, in the opinion of our attorneys, are necessary or advisable to
protect and maintain our interests in any litigation or other proceeding or otherwise to protect and
maintain our interests in any Mark and the System. We will reimburse you for your reasonable
documented out-of-pocket costs of taking any action that we have asked you to take.

SE. CHANGES TO THE MARKS AND SYSTEM.

You understand that the Marks and the System may evolve over time, including after you sign
this Agreement. If we decide to modify, substitute, add or discontinue the use of any Marks or the
System, you agree to make such modifications and updates as we specify and to comply with all other
directions we give regarding the use of the Marks and the System in connection with your Park within
a reasonable time after receiving notice from us. We are not required to reimburse you for any costs or
expenses associated with making such changes, promoting a modified or substitute Mark, or for any
loss of revenue due to any modified to the Marks or System.

SF. INDEMNIFICATION FOR USE OF MARKS.

We agree to reimburse you for all damages and expenses that you incur in responding to any
trademark infringement proceeding disputing your authorized use of any Mark under this Agreement,
if you have timely notified us of the proceeding, and complied with our directions in responding to it
and are otherwise in compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. At our option, we
and/or our affiliates may defend and control the defense of any proceeding arising from your use of
any Mark under this Agreement. Our liability under this Section 5F will be limited to an aggregate
amount not to exceed the amount actually collected by us from you as the Initial Franchise Fee.

6. SYSTEM STANDARDS.

6A. COMPLIANCE WITH SYSTEM STANDARDS.

You acknowledge and agree that operating and maintaining your Park according to System
Standards is essential to preserve the goodwill of the Marks and all Parks. Therefore, you agree at all
times to operate and maintain your Park according to all of our System Standards, as we periodically
modify and supplement them, even if you believe that a System Standard is not in the System’s or your
best interests. Although we retain the right to establish and periodically modify System Standards, you
are solely responsible for the management and operation of your Park and for implementing and
maintaining System Standards at your Park. As examples, without limitation, System Standards may
regulate any one or more of the following:

(D) amounts and types of Operating Assets and inventory you must purchase and/or
maintain;

(2) sales, marketing, advertising, and promotional campaigns, including prize
contests, special offers and other national, regional or location marketing programs, and
materials and media used in these programs;
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3) use and display of the Marks at your Park and on uniforms, labels, forms, paper,
products, and other supplies;

4) issuing and honoring gift cards, gift certificates and similar items, and
participating in loyalty programs;

(%) minimum staffing levels, qualifications, training, uniforms, and appearance
(although you have sole responsibility and authority concerning all other matters relating to
employees and personnel, including hiring and promotion, hours worked, rates of pay and other
benefits, work assigned, the manner of performing work, and working conditions);

(6) days and hours of operation;

(7) customer service standards and policies, and participation in any quality
assurance or customer satisfaction programs;

(8) product and service offerings, memberships, and packages;

9 product and service development programs, including participation in market
research and testing;

(10)  accepting credit and debit cards, other payment systems, currencies, and check
verification services;

(11)  designated and approved suppliers of Operating Assets, inventory and other
supplies;

(12)  bookkeeping, accounting, data processing, and recordkeeping systems and
forms; formats, content, and frequency of reports to us of sales, revenue, financial performance,
and condition; and

(13) any other aspects of operating and maintaining your Park that we determine to
be useful to preserve or enhance the “Altitude Trampoline Park™ brand-image, and goodwill of
the Marks and the System.

6B. OPERATING ASSETS.

You agree to obtain and install the operating assets we designate from time to time as meeting
our System Standards for quality, design, appearance, function, and performance (collectively, the
“Operating Assets”), including: (i) the computer hardware, software, and point-of-sale system
(collectively, the “Computer System”), and (ii) all other fixtures, furniture, equipment, furnishings,
and signs and other products and services that that we approve for Parks. If we designate or approve
certain brands, types, and models of Operating Assets, you agree to purchase or lease only Operating
Assets meeting the specifications we have designated or approved. We may also require you to
purchase or lease the Operating Assets only from suppliers we have designated or approved (which
may include or be limited to us and/or our affiliates) in accordance with Section 7D. We may modify
our designated or approved System Standards for Operating Assets from time to time and you agree to
comply with our modified System Standards promptly after you receive notice.
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6C. CHANGES TO SYSTEM STANDARDS.

You understand that the System will continue to evolve during the Term and the System
Standards may change periodically. These modifications may obligate you to invest additional capital
in your Park and/or incur higher operating costs. You agree to implement any changes to your Park in
accordance with our System Standards within the time period we request, including by buying new
Operating Assets, refurbishing or remodeling your Park, upgrading or replacing any or all of the
Computer System, adding new products and services, or otherwise modifying the nature of your
operations, as if part of this Agreement as of the Effective Date. You will be solely responsible for the
costs of implementing all changes to your Park in accordance with the System Standards.

6D. VARIATION IN SYSTEM STANDARDS.

You further acknowledge and agree that complete and detailed uniformity might not be
possible or practical under varying conditions, and that we specifically reserve the right to vary System
Standards for any franchise owner based on the peculiarities of any condition that we consider
important to that franchise owner’s successful operation. We may choose not to authorize similar
variations or accommodations to you or other franchise owners.

7. OPERATION OF YOUR PARK.

7A. MANAGEMENT.

Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, you are solely responsible for the
management, direction and control of your Park. You (or if you are conducting business as an Entity,
your Principal Owner) must supervise the management and day-to-day operations of your Park on a
full-time basis and continuously exert best efforts to promote and enhance your Park and the goodwill
associated with the Marks. If you do not (or if you are conducting business as an Entity, your Principal
Owner does not) wish to supervise the day-to-day operation of your Park, then you must obtain our
approval of any management level employee and/or other person, agent, or management company that
you wish to engage to supervise the management of your Park (your “Approved Manager”). We may
establish conditions for approving any such Approved Manager in our discretion, which may include
the completion of training, confirmation that it will have no competitive businesses activities, and/or
execution of a non-disclosure agreement (that we approve or designate) or other covenants we require.

During any period in which no Approved Manager is approved (including because the
Approved Manager resigns or otherwise indicates to us or you that he or she wishes to cease acting as
your Approved Manager, or we disapprove of your Approved Manager for any reason), you (or if you
are conducting business as an Entity, your Principal Owner) must supervise the day-to-day operations
of your Park. Your Park must always be under the direct on-site supervision of one or more persons
who we have approved.

7B.  CONDITION AND APPEARANCE OF YOUR PARK.

During the Term you must regularly clean, repaint and repair the interior and exterior of the
Premises, repair or replace damaged, worn out or obsolete Operating Assets and otherwise maintain
the condition of your Park, the Premises and the Operating Assets to meet the highest standards of
professionalism, cleanliness, sanitation, efficient, courteous service and pleasant ambiance. Y ou must
place or display at the Premises (interior and exterior) only those signs, emblems, designs, artwork,
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lettering, logos, and display and advertising materials that we from time to time approve. If you fail to
maintain your Park in accordance with our System Standards, and do not complete any required
maintenance in good faith and with due diligence for more than thirty (30) days after we notify you of
the deficiency, we have the right, in addition to all other remedies, to enter the Premises and do any
required maintenance or refurbishing on your behalf. You agree to reimburse us on demand for any
expenses we incur in maintaining the Premises on your behalf.

7C.  APPROVED PRODUCTS AND SERVICES.

You agree that you will offer and sell at your Park the attractions, products, or services that we
specify from time to time. You will offer and sell such approved attractions, products, or services only
in the manner and at the locations we have prescribed and will not offer or sell any attractions, products,
or services through alternative channels of distribution (including, the internet or retail stores) without
our approval. You will not offer or sell any attractions, products, or services we have not approved at
any location. If we at any time disapprove an attraction, product, or service, you will immediately
discontinue offering or selling it at your Park.

Without limiting the foregoing, you acknowledge that as our System evolves, we may authorize
one or more Parks to offer additional, different, or modified attractions, products, or services, and we
are under no obligation to authorize every Park to offer the same attractions, products, or services. We
may condition our approval for you to offer or sell any such attractions, products, or services on our
then-current criteria, and/or other additional terms and conditions that we establish.

If we at any time (including after our initial approval) determine that you fail to meet our System
Standards for offering or selling any attractions, products, or services, we may permanently or
temporarily terminate your right to offer or sell such attractions, products, or services; provided that
nothing contained herein will be deemed a waiver of our right to terminate pursuant to Section 15B.

7D.  APPROVED DISTRIBUTORS AND SUPPLIERS.

We may designate, approve or develop System Standards for manufacturers, distributors and
suppliers of products and services to your Park, which may be us or our affiliates (collectively,
“suppliers”). You must purchase the products and services we periodically designate only from the
suppliers we prescribe and only on the terms and according to the specifications we approve.

We may concentrate purchases with one or more suppliers for any reason, including to obtain
lower prices, advertising support and/or services for any group of Parks franchised or operated by us
or our affiliates. We may also designate a single supplier for any product or service, or approve a
supplier only for certain products or services, which may be us or our affiliates. You agree that we
and/or our affiliates may derive consideration, revenue and profits based on your purchases (including
from charging you for products and services we or our affiliates provide to you, and from promotional
allowances, rebates, volume discounts and other payments, services or consideration we receive from
suppliers on the basis of sales to you or other franchise owners). We and/or any of our affiliates may
retain and use such consideration, revenue and profit without restriction. We also reserve the right to
charge suppliers a fee for the right to manufacture products for use in the Parks.

If you would like us to consider approving a supplier that is not an approved supplier, you must
submit your request in writing before purchasing any items or services from that supplier. We will
make all determinations about whether to approve an alternative supplier in our sole discretion based
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on our then-current criteria, which may change from time to time. We may also refuse to consider
and/or approve any proposed alternative supplier for any reason whatsoever. We reserve the right to
charge you a fee if you ask us to evaluate any proposed alternative suppliers. We may, with or without
cause, revoke our approval of any supplier at any time.

7E.  COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND GOOD BUSINESS PRACTICES.

You must secure and maintain all required licenses, permits, and certificates relating to the
operation of your Park and must at all times operate your Park in full compliance with all applicable
laws, ordinances, and regulations. You agree to comply and assist us in our compliance efforts with
any and all laws and regulations, including those relating to recreational facilities, minors and children,
safety and sanitation, advertising, lending, occupational hazards, health, and anti-discrimination. You
are solely responsible for ascertaining what actions must be taken by you to comply with all such laws,
orders and/or regulations, and specifically acknowledge and agree that your indemnification
responsibilities (as provided in Section 17D) apply to your obligations under this Section 7E.

Your Park must adhere to the highest standards of honesty, integrity, fair dealing and ethical
conduct in all dealings with customers, suppliers, us and the public. You agree to refrain from any
business or advertising practice which may injure our business and the goodwill associated with the
Marks and other Parks. Promptly upon receipt, you agree to provide us a copy of any and all notices
you receive from any person, entity or governmental authority claiming that you (or your affiliates or
representatives) have violated any laws, regulations, permits, licenses, agreements or other committed
any other breach, default or violation in connection with your Park, and/or that any audit, investigation,
or similar proceeding by any such person or governmental authority is pending or threatened against
you on the basis of any of any the foregoing, including any default notices from any landlord or
supplier, any violation notices from a health or safety regulatory board, and any customer complaints
alleging violations or law, or which may otherwise adversely affect your operation or financial
condition or that of your Park.

7F. INFORMATION SECURITY

You may from time to time have access to information that can be used to identify an
individual, including names, addresses, telephone numbers, e-mail addresses, employee identification
numbers, signatures, passwords, financial information, billing and payment information, biometric or
health data, and government-issued identification numbers (“Personal Information™). You may gain
access to such Personal Information from us, our affiliates, our vendors, and/or your own operations.
You acknowledge and agree that all Personal Information (other than Restricted Data, defined below)
is our Confidential Information and is subject to the protections in Section 11.

During and after the Term, you (and if you are conducting business as an Entity, each of your
owners) agree to, and to cause your respective current and former employees, representatives,
affiliates, successors and assigns to: (a) process, retain, use, collect, and disclose all Personal
Information only in strict accordance with all applicable laws, regulations, orders, the guidance and
codes of practice issued by industry or regulatory agencies, and the privacy policies and terms and
conditions of any applicable Online Presence; (b) assist us with meeting our compliance obligations
under all applicable laws, regulations, and orders relating to Personal Information, including the
guidance and codes of practice issued by industry or regulatory agencies; and (c) promptly notify us
of any communication or request from any customer or other person to access, correct, delete, opt-out
of, or limit activities relating to any Personal Information.
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If you become aware of a suspected or actual breach of security or unauthorized access
involving Personal Information, you will notify us immediately and specify the extent to which
Personal Information was compromised or disclosed. You also agree to follow our instructions
regarding curative actions and public statements relating to the breach. We reserve the right to conduct
a data security and privacy audit of any of your Park and your Computer Systems at any time.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement or otherwise, you agree that we do
not control or own any of the following Personal Information (collectively, the “Restricted Data”):
(a) any Personal Information of the employees, officers, contractors, owners or other personnel of you,
your affiliates, or your Park; (b) such other Personal Information as we from time to time expressly
designate as Restricted Data; and/or (¢) any other Personal Information to which we do not have access.
Regardless of any guidance we may provide generally and/or any specifications that we may establish
for other Personal Information, you have sole and exclusive responsibility for all Restricted Data,
including establishing protections and safeguards for such Restricted Data; provided, that in each case
you agree to comply with all applicable laws, regulations, orders, and the guidance and codes of
practice issued by industry or regulatory agencies applicable to such Restricted Data.

7G. EMPLOYEES, AGENTS & INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS.

You acknowledge and agree that you are solely responsible for all decisions relating to
employees, agents, and independent contractors that you may hire to assist in the operation of your
Park. You agree that any employee, agent or independent contractor that you hire will be your
employee, agent or independent contractor, and not our employee, agent or independent contractor.
You also agree that you are exclusively responsible for the terms and conditions of employment of
your employees, including recruiting, hiring, firing, training, compensation, benefits, work hours and
schedules, work assignments, methods and manner of performing duties, safety and security,
discipline, and supervision. You agree to manage the employment functions of your Park in compliance
with federal, state, and local employment laws. Without limiting the foregoing, you agree that we may
require that any employee, agent, or independent contractor that you hire and that will have access to
Confidential Information execute a non-disclosure agreement that we approve or designate. If we
approve or designate any form of non-disclosure agreement, it is solely to ensure that it meets our
minimum standards to protect us and the Marks and System, it is your sole responsibility to: (a) ensure
that the non-disclosure agreement complies with and is enforceable under applicable laws in your
jurisdiction; and (b) obtain your own professional advise with respect to the terms and provisions of
any such non-disclosure agreement that your employees, agents, and independent contractors sign.

7H. INSURANCE.

During the Term you must maintain in force at your sole expense the types and amounts of
insurance that we require and that comply with the terms of your Lease. We reserve the right to require
that you obtain all or a portion of your insurance policies from a designated supplier and on the terms
and according to the specifications we approve. The liability insurance must cover claims for bodily
and personal injury, death, and property damage caused by or occurring in connection with your Park’s
operation or activities of your personnel in the course of their employment. All of these policies must
contain the minimum coverage we prescribe from time to time and must have deductibles not to exceed
the amounts we specify. We may periodically increase the amounts of coverage required under these
insurance policies and/or require different or additional insurance coverages (including reasonable
excess liability insurance) at any time. These insurance policies must be purchased from licensed
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insurers having a rating of “A/VIII” or higher by the then-current edition of Best Insurance Reports
published by A.M. Best Company (or other similar publication or criteria we designate).

Each insurance policy for liability coverage must name us and any affiliates we designate as
additional named insureds, using a form of endorsement that we have approved, and provide for thirty
(30) days’ prior written notice to us of a policy’s material modification, cancellation or expiration.
Each insurance policy must contain a waiver of all subrogation rights against us, our affiliates and their
successors and assigns. You must routinely furnish us copies of your Certificates of Insurance or other
evidence of your maintaining this insurance coverage and paying premiums. If you fail or refuse to
obtain and maintain the insurance we specity, in addition to our other remedies including termination,
we may (but are not required to) obtain such insurance for you and your Park on your behalf, in which
event you agree to cooperate with us and reimburse us on demand for all premiums, costs and expenses
we incur in obtaining and maintaining the insurance, plus a reasonable fee.

Our requirements for minimum insurance coverage are not representations or warranties of any
kind that such coverage is sufficient for your Park’s operations. Such requirements represent only the
minimum coverage that we deem acceptable to protect our interests. It is your sole responsibility to
obtain insurance coverage for your Park that you deem appropriate, based on your own independent
investigation. We are not responsible if you sustain losses that exceed your insurance coverage under
any circumstances.

71. LIABILITY WAIVERS.

You must obtain a signed liability release and waiver (a “Liability Waiver”) from every
customer of your Park (and in the case of any customer that is a minor, from an authorized parent or
guardian of that minor) before they enter the recreational areas of the Premises or participate in any
recreational services or activities. We must approve the form of Liability Waiver that you will use
before you begin to use it with any customers, and we reserve the right to regulate the form of Liability
Waiver and to be a third-party beneficiary of that Liability Waiver. We may disapprove any Liability
Waiver at any time, and you must update your Liability Waiver periodically to meet our then-current
standards.

You acknowledge and agree that if we approve or regulate the terms of any Liability Waiver it
is not a representation by us or our affiliates of any kind (express, implied or collateral) that the
Liability Waiver complies with all applicable laws in any particular jurisdiction, is enforceable in any
particular jurisdiction, or is in any other manner sufficient to protect you or you or your Park from
potential liability. Our approval or regulation of the Liability Waiver is strictly to ensure it meets our
standards, which we have established for our own purposes. You are solely responsible for obtaining
your own professional advice with respect to the adequacy of the terms and provisions of any Liability
Waiver, and its compliance with any applicable laws in your specific jurisdiction.

Y ou must maintain each signed Liability Waiver in your records for the longer of: (i) the Term
of the Agreement; or (i1) the statute of limitations on personal injury claims in the state in which your
Park operates plus 180 days. We reserve the right to request copies of any or all executed Liability
Waivers signed by customers of your Park.
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7J. PRICING.

Unless prohibited by applicable law, we may periodically set a maximum or minimum price that
you may charge for products and services offered by your Park. If we impose such a maximum or
minimum price for any product or service, you may charge any price for the product or service up to and
including our designated maximum price or down to and including our designated minimum price. The
designated maximum and minimum prices for the same product or service may, at our option, be the same.
For any product or service for which we do not impose a maximum or minimum price, we may require
you to comply with an advertising policy adopted by us which will prohibit you from advertising any price
for a product or service that is different than our suggested retail price. Although you must comply with
any advertising policy we adopt, you will not be prohibited from selling any product or service at a price
above or below the suggested retail price unless we impose a maximum price or minimum price for such
product or service.

7K. MEMBERSHIPS.

We reserve the right to authorize or require you to sell membership rights for your Park
(“Memberships”) after your Opening Date. You must not offer or sell any Memberships prior to your
Opening Date. All Memberships must be evidenced by a written agreement (a “Membership
Agreement”) and must not be for a term that extends beyond the expiration of this Agreement. When
selling Memberships, you will use the form of Membership Agreement that we will provide to you,
and you will not make any modifications in the form without our prior written consent.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, you acknowledge that you are responsible for ensuring that the
Membership Agreement complies with all applicable laws for your Park and you may modify the
Membership Agreement to the extent necessary to comply with such applicable laws, provided that
you provide us with immediate notice of all such modifications.

You agree to comply with the System Standards we establish from time to time regarding
Memberships, including System Standards for: (1) the types and terms of Memberships you may offer;
(2) the form(s) of Membership Agreement; (3) the terms and conditions upon which a member may
transfer his or her Membership from your Park to another Park and vice versa; (4) admission of
members of your Park to other Parks; (5) procedures to follow when members transfer to or from your
Park; (6) use and acceptance of coupons, passes, and certificates; (7) group accounts and group
Memberships (and discounts applicable thereto); and (8) payment terms for Memberships.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, you will be solely responsible for complying with all applicable laws
and regulations relating to your offer and sale of Memberships, the terms of any Membership
Agreement, and any other operations of your Park relating to Memberships, and you agree that you
will fully comply with all such laws and regulations. If you believe that the laws applicable to your
Park will prevent you from complying with our System Standards, you agree to notify us promptly.

At our request from time to time, you must send us a list of your members and all other
information we specify. You agree that we own all information relating to your members, such as
member names, addresses, telephone numbers, e-mail addresses, buying habits, preferences,
demographic information, and related information (“Membership Information”) and that such
Membership Information comprises part of the Confidential Information which you are licensed to use
under this Agreement. We may use and disclose such Membership Information in our and their
business activities in our discretion. We may also contact any member(s) of your Park at any time for
any purpose. Also, if we are contacted by a member of your Park who wishes to lodge a complaint, we
reserve the right to address the member’s complaints in order to preserve goodwill and prevent damage

18
ATP Franchising, LLC
2024 04 FDD | Ex. B-1 Franchise Agreement
1360.001.013/405742



to the Marks. Our right to address complaints may include refunding money to the complaining
member, in which case you must reimburse us for these amounts.

We may modify the types and terms of Memberships to be offered, terminate your right to
offer certain types of Memberships, and/or approve or require other types of Memberships for sale.
We may suspend, revoke, or terminate your right to offer Memberships at any time.

8. MARKETING.

8A.  GRAND OPENING ADVERTISING.

You must spend at least Thirty Thousand Dollars ($30,000) for a grand opening marketing
program for your Park to take place on the dates we designate before and after your Park opens. You
must spend this amount in addition to all other amounts you must spend on advertising specified in
this Agreement. The amount you spend on grand opening advertising will not count towards your Local
Advertising Expenditure (defined in Section 8B), or your Maximum Advertising Expenditure (defined
in Section 8F). You agree to use the media, materials, programs and strategies we develop or approve
in connection with the grand opening advertising program.

8B. YOUR ADVERTISING.

You are solely responsible for conducting all local advertising for your Park. You must
advertise and market your Park in any advertising medium we determine, using forms of advertisement
we approve. You must also list your Park with the online directories and subscriptions we periodically
prescribe (such as Yelp® and Google®), and/or establish any other Online Presence we require. You
must comply with all of our System Standards for your advertising. Your advertising, promotion, and
marketing must be completely clear, factual, and not misleading and conform to the highest standards
of ethical advertising, the System Standards, and any marketing and the advertising and marketing
policies that we prescribe.

Y ou must spend an amount that we designate from time to time to advertise and promote your
Park (the “Local Advertising Expenditure”). We may change the amount of your Local Advertising
Expenditure from time to time, subject to your Maximum Advertising Expenditure (as defined in
Section 8F). We will determine what type of expenditures that will count towards your Local
Advertising Expenditure. Indirect costs you incur in managing your local advertising campaigns, such
as salaries and benefits of employees administering the campaigns, will not be counted towards your
Local Advertising Expenditure. Additionally, any costs you incur for advertising conducted at the
Premises, such as in-store materials and signage, will not be counted towards your Local Advertising
Expenditure. On our request, you agree to send us, in the manner we prescribe, an accounting of your
Local Advertising Expenditures during the preceding months.

We reserve the right to require you to pay part or all of the Local Advertising Expenditure to
us or our designee. If we exercise this option, we will contribute the amount you pay us to the Brand
Fund (as defined in Section 8D). We may at any time, on one or more occasions, cease collecting all
or part of the Local Advertising Expenditure or change the proportion of the Local Advertising
Expenditure that you must pay us or our designees.
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8C. APPROVAL OF ADVERTISING.

At least thirty (30) days before you intend to use them, you agree to send us samples of all
advertising, promotional and marketing materials that we have previously not approved. If we do not
approve of the materials within fourteen (14) days of our receipt of such materials, then they will be
deemed disapproved. You may not use any advertising, promotional, or marketing materials that we
have not approved or have disapproved.

8D. BRAND FUND.

We have established a brand promotion fund (the “Brand Fund”) to administer certain
advertising, marketing, and public relations programs for the Altitude Trampoline Park® system and
brand and the promotion of Parks. You hereby agree to contribute to the Brand Fund the amount that
we determine from time to time (the “Brand Fund Contribution”). We may modify the amount of
the Brand Fund Contribution from time to time with notice to you, provided that the aggregate total of
the Brand Fund Contribution, Local Advertising Expenditure, and Local Advertising Cooperative
Contribution (defined below) together does not exceed the Maximum Advertising Expenditure
(defined below). The Brand Fund Contribution must be paid by you in the manner we designate from
time to time, which may include collecting amounts in the same manner as the Royalty.

We will have exclusive control over all programs and services administered by the Brand Fund,
with sole discretion over the creative concepts, materials, and campaigns and their geographic market,
media placement and allocation. The Brand Fund may pay for preparing and producing video, audio,
and written materials and electronic media; developing, implementing, and maintaining any Online
Presences or other software or applications; administering advertising and marketing campaigns;
administering regional and multi-regional marketing and advertising programs; using advertising,
promotion, and marketing agencies and other advisors to provide assistance; supporting public
relations, market research, and other advertising, promotion, and marketing strategy or implementation
activities; and/or any other expenditures that are directly or indirectly related to promoting the Marks,
the System, the brand, and/or Parks. We may also use the Brand Fund to pay for the Brand Fund’s
other administrative and overhead costs, including the reasonable salaries and benefits of personnel
who manage and administer the Brand Fund, and any other expenses that we or our affiliates incur that
are related to administering or directing the Brand Fund and its programs. We may also elect to use
(but will not have the obligation to use) the Brand Fund to pay for or reimburse franchisees for so costs
they may incur for promoting their Parks and/or complying with updated branding guidelines. We may
modify Brand Fund programs, services, or expenditures at any time in our sole discretion.

The purpose of the Brand Fund is to promote the Marks, the System, the brand, and Parks
generally. As such, you acknowledge and agree that there is no guarantee that you or your Park will
benefit from Brand Fund expenditures directly or in proportion to your Brand Fund Contribution. You
further acknowledge and agree that the results of any marketing and promotional programs are by their
nature uncertain, and that neither we nor any of our affiliates or representatives has guaranteed the
results of any Brand Fund programs, services, or expenditures in any manner.

We will account for the Brand Fund separately from our other funds. However, neither we nor
any of our affiliates has any fiduciary obligation to you or any other person for administering the Brand
Fund or for any other reason. The Brand Fund may spend in any fiscal year more or less than the total
Brand Fund Contributions in that year, borrow from us or others (paying reasonable interest) to cover
deficits, or invest any surplus for future use. We will prepare an annual, unaudited statement of Brand
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Fund collections and expenses and give you the statement on written request, within 120 days after the
end of each fiscal year, but not less than 30 days’ notice from you of such request. We may have the
Brand Fund audited annually, at the Brand Fund’s expense, by an independent chartered accountant.
We may also administer the Brand Fund through a separate entity whenever we deem appropriate, and
such entity will have all of the rights and duties specified in this Section.

We have the right, but no obligation, to use collection agents and institute legal proceedings to
collect Brand Fund Contributions at the Brand Fund’s expense. We may also forgive, waive, settle,
and compromise all claims by or against the Brand Fund in our sole discretion.

We may at any time, on 30 days’ prior written notice to you, reduce or suspend Brand Fund
Contributions and/or operations of the Brand Fund for one or more periods of any length and terminate
(and, if terminated, reinstate) the Brand Fund and associated Brand Fund Contributions. If we terminate
the Brand Fund, we will spend the remaining balance of the monies in the Brand Fund in accordance
with this Section until such amounts are exhausted. We may elect to maintain multiple Brand Funds
or the administration thereof, whether determined by geographic region, country, or otherwise, or
consolidate or merge multiple Brand Funds or the administration thereof, in each case provided that
each such Brand Fund will otherwise remain subject to this Section.

8E. LOCAL ADVERTISING COOPERATIVE.

You agree that we or our affiliates or designees may establish or direct the establishment of a
local advertising cooperative (“Local Advertising Cooperative”) in geographical areas (as
determined by us) in which two (2) or more Parks are operating. The Local Advertising Cooperative
will be organized and governed by written documents in a form and manner, and begin operating on a
date, that we determine in advance. We will approve all terms and conditions for the operation and
administration of the Local Advertising Cooperative at the time it is established. We may change,
dissolve, merge and reinstate any Local Advertising Cooperatives. Each Local Advertising
Cooperative’s purpose is to administer advertising programs and develop advertising, marketing and
promotional materials for the area that the Local Advertising Cooperative covers, in accordance with
our System Standards.

If we have established a Local Advertising Cooperative for the geographic area in which your
Park is located, as of the time you sign this Agreement, or if we establish a Local Advertising
Cooperative in that area during the Term, you must to sign the documents we require to become a
member of the Local Advertising Cooperative and to participate in the Local Advertising Cooperative
as we require, including by contributing your share to such Local Advertising Cooperative (“Local
Advertising Cooperative Contribution”). The amount of your Local Advertising Cooperative
Contribution will be determined when the Local Advertising Cooperative is established, subject to
your Maximum Advertising Expenditure. Your Local Advertising Cooperative Contribution will be
payable in the same manner as the Royalty.

The Local Advertising Cooperative Contributions will be accounted for separately by us from
our other funds and will not be used to defray any of our general operating expenses. You agree to
submit to us and the Local Advertising Cooperative any reports that we require. You understand and
acknowledge that your Park might not benefit directly or in proportion to its Local Advertising
Cooperative Contribution. Local Advertising Cooperatives for Parks will be developed separately and
no Local Advertising Cooperative will be intended to benefit the others. We will have the right, but
not the obligation, to use collection agents and to institute legal proceedings to collect a Local
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Advertising Cooperative Contributions on behalf of and at the expense of the Local Advertising
Cooperative and to forgive, waive, settle and compromise all claims by or against the Local Advertising
Cooperative.

8F. MAXIMUM ADVERTISING EXPENDITURE

The combined Brand Fund Contribution, Local Advertising Expenditure and Local Advertising
Cooperative Contribution that we impose will not exceed five percent (5%) of your Park’s Gross Sales
(the “Maximum Advertising Expenditure”). We reserve the right, on sixty (60) days written notice
to change the amount of the Brand Fund Contribution, Local Advertising Expenditure or Local
Advertising Cooperative Contribution so long as any change does not result in a combined Brand Fund
Contribution, Local Advertising Expenditure and Local Advertising Cooperative Contribution greater
than the Maximum Advertising Expenditure.

8G. FRANCHISE SYSTEM WEBSITE.

We may establish, acquire, or host any website(s) to advertise, market, and promote Parks, the
products and services that they offer and sell, and/or a Park franchise opportunity (a “Franchise
System Website”). We may (but are not required to) provide you with a webpage on a Franchise
System Website that references your Park. If we provide you with a webpage on a Franchise System
Website, you must: (i) provide us the information and materials we request to develop, update, and
modify your webpage; (i1) notify us whenever any information on your webpage is not accurate; and
(111) if we give you the right to modify your webpage, notify us whenever you change the content of
your webpage. We will own all intellectual property and other rights in all Franchise System Websites,
including your webpage and all information it contains (including the domain name, any associated
email address, any website analytical data, and any personal or business data that visitors supply). Even
if we provide you a webpage on a Franchise System Website, we will only maintain that webpage
while you are in full compliance with this Agreement and all System Standards we implement. If you
are in default of any obligation under this Agreement or our System Standards, then we may
temporarily remove your webpage from any Franchise System Website until you fully cure the default.
We will permanently remove your webpage from all Franchise System Websites upon this
Agreement’s expiration or termination.

We may require you to provide notice of any Franchise System Website in the advertising,
marketing, and promotional materials that you develop for your Park in the manner we designate. We
reserve the sole right to sell the products sold by Parks through any Online Presence.

We reserve the right to require you to obtain from us and use an email address associated with
our registered domain name. If we require you to obtain and use such an email address, you must do
so according to our then-current System Standards. You acknowledge and agree that we will have
unrestricted access to and sole ownership of all such email accounts, and all documents, data, materials,
and messages shared from or by such accounts. We may deactivate any such account or limit your or
your users’ access to it at any time. We reserve the right to charge you a fee for each email address we
provide you as part of the Technology Fee.

Except as provided above, or as approved by us in writing or in the Brand Standards Manual,
you may not develop, maintain or authorize any Online Presence that mentions your Park, links to any
Franchise System Website or displays any of the Marks, or engage in any promotional or similar
activities, whether directly or indirectly, through any Online Presence. If we approve the use of any
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such Online Presence in the operation of your Park, you will develop and maintain such Online
Presence only in accordance with our guidelines, including our guidelines for posting any messages or
commentary on other third-party websites, including preparing and linking a privacy policy to such
Online Presence that complies with all applicable laws, our System Standards, and other term and
conditions that we may prescribe in writing. We will own the rights to each such Online Presence. At
our request, you agree to grant us access to each such Online Presence, and to take whatever action
(including signing assignment or other documents) we request to evidence our ownership of such
Online Presence, or to help us obtain exclusive rights in such Online Presence.

8H. CONTACT INFORMATION AND LISTINGS.

You agree that, as between us and you, we reserve the right to all telephone numbers, online
listings, and/or any other type of contact information or directory listing for your Park or that you use
in the operation or promotion of your Park (collectively, the “Contact Information”). The Contact
Information may be used only for your Park in accordance with this Agreement and our System
Standards and for no other purpose. We reserve the right to notify any telephone company, listing
agencies, website hosting company, domain registrar, social network, and any other third-party owning
or controlling any Contact Information, if any information relating to your Park is inaccurate or violates
our System Standards, and request that they modify such Contact Information, and/or remove such
Contact Information until it can be corrected.

9. RECORDS, REPORTS., AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

You must use the Computer System to maintain certain sales data, customer information and
other information. You agree that we will have access to your Computer System at all times and that
we will have the right to collect and retain from the Computer System any and all data concerning your
Park. At our request, you agree to sign a release with any supplier of your Computer System, providing
us with such access to the Computer System as we may request from time to time. If such supplier is
not willing to grant us independent access for any reason, you agree to provide us access to your
Computer System through your account.

You agree to establish and maintain at your own expense a bookkeeping, accounting, and
recordkeeping system conforming to the requirements and formats we prescribe from time to time. We
may require that you hire a service-provider that we designate as your provider of accounting, payroll
and/or bookkeeping services. If we designate a service-provider for accounting, payroll and/or
bookkeeping services, you agree to cooperate with such service-provider and provide such service-
provider with all information you would appropriately provide us under this Section 9. Each month,
you agree to generate, in the manner and format that we may prescribe from time to time, an income
statement (including a standard chart of the accounts designated by us) for your Park covering the most
recently completed month. On our request, you agree to send us such statements. You also agree to
give us in the manner and format that we prescribe from time to time:

(a) on or before each Royalty payment, a report on your Park’s Gross Sales during
the applicable reporting period;

(b) within fifteen (15) days after the end of each calendar month, the operating
statements, financial statements, statistical reports and other information we request regarding
your Park covering the preceding month;
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(©) within the time limits specified in the Brand Standards Manual, such other
periodic operating statements, financial statements, statistical reports and other information we
request regarding you and your Park;

(d) by March 15th of each year, annual profit and loss and source and use of funds
statements and a balance sheet for your Park as of the end of the prior calendar year; and

(e) within ten (10) days after our request, exact copies of federal and state income
tax returns, tax returns for sales, or similar taxes, and any other forms, records, books, and
other information we may periodically require relating to you and your Park.

An officer must certify and sign each report and financial statement. We may disclose data
derived from these reports, although we will not without your consent (unless required by law) disclose
your identity in any materials that we circulate publicly.

Subject to applicable law, you agree to preserve and maintain all records in a secure location
at your Park for at least five (5) years (including, but not limited to, sales checks, purchase orders,
invoices, payroll records, customer lists, check stubs, tax records and returns for sales, or similar taxes,
cash receipts journals, cash disbursement journals, and general ledgers). We may require you to have
audited financial statements prepared annually during the Term.

10. INSPECTIONS AND AUDITS.

10A. OUR RIGHT TO INSPECT YOUR PARK.

To determine whether you and your Park are complying with this Agreement and all System
Standards, we and our designated agents or representatives may at any time and without prior notice
to you: (1) inspect your Park; (2) photograph your Park and observe and videotape your Park’s
operation for consecutive or intermittent periods we deem necessary; (3) continuously or periodically
monitor your Park using electronic surveillance or other means; (4) remove samples of any products
and supplies; (5) speak with your Park’s personnel and customers; (6) inspect your Computer System,
including hardware, software, security, configurations, connectivity, and data access; and (7) inspect
and copy any books, records, and documents relating to your Park’s operation. Additionally, we may
engage third parties to conduct mystery shopper, customer survey or other market research testing, and
quality assurance inspections at your Park. You agree to cooperate with us fully during the course of
these inspections and tests. You agree to reimburse us for the cost of any mystery shoppers that we
engage to inspect your Park from time to time.

If we determine after any inspection of your Park that one or more failures of System Standards
exist, or any circumstance exists that prevent us or our designated representatives from properly
inspecting any or all your Park (including if you or your personnel refuse entry to the Premises), we
may re-inspect your Park one or more times thereafter to evaluate whether such failures have been
cured and/or conduct any other follow-up review that we deem is necessary, and you will reimburse
all of our costs associated with the failed audit and/or such re-inspections and follow-up visits,
including supplier fees, travel expenses, room and board, and compensation of our employees. These
remedies are in addition to our other remedies and rights under this Agreement and applicable law.
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10B. OUR RIGHT TO AUDIT.

We may at any time during your business hours, and without prior notice to you, examine your
and your Park’s business, bookkeeping, and accounting records, tax records and returns for income,
sales, excise, or similar taxes, and other records. You agree to cooperate fully with our representatives
and independent accountants in any examination. If any examination discloses an understatement of
your Park’s Gross Sales, you agree to pay us the Royalty, Brand Fund Contribution, and any other fees
understated, plus interest on the understated amounts from the date originally due until the date of
payment, within fifteen (15) days after receiving the examination report. Furthermore, if an
examination is necessary due to your failure to furnish reports, supporting records, or other information
as required, or to furnish these items on a timely basis, or if our examination reveals an understatement
of Gross Sales exceeding three percent (3%) of the amount that you actually reported to us for the
period examined, you agree to reimburse us on demand for the costs of the examination, including
attorney and independent accountants and the travel expenses, room and board, and compensation of
our employees. These remedies are in addition to our other remedies and rights under this Agreement
and applicable law.

11. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.

In connection with your franchise under this Agreement, you and your owners and personnel
may from time to time be provided and/or have access to non-public information about the System and
the operation of Parks, including information arising from your Park (the “Confidential
Information™), including: (1) training programs and operations materials (including the Brand
Standards Manual); (2) the System Standards and the System; (3) market research and marketing
strategies (including expansion strategies and targeted demographics); (4) specifications for, suppliers
of, and methods of ordering, products and services (including, Operating Assets); (5) any software or
technology which is proprietary to us or the System, including digital passwords and identifications
and any source code of, and data and reports generated by the software or similar technology; (6) the
operating results and financial performance of Parks; (7) information generated by, or used or
developed in, any Park’s operation, including information relating to customers such as names,
addresses, telephone numbers, e-mail addresses, buying habits, preferences, demographics and related
information; and (8) any other information designated as confidential or proprietary by us.

All Confidential Information will be owned by us (other than Restricted Data, as defined in
Section 7F). You acknowledge and agree that: (i) you will not acquire any interest in any of our
Confidential Information, other than the right to use it as we specify in operating your Park during the
Term, and (ii) our Confidential Information is proprietary, includes our trade secrets, and is disclosed
to you only on the condition that you will protect it. You acknowledge that any unauthorized use or
disclosure of our Confidential Information would be an unfair method of competition and a breach of
trust and confidence and will result in irreparable harm to us and our affiliates. You (and if you are
conducting business as an Entity, each of your owners) therefore agree that during and after the Term
you will, and will cause each of your respective current and former spouses, immediate family
members, owners, officers, directors, employees, representatives, affiliates, successors and assigns to:

(a) process, retain, use, collect, and disclose our Confidential Information strictly
to the limited extent, and in such a manner, as necessary for the development and operation of
the Park in accordance with this Agreement, and not for any other purpose of any kind;
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(b) process, retain, use, collect, and disclose our Confidential Information strictly
in accordance with the privacy policies and System Standards we establish from time to time,
and our and our representative’s instructions;

(© keep confidential and not disclose, sell, distribute, or trade our Confidential
Information to any person other than those of your employees and representatives who need to
know such Confidential Information for the purpose of assisting you in operating the Park in
accordance with this Agreement; and you agree that you will be responsible for any violation
of this requirement by any of your representatives or employees;

(d) not make unauthorized copies of any of our Confidential Information;

(e) adopt and maintain administrative, physical and technical safeguards to prevent
unauthorized use or disclosure of any of our Confidential Information, including by
establishing reasonable security and access measures, restricting its disclosure to Key
Personnel, and/or by requiring persons who have access to such Confidential Information to
be bound by contractual obligations to protect such Confidential Information and preserve our
rights and controls in such Confidential Information, in each case that are no less protective or
beneficial to us than the terms of this Agreement (and we reserve the right to designate or
approve the form of confidentiality agreement that you use); and

() at our request, destroy or return any of the Confidential Information.

Confidential Information does not include information, knowledge, or know-how, which is
lawfully known to the public without violation of applicable law or an obligation to us or our affiliates.

We are not making any representations or warranties, express or implied, with respect to the
Confidential Information. We and our affiliates have no liability to you and your affiliates for any
errors or omissions from the Confidential Information.

All ideas, concepts, techniques, or materials relating to a Park and/or the System created by
you, your owners or your employees (or for you, your owners or your employees), whether or not
protectable intellectual property, must be promptly disclosed to us and will be our sole and exclusive
property, part of the System, and works made-for-hire for us. To the extent that any item does not
qualify as a “work made-for-hire” for us, you hereby waive all moral rights in that item, assign
ownership of that item, and all related rights to that item, to us and agree to take whatever action
(including signing assignment or other documents) we request to evidence our ownership or to help us
obtain intellectual property rights in the item.

12. EXCLUSIVE RELATIONSHIP.

12A. COVENANTS AGAINST COMPETITION.

You acknowledge that we have granted you a franchise in consideration of and reliance on
your agreement to deal exclusively with us. You (and if you are conducting business as an Entity, each
of your owners) therefore agree not to and to cause each of your respective spouses, immediate family
members, affiliates, successors, and assigns not to:

26
ATP Franchising, LLC
2024 04 FDD | Ex. B-1 Franchise Agreement
1360.001.013/405742



(a) have any direct or indirect interest as an owner (whether of record, beneficially,
or otherwise), investor, partner, director, officer, employee, consultant, lessor, representative,
or agent in any Competitive Business (as defined below), wherever located or operating (except
that equity ownership of less than five percent (5%) of a Competitive Business whose stock or
other forms of ownership interest are publicly traded on a recognized United States stock
exchange will not be deemed to violate this subparagraph);

(b) perform services or act as a director, officer, manager, employee, consultant,
lessor, representative, or agent for a Competitive Business, wherever located or operating; or

(©) divert or attempt to divert any actual or potential business or customer of any
Park to a Competitive Business.

You agree to obtain similar covenants and covenants of confidentiality from your personnel as
we specify, including officers, directors, managers, and other employees attending our Management
Training Program or having access to Confidential Information. We have the right to regulate the form
of agreement that you use and to be a third-party beneficiary of that agreement with independent
enforcement rights.

The term “Competitive Business” means any business (excluding any Parks operated under a
franchise agreement with us or our affiliate) operating or granting franchises or licenses to others to
operate any recreational facility or similar business that: (i) features trampolines, obstacle courses,
and/or other attractions, products, or services substantially similar to those offered by Parks, and/or (ii)
that derives more than 20% of its gross revenue from children’s parties and events.

12B. NON-INTERFERENCE.

During and after the Term, you (and if you are conducting business as an Entity, each of your
owners) further agree not to, and to cause your respective current and former spouses, immediate
family members, owners, officers, directors, employees, representatives, affiliates, successors and
assigns not to solicit, interfere, or attempt to interfere with our or our affiliates’ relationships with any
customers, franchisees, lenders, suppliers, or consultants.

12C. NON-DISPARAGEMENT.

During and after the Term, you (and if you are conducting business as an Entity, each of your
owners) agree not to, and to cause your respective current and former spouses, immediate family
members, owners, officers, directors, employees, representatives, affiliates, successors and assigns not
to: (1) disparage or otherwise speak or write negatively, directly or indirectly, of us, our affiliates, any
of our or our affiliates’ directors, officers, employees, representatives or affiliates, the “Altitude
Trampoline Park” brand, the System, any Park, any business using the Marks, or any other brand
concept operated or franchised by us or our affiliates; (ii) take any other action which would, directly
or indirectly, subject any of the foregoing to ridicule, scandal, reproach, scorn, or indignity, or which
would negatively impact or injure the goodwill of the System or the Marks; or (iii) take any other
action which would constitute an act of moral turpitude and/or is or could reasonably become the
subject of public scandal, disrepute, or infamy.
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13. TRANSFER.
13A. BY US.

Y ou acknowledge that we maintain a staff to manage and operate the franchise system and that
staff members can change as employees come and go. You acknowledge that you did not sign this
Agreement in reliance on the continued participation by or employment of any of our shareholders,
directors, officers, or employees. We may change our ownership or form of organization and/or assign
this Agreement and any other agreement to a third party without restriction or your consent. After our
assignment of this Agreement to a third party who expressly assumes the obligations under this
Agreement, we will be released and will no longer have any obligations or liabilities under this
Agreement. This Agreement and any other agreement will inure to the benefit of any transferee or
other legal successor to our interest in it.

13B. BY YOU.

You acknowledge that the rights and duties this Agreement creates are personal to you and
your owners, and that we have granted you the franchise in reliance on our perception of your and your
owners’ individual or collective character, skill, aptitude, attitude, business ability, and financial
capacity. Accordingly, none of the following may be transferred, mortgaged, pledged, or encumbered,
without our prior written approval: (i) this Agreement or any interest in this Agreement; (ii) your Park
or any right to receive all or a portion of your Park’s profits or losses or capital appreciation;
(ii1) substantially all of the assets of your Park; or (iv) any direct or indirect ownership interest in you.
A transfer of your Park’s ownership, possession, or control, or substantially all of its assets, may be
made only with a transfer of this Agreement. Any transfer or attempt to transfer any of the foregoing
(including by listing any of the following for sale on any directory or listing) without our approval has
no effect. In this Agreement, the term “transfer” includes a voluntary, involuntary, direct, or indirect
assignment, sale, gift, or other disposition, including transfer by reason of merger, consolidation,
issuance of additional securities, death, disability, divorce, insolvency, encumbrance, foreclosure,
surrender or by operation of law.

Notwithstanding anything in this Section 13B to the contrary, if you enter into this Agreement
as an individual, if you are in full compliance with this Agreement, you may transfer this Agreement
to an Entity in which you maintain management control, and of which you own and control 100% of
the equity and voting power of all issued and outstanding ownership interests; provided, that (i) that
Entity will own all of your Park’s assets, and will conduct all of your Park’s business, (ii) that Entity
will conduct no business other than your Park, (iii) that Entity must expressly assume all of your
obligations under this Agreement, (iv) you provide us with all organizational documents for the Entity
that we require, and (v) you reimburse us for any direct costs we incur in processing such transfer,
including attorneys’ fees. You agree to remain personally liable under this Agreement as if the transfer
to the Entity did not occur, including by signing a personal guaranty of the obligations of such entity.
You must also sign the form of consent to assignment and assignment satisfactory to us which may
include a release of any and all claims (except for claims which cannot be released or waived pursuant
to an applicable franchise law statute) against us and our affiliates, and our and their owners, officers,
directors, employees and agents.
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13C. CONDITIONS FOR APPROVAL OF TRANSFER.

Subject to the other provisions of this Section 13, we will approve a transfer that meets all of
the following requirements before or concurrently with the effective date of the transfer:

(D) you submit an application in writing requesting our consent and providing us
all information or documents we request about the proposed transfer, the transferee, and its
owners that we request, and each such person must have completed and satisfied all of our
application and certification requirements;

2) you provide us executed versions of any documents executed by you (or your
owners) and transferee (and its owners) to effect the transfer, and all other information we
request about the proposed transfer, and such transfer meets all of our requirements, including
terms, closing date, purchase price, amount of debt and payment terms, and we have
determined that the purchase price and payment terms of the transfer will not adversely affect
the transferee’s operation of your Park;

3) you (and your owners) and the transferee (and its owners) sign all of the
documents we are then requiring in connection with a transfer, in a form satisfactory to us,
including: (i) a release of any and all claims (except for claims which cannot be released or
waived pursuant to an applicable franchise law statute) against us and our affiliates and our
and their owners, officers, directors, employees, and agents, and (ii) covenants that you and
your transferring owners agree to satisfy all post-termination obligations under this Agreement;

4) you and your owners have not violated any provision of this Agreement or any
other agreement with us or our affiliates during both the sixty (60) day period before you
requested our consent to the transfer and the period between your request and the effective date
of the transfer, including that you have paid all Royalties, Brand Fund Contributions, and other
amounts owed to us, our affiliates, and third-party suppliers, and have submitted all required
reports and statements;

®)) the transferee and its Key Personnel satisfactorily complete our then-current
Management Training Program;

(6) if the proposed transfer (including any assignment of the Lease or subleasing
of the Premises) requires notice to or approval from your landlord, or any other action under
the terms of the Lease, you have taken such appropriate action and delivered us evidence of
the same;

(7) the transferee must (if the transfer is of this Agreement or your Park), sign our
then-current form of franchise agreement and related documents, any and all of the provisions
of which may differ materially from any and all of those contained in this Agreement, including
the Royalty and the Brand Fund Contribution; provided, however, that the term of the new
franchise agreement signed will equal the remainder of the then-remaining Term,;

(8) the transferee must (if the transfer is of an ownership interest in you or your
owners), and/or any other parties that are direct or indirect owners of the transferee must (if the
transfer is of this Agreement or your Park), sign our then-current form of guaranty, agreeing to
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be personally bound, jointly and severally, by all provisions of this Agreement and any
ancillary agreements between you and us;

9 other than for a transfer of a non-controlling interest in you, you pay us a
transfer fee equal to $15,000;

(10)  if you or your owners finance any part of the purchase price, you and/or your
owners agree that all of the transferee’s obligations under promissory notes, agreements, or
security interests reserved in your Park are subordinate to the transferee’s obligation to pay
Royalties, Brand Fund Contributions, and other amounts due to us, our affiliates, and third-
party suppliers to the Park and otherwise to comply with this Agreement;

(11) you have corrected any existing deficiencies of your Park of which we have
notified you, and/or the transferee agrees to upgrade, remodel, and refurbish your Park in
accordance with our then-current requirements and specifications for Parks within the time
period we specify following the date of the transfer and the transferee agrees to escrow an
amount we approve for payment of the required upgrade, remodel or refurbishment; and

(12)  you provide us the evidence we reasonably request to show that appropriate
measures have been taken to effect the transfer as it relates to the operation of the Park,
including, by transferring all necessary and appropriate business licenses, insurance policies,
and material agreements, or obtaining new business licenses, insurance policies and material
agreements.

We may review all information regarding your Park that you give the transferee, correct or
supplement any information that we believe is inaccurate or incomplete, and give the transferee copies
of any reports that you have given us or we have regarding your Park.

Our consent to a transfer pursuant to this Section is not a representation of the fairness of the
terms of any contract between you and the transferee, a guarantee of your Park’s or transferee’s
prospects of success, or a waiver of any claims we have against you (or your owners) or of our right to
demand the transferee’s full compliance with this Agreement.

13D. OUR RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL.

If you or any of your owners at any time decide to sell any of the following: (i) this Agreement
(or any interest in this Agreement); (i1) your Park (or any right to receive all or a portion of your Park’s
profits or losses or capital appreciation); (iii) substantially all of the assets of your Park; or (iv) any
direct or indirect ownership interest in you, you agree to obtain a bona fide executed written offer,
relating to the proposed transfer from a responsible and fully disclosed buyer and send to us a true and
complete copy of that written offer. The offer must include details of the payment terms of the proposed
sale and the sources and terms of any financing for the proposed purchase price. To be a valid, bona
fide offer, the proposed purchase price must be in a dollar amount, and the proposed buyer must submit
with its offer an earnest money deposit equal to 5% or more of the offering price. We may also require
you to send us copies of any materials or information sent to the proposed buyer or transferee regarding
the possible transaction.

We may elect to purchase the interest offered for the price and on the terms and conditions
contained in the offer, provided that:
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(D) we notify you or your selling owner(s) that we intend to purchase the interest
within thirty (30) days after we receive a copy of the offer and all other information we request;

(2) we may substitute cash for any form of payment proposed in the offer (such as
ownership interests in a privately-held entity);

3) our credit will be deemed equal to the credit of any proposed buyer (meaning
that, if the proposed consideration includes promissory notes, we or our designee may provide
promissory notes with the same terms as those offered by the proposed buyer);

4) we will have an additional sixty (60) days to prepare for closing after notifying
you of our election to purchase; and

(5 we must receive, and you and your owners agree to make, all customary
representations and warranties given by the seller of the assets of a business or the ownership
interests in any legal business entity, as applicable, including representations and warranties
regarding: (a) ownership and condition of and title to ownership interests and/or assets;
(b) liens and encumbrances relating to ownership interests and/or assets; and (c) validity of
contracts and the liabilities, contingent or otherwise, of the entity whose assets or ownership
interests are being purchased.

We have the unrestricted right to assign any or all of this right of first refusal to a third party,
who then will have the rights described in this Section 13D.

If we do not exercise our right of first refusal, you or your owners may complete the sale to the
proposed buyer on the original offer’s terms, but only if we otherwise approve the transfer in
accordance with Sections 13B and 13C above, and if you and your owners and the transferee comply
with the conditions in Sections 13B and 13C above.

If you do not complete the sale to the proposed buyer within sixty (60) days after we notify
you that we do not intend to exercise our right of first refusal, or if there is a material change in the
terms of the sale (which you agree to tell us promptly), we or our designee will have an additional right
of first refusal on the same terms as described above.

13E. YOUR DEATH OR DISABILITY.

On the death or disability of you (or if you are an Entity, any of your owners), such person’s
executor, administrator, conservator, guardian, or other personal representative must transfer such
person’s interest in this Agreement, the Park, or ownership interest in you, to a third party (which may
be such person’s heirs, beneficiaries, or devisees). That transfer must be completed within a reasonable
time, not to exceed nine (9) months from the date of death or disability, and is subject to all of the
terms and conditions in this Section 13 (except that any transferee that is the spouse or immediate
family member of the deceased, will not have to pay the transfer fee described in Section 13C(9) if the
transfer meets all the other conditions in Section 13C, and the transferee reimburses us for any direct
costs we incur in connection with documenting and otherwise processing such transfer, including
reasonable attorneys’ fees). The term “disability” means a mental or physical disability, impairment,
or condition that is reasonably expected to prevent or actually does prevent such person from fulfilling
such person’s respective duties under this Agreement, as applicable.
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In the event of the death of you (if you are an individual) or your Principal Owner (if you are
an Entity), if your Park is not otherwise being managed by an Approved Manager, the deceased
person’s executor, administrator, conservator, guardian, or other personal representative must within a
reasonable time, not to exceed fifteen (15) days from the date of death or disability, appoint a manager
who we approve and who has completed our then-current Management Training Program to supervise
the day-to-day operations of your Park under the terms of this Agreement. If your Park is not being
managed properly at any time, in our sole judgment, we may, but need not, operate the Park on an
interim basis (or appoint a third party to operate the Park on an interim basis) in accordance with
Section 16A.

14. RENEWAL OF YOUR FRANCHISE.

14A. YOUR RIGHT TO RENEW YOUR FRANCHISE.

Upon expiration of the Term, you may renew your franchise to operate your Park for one
successive term of ten (10) years, if you meet the following conditions:

(D) if you are renewing your franchise upon the expiration of the Term, you must
have given us written notice of your election no more than five hundred forty (540) days and
no less than one hundred eighty (180) days before the expiration of the Term;

(2) you (and each of your owners) have substantially complied with this
Agreement and all System Standards during the Term;

3) you maintain possession of and agree to remodel and/or expand your Park, add
or replace improvements and Operating Assets, and otherwise modify your Park as we require
to comply with System Standards then-applicable for new Parks, or, at your option, you secure
substitute premises that we approve and you develop those premises according to System
Standards then-applicable for Parks;

4) you and your owners sign the franchise agreement and all other ancillary
documents and guaranties we then use to grant franchises for Parks (modified as necessary to
reflect the fact that it is for a renewal franchise), which may contain provisions that differ
materially from those contained in this Agreement, including changes to your Royalty and
Brand Fund Contribution;

(5 you and your owners agree to sign, in a form satisfactory to us, a general release
of any and all claims (except for claims which cannot be released or waived pursuant to an
applicable franchise law statute) against us and our shareholders, officers, directors,
employees, agents, successors, and assigns;

(6) you pay us a renewal fee equal to 25% of our then-current Initial Franchise Fee;
and

(7) at the time you give us written notice of your election to acquire a renewal
franchise, we are then-offering franchises for Parks in your geographic market area.
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If you and/or your owners fail to meet the conditions set forth in this Section 14A, you
acknowledge that we are not required to offer you a renewal franchise, whether or not we had, or chose
to exercise, the right to terminate this Agreement during its term under Section 15B.

If you fail to provide us the written notice of renewal as required under this Section, or you
notify us that you do not intend to renew your franchise for the Park, or we notify you that we will not
grant you a renewal franchise for the Park, then you must immediately cease to sell Memberships.

14B. ACQUIRING A RENEWAL FRANCHISE.

If we agree to grant you a renewal franchise after we receive your notice that you wish to renew
your franchise upon the expiration of the Term, our notice may describe certain remodeling,
maintenance, expansion, improvements, technology upgrades, trade dress updates, and/or
modifications required to bring your Park into compliance with then-applicable System Standards for
new Parks, and state the actions you must take to correct operating deficiencies and the time period in
which you must correct these deficiencies. If our notice states that you must remodel your Park and/or
must cure certain deficiencies of your Park or its operation as a condition to our granting you a renewal
franchise, and you fail to complete the remodeling and/or to cure those deficiencies, we may give you
written notice of our decision not to grant a renewal franchise upon expiration of the Term, or to revoke
any approval of such a renewal franchise we may have awarded. If you fail to notify us of your election
to acquire a renewal franchise within the prescribed time period, we need not grant you a renewal
franchise.

15. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT.

15A. TERMINATION BY YOU - OUR BREACH.

You may terminate this Agreement if you and your owners are in full compliance with this
Agreement and we materially fail to comply with this Agreement, and (i) we fail to correct the failure
within thirty (30) days after you deliver written notice of the material failure to us, or (i) if we cannot
correct the failure within thirty (30) days, we fail to give you reasonable evidence of our effort to
correct the failure within a reasonable time. Y our termination under this Section 15A will be effective
thirty (30) days after you deliver to us the written notice of termination.

15B. TERMINATION BY US - YOUR BREACH.

We may terminate this Agreement, effective immediately on delivery of written notice of
termination to you, if:

(D) you or any of your owners or affiliates have made or make any material
misrepresentation or omission in acquiring the franchise or operating your Park;

(2) you fail to satisfy all of your development obligations specified in this
Agreement, including obtaining our approval prior to opening your Park, and open your Park
for business by the deadline specified in Section 2C;

3) you do not obtain lawful possession of a Premises we have approved and
deliver to us a fully executed copy of the Lease and Lease Rider we have approved for such
Premises, in each case by the deadline set forth in 2B;
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4) you abandon or fail to actively operate your Park for more than two (2)
consecutive days of operation or seven (7) days of operation in the aggregate during any
twelve-month period, or you provide us or any other party notice (written or oral) that you
intend to permanently close or otherwise abandon the operation of your Park;

(5 you or any of your owners make or attempt to make any transfer in violation
of Section 13;

(6) your Key Personnel do not satisfactorily complete the Management Training
Program in accordance with Section 4A;

(7) you or any of your owners are or have been convicted by a trial court of, or
pleaded guilty or no contest to, an indictable or hybrid offense;

(8) you or any of your owners or affiliates fail to pay us or our affiliates any
amounts due and do not correct the failure within ten (10) days after we deliver written notice
of that failure to you,

9 you or any of your owners or affiliates fail to pay any other third-party,
including the lessor of your Premises, any other amounts owed in connection with your Park
when due, and do not cure such failure within any applicable cure period granted by such third-

party;

(10)  you fail to maintain the insurance we require and do not correct the failure
within ten (10) days after we deliver written notice of that failure to you;

(11) an event of default occurs under the terms of your Lease, your Lease is
terminated by either party thereto, or you otherwise lose the right to occupy the Premises,
whether or not through any fault of yours;

(12)  you or any of your owners or affiliates knowingly make any unauthorized use
or disclosure of any Confidential Information;

(13)  you violate any of your obligations under Section 12 of this Agreement;

(14)  you violate any health, safety, or sanitation law, ordinance, or regulation, or
operate your Park in an unsafe manner, and do not begin to cure the violation immediately, and
correct the violation within seventy-two (72) hours after you receive notice from us or any
other party, even if any applicable governmental authority issuing you notice of your failure
has granted you a longer period of time to cure;

(15)  you create or allow to exist any condition in connection with your operation of
your Park that we reasonably determine to present an immediate health or safety concern for
the Park’s customers or employees;

(16)  you have insufficient funds in your designated account to cover your payments
owed for Royalties, Brand Fund Contributions and other amounts due on three (3) separate
occasions within a twelve (12) month period;
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(17)  you understate your Park’s Gross Sales three (3) times or more during the Term
or by more than three percent (3%) on any one occasion;

(18)  you or any of your owners make an assignment for the benefit of creditors or
admit in writing your insolvency or inability to pay your debts generally as they become due;
you or any of your owners consent to the appointment of a receiver, trustee, or liquidator of all
or the substantial part of your property;

(19)  your Park or any of its assets are attached, seized, subjected to a writ or distress
warrant, or levied on, unless the attachment, seizure, writ, warrant, or levy is vacated within
thirty (30) days; or any order appointing a receiver, trustee, or liquidator of your Park is not
vacated within thirty (30) days following the order’s entry;

(20)  your or any of your owners’ assets, property, or interests are blocked under any
law, ordinance, or regulation relating to terrorist activities, or you or any of your owners
otherwise violate any such law, ordinance, or regulation;

(21)  you breach this Agreement on three (3) or more occasions within any twelve
12) consecutive month period, whether or not you correct the failures; or
p y

(22)  you or your owners breach any other provision under this Agreement, or any
other agreement between you or any of your owners or affiliates, and us or our affiliates, and
such breach has not been cured within thirty (30) days after written notice from us.

If you terminate this Agreement other than according to Section 15A, the termination will be
deemed a termination without cause and a breach of this Agreement.

16. RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS UPON TERMINATION OR EXPIRATION.

16A. INTERIM OPERATIONS.

We have the right but not the obligation to enter the Premises and operate the Park on an interim
basis, or to appoint a third party to operate the Park on an interim basis, if: (1) you abandon or fail
actively to operate your Park; or (2) this Agreement expires or is terminated and we are transitioning
your Park operations to us or another person we designate, or determining whether to do so.

If we elect to operate your Park on any interim basis, you must cooperate with us and our
designees, continue to support the operations of the Park, and comply with all of our instructions and
System Standards, including making available any and all books, records, and accounts. You
understand and acknowledge that during any such interim period, you are still the owner of the Park,
and you continue to bear sole liability for any and all accounts payable, obligations, and/or contracts,
including all obligations under the Lease and all obligations to your vendors and employees and
contractors, unless and until we expressly assume them in connection with the purchase of the Park
under Section 16E. You understand that we are not required to use your employees, vendors, or
contractors to operate the Park. You also agree that we may elect to cease such interim operations of
the Park at any time with notice to you.

All funds from your Park’s operation while we or our designee operate it will be accounted
for separately, and all expenses will be deducted from that amount (including any applicable, Royalty,
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Brand Fund Contributions, and other amounts due to us or our affiliates, and our then-current fee for
our interim services, plus our and our designee’s direct out-of-pocket costs and expenses). If we or our
designee operate the Park on an interim basis, you acknowledge that we or our designee will have a
duty to utilize only reasonable efforts and will not be liable to you or your owners for any debts, losses,
or obligations your Park incurs, or to any of your creditors for any supplies, products, or other assets
or services your Park purchases, while we or our designee manage it.

Our decision to operate the Park on an interim basis will not affect our right to terminate this
Agreement under Section 15B. Your indemnification obligations set forth under Section 17D will
continue to apply during any period that we or our designee operate the Park on an interim basis.

16B. PAYMENT OF AMOUNTS OWED TO US.

You agree to pay us the Royalties, Brand Fund Contributions, interest and late fees, and all
other amounts owed to us and our affiliates within fifteen (15) days after this Agreement expires or is
terminated, calculated as of the date of payment. We have the right to set off any amount you or your
owners owe us or our affiliates against any amounts we or our affiliates owe you, your owners or your
affiliates. You acknowledge that termination or expiration of this Agreement does not affect your
liability for amounts you or your owners or affiliates owe any third-parties or creditors and we do not
assume any such liabilities.

16C. LOST REVENUE DAMAGES

If we terminate this Agreement because of your breach or if you terminate this Agreement
without cause, you and we agree that it would be difficult, if not impossible, to determine the amount
of damages that we would suffer due to the loss or interruption of the revenue stream we otherwise
would have derived from your continued payment of Royalties, and that the Brand Fund and Local
Advertising Cooperatives would have otherwise derived from your continued contributions to those
funds, through the remainder of the Term. Therefore, you and we agree that a reasonable estimate of
such damages, less any cost savings we might have experienced (the “Lost Revenue Damages”), is
an amount equal to the net present value of the Royalties, Brand Fund Contributions and Local
Advertising Cooperative Contributions that would have become due had this Agreement not been
terminated, from the date of termination to the earlier of: (a) 2 years following the date of termination,
or (b) the scheduled expiration of the Term. For the purposes of this Section 16C, Royalties, Brand
Fund Contributions and Local Advertising Cooperative Contributions will be calculated based on the
average monthly Gross Sales of your Park during the 12 full calendar months immediately preceding
the termination date; provided, that if as of the termination date, your Park has not been operating for
at least 12 months, Royalties, Brand Fund Contributions and Local Advertising Cooperative
Contributions will be calculated based on the average monthly Gross Sales of all Parks operating under
the Marks during the our fiscal year immediately preceding the termination date.

You agree to pay us Lost Revenue Damages within 15 days after this Agreement is terminated.
You and we agree that the calculation described in this Section 16C is a calculation only of the Lost
Revenue Damages and that nothing herein shall preclude or limit us from proving and recovering any
other damages caused by your breach of the Agreement.

16D. DE-IDENTIFICATION.

Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, you and your owners must immediately:
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(a) close the Park for business to customers and cease to directly or indirectly sell
any products and services of any kind and in any manner from the Park and/or using the Marks,
unless we direct you otherwise in connection with our exercise of our option to purchase
pursuant to Section 16E;

(b) cease to directly or indirectly use any Mark, any colorable imitation of a Mark,
any other indicia of a Park, or any trade name, trade-mark, service mark or other commercial
symbol that indicates or suggests a connection or association with us, in any manner or for any

purpose;

(c) cease to directly or indirectly identify yourself or your business as a current or
former Park or as one of our current or former franchise owners (except in connection with
other Parks you operate in compliance with the terms of a valid Franchise Agreement with us)
and take the action required to cancel or assign all fictitious or assumed name or equivalent
registrations relating to your use of any Mark;

(d) if we do not exercise our option to purchase the Park, promptly and at your own
expense, remove all materials bearing our Marks and remove from both the interior and exterior
of the Premises all materials and components of our trade dress as we determine to be necessary
to avoid any association between the Premises and our System or that would, in any way,
indicate that the Premises are or were associated with our brand or the System;

(e) cease using and, at our direction, either disable or transfer, assign or otherwise
convey to us full control of all Contact Information and Online Presences that you used to
operate your Park or that displays any of the Marks or any reference to the franchise system
(provided that all liabilities and obligations arising from any such Contact Information or
Online Presence prior to the date of the transfer, assignment or conveyance to us will remain
your sole responsibility in all respects, and any costs we incur in connection therewith will be
indemnifiable under Section 17D);

6)) return to us or destroy (as we require) all items, forms and materials containing
any Mark or otherwise identifying or relating to a Park, including copies of any and all
Confidential Information (including the Brand Standards Manual and any and all customer data
or other information from your Computer System); and

(2) comply with all other System Standards we establish from time to time (and all
applicable laws) in connection with the closure and de-identification of your Park, including
as it relates to disposing of Personal Information, in any form, in your possession or the
possession of any of your employees.

If you fail to take any of the actions or refrain from taking any of the actions described above,
we may take whatever action and sign whatever documents we deem appropriate on your behalf to
cure the deficiencies, including, without liability to you or third parties for trespass or any other claim,
to enter the Premises and remove any signs or other materials containing any Marks from your Park.
You must reimburse us for all costs and expenses we incur in correcting any such deficiencies. You
hereby appoint us your true and lawful attorney-in-fact to take such actions and execute such
documents on your behalf as may be required to effect the foregoing purposes.
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16E. OUR RIGHT TO PURCHASE YOUR PARK.

We have the option to purchase any or all of the assets of your Park, including your Premises
(if you or one of your owners or affiliates owns the Premises) upon the termination or expiration of
this Agreement. We may exercise this option by giving you written notice within thirty (30) days after
the date of such termination or expiration. We have the unrestricted right to assign this option to
purchase. If we purchase your Park and/or the Premises, we are entitled to all customary warranties
and representations, including representations and warranties as to ownership and condition of and title
to assets; liens and encumbrances on assets; validity of contracts and agreements; and liabilities
affecting the assets, contingent or otherwise.

If you lease the Premises from an unaffiliated lessor, or if we choose not to purchase the
Premises from you (or one of your owners or affiliates owning the Premises), you agree, at our election
to (i) assign your Lease to us or our designee, (ii) enter into a sublease with us or our designee for the
remainder of the Lease term on the same terms (including renewal options) as the Lease, or (iii) lease
the Premises to us or our designee for an initial term of 5 years with, at our option, up to 3 additional
terms of 5 years each, on commercially reasonable terms that we approve.

We or our designee will pay the purchase price for the Park and/or Premises (calculated as
described below) at the closing, which will take place not later than sixty (60) days after the purchase
price is determined, although we or our designee may decide after the purchase price is determined not
to purchase your Park and/or the Premises. We may set off against the purchase price, and reduce the
purchase price by, any and all amounts you or your owners owe us or our affiliates. At the closing, you
agree to deliver to us or our designee:

(a) good and merchantable title to the assets purchased, free and clear of all liens
and encumbrances (other than liens and security interests acceptable to us), with all taxes paid
by you, including sales, goods and services, harmonized sales, use, value added, retailer’s
excise, or similar taxes;

(b) any and all of your Park’s licenses and permits which may be assigned or
transferred; and

(c) the ownership interest or leasehold interest (as applicable) in the Premises and
improvements or a lease assignment or lease or sublease, as applicable.

If you cannot deliver clear title to all of the purchased assets, or if there are other unresolved
issues, we and you will close the sale through an escrow. You and your owners further agree to execute
releases, in a form satisfactory to us, of any and all claims (except for claims which cannot be released
or waived pursuant to an applicable franchise law statute) against us and our owners, officers,
managers, employees, agents, successors and assigns.

If we purchase any or all of the assets of your Park upon termination or expiration of this
Agreement, the purchase price for such assets will be their reasonable fair market value, provided that
these items will not include any value for the rights granted by this Agreement, any goodwill
attributable to our Marks, brand image, other intellectual property, any participation in the network of
Parks, or any other value of your business as a going concern.
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If we and you cannot agree on fair market value, fair market value will be determined by two
independent accredited appraisers, one of whom is selected by us and one of whom is selected by you,
which appraisers will conduct an appraisal and, in doing so, be bound by the criteria for the purchase
price described above. If the fair market values determined by the two independent accredited
appraisers are within 10% of one another, the purchase price will be the average of the two values. If
the fair market values determined by the two independent accredited appraisers are not within 10% of
one another, the two independent accredited appraisers will select a third independent accredited
appraiser to calculate the fair market value of the assets. If a third independent accredited appraiser is
appointed, the purchase price for the assets will be the average of the value calculated by the third
independent accredited appraiser and whichever value of the two previous appraisals is closest to the
third appraised value. You and we will pay all costs and expenses associated with the independent
accredited appraiser that you and we choose, respectively, and will share equally the appraisers’ fees
and expenses for any third independent accredited appraiser, if applicable. Each appraiser must
complete its appraisal within thirty (30) days after its appointment.

16F. COVENANT NOT TO COMPETE.

For two (2) years beginning on the effective date of termination or expiration of this
Agreement, you (and if you are conducting business as an Entity, each of your owners) agree not to
and to cause each of your respective spouses, immediate family members, affiliates, successors, and
assigns not to have any direct or indirect interest as an owner (whether of record, beneficially, or
otherwise), investor, partner, director, officer, employee, consultant, lessor, representative, or agent in
any Competitive Business located or operating (a) at the Premises or within a 15-mile radius of the
Premises, or (b) within a 10-mile radius of any other Park operated by us, our affiliates, or any
franchisee of us or our affiliates.

If any person restricted by this Section 16F fails to comply with these obligations as of the date
of termination or expiration, the two (2) year restricted period for that person will commence on the
date the person begins to comply with this Section 16F, which may be the date a court order is entered
enforcing this provision. You and your owners expressly acknowledge that you possess skills and
abilities of a general nature and have other opportunities for exploiting these skills. Consequently, our
enforcing the covenants made in this Section 16F will not deprive you of your personal goodwill or
ability to earn a living.

The restrictions in this Section 16F will also apply after any transfer, to the transferor and its
owners, for a period of two (2) years beginning on the effective date of the transfer, with the force and
effect as though this Agreement had been terminated for such parties as of such date.

16G. MEMBERSHIP OBLIGATIONS.

Upon termination or expiration, you must deliver to us (in the format we require) all
Confidential Information relating to your members and notify all members of your Park immediately
that your Park will cease to operate. We may contact members of your Park and offer such members
continued rights to use one or more other Parks on such terms and conditions we deem appropriate,
which in no event will include assumption of any then-existing liability arising out of or relating to any
Membership Agreement or act or failure to act by you or your Park. If members of your Park are legally
entitled to full or partial refund of any monies paid to you, you will refund such monies promptly and
in full and will cooperate with us to preserve goodwill with such members. If you fail to refund your
members as required pursuant to this Section, we reserve the right to refund such members in order to
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preserve goodwill and prevent damage to the Marks, and you will reimburse us for all amounts we
refund to members of your Park.

16H. CONTINUING OBLIGATIONS.

All of our and your (and your owners’) obligations which expressly or by their nature survive
this Agreement’s expiration or termination will continue in full force and effect subsequent to and
notwithstanding its expiration or termination and until they are satisfied in full or by their nature expire.
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the parties expressly acknowledge that each of the
following provisions of this Agreement will survive the Agreement’s expiration or termination: Section
7F (Information Security), Section 11 (Confidential Information); Section 12B (Non-Interference);
Section 12C (Non-Disparagement); Section 16 (Rights and Obligations Upon Termination or
Expiration); Section 17 (Relationship of the Parties/Indemnification); and Section 18 (Enforcement).

17. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES/INDEMNIFICATION.

17A. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS.

You and we understand and agree that each of us is an independent business and that you and
we are and will be independent contractors. This Agreement does not create a fiduciary relationship
between you and us, and nothing in this Agreement is intended to make either you or us a general or
special agent, joint venturer, partner, or employee of the other for any purpose. You agree to identify
yourself conspicuously to all persons (including customers, suppliers, public officials, and Park
employees) as your Park’s owner, and indicate clearly that you operate your Park separately and
independently from our business operations. You agree to place notices of independent ownership on
all interior and exterior signage, forms, business cards, stationery, advertising, and other materials that
we may require from time to time. You may not make any express or implied agreements, warranties,
guarantees, or representations, or incur any debt, in our name or on our behalf or represent that your
and our relationship is anything other than franchisor and franchise owner.

We have no right or duty to direct your employees in the course of their employment for you.
You are solely responsible for the terms and conditions of employment of your employees. We will
not be obligated for any damages to any person or property directly or indirectly arising out of your
Park’s operation or the business you conduct under this Agreement.

17B. NO LIABILITY FOR ACTS OF OTHER PARTY.

We and you may not make any express, implied or collateral agreements, warranties,
guarantees, or representations, or incur any debt, in the name or on behalf of the other or represent that
our respective relationship is other than franchisor and franchise owner. We will not be obligated for
any damages to any person or property directly or indirectly arising out of your Park’s operation or the
business you conduct under this Agreement.

17C. TAXES.

Any and all amounts expressed as being payable to us pursuant to this Agreement are exclusive
of applicable taxes. Accordingly, if applicable, all payments by you to us will, in addition, include an
amount equal to any and applicable taxes, assessments or amounts of a like nature imposed on any
payments to be made pursuant to this Agreement. We will have no liability for any sales, occupation,
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excise, gross revenue, income, property, or other applicable taxes, whether levied on you or your Park,
due to the business you conduct (except for our income taxes). You are responsible for paying these
taxes and if we pay any taxes to any state or federal taxing authority on account of either your operation
or payments that you make to us (except for our income taxes), or any expenses we incur in reviewing,
paying or disputing such taxes, such amounts will be subject to indemnification under Section 17D.

17D. INDEMNIFICATION.

You agree to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless us, our affiliates, and our and their
respective owners, directors, officers, employees, agents, successors, and assigns (the “Indemnified
Parties™) against, and to reimburse any one or more of the Indemnified Parties for, all claims,
obligations, and damages directly or indirectly arising out of your Park, the business you conduct under
this Agreement, and/or your breach of this Agreement, including those alleged to be or found to have
been caused by the Indemnified Party’s gross negligence or willful misconduct, unless (and then only
to the extent that) the claims, obligations, or damages are determined to be caused solely by our gross
negligence or willful misconduct in a final, unappealable ruling issued by a court or arbitrator with
competent jurisdiction.

For purposes of this indemnification, “claims” include all obligations, damages (actual,
consequential, or otherwise), and costs that any Indemnified Party reasonably incurs in defending any
claim against it, including reasonable accountants’, arbitrators’, attorneys’, and expert witness fees,
costs of investigation and proof of facts, court costs, travel and living expenses, and other expenses of
litigation, arbitration, or alternative dispute resolution, regardless of whether litigation, arbitration, or
alternative dispute resolution is commenced. Each Indemnified Party may defend any claim against it
at your expense (including choosing and retaining its own legal counsel) and agree to settlements or
take any other remedial, corrective, or other actions.

This indemnity will continue in full force and effect subsequent to and notwithstanding this
Agreement’s expiration or termination or purported rescission. An Indemnified Party need not seek
recovery from any insurer or other third party, or otherwise mitigate its losses and expenses, in order
to maintain and recover fully a claim for indemnity under this Section 17D. You agree that a failure to
pursue a recovery or mitigate a loss will not reduce or alter the amounts that an Indemnified Party may
recover under this Section 17D.

18. ENFORCEMENT.

18A. MEDIATION.

Either party may initiate a mediation process by notifying the other party in writing. The parties
agree to conduct the mediation in accordance with the then current Commercial Mediation Procedures
of the American Arbitration Association (the “AAA”), except to the extent the rules conflict with this
Agreement, in which case this Agreement shall control; however, the mediation need not be
administered by the AAA unless the parties cannot agree upon the selection of a mediator within thirty
days of the receipt of the written notice of mediation. If the parties cannot reach agreement upon the
selection of a mediator, either party may commence a mediation proceeding by making a request for
mediation to the AAA regional office closest to our (or our successor’s or assign’s, as applicable) then
current principal place of business (currently, Dallas, Texas), with a copy to the other party. The written
request for mediation shall describe with specificity the nature of the dispute and the relief sought.
Both parties are obligated to engage in the mediation.
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The mediation will be conducted by a single mediator with no past or present affiliation or
conflict with any party to the mediation. The parties agree that the mediator shall be disqualified as a
witness, expert, consultant or attorney in any pending or subsequent proceeding relating to the dispute
which is the subject of the mediation. If the parties cannot agree on a mediator and the AAA administers
the mediation, the AAA shall provide the parties with a list of mediators willing to serve. The parties
will have 10 days from receipt of the list from the AAA to agree upon a mediator from the list. If
neither party advises the AAA in writing of an agreement within 10 days of receipt of such list, the
AAA shall appoint the mediator. The fees and expenses of the AAA (or other administrator), if
applicable, and the mediator’s fee, shall be shared equally by the parties. Each party shall bear its own
attorneys’ fees and other costs incurred in connection with the mediation irrespective of the outcome
of the mediation or the mediator’s evaluation of each party’s case. The mediation shall occur within
30 days after selection of the mediator.

Regardless of which party initiates the mediation, the parties agree to conduct the mediation at
a suitable location chosen by the mediator that is within 50 miles of our (or our successor’s or assign’s,
as applicable) then current principal place of business (currently, Dallas, Texas). At least 7 days before
the first scheduled session of the mediation, each party shall deliver to the mediator a concise written
summary of its position with respect to the matters in dispute (such as claims or defenses) and such
other matters required by the mediator.

The parties understand and agree that neither initiation nor completion of mediation
contemplated by this Section is a condition precedent to either party’s commencement or pursuit of
other legal actions and remedies, including arbitration, as permitted under this Agreement.

18B. ARBITRATION.

All controversies, disputes, or claims between us or any of our affiliates (and our and their
respective shareholders, officers, directors, agents, and employees), on the one hand, and you (and
your owners, guarantors, affiliates, and employees), on the other hand, arising out of or related to: (1)
this Agreement or any other agreement between you (or any of your owners) and us (or any of our
affiliates); (2) our relationship with you; (3) the scope or validity of this Agreement or any other
agreement between you (or any of your owners) and us (or any of our affiliates) or any provision of
any of such agreements (including the validity and scope of the arbitration provision under this Section,
which we and you acknowledge is to be determined by an arbitrator, not a court); or (4) any System
Standard, must be submitted for binding arbitration, on demand of either party, to the AAA. The
arbitration proceedings will be conducted by one arbitrator and, except as this Section otherwise
provides, according to the AAA’s then current Commercial Arbitration Rules. All proceedings will be
conducted at a suitable location chosen by the arbitrator that is within 50 miles of our (or our
successor’s or assign’s, as applicable) then current principal place of business (currently, Dallas,
Texas). All matters relating to arbitration will be governed by the Federal Arbitration Act (9 U.S.C.
§§ 1 et seq.). The interim and final awards of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon each party,
and judgment upon the arbitrator's awards may be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction.

The arbitrator has the right to award or include in his or her awards any relief which he or she
deems proper, including money damages, pre- and post-award interest, interim costs and attorneys’
fees, specific performance, and injunctive relief, provided that the arbitrator may not declare any of the
trademarks owned by us or our affiliates generic or otherwise invalid, or award any punitive or

42
ATP Franchising, LLC
2024 04 FDD | Ex. B-1 Franchise Agreement
1360.001.013/405742



exemplary damages against any party to the arbitration proceeding (we and you hereby waiving to the
fullest extent permitted by law any such right to or claim for any punitive or exemplary damages against
any party to the arbitration proceeding). In any arbitration brought pursuant to this arbitration
provision, and in any action in which a party seeks to enforce compliance with this arbitration
provision, the prevailing party shall be awarded its costs and expenses, including attorneys’ fees,
incurred in connection therewith.

In any arbitration proceeding, each party will be bound by the provisions of any applicable
contractual or statutory limitations provision, whichever expires earlier. Each party must submit or file
any claim which would constitute a compulsory counterclaim (as defined by Rule 13 of the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure) within the same proceeding. Any claim which is not submitted or filed as
required will be forever barred. The arbitrator may not consider any settlement discussions or offers
that might have been made by any party.

ARBITRATION PROCEEDINGS WILL BE CONDUCTED ON AN INDIVIDUAL BASIS.
NO ARBITRATION PROCEEDING MAY BE: (I) CONDUCTED ON A CLASS-WIDE BASIS, (II)
COMMENCED, CONDUCTED OR CONSOLIDATED WITH ANY OTHER ARBITRATION
PROCEEDING, (IIT) JOINED WITH ANY SEPARATE CLAIM OF AN UNAFFILIATED THIRD-
PARTY, OR (IV) BROUGHT ON BEHALF OF ANY PARTY BY ANY ASSOCIATION OR
AGENT. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any court or arbitrator determines that all or any part of the
preceding sentence is unenforceable with respect to a dispute, controversy or claim that otherwise
would be subject to arbitration under this Section, then all parties agree that this arbitration clause shall
not apply to that dispute, controversy or claim and that such dispute, controversy or claim shall be
resolved in a judicial proceeding in accordance with the dispute resolution provisions of this
Agreement.

In any arbitration arising as described in this Section, the arbitrator shall have full authority to
manage any necessary exchange of information among the parties with a view to achieving an efficient
and economical resolution of the dispute. The parties may only serve reasonable requests for
documents, which must be limited to documents upon which a party intends to rely or documents that
are directly relevant and material to a significant disputed issue in the case or to the case’s outcome.
The document requests shall be restricted in terms of time frame, subject matter and persons or entities
to which the requests pertain, and shall not include broad phraseology such as “all documents directly
or indirectly related to.” No interrogatories or requests to admit shall be propounded, unless the parties
later mutually agree to their use.

The provisions of this Section are intended to benefit and bind certain third-party non-
signatories. The provisions of this Section will continue in full force and effect subsequent to and
notwithstanding the expiration or termination of this Agreement. Any provisions of this Agreement
below that pertain to judicial proceedings shall be subject to the agreement to arbitrate contained in
this Section.

18C. CONSENT TO JURISDICTION.

Subject to Section 18B above and the provisions below, we and you agree that all controversies,
disputes, or claims between us or any of our affiliates (and our and their respective shareholders,
officers, directors, agents, and employees), on the one hand, and you (and your owners, guarantors,
affiliates, and employees), on the other hand, arising out of or related to this Agreement or any other
agreement between you (or any of your owners) and us (or any of our affiliates) or our relationship
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with you must be commenced exclusively in state or federal court closest to our (or our successor’s or
assign’s, as applicable) then-current principal place of business (currently, Dallas, Texas), and the
parties irrevocably consent to the jurisdiction of those courts and waive any objection to either the
jurisdiction of or venue in those courts. Nonetheless, the parties agree that any of us may enforce any
arbitration orders and awards in the courts of the state or states in which you are or your Park is located.

18D. GOVERNING LAW.

ALL MATTERS RELATING TO MEDIATION AND/OR ARBITRATION WILL BE
GOVERNED BY THE FEDERAL ARBITRATION ACT (9 U.S.C. §§ 1 ET SEQ.). EXCEPT TO
THE EXTENT GOVERNED BY THE FEDERAL ARBITRATION ACT, THE UNITED STATES
TRADEMARK ACT OF 1946 (LANHAM ACT, 15 U.S.C. SECTIONS 1051 ET SEQ.), OR OTHER
FEDERAL LAW, THIS AGREEMENT (OR ANY OTHER AGREEMENT BETWEEN US AND
OUR AFFILIATES, AND YOU AND YOUR AFFILIATES), THE FRANCHISE, AND ALL
CLAIMS ARISING FROM THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN US AND YOU WILL BE
GOVERNED BY THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE, WITHOUT REGARD TO ITS
CONFLICT OF LAWS RULES, EXCEPT THAT ANY STATE LAW REGULATING THE OFFER
OR SALE OF FRANCHISES OR GOVERNING THE RELATIONSHIP OF A FRANCHISOR AND
ITS FRANCHISEE WILL NOT APPLY UNLESS ITS JURISDICTIONAL REQUIREMENTS ARE
MET INDEPENDENTLY WITHOUT REFERENCE TO THIS SECTION.

18E. COSTS AND ATTORNEYS’ FEES.

The prevailing party in any dispute or proceeding shall be entitled to recover from the other
party all damages, costs and expenses, including mediation, arbitration and court costs and reasonable
attorneys’ fees, incurred by the prevailing party in connection with such dispute or proceeding.

18F. RIGHTS OF PARTIES ARE CUMULATIVE.

Our and your rights under this Agreement are cumulative, and our or your exercise or
enforcement of any right or remedy under this Agreement will not preclude our or your exercise or
enforcement of any other right or remedy which we or you are entitled by law to enforce.

18G. WAIVER OF PUNITIVE DAMAGES AND JURY TRIAL.

EXCEPT FOR YOUR OBLIGATION TO INDEMNIFY US FOR THIRD PARTY CLAIMS
UNDER SECTION 17D, WE AND YOU (AND YOUR OWNERS) WAIVE TO THE FULLEST
EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW ANY RIGHT TO OR CLAIM FOR ANY PUNITIVE OR
EXEMPLARY DAMAGES AGAINST THE OTHER AND AGREE THAT, IN THE EVENT OF A
DISPUTE BETWEEN US AND YOU, THE PARTY MAKING A CLAIM WILL BE LIMITED TO
EQUITABLE RELIEF AND TO RECOVERY OF ANY ACTUAL DAMAGES IT SUSTAINS.

WE AND YOU IRREVOCABLY WAIVE TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION OR
PROCEEDING, BROUGHT BY EITHER OF US.

18H. INJUNCTIVE RELIEF.

Nothing in this Agreement, including the provisions of Section 18A and 18B, bars our right to
obtain specific performance of the provisions of this Agreement and injunctive or other equitable relief
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against threatened conduct that will cause us, the Marks and/or the System loss or damage, under
customary equity rules, including applicable rules for obtaining restraining orders and injunctions. You
agree that we may obtain such injunctive relief in addition to such further or other relief as may be
available at law or in equity. You agree that we will not be required to post a bond to obtain injunctive
relief and that your only remedy if an injunction is entered against you will be the dissolution of that
injunction, if warranted, upon due hearing (all claims for damages by injunction being expressly
waived hereby).

181. BINDING EFFECT.

This Agreement is binding on us and you and our and your respective executors, administrators,
heirs, beneficiaries, permitted assigns, and successors in interest. Subject to our right to modify the
Brand Standards Manual and System Standards, this Agreement may not be modified except by a
written agreement signed by both our and your duly-authorized officers.

18J. LIMITATIONS OF CLAIMS AND CLASS ACTION BAR.

EXCEPT FOR CLAIMS ARISING FROM YOUR NON-PAYMENT OR
UNDERPAYMENT OF AMOUNTS YOU OWE US, ANY AND ALL CLAIMS ARISING OUT OF
OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT (OR ANY OTHER AGREEMENT BETWEEN US AND
OUR AFFILIATES, AND YOU AND YOUR AFFILIATES), THE FRANCHISE, AND ALL
CLAIMS ARISING FROM THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN US AND YOU WILL BE BARRED
UNLESS A JUDICIAL OR ARBITRATION PROCEEDING IS COMMENCED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THIS AGREEMENT WITHIN ONE (1) YEAR FROM THE DATE ON WHICH THE PARTY
ASSERTING THE CLAIM KNEW OR SHOULD HAVE KNOWN OF THE FACTS GIVING RISE
TO THE CLAIMS.

WE AND YOU AGREE THAT ANY PROCEEDING WILL BE CONDUCTED ON AN
INDIVIDUAL BASIS AND THAT ANY PROCEEDING BETWEEN US AND ANY OF OUR
AFFILIATES, OR OUR AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS, OFFICERS,
DIRECTORS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES, ON THE ONE HAND, AND YOU (OR YOUR
OWNERS, GUARANTORS, AFFILIATES, AND EMPLOYEES), ON THE OTHER HAND, MAY
NOT BE: (I) CONDUCTED ON A CLASS-WIDE BASIS, (II) COMMENCED, CONDUCTED OR
CONSOLIDATED WITH ANY OTHER PROCEEDING, (IIT) JOINED WITH ANY CLAIM OF AN
UNAFFILIATED THIRD-PARTY, OR (IV) BROUGHT ON YOUR BEHALF BY ANY
ASSOCIATION OR AGENT.

NO PREVIOUS COURSE OF DEALING SHALL BE ADMISSIBLE TO EXPLAIN,
MODIFY, OR CONTRADICT THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT. NO IMPLIED COVENANT
OF GOOD FAITH AND FAIR DEALING SHALL BE USED TO ALTER THE EXPRESS TERMS
OF THIS AGREEMENT.

18K. SEVERABILITY AND SUBSTITUTION OF VALID PROVISIONS.

Except as expressly provided to the contrary in this Agreement, each provision of this
Agreement is severable, and if any part of this Agreement is held to be invalid or contrary to or in
conflict with any applicable present or future law, ordinance or regulation for any reason (in a final,
unappealable ruling issued by any court, agency, or tribunal with competent jurisdiction), that ruling
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will not impair the operation of, or otherwise affect, any other portions of this Agreement, which will
continue to have full force and effect and bind the parties.

If any covenant which restricts competitive activity is deemed unenforceable by virtue of its
scope in terms of area, business activity prohibited, and/or length of time, but would be enforceable if
modified, you and we agree that the covenant will be enforced to the fullest extent permissible under
the laws and public policies applied in the jurisdiction whose law determines the covenant’s validity.

If any applicable and binding law, ordinance, rule, or regulation of any jurisdiction requires
more notice of this Agreement’s termination or of our refusal to enter into a renewal franchise
agreement than this Agreement requires, or some other action that this Agreement does not require, or
any provision of this Agreement or any System Standard is invalid, unenforceable, or unlawful, the
notice and/or other action required by the law, ordinance, rule or regulation will be substituted for the
comparable provisions of this Agreement, and we may modify the invalid or unenforceable provision
or System Standard to the extent required to be valid and enforceable or delete the unlawful provision
in its entirety. You agree to be bound by any promise or covenant imposing the maximum duty the law
permits which is subsumed within any provision of this Agreement, as though it were separately
articulated in and made a part of this Agreement.

18L. WAIVER OF OBLIGATIONS.

We and you may by written instrument unilaterally waive or reduce any obligation of or
restriction on the other under this Agreement, effective on delivery of written notice to the other or
another effective date stated in the notice of waiver. Any waiver granted will be without prejudice to
any other rights we or you have, will be subject to continuing review, and may be revoked at any time
and for any reason effective on delivery of ten (10) days’ prior written notice. We and you will not
waive or impair any right, power, or option this Agreement reserves (including our right to demand
exact compliance with every term, condition, and covenant or to declare any breach to be a default and
to terminate this Agreement before its term expires) because of any custom or practice at variance with
this Agreement’s terms; our or your failure, refusal, or neglect to exercise any right under this
Agreement or to insist on the other’s compliance with this Agreement, including any System Standard;
our waiver of or failure to exercise any right, power, or option, whether of the same, similar, or different
nature, with other Parks; the existence of franchise agreements for other Parks which contain different
provisions from those contained in this Agreement; or our acceptance of any payments due from you
after any breach of this Agreement. No special or restrictive legend or endorsement on any check or
similar item given to us will be a waiver, compromise, settlement, or accord and satisfaction. We are
authorized to remove any legend or endorsement, which then will have no effect.

18M. SECURITY INTEREST.

As a security for the performance of your and your owners’ obligations under this Agreement,
you grant us a security interest in all of the assets of your Park, including any present or after-acquired
inventory, fixtures, furniture, equipment, accounts, customer lists, supplies, contracts, cash derived
from the operation of the Park and sale of other assets, and proceeds and products of all those assets.
You agree to execute such other documents as we may reasonably request in order to further document,
perfect and record our security interest. If you default in any of your obligations under this Agreement,
we may exercise all rights of a secured creditor granted to us by law, in addition to our other rights
under this Agreement and at law. If a third-party lender requires that we subordinate our security
interest in the assets of your Park as a condition to lending you working capital for the operation of
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your Park, we will agree to subordinate pursuant to terms and conditions determined by us. This
Agreement will be deemed a security agreement under any applicable personal property security
legislation.

18N. CONSTRUCTION.

The preambles and exhibits are a part of this Agreement which constitutes our and your entire
agreement, and there are no other oral or written understandings or agreements between us and you, or
oral or written representations by us, relating to the subject matter of this Agreement, the franchise
relationship, or your Park. Any understandings or agreements reached, or any representations made,
before this Agreement are superseded by this Agreement. Nothing in this or in any related agreement,
however, is intended to disclaim the representations we made in any Franchise Disclosure Document.

The following provision applies if you or the franchise granted hereby are subject to the
franchise registration or disclosure laws in California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan,
Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, or
Wisconsin: No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving
any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii)
disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting
on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in
connection with the franchise.

The headings of the sections and paragraphs are for convenience only and do not define, limit,
or construe the contents of these sections or paragraphs.

Other than as expressly set forth herein, nothing in this Agreement is intended or deemed to
confer any rights or remedies on any person or entity not a party to this Agreement.

References in this Agreement to “we,” “us,” and “our,” with respect to all of our rights and all
of your obligations to us under this Agreement, include any of our affiliates with whom you deal. The
term “affiliate” means any person or Entity directly or indirectly owned or controlled by, under
common control with, or owning or controlling you or us. The term “control” means the power to
direct or cause the direction of management and policies. The use of the term “including” in this
Agreement, means in each case “including, without limitation.”

If two or more persons are at any time the owners of your Park, whether as partners or joint
venturers, or are your guarantors, their obligations and liabilities to us will be joint and several.
References to “owner” mean any person holding a direct or indirect ownership interest (whether of
record, beneficially, or otherwise) or voting rights in you (or a transferee of this Agreement and your
Park or an ownership interest in you), including any person who has a direct or indirect interest in you
(or a transferee), this Agreement or your Park and any person who has any other legal or equitable
interest, or the power to vest in himself or herself any legal or equitable interest, in their revenue,
profits, rights, or assets. The term “person” means any natural person, corporation, limited liability
company, general or limited partnership, unincorporated association, cooperative, or other legal or
functional entity. The term “your Park” includes all of the assets of the Park you operate under this
Agreement, including its revenue and the Lease.
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19. DELEGATION OF PERFORMANCE.

You agree that we have the right to delegate the performance of any portion or all of our
obligations under this Agreement to third party designees, whether these designees are our agents or
independent contractors with whom we have contracted to perform these obligations. If we do so, such
third-party designees will be obligated to perform the delegated functions for you in compliance with
this Agreement.

20. NOTICES AND PAYMENTS.

All written notices, reports, and payments permitted or required to be delivered by this
Agreement or the Brand Standards Manual will be deemed to be delivered: (i) at the time delivered by
hand, (ii) at the time delivered via electronic transmission, (iii) one (1) business day after being placed
in the hands of a nationally recognized commercial courier service for next business day delivery, or
(iv) three (3) business days after placement in United States Mail by Registered or Certified Mail,
Return Receipt Requested, postage prepaid. Any notice must be sent to the party to be notified at its
most current principal business address of which the notifying party has notice; except that it will
always be deemed acceptable to send notice to you at the address of the Premises.

Any required payment or report which we do not actually receive during regular business hours
on the date due will be deemed delinquent.

21. PROHIBITED PARTIES.

You hereby represent and warrant to us, as an express consideration for the franchise granted
hereby, that neither you nor any of your employees, agents, or representatives, nor any other person or
entity associated with you, is now, or has been:

1. Listed on: (a) the U.S. Treasury Department’s List of Specially Designated Nationals, (b)
the U.S. Commerce Department’s Denied Persons List, Unverified List, Entity List, or
General Orders, (c¢) the U.S. State Department’s Debarred List or Nonproliferation
Sanctions, or (d) the Annex to U.S. Executive Order 13224.

2. A person or entity who assists, sponsors, or supports terrorists or acts of terrorism, or is
owned or controlled by terrorists or sponsors of terrorism.

You further represent and warrant to us that you are now, and have been, in compliance with
U.S. anti-money laundering and counter-terrorism financing laws and regulations, and that any funds
provided by you to us or our affiliates are and will be legally obtained in compliance with these laws.
You agree not to, and to cause all employees, agents, representatives, and any other person or entity
associated with you not to, during the Term, take any action or refrain from taking any action that
would cause such person or entity to become a target of any such laws and regulations.

22. EXECUTION

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original,
but all of which together will constitute one and the same Agreement. This Agreement and all other
documents related to this Agreement may be executed by manual or electronic signature.
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[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Agreement to be
effective as of the Effective Date.

ATP FRANCHISING, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

Sign:

Name:
Title:

DATED*:
*Effective Date

FRANCHISE OWNER FRANCHISE OWNER

(IF YOU ARE A CORPORATION, (IF YOU ARE AN INDIVIDUAL):
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, OR
PARTNERSHIP):

Individual Name

Entity Name

Sign:

Sign: DATED:
Name:
Title:

DATED:

(Signature page to Franchise Agreement)



EXHIBIT A
TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

ENTITY INFORMATION
1. Form. You operate as a(n): __ individual/sole proprietorship, corporation,
limited liability company, or partnership (CHECK ONE).
2. Formation: You were formed on (DATE), under the laws of the State of
(JURISDICTION).
3. Management: The following is a list of your directors, officers, managers or anyone

else with a management position or title:

Name of Individual Position(s) Held

4. Owners. The following list includes the full name of each individual who is one of your
owners, or an owner of one of your owners, and fully describes the nature of each owner’s interest
(attach additional pages if necessary):

Owner’s Name Percentage/Description of Interest

5. Principal Owner:

6. Approved Manager (if applicable):
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EXHIBIT B
TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

GUARANTY AND ASSUMPTION OF OBLIGATIONS

THIS GUARANTY AND ASSUMPTION OF OBLIGATIONS (“Guaranty”) is given by
the persons indicated below who have executed this Guaranty (each a “Guarantor”) to be effective as
of the Effective Date of the Agreement (defined below).

In consideration of, and as an inducement to, the execution of that certain Franchise Agreement
executed concurrently herewith (as amended, restated, or supplemented, the “Agreement”) by and
between ATP Franchising, LLC (the “Franchisor’), and
(“Franchisee”), each Guarantor hereby personally and unconditionally (a) guarantees to Franchisor,
and its successor and assigns that Franchisee will punctually pay and perform each and every
undertaking, agreement and covenant set forth in the Agreement, and (b) agrees to be personally bound
by, and personally liable for the breach of, each and every provision in the Agreement, both monetary
obligations and obligations to take or refrain from taking specific actions or to engage or refrain from
engaging in specific activities.

Each Guarantor waives: (1) acceptance and notice of acceptance by Franchisor of the foregoing
undertakings; (2) notice of demand for payment of any indebtedness or nonperformance of any
obligations guaranteed; (3) protest and notice of default to any party with respect to the indebtedness
or nonperformance of any obligations guaranteed, and (4) any right such Guarantor may have to require
that an action be brought against Franchisee or any other person as a condition of liability; and (5) the
defense of the statute of limitations in any action hereunder or for the collection of any indebtedness
or the performance of any obligation hereby guaranteed.

Each Guarantor hereby consents and agrees that:

(a) Franchisor may proceed against any Guarantor and/or Franchisee, jointly and severally,
including by proceeding against Guarantor, without having commenced any action, or having obtained
any judgment against any other Guarantor or Franchisee;

(b) Guarantor will render any payment or performance required under the Agreement on
demand if Franchisee fails or refuses punctually to do so;

(c) Guarantor’s liability will not be diminished, relieved or otherwise affected by any
extension of time, credit or other indulgence which Franchisor may grant to Franchisee or to any other
person, including the acceptance of any partial payment or performance, or the compromise or release
of any claims, none of which will in any way modify or amend this Guaranty, which will be continuing
and irrevocable during the term of the Agreement;

(d) Guarantor is bound by the restrictive covenants, confidentiality provisions, and
indemnification provisions contained in the Agreement, and any and all provisions that by their terms
apply to owners of Franchisee;

(e) At Franchisor’s request, Guarantor agrees to provide the updated financial information
to us as may be reasonably necessary to demonstrate his or her ability to satisfy the obligations of the
franchise owners under the Agreement;
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() This Guaranty will continue unchanged by the occurrence of any bankruptcy with
respect to Franchisee or any assignee or successor of Franchisee or by any abandonment of the
Agreement by a trustee of Franchisee. Neither Guarantor’s obligations to make payment or render
performance in accordance with the terms of this Guaranty nor any remedy for enforcement will be
impaired, modified, changed, released or limited in any manner whatsoever by any impairment,
modification, change, release or limitation of the liability of Franchisee or its estate in bankruptcy or
of any remedy for enforcement;

(2) Guarantor agrees to pay all costs and expenses (including attorneys’ fees) incurred by
Franchisor or any of its affiliates in connection with the enforcement of this Guaranty, including any
collection or attempt to collect amounts due, or any negotiations relative to the obligations hereby
guaranteed; and

(h) Guarantor agrees to be personally bound by the dispute resolution provisions under
Article 18 of the Agreement, including the obligation to submit to binding arbitration the claims
described in Section 18B of the Agreement in accordance with its terms.

By signing below, the undersigned spouse of each Guarantor indicated below, acknowledges
and consents to the guaranty given herein by his/her spouse. Such consent also serves to bind the assets
of the marital estate to Guarantor’s performance of this Guaranty. Each Guarantor represents and
warrants that, if no signature appears below for such Guarantor’s spouse, such Guarantor is either not
married or, if married, is a resident of a state which does not require the consent of both spouses to
encumber the assets of a marital estate.

Each Guarantor that is a business entity, retirement or investment account, or trust
acknowledges and agrees that if Franchisee (or any of its affiliates) is delinquent in payment of any
amounts guaranteed hereunder, that no dividends or distributions may be made by such Guarantor (or
on such Guarantor’s account) to its owners, accountholders or beneficiaries or otherwise, for so long
as such delinquency exists, subject to applicable law.

This Guarantee is binding upon each Guarantor and its respective executors, administrators,
heirs, beneficiaries, and successors in interest.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned has affixed his signature to be effective
as of the Effective Date.

GUARANTOR(S) SPOUSE(S)
Name: Name:
Sign: Sign:
Address: Address:
Name: Name:
Sign: Sign:
Address: Address:
Name: Name:
Sign: Sign:
Address: Address:
ATP Franchising, LLC B-3
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EXHIBIT C
TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

PREMISES/SITE SELECTION AREA/PROTECTED TERRITORY

The Premises of your Park is:

The Site Selection Area is:

The Protected Territory is:

ATP Franchising, LLC C-1
2024 04 FDD | Ex. B-1 Franchise Agreement
1360.001.013/405742



EXHIBIT D
TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

RIDER TO LEASE AGREEMENT

This Rider and the provisions hereof are hereby incorporated into the body of the lease to which
this Rider 1is attached (the “Lease”), between (“Tenant”) and
(“Landlord”), for the real property described therein (the “Premises’).
The provisions hereof will be cumulative of those set forth in the Lease, but to the extent of any conflict
between any provisions of this Rider and the provisions of the Lease, this Rider will govern and control.

I. Acknowledgement of Franchise Relationship. Landlord acknowledges that Tenant
intends to operate a “Altitude Trampoline Park” trampoline park (a “Park”) at the Premises, and that
Tenant's rights to operate a Park and to use the “Altitude Trampoline Park” name, trademarks and
service marks (the “Marks”) are solely pursuant to a franchise agreement (“Franchise Agreement')
between Tenant and ATP Franchising, LLC (“Franchisor”). Tenant's operations at the Premises are
independently owned and operated. Landlord acknowledges that Tenant alone is responsible for all
obligations under the Lease unless and until Franchisor or another franchisee expressly, and in writing,
assumes such obligations and takes actual possession of the Premises. Landlord agrees not to take an
action that would prohibit Tenant from operating the Park, as contemplated by the Franchise
Agreement, at the Premises.

2. Consent to Collateral Assignment to Franchisor. Landlord hereby consents, without
payment of a fee and without the need for further Landlord consent, to (i) the collateral assignment of
Tenant's interest in this Lease to Franchisor to secure Tenant's obligations to Franchisor under the
Franchise Agreement, (i1) Franchisor's succeeding to Tenant's interest in the Lease as a result of
Franchisor's exercise of rights or remedies under such collateral assignment or as a result of
Franchisor’s termination of, or exercise of rights or remedies granted in or under, any other agreement
between Franchisor and Tenant, and/or (ii1)) Tenant’s, Franchisor’s and/or any other franchisee of
Franchisor’s assignment of the Lease to another franchisee of Franchisor with whom Franchisor has
executed its then-standard franchise agreement. Landlord agrees that to the extent Franchisor becomes
Tenant, for howsoever brief a period, upon assumption of lease pursuant to this provision, that
simultaneously with any subsequent assignment to another party, Franchisor will be released from all
liability under the Lease or otherwise accruing after the date of such assignment; provided, that neither
Tenant nor any other franchisee will be afforded such release in the event Tenant/such franchisee is
the assignor, unless otherwise agreed by Landlord.

3. Tenant’s Signage. Landlord agrees to allow Tenant to use Franchisor’s standard
interior and exterior signage and designs to the maximum extent permitted by local governmental
authorities. Tenant will be provided, at Tenant’s sole cost and expense, with a panel on any
pylon/monument/directory sign for the development in which the Premises is located, and will be
permitted to install a standard sign thereon approved by Franchisor, including without limitation
Franchisor’s logo. Landlord hereby grants and approves Tenant the right to display the Marks at the
Premises, subject only to the provisions of applicable law.

4. Notice and Cure Rights to Franchisor. Prior to exercising any remedies hereunder
(except in the event of imminent danger to the Premises), Landlord will give Franchisor written notice
of any default by Tenant, and commencing on receipt thereof by Franchisor, Franchisor will have
fifteen (15) additional days to the established cure period as is given to Tenant under the Lease for
such default to cure such defaults. Landlord agrees to accept cure tendered by Franchisor as if the same
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was tendered by Tenant, but Franchisor has no obligation to cure such default. The initial address for
notices to Franchisor is as follows: ATP Franchising, LLC, 12222 Merit Drive, Suite 1300, Dallas,
Texas 75251, or such other address as Franchisor provides to Landlord.

5. Non-disturbance from Mortgage Lenders. It will be a condition of the Lease being
subordinated to any mortgage, deed of trust, deed to secure debt or similar encumbrance on the
Premises that the holder of such encumbrance agree not to disturb Tenant's rights under this Lease or
Tenant's possession of the Premises, so long as Tenant is not in default of its obligations under the
Lease and the Franchise Agreement, beyond an applicable grace or cure period.

6. Fixtures and Signage. Any lien of Landlord in Tenant's trade fixtures, ‘trade dress’,
signage and other property at the Premises is hereby subordinated to Franchisor’s interest in such items
as described in the Franchise Agreement. On request, Landlord will grant the party who owns such
property reasonable access to the Premises for the sole purpose of removing such property, provided
such party repairs any damage caused by such removal and otherwise complies with Landlord’s
reasonable requirements with respect to such access.

7. Third Party Beneficiary. Franchisor is a third-party beneficiary of the terms of this
Rider, or any other terms of the Lease applicable to Franchisor’s rights under the Lease, and as a result
thereof, will have all rights (but not the obligation) to enforce the same.

8. Franchisor Right to Enter. Landlord acknowledges and agrees that Franchisor or its
designee may enter the Premises for all purposes permitted under the terms of the Franchise
Agreement, including to inspect the Premises and the Park’s operations, to manage the Tenant’s
business, on Tenant’s behalf, under certain circumstances (to-wit: Tenant’s failure to timely cure its
default of the Franchise Agreement, and while Franchisor evaluates its right to purchase the location),
or to remove any trade fixtures or signage upon termination or expiration of the Franchise Agreement.
If Franchisor enters the Premises for any such purposes, it will do so without assuming any liability
under the Lease.

9. Amendments. Tenant agrees that neither the Lease nor this Rider may be amended by
the parties thereto without the prior written consent of Franchisor.

10. Successors and Assigns. All rights of Franchisor shall inure to its benefit and to the
benefit of its successors and assigns. Franchisor may assign its rights under this Rider to any designee.
All provisions in this Rider applicable to Tenant and Landlord will be binding on any successor or
assign of Tenant or Landlord under the Lease.

1. Execution. This Rider may be executed in counterparts, each of which will be deemed
an original, but all of which together will constitute one and the same agreement with the Lease. This
Rider and all other documents related to this Rider may be executed by manual or electronic signature.
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AGREED and executed and delivered under seal by the parties hereto as of the day and year
of the Lease.

LANDLORD: TENANT:
By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Title:
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EXHIBIT E
TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

PRE-AUTHORIZED DEBIT AGREEMENT

The undersigned depositor (“Depositor”) hereby authorizes ATP FRANCHISING, LLC
(“Altitude”) to initiate debit entries and/or credit correction entries to the undersigned’s checking
and/or savings account(s) indicated below and the depository designated below (“Depository”) to debit
such account pursuant to Altitude’s instructions.

Depository: Branch:

Address: City, State, Zip Code:
Telephone Number:

Bank Transit/ABA Number: Account Number:

This authority is to remain in full force and effect until Depository has received joint written
notification from Altitude and Depositor of the Depositor’s termination of such authority in such time
and in such manner as to afford Depository a reasonable opportunity on which to act. If an erroneous
debit entry is initiated to Depositor’s account, Depositor shall have the right to have the amount of
such entry credited to such account by Depository, if (a) within fifteen (15) calendar days following
the date on which Depository sent to Depositor a statement of account or a written notice pertaining to
such entry or (b) forty-five (45) days after posting, whichever occurs first, Depositor shall have sent to
Depository a written notice identifying such entry, stating that such entry was in error and requesting
Depository to credit the amount thereof to such account. These rights are in addition to any rights
Depositor may have under federal and state banking laws.

Depositor: Depository:
By: By:
Title: Title:
Date: Date:
ATP Franchising, LLC E-1
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AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made and entered
into by and between ATP FRANCHISING, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, with its
principal business address at 12222 Merit Drive, Suite 1300, Dallas, Texas 75251 (“we,” “us,” or
“our”), and ,a whose principal
business address is (“you” or “your”) as of the
date signed by us on the signature page of this Agreement (the “Effective Date”).

1. GRANT OF DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS.

1A. BACKGROUND

(D) We and our predecessors and affiliates have developed (and continue to
develop and modify) a franchise system to establish, operate and promote distinctive trampoline park
businesses providing recreational entertainment facilities featuring trampolines, obstacle courses, and
other recreational activities, and offering and selling other related products and services using the
Marks (defined below) (each a “Park”).

(2) We grant franchises for Parks pursuant to a written franchise agreement and
related agreements signed by us and a franchisee and its owners (each a “Franchise Agreement”),
under which we grant the right to operate a Park using the trademarks, service marks and other
commercial symbols that we and our affiliates may create, use, and license to identify the Parks from
time to time (collectively, the “Marks”). Parks will operate using distinctive and proprietary business
formats, methods, procedures, designs, layouts, standards, and specifications, all of which we may
improve, substitute, further develop, or otherwise modify from time to time (together, the “System™).

3) We also grant certain qualified persons the right to acquire multiple franchises
for the development and operation of Parks (the “Development Rights”) within a defined geographic
area (the “Development Area”) pursuant to an agreed upon schedule for development and opening
such Parks (the “Development Schedule”), and you have applied and been approved to acquire
Development Rights pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

1B. GRANT AND TERM OF DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS.

Subject to this Agreement’s terms, we grant you the Development Rights to acquire franchises
for Parks in strict compliance with the Development Schedule attached as Exhibit A, exclusively
within the Development Area specified on Exhibit A. Unless terminated under the terms of this
Agreement, the term of this Agreement and your Development Rights (the “Term”) will begin on the
Effective Date and continue through the earlier of (1) the date on which the last Park which is required
to be opened to satisfy the Development Schedule opens for regular business, or (2) the last day of the
last development period. You must at all times faithfully, honestly and diligently perform your
obligations and fully exploit the Development Rights during the Term and throughout the entire
Development Area. We have awarded you no right to use the Marks and/or System under this
Agreement or in exercising your Development Rights. Any and all rights to use the Marks and/or
System arise solely from the Franchise Agreements you sign to operate Parks.
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1C. YOUR RIGHTS IN THE DEVELOPMENT AREA.

If we wish to offer a franchise for another Park within your Development Area at any time
during the Term, we will first send you a notice of the proposed franchise development, and upon
receiving such notice, you will have a right of first refusal to acquire a franchise for such Park (your
“Right of First Refusal”), provided that: (a) you notify us that you intend to exercise your Right of
First Refusal within 14 days after receiving our notice of the proposed development; (b) you and your
affiliates have been in full compliance with this Agreement and all other agreements with us or our
affiliates; (c) you meet all of our then-current criteria for new franchisees of Parks, including by having
the financial resources to develop and operate the proposed Park; (d) you sign our then-current
franchise agreement for such Park and pay any required fees under such franchise agreement within
14 days after receiving our notice of the proposed development (or such later date as we may notify
you is required to comply with applicable law); and (e) we have determined that the cost of developing
the proposed Park and payment terms under the franchise agreement for that Park will not adversely
affect the operation of your existing Parks developed under this Agreement. If you elect not to exercise
your Right of First Refusal, or you do not meet the conditions specified above to exercise your Right
of First Refusal, we may grant any other person the right to develop that franchised Park in the
Development Area on such terms as we approve in our sole discretion.

You acknowledge and agree that we have granted you the Development Rights under this
Agreement and your Right of First Refusal in the Development Area exclusively conditioned on your
satisfaction of the Development Schedule. Therefore, if you fail to comply with the Development
Schedule as of the end of any Development Period, in addition to terminating this Agreement under
Section 7 and asserting any other rights we have under this Agreement as a result of such failure, we
may elect to terminate your Right of First Refusal granted under Section 1B or reduce the Development
Area to a lesser area that we determine.

If your Development Area is comprised of one or more specified municipalities, then unless
expressly indicate otherwise on Exhibit A, you understand and agree that we have approved each
municipality in your Development Area for the development of one Park. To that effect, after we
approve a proposed site for a Park under this Agreement, and you sign a Franchise Agreement for such
Park, such municipality will no longer be part of the Development Area. Rather, all territorial
protection for such Park will be governed by the terms of the Franchise Agreement that you execute.

1D. RESERVATION OF TERRITORIAL RIGHTS.

Other than your right to exercise your Development Rights within your Development Area,
and your Right of First Refusal described above, you have no territorial protection of any kind, and we
and our affiliates retain all rights with respect to the placement and development of Parks and other
businesses using the Marks, the sale of the same, similar or dissimilar products and services, and any
other business activities in any manner or in any location whatsoever, including, the right to:

(D) establish and operate, and allow others to establish and operate, other Parks
using the Marks and the System at any location, on such terms and conditions we deem
appropriate, subject only to your Right of First Refusal,

(2) establish and operate, and allow others to establish and operate, any other type
business, including any business that may offer products and services which are identical to,
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similar to, or competitive with products and services offered by Parks, under trade names,
trademarks, service marks and commercial symbols other than the Marks, at any location;

3) establish, and allow others to establish businesses and distribution channels
other than a Park (including, selling products at retail or through any online presence),
wherever located or operating, regardless of the nature or location of the customers with whom
such other businesses and distribution channels do business, including businesses that operate
under trade names, trademarks, service marks or commercial symbols that are similar to, the
same, or competitive with the Marks, and/or that sell products or services that are similar to,
the same, or competitive with, those that Parks customarily sell;

4) establish and operate, and allow others to establish and operate, any Park, or
other business using the Marks and/or the System, and/or offering and selling any of the
products or services that are similar to, the same, or competitive with those products or services
offered by Parks, at or through any nontraditional venues, including, temporary or seasonal
facilities, outdoor recreation parks or facilities, or business operated within any larger venue
or closed market such as a stadium or entertainment center, at any location;

(5 be acquired by or acquire (whether through acquisition of assets, ownership
interests or otherwise, regardless of the form of transaction), any other business, including
businesses that operate or allow others to establish and operate businesses similar to, the same,
or competitive with Parks, at any location, and in the event of such an acquisition, the acquirer
and its affiliates will have the right to continue to establish and operate, and authorize others
to establish and operate, such businesses, at any location; and

(6) engage in all other activities not expressly prohibited by this Agreement.
1E. IF YOU OPERATE AS A LEGAL BUSINESS ENTITY.

If you are a corporation, limited liability company, general or limited partnership or other form
of legal business entity (collectively, an “Entity”) you agree and represent that Exhibit B to this
Agreement presents complete and accurate information about such Entity as of the Effective Date. You
also agree and represent that you are validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the state
of your incorporation or formation, and have the authority to execute this Agreement, and perform
your obligations under this Agreement. You agree to maintain organizational documents at all times
that state that this Agreement restricts the issuance and transfer of any of your ownership interests, and
all certificates and other documents representing your ownership interests will bear a legend referring
to this Agreement’s restrictions.

You must identify one of your owners on Exhibit B who is a natural person with at least a
fifty-one percent (51%) ownership interest and voting power in you to act as your “Principal Owner”
and supervise your business under this Agreement. You acknowledge and agree that your Principal
Owner is authorized to deal with us on your behalf for all matters whatsoever that may arise with
respect to your Development Rights and/or this Agreement. Any decision made by the Principal Owner
will be final and binding on you and we will be entitled to rely solely on the decision of the Principal
Owner without discussing the matter with any other party. We will not be held liable for any actions
based on any decisions or actions of the Principal Owner. You represent and agree that the person
acting as your Principal Owner has full power and authority to enter into this Agreement and any other
documents to which you are a party, and to make binding decisions on your behalf. The execution and
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delivery by your Principal Owner of this Agreement has been duly authorized by all requisite corporate
action.

Each of your owners and their respective spouses must execute a guaranty in the form we
prescribe, agreeing to be personally bound, jointly and severally, by all provisions of this Agreement
and any ancillary agreements between you and us and/or our affiliates. Our current form of guaranty
is attached hereto as Exhibit C.

Your business under this Agreement and the operation of Parks under valid Franchise
Agreements with us will be the only business that such Entity operates.

2. EXERCISE OF DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS.

2A. DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE.

You agree to comply with the Development Schedule to: (i) execute a lease or acquisition
agreement that we have accepted for a site that we have accepted for a new Park, and execute the new
Franchise Agreement for such Park (each in accordance with Sections 2B and 2C), by each deadline
set forth on Exhibit A; and (ii) develop and open each Park in accordance with the terms of its
respective Franchise Agreement, by each deadline set forth on Exhibit A. The Development Schedule
1s not our representation, express or implied, that the Development Area can support, or that there are
or will be sufficient sites for, the number of Parks specified in the Development Schedule. We are
relying on your representation that you have conducted your own independent investigation and have
determined that you can satisfy the development obligations under the Development Schedule.

2B. PROPOSED SITES FOR PARKS.

You agree to give us all information and materials we request to assess each site at which you
propose to develop a Park, including your financial and operational ability to develop and operate a
Park at that site, and any letter of intent or other information about the proposed lease or acquisition of
the real property of that site. We have the right to approve the site of each Park before you sign any
Franchise Agreement for that Park and before that site will be deemed the site of any Park. If we
provide you any information regarding a site for a Park, such information is not a representation or
warranty of any kind (express, implied or collateral) of the site’s suitability for a Park or any other
purpose. Our approval of your proposed site is not intended to be relied on by you as an indicator of
likely success, but that we believe the site meets our then acceptable criteria, which we have established
for our own purposes. Applying criteria that have appeared effective with other sites and premises
might not accurately reflect the potential for all sites and premises, and demographic or other factors
included in or excluded from our criteria could change, even after our approval of a site or your
development of the Park, altering the potential of a site. The uncertainty and instability of these criteria
are beyond our control, and we are not responsible if a site and premises we approve fails to meet your
expectations. You acknowledge and agree that your selection of any site as for a Park is based on your
own independent investigation of the site’s suitability.

2C. EXECUTION OF FRANCHISE AGREEMENTS.

For each Park that you develop by exercise of your Development Rights, you must sign our
then-current form of Franchise Agreement, by the earlier of: (i) the date that you sign a lease or other
acquisition agreement that we have approved for a site that we have approved for a new Park, or (ii)
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the deadline for execution of the lease and Franchise Agreement in the Development Schedule;
provided, that we reserve the right to require you to sign your first Franchise Agreement on the
Effective Date. Each respective Franchise Agreement will govern the development and operation of
the Park identified therein. The terms of each Franchise Agreement may differ substantially from one
another, provided that the royalty we offer you under each such Franchise Agreement will not be
greater than our then-current royalty rate on Effective Date.

2D. APPROVED AFFILIATES

You may exercise your Development Rights for each Park that you are required to develop
under your Development Schedule either through yourself or an affiliate that we have approved. If we
approve one of your affiliates to undertake your development obligation for any Park, that affiliate
must sign the Franchise Agreement for that Park and take any and all other actions otherwise required
of'you for that Park under this Agreement and/or that Franchise Agreement. Our approval of an affiliate
of yours to develop a Park will not relieve you of any of your obligations under this Agreement, except
to the extent expressly assumed by such approved affiliate under the terms of the Franchise Agreement
for that Park. We may require you to guarantee the obligations of any approved affiliate under its
Franchise Agreement using our then-current form of personal guaranty of Franchise Agreement. Other
than as contemplated in this Section 2D, you may not delegate or assign any of your obligations under
this Agreement other than in accordance with Article 6 of this Agreement.

2E. LIQUIDITY.

We have granted the Development Rights to you based, in part, on your representations to us,
and our assessment of, your levels of liquidity as of the Effective Date. Y ou will ensure that, throughout
the Term, you will maintain sufficient liquidity to meet your obligations under this Agreement. We
reserve the right to review these liquidity requirements from time to time, and you agree to comply
with such minimum liquidity requirements that we reasonably impose.

2F. RECORDS AND REPORTING.
You agree to provide us with the following records and reports:

(D) within sixty (60) days after the Effective Date, a business plan covering your
projected revenues, costs and operations under this Agreement. This business plan will include
your detailed projections of costs for the development of Parks and detailed revenue projections
for your activities under this Agreement and Parks. Within sixty (60) days after the start of
each calendar year during the Term, you must update the business plan to cover both actual
results for the previous year and projections for the then-current year. You acknowledge and
agree that, while we may review and provide comments on the business plan and any updates
you submit to us, regardless of whether we approve, disapprove, require revisions or provide
other comments with respect to the business plan or any updated business plan, we take no
responsibility for and make no guarantees or representations, expressed or implied, with
respect to your ability to meet the business plan or to achieve the results set forth therein. You
bear the entire responsibility for achievement of the business plan you develop;

(2) within fifteen (15) days after the end of each month during the Term, a report
of your business activities during that month, including information about your efforts to find
sites for Parks in the Development Area and the status of development and projected openings
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for each Park under development;

3) within fifteen (15) days after the end of each month, a profit and loss statement
for you and your affiliates covering that month and the year-to-date, and a balance sheet as of
such date; and

4) within forty-five (45) days after the end of each calendar year, with an annual
profit and loss statement and sources and use of funds statement for the previous calendar year
and a balance sheet as of the end of that calendar year.

An officer must certify and sign each report and financial statement. We may disclose data
derived from these reports, although we will not without your consent (unless required by law) disclose
your identity in any materials that we circulate publicly.

Subject to applicable law, you agree to preserve and maintain all records in a secure location
for at least five (5) years (including, but not limited to, sales checks, purchase orders, invoices, payroll
records, customer lists, check stubs, tax records and returns for sales, or similar taxes, cash receipts
journals, cash disbursement journals, and general ledgers). We may require you to have audited
financial statements prepared annually during the Term.

3. FEES.
3A. DEVELOPMENT FEE.

You must pay us a development fee equal to 50% of our then-current initial franchise fee for
each Park that you are required to open pursuant to the Development Schedule (the “Development
Fee) on the date you sign this Agreement. The amount of the Development Fee per Park will be
credited towards the initial franchise fee due for that Park. The balance of the initial franchise fee per
Park will be paid as required under the terms of the Franchise Agreement. The amount of the
Development Fee you must pay to us is identified on Exhibit A of this Agreement. The Development
Fee is fully earned by us when you and we sign this Agreement and is nonrefundable.

3B. METHOD OF PAYMENT.

Y ou must make all payments due under this Agreement in the manner we designate from time
to time, and you agree to comply with all of our payment instructions. All amounts that you owe us for
any reason will bear interest accruing as of their original due date at the lesser of two percent (2%) per
month or the maximum rate of interest permitted by law. Y ou acknowledge that the foregoing sentence
is not our agreement to accept any payments after they are due or our commitment to extend credit to
you or finance the operation of your obligations. All amounts payable by you or your owners to us or
our affiliates must be in United States Dollars ($USD).

4. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.

In connection with your rights under this Agreement, you and your owners and personnel may
from time to time be provided and/or have access to non-public information about the System and the
operation and development of Parks, including information arising from the Parks you develop (the
“Confidential Information™), including: (1) training programs and operations materials; (2) the
System; (3) market research and marketing strategies (including expansion strategies and targeted
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demographics); (4) specifications for, suppliers of, and methods of ordering, products and services; (5)
any software or technology which is proprietary to us or the System, including digital passwords and
identifications and any source code of, and data, reports, and other printed materials generated by, the
software or similar technology; (6) knowledge of the operating results and financial performance of
Parks; (7) information generated by you or used or developed by you, including information relating
to market research; and (8) any other information designated as confidential or proprietary by us.

All Confidential Information will be owned by us (other than personally identifiable
information relating to the employees, officers, contractors, owners or other personnel of you, your
affiliates, or your Parks, and/or such other personally identifiable information designated by us from
time to time). You acknowledge and agree that: (i) you will not acquire any interest in any of our
Confidential Information, other than the right to use it as we specify under this Agreement or the
Franchise Agreements you sign, in each case in accordance with the terms of such agreement; and (ii)
our Confidential Information is proprietary, includes our trade secrets, and is disclosed to you only on
the condition that you will protect it. You acknowledge that any unauthorized use or disclosure of our
Confidential Information would be an unfair method of competition and a breach of trust and
confidence and will result in irreparable harm to us and our affiliates. You (and if you are conducting
business as an Entity, each of your owners) therefore agree that during and after the Term you will,
and will cause each of your respective current and former spouses, immediate family members, owners,
officers, directors, employees, representatives, affiliates, successors and assigns to:

(a) process, retain, use, collect, and disclose our Confidential Information strictly
to the limited extent, and in such a manner, as necessary for exercise of your Development
Rights in accordance with this Agreement, and/or the operation of Parks under the respective
Franchise Agreements, and not for any other purpose of any kind;

(b) process, retain, use, collect, and disclose our Confidential Information strictly
in accordance with the privacy policies and System Standards we establish from time to time,
and our and our representative’s instructions;

(©) keep confidential and not disclose, sell, distribute, or trade our Confidential
Information to any person other than those of your personnel and representatives who need to
know such Confidential Information for the purpose of assisting you in exercising your
Development Rights in accordance with this Agreement, and/or operating Parks in accordance
with Franchise Agreements with us; and you agree that you will be responsible for any
violation of this requirement by any of your personnel and representatives;

(d) not make unauthorized copies of any of our Confidential Information;

(e) adopt and maintain administrative, physical and technical safeguards to prevent
unauthorized use or disclosure of any of our Confidential Information, including by
establishing reasonable security and access measures, restricting its disclosure to key
personnel, and/or by requiring persons who have access to such Confidential Information to be
bound by contractual obligations to protect such Confidential Information and preserve our
rights and controls in such Confidential Information, in each case that are no less protective or
beneficial to us than the terms of this Agreement; and

() at our request, destroy or return any of the Confidential Information.
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Confidential Information does not include information, knowledge, or know-how, which is
lawfully known to the public without violation of applicable law or an obligation to us or our affiliates.

We are not making any representations or warranties, express or implied, with respect to the
Confidential Information. We and our affiliates have no liability to you for any errors or omissions
from the Confidential Information.

All ideas, concepts, techniques, or materials relating to this Agreement, your Development
Rights, and/or the System created by you, your owners or your employees (or for you, your owners or
your employees), whether or not protectable intellectual property, must be promptly disclosed to us
and will be our sole and exclusive property, part of the System, and works made-for-hire for us. To the
extent that any item does not qualify as a “work made-for-hire” for us, you hereby waive all moral
rights in that item, assign ownership of that item, and all related rights to that item, to us and agree to
take whatever action (including signing assignment or other documents) we request to evidence our
ownership or to help us obtain intellectual property rights in the item.

S. EXCLUSIVE RELATIONSHIP DURING TERM.

SA. COVENANTS AGAINST COMPETITION.

You acknowledge that we have granted you the Development Rights in consideration of and
reliance on your agreement to deal exclusively with us. You (and if you are conducting business as an
Entity, each of your owners) therefore agree not to and to cause each of your respective spouses,
immediate family members, affiliates, successors, and assigns not to:

(a) have any direct or indirect interest as an owner (whether of record, beneficially,
or otherwise), investor, partner, director, officer, employee, consultant, lessor, representative,
or agent in any Competitive Business (as defined below), wherever located or operating (except
that equity ownership of less than five percent (5%) of a Competitive Business whose stock or
other forms of ownership interest are publicly traded on a recognized United States stock
exchange will not be deemed to violate this subparagraph);

(b) perform services or act as a director, officer, manager, employee, consultant,
lessor, representative, or agent for a Competitive Business, wherever located or operating; or

(© divert or attempt to divert any actual or potential business or customer of any
Park to a Competitive Business.

You agree to obtain similar covenants and covenants of confidentiality from your personnel as
we specify, including officers, directors, managers and other employees attending our training program
or having access to Confidential Information. We have the right to regulate the form of agreement that
you use and to be a third-party beneficiary of that agreement with independent enforcement rights.

The term “Competitive Business” means any business (excluding any Parks operated under a
franchise agreement with us or our affiliate) operating or granting franchises or licenses to others to
operate any recreational facility or similar business that: (i) features trampolines, obstacle courses,
and/or other attractions, products, or services substantially similar to those offered by Parks, and/or (ii)
that derives more than 20% of its gross revenue from children’s parties and events.
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SB. NON-INTERFERENCE.

During and after the Term, you (and if you are conducting business as an Entity, each of your
owners) agree not to, and to cause your respective current and former spouses, immediate family
members, owners, officers, directors, employees, representatives, affiliates, successors and assigns not
to solicit, interfere, or attempt to interfere with our or our affiliates’ relationships with any customers,
franchisees, lenders, vendors, or consultants.

SC. NON-DISPARAGEMENT.

During and after the Term, you (and if you are conducting business as an Entity, each of your
owners) agree not to, and to cause your respective current and former spouses, immediate family
members, owners, officers, directors, employees, representatives, affiliates, successors and assigns not
to: (1) disparage or otherwise speak or write negatively, directly or indirectly, of us, our affiliates, any
of our or our affiliates’ directors, officers, employees, representatives or affiliates, the “Altitude
Trampoline Park” brand, the System, any Park, any business using the Marks, or any other brand
concept operated or franchised by us or our affiliates; (ii) take any other action which would, directly
or indirectly, subject any of the foregoing to ridicule, scandal, reproach, scorn, or indignity, or which
would negatively impact or injure the goodwill of the System or the Marks; or (iii) take any other
action which would constitute an act of moral turpitude and/or is or could reasonably become the
subject of public scandal, disrepute, or infamy.

6. TRANSFER.

6A. BY US.

You acknowledge that we maintain a staff to manage and operate the franchise system and that
staff members can change as employees come and go. You acknowledge that you did not sign this
Agreement in reliance on the continued participation by or employment of any of our shareholders,
directors, officers, or employees. We may change our ownership or form of organization and/or assign
this Agreement and any other agreement to a third party without restriction or your consent. After our
assignment of this Agreement to a third party who expressly assumes the obligations under this
Agreement, we will be released and will no longer have any obligations or liabilities under this
Agreement. This Agreement and any other agreement will inure to the benefit of any transferee or
other legal successor to our interest in it.

6B. BY YOU.

You acknowledge that the rights and duties under this Agreement creates are personal to you
and your owners , and that we have granted you the franchise in reliance on our perception of your and
your owners’ individual or collective character, skill, aptitude, attitude, business ability, and financial
capacity. Accordingly, without our prior written approval, you may not transfer, pledge, or encumber,
or attempt to transfer, pledge or encumber (including by listing any of the following for sale on any
directory or listing), any of the following: (i) this Agreement (or any interest in this Agreement);
(i1) your Development Rights (or any right to receive all or a portion of your profits or losses or capital
appreciation); (ii1) substantially all of the assets of the business you operate under this Agreement; or
(iv) any direct or indirect ownership interest in you. A transfer of your Development Rights may only
be made with a transfer of this Agreement and each of the Parks you have developed under this
Agreement (in accordance with the terms of the Franchise Agreement for such Parks). Any transfer
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without our approval is a breach of this Agreement and has no effect. In this Agreement, the term
“transfer” includes a voluntary, involuntary, direct, or indirect assignment, sale, gift, or other
disposition, including transfer by reason of merger, consolidation, issuance of additional securities,
death, disability, divorce, insolvency, foreclosure, surrender or by operation of law.

Notwithstanding anything in this Section 6B to the contrary, if you enter into this Agreement
as an individual, if you are in full compliance with this Agreement, you may transfer this Agreement
to an Entity in which you maintain management control, and of which you own and control 100% of
the equity and voting power of all issued and outstanding ownership interests; provided, that (i) that
Entity will own all of your assets, and will conduct all of your business under this Agreement, (ii) that
Entity will conduct no business other than exercising your Development Rights and owning and
operating Parks, (iii) that Entity must expressly assume all of your obligations under this Agreement,
(iv) you provide us with all organizational documents for the Entity that we require, and (v) you
reimburse us for any direct costs we incur in processing such transfer, including attorneys’ fees. You
agree to remain personally liable under this Agreement as if the transfer to the Entity did not occur,
including by signing a personal guaranty of the obligations of such entity. You must also sign the form
of consent to assignment and assignment satisfactory to us which may include a release of any and all
claims (except for claims which cannot be released or waived pursuant to an applicable franchise law
statute) against us and our owners, officers, directors, employees and agents.

6C. CONDITIONS FOR APPROVAL OF TRANSFER.

Subject to the other provisions of this Section 6, we will approve a transfer that meets all of the
following requirements before or concurrently with the effective date of the transfer:

(D) you submit an application in writing requesting our consent and providing us
all information or documents we request about the proposed transfer, the transferee, and its
owners that we request, and each such person must have completed and satisfied all of our
application and certification requirements;

2) you provide us executed versions of any documents executed by you (or your
owners) and transferee (and its owners) to effect the transfer, and all other information we
request about the proposed transfer, and such transfer meets all of our requirements, including
terms, closing date, purchase price, amount of debt and payment terms, and we have
determined that the purchase price and payment terms of the transfer will not adversely affect
the transferee’s operation of your Development Rights or Parks;

3) you (and your owners) and the transferee (and its owners) sign all of the
documents we are then requiring in connection with a transfer, in a form satisfactory to us,
including: (i) a release of any and all claims (except for claims which cannot be released or
waived pursuant to an applicable franchise law statute) against us and our affiliates and our
and their owners, officers, directors, employees, and agents, and (ii) covenants that you and
your transferring owners agree to satisfy all post-termination obligations under this Agreement;

4) you and your owners have not violated any provision of this Agreement or any
other agreement with us or our affiliates during both the sixty (60) day period before you
requested our consent to the transfer and the period between your request and the effective date
of the transfer, including that you are in full compliance with your Development Schedule and
have submitted all required reports and statements;
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(5 you and your owners have satisfied all conditions to transfer your Parks under
the terms of each applicable Franchise Agreement for such Parks, including transfer of any
applicable real estate leases, vendor contracts, and transfer fees;

(6) the transferee must (if the transfer is of this Agreement or your Development
Rights), sign our then-current form of area development agreement and related documents, any
and all of the provisions of which may differ materially from any and all of those contained in
this Agreement; provided, that the Development Schedule of the new area development
agreement will equal the remainder of the then-remaining Development Schedule of this
Agreement;

(7) the transferee must (if the transfer is of an ownership interest in you or your
owners), and/or any other parties that are direct or indirect owners of the transferee must (if the
transfer is of this Agreement or your Development Rights), sign our then-current form of
guaranty, agreeing to be personally bound, jointly and severally, by all provisions of this
Agreement and any ancillary agreements between you and us;

(8) other than for a transfer of a non-controlling interest in you, you pay us a
transfer fee equal to $15,000;

9) if you or your owners finance any part of the purchase price, you and/or your
owners agree that all of the transferee’s obligations under promissory notes, agreements, or
security interests reserved in your Development Rights or any Park are subordinate to the
transferee’s obligation to amounts due to us, our affiliates, and otherwise to comply with this
Agreement and each Franchise Agreement; and

(10)  you provide us the evidence we reasonably request to show that appropriate
measures have been taken to effect the transfer as it relates to the exercise of your rights under
this Agreement, including, by transferring all necessary and appropriate business licenses,
insurance policies, and material agreements, or obtaining new business licenses, insurance
policies and material agreements.

We may review all information regarding your Development Rights and/or any Park that you
give the transferee, correct or supplement any information that we believe is inaccurate or incomplete,
and give the transferee copies of any reports that you have given us.

Our consent to a transfer pursuant to this Section is not a representation of the fairness of the
terms of any contract between you and the transferee, a guarantee of your or the transferee’s prospects
of success, or a waiver of any claims we have against you (or your owners) or of our right to demand
the transferee’s full compliance with this Agreement.

6D. OUR RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL.

If you or any of your owners at any time decide to sell any of the following: (i) this Agreement

(or any interest in this Agreement); (i1) your Development Rights (or any right to receive all or a portion

of your profits or losses or capital appreciation); (iii) substantially all of the assets of the business you

operate under this Agreement; or (iv) any direct or indirect ownership interest in you, you agree to

obtain a bona fide executed written offer, relating to the proposed transfer from a responsible and fully

disclosed buyer and send to us a true and complete copy of that written offer. The offer must include
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details of the payment terms of the proposed sale and the sources and terms of any financing for the
proposed purchase price. To be a valid, bona fide offer, the proposed purchase price must be in a dollar
amount, and the proposed buyer must submit with its offer an earnest money deposit equal to 5% or
more of the offering price. We may also require you to send us copies of any materials or information
sent to the proposed buyer or transferee regarding the possible transaction.

We may elect to purchase the interest offered for the price and on the terms and conditions
contained in the offer, provided that:

(D) we notify you or your selling owner(s) that we intend to purchase the interest
within thirty (30) days after we receive a copy of the offer and all other information we request;

(2) we may substitute cash for any form of payment proposed in the offer (such as
ownership interests in a privately-held entity);

3) our credit will be deemed equal to the credit of any proposed buyer (meaning
that, if the proposed consideration includes promissory notes, we or our designee may provide
promissory notes with the same terms as those offered by the proposed buyer);

4) we will have an additional sixty (60) days to prepare for closing after notifying
you of our election to purchase; and

(5 we must receive, and you and your owners agree to make, all customary
representations and warranties given by the seller of the assets of a business or the ownership
interests in any legal business entity, as applicable, including representations and warranties
regarding: (a) ownership and condition of and title to ownership interests and/or assets;
(b) liens and encumbrances relating to ownership interests and/or assets; and (c) validity of
contracts and the liabilities, contingent or otherwise, of the entity whose assets or ownership
interests are being purchased.

We have the unrestricted right to assign any or all of this right of first refusal to a third party,
who then will have the rights described in this Section 6D.

If we do not exercise our right of first refusal, you or your owners may complete the sale to the
proposed buyer on the original offer’s terms, but only if we otherwise approve the transfer in
accordance with Sections 6B and 6C above, and if you and your owners and the transferee comply
with the conditions in Sections 6B and 6C above.

If you do not complete the sale to the proposed buyer within sixty (60) days after we notify
you that we do not intend to exercise our right of first refusal, or if there is a material change in the
terms of the sale (which you agree to tell us promptly), we or our designee will have an additional right
of first refusal on the same terms as described above.

6E. YOUR DEATH OR DISABILITY.

On the death or disability of you (or if you are an Entity, any of your owners), such person’s
executor, administrator, conservator, guardian, or other personal representative must transfer such
person’s interest in this Agreement, your Development Rights, or ownership interest in you, to a third
party (which may be such person’s heirs, beneficiaries, or devisees). That transfer must be completed
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within a reasonable time, not to exceed nine (9) months from the date of death or disability, and is
subject to all of the terms and conditions in this Section 6 (except that any transferee that is the spouse
or immediate family member of the deceased, will not have to pay the transfer fee described in Section
6C(8) if the transfer meets all the other conditions in Section 6C, and the transferee reimburses us for
any direct costs we incur in connection with documenting and otherwise processing such transfer,
including reasonable attorneys’ fees). The term “disability” means a mental or physical disability,
impairment, or condition that is reasonably expected to prevent or actually does prevent such person
from fulfilling such person’s respective duties under this Agreement, as applicable.

In the event of the death of you (if you are an individual) or your Principal Owner (if you are
an Entity), the deceased person’s executor, administrator, conservator, guardian, or other personal
representative must within a reasonable time, not to exceed fifteen (15) days from the date of death or
disability, appoint a manager who we approve and who has completed our then-current training
program to satisfy your obligations under the terms of this Agreement.

7. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT.

7A. TERMINATION BY YOU - OUR BREACH.

You may terminate this Agreement if you and your owners are in full compliance with this
Agreement and we materially fail to comply with this Agreement, and (i) we fail to correct the failure
within thirty (30) days after you deliver written notice of the material failure to us, or (i) if we cannot
correct the failure within thirty (30) days, we fail to give you reasonable evidence of our effort to
correct the failure within a reasonable time. Your termination under this Section 7A will be effective
thirty (30) days after you deliver to us the written notice of termination.

7B. TERMINATION BY US - YOUR BREACH.

We may terminate this Agreement, effective immediately on delivery of written notice of
termination to you, if:

(D) you or any of your owners or affiliates have made or make any material
misrepresentation or omission in acquiring or exercising your Development Rights;

(2) you fail to satisfy any deadline in your Development Schedule;

3) you abandon your Development Rights, cease or threaten to cease exercising
your Development Rights, or fail to make good faith progress in exercising your Development
Rights, such that in our determination you will not be able to satisfy any applicable deadline in
your Development Schedule;

4) you or any of your owners make or attempt to make any transfer in violation
of Section 6;

(5 you or any of your owners are or have been convicted by a trial court of, or
pleaded guilty or no contest to, an indictable or hybrid offense;

(6) you or any of your owners or affiliates knowingly make any unauthorized use
or disclosure of any Confidential Information;
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(7) you violate any of your obligations under Section 5 of this Agreement;

(8) you or any of your owners make an assignment for the benefit of creditors or
admit in writing your insolvency or inability to pay your debts generally as they become due;
you or any of your owners consent to the appointment of a receiver, trustee, or liquidator of all
or the substantial part of your property;

9) your business or any of its assets are attached, seized, subjected to a writ or
distress warrant, or levied on, unless the attachment, seizure, writ, warrant, or levy is vacated
within thirty (30) days; or any order appointing a receiver, trustee, or liquidator is not vacated
within thirty (30) days following the order’s entry;

(10)  your or any of your owners’ assets, property, or interests are blocked under any
law, ordinance, or regulation relating to terrorist activities, or you or any of your owners
otherwise violate any such law, ordinance, or regulation; or

(11)  you or your owners breach any other provision or obligation under this
Agreement, or any other agreement between you or any of your owners or affiliates, and us or
our affiliates, and such breach has not been cured within thirty (30) days after written notice
from us.

If you terminate this Agreement other than according to Section 6A, the termination will be
deemed a termination without cause and a breach of this Agreement.

8. RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS UPON TERMINATION OR EXPIRATION.

8A. DE-IDENTIFICATION.

Unless we expressly notify you in writing that we are waiving any of the requirements below
in connection with the transfer of your Development Rights to another person (and in such case you
agree to comply with our instructions regarding an orderly transition for such transfer and not take any
actions in contravention of such instructions or transition), upon termination or expiration of this
Agreement you and your owners must immediately:

(a) cease to directly or indirectly exercise your Development Rights or otherwise
conducting any business under this Agreement, including to cases searching for or soliciting
or negotiating sites or leases for any Park, or;

(b) cease to directly or indirectly identify yourself or your business as a current or
former area developer or franchise owner or as one of our current or former area developer or
franchise owner (except in connection with other Parks you operate in compliance with the
terms of a valid Franchise Agreement with us);

(©) return to us or destroy (as we require) all items, forms and materials containing
any Mark or otherwise identifying or relating to a Park or the System, including copies of any
and all Confidential Information; and

(d) comply with all other system standards that we establish from time to time (and
all applicable laws) in connection with the termination of development rights.
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If you fail to take any of the actions or refrain from taking any of the actions described above,
we may take whatever action and sign whatever documents we deem appropriate on your behalf to
cure the deficiencies. You must reimburse us for all costs and expenses we incur in correcting any such
deficiencies.

8B. COVENANT NOT TO COMPETE.

For two (2) years beginning on the effective date of termination or expiration of this
Agreement, you (and if you are conducting business as an Entity, each of your owners) agree not to
and to cause each of your respective spouses, immediate family members, affiliates, successors, and
assigns not to have any direct or indirect interest as an owner (whether of record, beneficially, or
otherwise), investor, partner, director, officer, employee, consultant, lessor, representative, or agent in
any Competitive Business located or operating (a) within the Development Area, or (b) within a 10-
mile radius of any other Park operated by us, our affiliates, or any franchisee of us or our affiliates.

If any person restricted by this Section 7D fails to comply with these obligations as of the date
of termination or expiration, the two (2) year restricted period for that person will commence on the
date the person begins to comply with this Section 7D, which may be the date a court order is entered
enforcing this provision. You and your owners expressly acknowledge that you possess skills and
abilities of a general nature and have other opportunities for exploiting these skills. Consequently, our
enforcing the covenants made in this Section 7D will not deprive you of your personal goodwill or
ability to earn a living.

The restrictions in this Section 7D will also apply after any transfer, to the transferor and its
owners, for a period of two (2) years beginning on the effective date of the transfer, with the force and
effect as though this Agreement had been terminated for such parties as of such date.

8C. CONTINUING OBLIGATIONS.

All of our and your (and your owners’) obligations which expressly or by their nature survive
this Agreement’s expiration or termination will continue in full force and effect subsequent to and
notwithstanding its expiration or termination and until they are satisfied in full or by their nature expire.
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the parties expressly acknowledge that each of the
following provisions of this Agreement will survive the Agreement’s expiration or termination: Section
4 (Confidential Information); Section 5B (Non-Interference); Section 5C (Non-Disparagement);
Section 8 (Rights and Obligations Upon Termination or Expiration); Section 9 (Relationship of the
Parties/Indemnification); and Section 10 (Enforcement).

9. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES/INDEMNIFICATION.

9A. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS.

We and you hereby acknowledge and agree that each of us is an independent contractor, and
we are and will be independent contractors. This Agreement does not create a fiduciary relationship
between you and us, and that nothing in this Agreement is intended to make either you or us a general
or special agent, joint venturer, partner, or employee of the other for any purpose. You agree to identify
yourself conspicuously to all persons (including customers, suppliers, public officials, and Park
employees) as the sole owner and operator of your Development Rights and the business you conduct
under this Agreement and indicate clearly that you operate your business separately and independently
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from our business operations. You agree to place notices of independent ownership on all interior and
exterior signage, forms, business cards, stationery, advertising, and other materials that we may require
from time to time. You may not make any express or implied agreements, warranties, guarantees, or
representations, or incur any debt, in our name or on our behalf or represent that your and our
relationship is anything other than franchisor and franchise owner.

We have no right or duty to direct your employees in the course of their employment for you.
You are solely responsible for the terms and conditions of employment of your employees. We will
not be obligated for any damages to any person or property directly or indirectly arising out of your
Development Rights or the business you conduct under this Agreement.

9B. NO LIABILITY FOR ACTS OF OTHER PARTY.

We and you may not make any express, implied or collateral agreements, warranties,
guarantees, or representations, or incur any debt, in the name or on behalf of the other or represent that
our respective relationship is other than franchisor and franchise owner. We will not be obligated for
any damages to any person or property directly or indirectly arising out of your Development Rights
or the business you conduct under this Agreement.

9C. TAXES.

Any and all amounts expressed as being payable to us pursuant to this Agreement are exclusive
of applicable taxes. Accordingly, if applicable, all payments by you to us will, in addition, include an
amount equal to any and applicable taxes, assessments or amounts of a like nature imposed on any
payments to be made pursuant to this Agreement. We will have no liability for any sales, occupation,
excise, gross revenue, income, property, or other applicable taxes, whether levied on you due to the
business you conduct (except for our income taxes). You are responsible for paying these taxes and if
we pay any taxes to any state or federal taxing authority on account of either your operation or
payments that you make to us (except for our income taxes), or any expenses we incur in reviewing,
paying or disputing such taxes, such amounts will be subject to indemnification by you under Section
9D.

9D. INDEMNIFICATION.

You agree to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless us, our affiliates, and our and their
respective owners, directors, officers, employees, agents, successors, and assigns (the “Indemnified
Parties”) against, and to reimburse any one or more of the Indemnified Parties for, all claims,
obligations, and damages directly or indirectly arising out of your Development Rights, the business
you conduct under this Agreement, and/or your breach of this Agreement, including those alleged to
be or found to have been caused by the Indemnified Party’s gross negligence or willful misconduct,
unless (and then only to the extent that) the claims, obligations, or damages are determined to be caused
solely by our gross negligence or willful misconduct in a final, unappealable ruling issued by a court
or arbitrator with competent jurisdiction. For purposes of this indemnification, “claims” include all
obligations, damages (actual, consequential, or otherwise), and costs that any Indemnified Party
reasonably incurs in defending any claim against it, including reasonable accountants’, arbitrators’,
attorneys’, and expert witness fees, costs of investigation and proof of facts, court costs, travel and
living expenses, and other expenses of litigation, arbitration, or alternative dispute resolution,
regardless of whether litigation, arbitration, or alternative dispute resolution is commenced. Each
Indemnified Party may, in its discretion and at your expense control the defense of any claim against
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it (including choosing and retaining its own legal counsel), agree to settlement of claims against it, and
take any other remedial, corrective, or other actions in response to such claims.

This indemnity will continue in full force and effect subsequent to and notwithstanding this
Agreement’s expiration or termination or purported rescission. An Indemnified Party need not seek
recovery from any insurer or other third party, or otherwise mitigate its losses and expenses, to maintain
and recover fully a claim for indemnity under this Section 9D. You agree that a failure to pursue a
recovery or mitigate a loss will not reduce or alter the amounts that an Indemnified Party may recover
under this Section 9D.

10. ENFORCEMENT.

10A. MEDIATION.

Either party may initiate a mediation process by notifying the other party in writing. The parties
agree to conduct the mediation in accordance with the then current Commercial Mediation Procedures
of the American Arbitration Association (the “AAA”), except to the extent the rules conflict with this
Agreement, in which case this Agreement shall control; however, the mediation need not be
administered by the AAA unless the parties cannot agree upon the selection of a mediator within thirty
days of the receipt of the written notice of mediation. If the parties cannot reach agreement upon the
selection of a mediator, either party may commence a mediation proceeding by making a request for
mediation to the AAA regional office closest to our (or our successor’s or assign’s, as applicable) then
current principal place of business (currently, Dallas, Texas), with a copy to the other party. The written
request for mediation shall describe with specificity the nature of the dispute and the relief sought.
Both parties are obligated to engage in the mediation.

The mediation will be conducted by a single mediator with no past or present affiliation or
conflict with any party to the mediation. The parties agree that the mediator will be disqualified as a
witness, expert, consultant, or attorney in any pending or subsequent proceeding relating to the dispute
which is the subject of the mediation. In the event the parties cannot agree on a mediator and the AAA
administers the mediation, the AAA will provide the parties with a list of mediators willing to serve.
If the parties do not agree upon a mediator, and so advise the AAA in writing, within 10 days of receipt
of such list, the AAA will appoint the mediator. The fees and expenses of the AAA, if applicable, and
the mediator's fee, will be shared equally by the parties. Each party will bear its own attorneys' fees
and other costs incurred in connection with the mediation irrespective of the outcome of the mediation
or the mediator's evaluation of each party's case. The mediation proceeding will commence within 30
days after selection of the mediator.

Regardless of which party initiates the mediation, the mediation will be conducted at our
principal offices, unless the parties agree upon a mutually acceptable alternative location. At least 14
days before the first scheduled session of the mediation, the initiating party will deliver to the mediator
and to the other party a concise written summary of its position with respect to the matters in dispute
and the claims for relief, and such other matters required by the mediator and at least 7 days before the
first scheduled session of mediation, the responding party will deliver to the mediator and to the other
party a concise written summary of its position with respect to the matters in dispute and responding
party's defenses or counterclaims, and such other matters required by the mediator.
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The mediation proceeding will be treated as a compromise settlement negotiation. All offers,
promises, conduct and statements, whether oral or written, made in the course of the mediation
proceeding by any party or their agents, experts, counsel, employees, or representatives, and by the
mediator are confidential. Such offers, promises, conduct and statements may not be disclosed to any
third party and are privileged and inadmissible for any purpose, including impeachment, under
applicable laws or rules of evidence; provided however, that evidence otherwise discoverable or
admissible will not be rendered not discoverable or inadmissible as a result of its use in the mediation.
If a party informs the mediator that information is conveyed in confidence by the party to the mediator,
the mediator will not disclose the information.

Nothing in this Section will prevent either party from pursuing other legal actions and remedies
as permitted under this Agreement.

10B. ARBITRATION.

All controversies, disputes, or claims between us or any of our affiliates (and our and their
respective shareholders, officers, directors, agents, and employees), on the one hand, and you (and
your owners, guarantors, affiliates, and employees), on the other hand, arising out of or related to: (1)
this Agreement or any other agreement between you (or any of your owners) and us (or any of our
affiliates); (2) our relationship with you; (3) the scope or validity of this Agreement or any other
agreement between you (or any of your owners) and us (or any of our affiliates) or any provision of
any of such agreements (including the validity and scope of the arbitration provision under this Section,
which we and you acknowledge is to be determined by an arbitrator, not a court); or (4) your
Development Rights, must be submitted for binding arbitration, on demand of either party, to the AAA.
The arbitration proceedings will be conducted by one arbitrator and, except as this Section otherwise
provides, according to the AAA’s then current Commercial Arbitration Rules. All proceedings will be
conducted at a suitable location chosen by the arbitrator that is within 50 miles of our (or our
successor’s or assign’s, as applicable) then current principal place of business (currently, Dallas,
Texas). All matters relating to arbitration will be governed by the Federal Arbitration Act (9 U.S.C.
§§ 1 et seq.). The interim and final awards of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon each party,
and judgment upon the arbitrator's awards may be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction.

The arbitrator has the right to award or include in his or her awards any relief which he or she
deems proper, including money damages, pre- and post-award interest, interim costs and attorneys’
fees, specific performance, and injunctive relief, provided that the arbitrator may not declare any of the
trademarks owned by us or our affiliates generic or otherwise invalid, or award any punitive or
exemplary damages against any party to the arbitration proceeding (we and you hereby waiving to the
fullest extent permitted by law any such right to or claim for any punitive or exemplary damages against
any party to the arbitration proceeding). In any arbitration brought pursuant to this arbitration
provision, and in any action in which a party seeks to enforce compliance with this arbitration
provision, the prevailing party shall be awarded its costs and expenses, including attorneys’ fees,
incurred in connection therewith.

In any arbitration proceeding, each party will be bound by the provisions of any applicable
contractual or statutory limitations provision, whichever expires earlier. Each party must submit or file
any claim which would constitute a compulsory counterclaim (as defined by Rule 13 of the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure) within the same proceeding. Any claim which is not submitted or filed as
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required will be forever barred. The arbitrator may not consider any settlement discussions or offers
that might have been made by any party.

ARBITRATION PROCEEDINGS WILL BE CONDUCTED ON AN INDIVIDUAL BASIS.
NO ARBITRATION PROCEEDING MAY BE: (I) CONDUCTED ON A CLASS-WIDE BASIS, (II)
COMMENCED, CONDUCTED OR CONSOLIDATED WITH ANY OTHER ARBITRATION
PROCEEDING, (IIT) JOINED WITH ANY SEPARATE CLAIM OF AN UNAFFILIATED THIRD-
PARTY, OR (IV) BROUGHT ON BEHALF OF ANY PARTY BY ANY ASSOCIATION OR
AGENT. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any court or arbitrator determines that all or any part of the
preceding sentence is unenforceable with respect to a dispute, controversy or claim that otherwise
would be subject to arbitration under this Section, then all parties agree that this arbitration clause shall
not apply to that dispute, controversy or claim and that such dispute, controversy or claim shall be
resolved in a judicial proceeding in accordance with the dispute resolution provisions of this
Agreement.

In any arbitration arising as described in this Section, the arbitrator shall have full authority to
manage any necessary exchange of information among the parties with a view to achieving an efficient
and economical resolution of the dispute. The parties may only serve reasonable requests for
documents, which must be limited to documents upon which a party intends to rely or documents that
are directly relevant and material to a significant disputed issue in the case or to the case’s outcome.
The document requests shall be restricted in terms of time frame, subject matter and persons or entities
to which the requests pertain, and shall not include broad phraseology such as “all documents directly
or indirectly related to.” No interrogatories or requests to admit shall be propounded unless the parties
later mutually agree to their use.

The provisions of this Section are intended to benefit and bind certain third-party non-
signatories. The provisions of this Section will continue in full force and effect subsequent to and
notwithstanding the expiration or termination of this Agreement. Any provisions of this Agreement
below that pertain to judicial proceedings shall be subject to the agreement to arbitrate contained in
this Section.

10C. GOVERNING LAW.

ALL MATTERS RELATING TO MEDIATION AND/OR ARBITRATION WILL BE
GOVERNED BY THE FEDERAL ARBITRATION ACT (9 U.S.C. §§ 1 ET SEQ.). EXCEPT TO
THE EXTENT GOVERNED BY THE FEDERAL ARBITRATION ACT, THE UNITED STATES
TRADEMARK ACT OF 1946 (LANHAM ACT, 15 U.S.C. SECTIONS 1051 ET SEQ.), OR OTHER
FEDERAL LAW, THIS AGREEMENT (OR ANY OTHER AGREEMENT BETWEEN US AND
OUR AFFILIATES, AND YOU AND YOUR AFFILIATES), YOUR DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS,
AND ALL CLAIMS ARISING FROM THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN US AND YOU WILL BE
GOVERNED BY THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE, WITHOUT REGARD TO ITS
CONFLICT OF LAWS RULES, EXCEPT THAT ANY STATE LAW REGULATING THE OFFER
OR SALE OF FRANCHISES OR GOVERNING THE RELATIONSHIP OF A FRANCHISOR AND
ITS FRANCHISEE WILL NOT APPLY UNLESS ITS JURISDICTIONAL REQUIREMENTS ARE
MET INDEPENDENTLY WITHOUT REFERENCE TO THIS SECTION.
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10D. CONSENT TO JURISDICTION.

Subject to Section 10B above and the provisions below, we and you agree that all controversies,
disputes, or claims between us or any of our affiliates (and our and their respective shareholders,
officers, directors, agents, and employees), on the one hand, and you (and your owners, guarantors,
affiliates, and employees), on the other hand, arising out of or related to this Agreement or any other
agreement between you (or any of your owners) and us (or any of our affiliates) or our relationship
with you must be commenced exclusively in state or federal court closest to our (or our successor’s or
assign’s, as applicable) then-current principal place of business (currently, Dallas, Texas), and the
parties irrevocably consent to the jurisdiction of those courts and waive any objection to either the
jurisdiction of or venue in those courts. Nonetheless, the parties agree that any of us may enforce any
arbitration orders and awards in the courts of the state or states in which you are or your Parks are
located.

10E. COSTS AND ATTORNEYS’ FEES.

The prevailing party in any arbitration or litigation arising out of or relating to this Agreement
will be entitled to recover from the other party all damages, costs and expenses, including court costs
and reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by the prevailing party in successfully enforcing any provision
of this Agreement.

10F. RIGHTS OF PARTIES ARE CUMULATIVE.

Our and your rights under this Agreement are cumulative, and our or your exercise or
enforcement of any right or remedy under this Agreement will not preclude our or your exercise or
enforcement of any other right or remedy which we or you are entitled by law to enforce.

10G. WAIVER OF PUNITIVE DAMAGES AND JURY TRIAL.

EXCEPT FOR YOUR OBLIGATION TO INDEMNIFY US FOR THIRD PARTY CLAIMS
UNDER SECTION 9D, AND EXCEPT FOR PUNITIVE DAMAGES AVAILABLE TO EITHER
PARTY UNDER APPLICABLE LAW, WE AND YOU (AND YOUR OWNERS) WAIVE TO THE
FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW ANY RIGHT TO OR CLAIM FOR ANY PUNITIVE,
EXEMPLARY, OR MULTIPLE DAMAGES AGAINST THE OTHER AND AGREE THAT, IN
THE EVENT OF A DISPUTE BETWEEN US AND YOU, THE PARTY MAKING A CLAIM WILL
BE LIMITED TO EQUITABLE RELIEF AND TO RECOVERY OF ANY ACTUAL DAMAGES IT
SUSTAINS. WE AND YOU IRREVOCABLY WAIVE TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION,
PROCEEDING, OR COUNTERCLAIM, WHETHER AT LAW OR IN EQUITY, BROUGHT BY
EITHER OF US.

10H. INJUNCTIVE RELIEF.

Nothing in this Agreement, including the provisions of Section 10A and 10B, bars our right to
obtain specific performance of the provisions of this Agreement and injunctive or other equitable relief
against threatened conduct that will cause us, the Marks and/or the System loss or damage, under
customary equity rules, including applicable rules for obtaining restraining orders and injunctions. You
agree that we may obtain such injunctive relief in addition to such further or other relief as may be
available at law or in equity. You agree that we will not be required to post a bond to obtain injunctive
relief and that your only remedy if an injunction is entered against you will be the dissolution of that
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injunction, if warranted, upon due hearing (all claims for damages by injunction being expressly
waived hereby).

10I. BINDING EFFECT.

This Agreement is binding on us and you and our and your respective executors, administrators,
heirs, beneficiaries, permitted assigns, and successors in interest. This Agreement may not be modified
except by a written agreement signed by both our and your duly-authorized officers.

10J. LIMITATIONS OF CLAIMS AND CLASS ACTION BAR.

EXCEPT FOR CLAIMS ARISING FROM YOUR NON-PAYMENT OR
UNDERPAYMENT OF AMOUNTS YOU OWE US, ANY AND ALL CLAIMS ARISING OUT OF
OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT (OR ANY OTHER AGREEMENT BETWEEN US AND
OUR AFFILIATES, AND YOU AND YOUR AFFILIATES), YOUR DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS,
AND ALL CLAIMS ARISING FROM THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN US AND YOU WILL BE
BARRED UNLESS A JUDICIAL OR ARBITRATION PROCEEDING IS COMMENCED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THIS AGREEMENT WITHIN ONE (1) YEAR FROM THE DATE ON
WHICH THE PARTY ASSERTING THE CLAIM KNEW OR SHOULD HAVE KNOWN OF THE
FACTS GIVING RISE TO THE CLAIMS.

WE AND YOU AGREE THAT ANY PROCEEDING WILL BE CONDUCTED ON AN
INDIVIDUAL BASIS AND THAT ANY PROCEEDING BETWEEN US AND ANY OF OUR
AFFILIATES, OR OUR AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS, OFFICERS,
DIRECTORS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES, ON THE ONE HAND, AND YOU (OR YOUR
OWNERS, GUARANTORS, AFFILIATES, AND EMPLOYEES), ON THE OTHER HAND, MAY
NOT BE: (I) CONDUCTED ON A CLASS-WIDE BASIS, (II) COMMENCED, CONDUCTED OR
CONSOLIDATED WITH ANY OTHER PROCEEDING, (IIT) JOINED WITH ANY CLAIM OF AN
UNAFFILIATED THIRD-PARTY, OR (IV) BROUGHT ON YOUR BEHALF BY ANY
ASSOCIATION OR AGENT.

NO PREVIOUS COURSE OF DEALING WILL BE ADMISSIBLE TO EXPLAIN,
MODIFY, OR CONTRADICT THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT. NO IMPLIED COVENANT
OF GOOD FAITH AND FAIR DEALING WILL BE USED TO ALTER THE EXPRESS TERMS
OF THIS AGREEMENT.

10K. SEVERABILITY AND SUBSTITUTION OF VALID PROVISIONS.

Except as expressly provided to the contrary in this Agreement, each provision of this
Agreement is severable, and if any part of this Agreement is held to be invalid or contrary to or in
conflict with any applicable present or future law, ordinance or regulation for any reason (in a final,
unappealable ruling issued by any court, agency, or tribunal with competent jurisdiction), that ruling
will not impair the operation of, or otherwise affect, any other portions of this Agreement, which will
continue to have full force and effect and bind the parties.

If any covenant which restricts competitive activity is deemed unenforceable by virtue of its
scope in terms of area, business activity prohibited, and/or length of time, but would be enforceable if
modified, you and we agree that the covenant will be enforced to the fullest extent permissible under
the laws and public policies applied in the jurisdiction whose law determines the covenant’s validity.

21

ATP Franchising, LLC
2024 04 FDD | Ex. B-2 Area Development Agreement
1360.001.013/405743



If any applicable and binding law, ordinance, rule, or regulation of any jurisdiction requires
more notice of this Agreement’s termination or of our refusal to enter into a renewal franchise
agreement than this Agreement requires, or some other action that this Agreement does not require, or
any provision of this Agreement is invalid, unenforceable, or unlawful, the notice and/or other action
required by the law, ordinance, rule or regulation will be substituted for the comparable provisions of
this Agreement, and we may modify the invalid or unenforceable provision to the extent required to
be valid and enforceable or delete the unlawful provision in its entirety. You agree to be bound by any
promise or covenant imposing the maximum duty the law permits which is subsumed within any
provision of this Agreement, as though it were separately articulated in and made a part of this
Agreement.

10L. WAIVER OF OBLIGATIONS.

We and you may by written instrument unilaterally waive or reduce any obligation of or
restriction on the other under this Agreement, effective on delivery of written notice to the other or
another effective date stated in the notice of waiver. Any waiver granted will be without prejudice to
any other rights we or you have, will be subject to continuing review, and may be revoked at any time
and for any reason effective on delivery of ten (10) days’ prior written notice. We and you will not
waive or impair any right, power, or option this Agreement reserves (including our right to demand
exact compliance with every term, condition, and covenant or to declare any breach to be a default and
to terminate this Agreement before its term expires) because of any custom or practice at variance with
this Agreement’s terms; our or your failure, refusal, or neglect to exercise any right under this
Agreement or to insist on the other’s compliance with this Agreement; our waiver of or failure to
exercise any right, power, or option, whether of the same, similar, or different nature, with other area
developers or franchise owners; the existence of area development agreements which contain different
provisions from those contained in this Agreement; or our acceptance of any payments due from you
after any breach of this Agreement. No special or restrictive legend or endorsement on any check or
similar item given to us will be a waiver, compromise, settlement, or accord and satisfaction. We are
authorized to remove any legend or endorsement, which then will have no effect.

10M. CONSTRUCTION.

The preambles and exhibits are a part of this Agreement which constitutes our and your entire
agreement, and there are no other oral or written understandings or agreements between us and you, or
oral or written representations by us, relating to the subject matter of this Agreement, the franchise
relationship, or your Development Rights. Any understandings or agreements reached, or any
representations made, before this Agreement are superseded by this Agreement. Nothing in this or in
any related agreement, however, is intended to disclaim the representations we made in any Franchise
Disclosure Document.

The following provision applies if you or the franchise granted hereby are subject to the
franchise registration or disclosure laws in California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan,
Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, or
Wisconsin: No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving
any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii)
disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting
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on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in
connection with the franchise.

The headings of the sections and paragraphs are for convenience only and do not define, limit,
or construe the contents of these sections or paragraphs.

Nothing in this Agreement is intended or deemed to confer any rights or remedies on any
person or Entity not a party to this Agreement.

References in this Agreement to “we,” “us,” and “our,” with respect to all of our rights and all
of your obligations to us under this Agreement, include any of our affiliates with whom you deal. The
term “affiliate” means any person or Entity directly or indirectly owned or controlled by, under
common control with, or owning or controlling you or us. The term “control” means the power to
direct or cause the direction of management and policies. The use of the term “including” in this
Agreement, means in each case “including, without limitation.”

If two or more persons are at any time the owners of you or your Development Rights and
other rights under this Agreement, whether as partners or joint venturers, or are your guarantors, their
obligations and liabilities to us will be joint and several. References to “owner” mean any person
holding a direct or indirect ownership interest (whether of record, beneficially, or otherwise) or voting
rights in you (or a transferee of this Agreement and your Development Rights or an ownership interest
in you), including any person who has a direct or indirect interest in you (or a transferee), this
Agreement or your Development Rights and any person who has any other legal or equitable interest,
or the power to vest in himself or herself any legal or equitable interest, in their revenue, profits, rights,
or assets. The term “person” means any natural person, corporation, limited liability company, general
or limited partnership, unincorporated association, cooperative, or other legal or functional entity.

11. DELEGATION OF PERFORMANCE.

You agree that we have the right to delegate the performance of any portion or all of our
obligations under this Agreement to third party designees, whether these designees are our agents or
independent contractors with whom we have contracted to perform these obligations. If we do so, such
third-party designees will be obligated to perform the delegated functions for you in compliance with
this Agreement. You must perform all of your obligations under this Agreement, and you may not
subcontract or delegate any of those obligations to any third parties without our prior written approval.

12. NOTICES AND PAYMENTS.

All written notices, reports, and payments permitted or required to be delivered by this
Agreement will be deemed to be delivered: (i) at the time delivered by hand, (ii) at the time delivered
via electronic transmission, (iii) one (1) business day after being placed in the hands of a nationally
recognized commercial courier service for next business day delivery, or (iv) three (3) business days
after placement in United States Mail by Registered or Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested,
postage prepaid. Any notice must be sent to the party to be notified at its most current principal business
address of which the notifying party has notice; except that, it will always be deemed acceptable to
send notice to you at the address of any of your Parks.

Any required payment or report which we do not actually receive during regular business hours
on the date due will be deemed delinquent.
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13. PROHIBITED PARTIES.

You hereby represent and warrant to us, as an express consideration for the rights granted
hereby, that neither you nor any of your employees, agents, or representatives, nor any other person or
entity associated with you, is now, or has been:

1. Listed on: (a) the U.S. Treasury Department’s List of Specially Designated Nationals, (b)
the U.S. Commerce Department’s Denied Persons List, Unverified List, Entity List, or
General Orders, (c¢) the U.S. State Department’s Debarred List or Nonproliferation
Sanctions, or (d) the Annex to U.S. Executive Order 13224.

2. A person or entity who assists, sponsors, or supports terrorists or acts of terrorism, or is
owned or controlled by terrorists or sponsors of terrorism.

You further represent and warrant to us that you are now, and have been, in compliance with
U.S. anti-money laundering and counter-terrorism financing laws and regulations, and that any funds
provided by you to us or our affiliates are and will be legally obtained in compliance with these laws.
You agree not to, and to cause all employees, agents, representatives, and any other person or entity
associated with you not to, during the Term, take any action or refrain from taking any action that
would cause such person or entity to become a target of any such laws and regulations.

14. EXECUTION

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original,
but all of which together will constitute one and the same Agreement. This Agreement and all other
documents related to this Agreement may be executed by manual or electronic signature. Either party
may rely on the receipt of a document executed or delivered electronically, as if an original had been
received.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Agreement to be

effective as of the Effective Date.

ATP FRANCHISING, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

Sign:

Name:

Title:

DATED:

(Effective Date of this Agreement)

AREA DEVELOPER

(IF YOU ARE A CORPORATION,
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, OR
PARTNERSHIP):

Entity Name

Signature

Name:

Title:

DATED:

AREA DEVELOPER

(IF YOU ARE AN INDIVIDUAL AND NOT
AN ENTITY):

Signature

Print Name

DATED:

(Signature page to Area Development Agreement)



EXHIBIT A

TO THE AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

DEVELOPMENT AREA: DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE: DEVELOPMENT FEE

The Development Area is:

The Development Schedule is:

Park # |Development Fee Paid] Remaining Initial Deadline for Lease Deadline for Park
on Effective Date | Franchise Fee Owed and Franchise Opening
Agreement Signing
1 $ $
2 $ $
3 $ $
4 $ $
5 $ $
TOTAL $ $
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EXHIBIT B
TO THE AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

ENTITY INFORMATION
1. Form. You operate as a(n): __ individual/sole proprietorship, corporation,
limited liability company, or partnership (CHECK ONE).
2. Formation: You were formed on (DATE), under the laws of the State of
(JURISDICTION).
3. Management: The following is a list of your directors, officers, managers or anyone

else with a management position or title:

Name of Individual Position(s) Held

4. Owners. The following list includes the full name of each individual who is one of your
owners, or an owner of one of your owners, and fully describes the nature of each owner’s interest
(attach additional pages if necessary):

Owner’s Name Percentage/Description of Interest

5. Principal Owner:
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EXHIBIT C
TO THE AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

GUARANTY AND ASSUMPTION OF OBLIGATIONS

THIS GUARANTY AND ASSUMPTION OF OBLIGATIONS (“Guaranty”) is given by
the persons indicated below who have executed this Guaranty (each a “Guarantor”) to be effective as
of the Effective Date of the Agreement (defined below).

In consideration of, and as an inducement to, the execution of that certain Area Development
Agreement executed concurrently herewith (as amended, restated, or supplemented, the “Agreement”)
by and between ATP Franchising, LLC (the “Franchisor”), and
(“Developer”), each Guarantor hereby personally and unconditionally (a)
guarantees to Franchisor, and its successor and assigns that Developer will punctually pay and perform
each and every undertaking, agreement and covenant set forth in the Agreement, and (b) agrees to be
personally bound by, and personally liable for the breach of, each and every provision in the
Agreement, both monetary obligations and obligations to take or refrain from taking specific actions
or to engage or refrain from engaging in specific activities.

Each Guarantor waives: (1) acceptance and notice of acceptance by Franchisor of the foregoing
undertakings; (2) notice of demand for payment of any indebtedness or nonperformance of any
obligations guaranteed; (3) protest and notice of default to any party with respect to the indebtedness
or nonperformance of any obligations guaranteed, and (4) any right such Guarantor may have to require
that an action be brought against Developer or any other person as a condition of liability; and (5) the
defense of the statute of limitations in any action hereunder or for the collection or the performance of
any obligation hereby guaranteed.

Each Guarantor hereby consents and agrees that:

(a) Franchisor may proceed against any Guarantor and/or Developer, jointly and severally,
including by proceeding against Guarantor, without having commenced any action, or having obtained
any judgment against any other Guarantor or Developer. Guarantor hereby waives the defense of the
statute of limitations in any action hereunder or for the collection of any indebtedness or the
performance of any obligation hereby guaranteed;

(b) Guarantor will render any payment or performance required under the Agreement on
demand if Developer fails or refuses punctually to do so;

() Guarantor’s liability will not be contingent or conditioned on pursuit by Franchisor of
any remedies against Developer or any other person;

(d) Guarantor’s liability will not be diminished, relieved or otherwise affected by any
extension of time, credit or other indulgence which Franchisor may grant to Developer or to any other
person, including the acceptance of any partial payment or performance, or the compromise or release
of any claims, none of which will in any way modify or amend this Guaranty, which will be continuing
and irrevocable during the term of the Agreement;
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(e) Guarantor is bound by the restrictive covenants, confidentiality provisions, and
indemnification provisions contained in the Agreement, and any and all provisions that by their terms
apply to owners of Developer;

€3} At Franchisor’s request, Guarantor agrees to provide the updated financial information
to us as may be reasonably necessary to demonstrate his or her ability to satisfy the obligations of the
franchise owners under the Agreement;

(2) This Guaranty will continue unchanged by the occurrence of any bankruptcy with
respect to Developer or any assignee or successor of Developer or by any abandonment of the
Agreement by a trustee of Developer. Neither Guarantor’s obligations to make payment or render
performance in accordance with the terms of this Guaranty nor any remedy for enforcement will be
impaired, modified, changed, released or limited in any manner whatsoever by any impairment,
modification, change, release or limitation of the liability of Developer or its estate in bankruptcy or
of any remedy for enforcement;

(h) Guarantor agrees to pay all costs and expenses (including attorneys’ fees) incurred by
Franchisor or any of its affiliates in connection with the enforcement of this Guaranty, including any
collection or attempt to collect amounts due, or any negotiations relative to the obligations hereby
guaranteed; and

(1) Guarantor agrees to be personally bound by the dispute resolution provisions under
Article 10 of the Agreement, including the obligation to submit to binding arbitration the claims
described in Section 10B of the Agreement in accordance with its terms.

By signing below, the undersigned spouse of each Guarantor indicated below, acknowledges
and consents to the guaranty given herein by his/her spouse. Such consent also serves to bind the assets
of the marital estate to Guarantor’s performance of this Guaranty. Each Guarantor represents and
warrants that, if no signature appears below for such Guarantor’s spouse, such Guarantor is either not
married or, if married, is a resident of a state which does not require the consent of both spouses to
encumber the assets of a marital estate.

Each Guarantor that is a business entity, retirement or investment account, or trust
acknowledges and agrees that if Developer (or any of its affiliates) is delinquent in payment of any
amounts guaranteed hereunder, that no dividends or distributions may be made by such Guarantor (or
on such Guarantor’s account) to its owners, accountholders or beneficiaries or otherwise, for so long
as such delinquency exists, subject to applicable law.

This Guarantee is binding upon each Guarantor and its respective executors, administrators,
heirs, beneficiaries, and successors in interest.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersigned has affixed his signature to be effective
as of the Effective Date.

GUARANTOR(S) SPOUSE(S)

Name: Name:

Sign: Sign:

Address: Address:

Name: Name:

Sign: Sign:

Address: Address:

Name: Name:

Sign: Sign:

Address: Address:
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EXHIBIT B-3

CONSENT TO TRANSFER
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CONSENT TO TRANSFER AGREEMENT

This CONSENT TO TRANSFER AGREEMENT (this “Consent”) is entered into as of
, (the “Effective Date”), by and among ATP Franchising, LLC, a Delaware limited

liability  company  (“Franchisor”), , a
(“Transferor”), the undersigned parties listed as Transferor Guarantors (“Transferor Guarantors”),
,a (“Transferee”), and the undersigned parties

listed as Transferee Guarantors (“Transferee Guarantors”). Transferor and Transferor Guarantors
are collectively referred to as the “Transferor Parties.” Transferee and Transferee Guarantors are
collectively referred to as the “Transferee Parties.”

RECITALS

A. Franchisor and Transferor are parties to that certain Franchise Agreement dated
(the “Original Agreement”), pursuant to which Franchisor granted Transferor, and
Transferor undertook, the right and license to own and operate an ALTITUDE TRAMPOLINE
PARK® facility located at
(the “Park”). Transferor Guarantors personally guaranteed all obligations of Transferor under the
Original Agreement (the “Original Guaranty”).

B. Transferor has notified Franchisor that it wishes to transfer the Park to Transferee,
including a transfer of substantially all the assets of the Park and a transfer of the lease to the premises
of the Park (the “Transfer”), pursuant to the terms of that certain Asset Purchase Agreement dated
, in form and substance provided to Franchisor (the “Purchase Agreement”).

AGREEMENT

FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the foregoing recitals, the covenants and agreements
contained herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which
are acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Consent to Transfer and Waiver of Right of First Refusal. Subject to the terms and
conditions of this Consent, Franchisor hereby consents to the Transfer of the Park on the terms set forth
in the Purchase Agreement and hereby waives its right of first refusal to acquire the assets of the Park
on the basis of such Transfer under the Original Agreement. Any substantive change or amendment
to, or waiver of, any provision of the Purchase Agreement prior to the Transfer will require
Franchisor’s separate prior written consent and waiver of right of first refusal. In the event that any
term or condition of this Consent is not met by the parties as of the date of the Transfer (the “Transfer
Date”), including any representation or warranty that is not true as of the Effective Date or the Transfer
Date, Franchisor’s consent to the Transfer may be withdrawn, and any transfer that occurs thereafter,
of any kind, including the Transfer, shall be deemed an unauthorized transfer under the terms of the
Original Agreement.

2. Termination of Original Agreement. Upon consummation of the Transfer, the
Original Agreement will automatically terminate effective as of the Transfer Date. After the Transfer
Date, the provisions of the Original Agreement shall be of no further force or effect; provided, that
nothing in this Consent will be deemed to terminate or release the Transferor Parties from any of the
following obligations (together, the “Surviving Obligations”): (i) any obligations under the Original
Agreement that, either expressly or by their nature, survive termination thereof (including, post-
termination restrictive covenants, indemnification, dispute resolution, non-disparagement,
confidentiality provisions, and the obligation to cease using any proprietary trademarks); (ii) any
obligations arising prior to the Transfer Date (including any obligations to pay any amounts to
Franchisor accruing prior to the Transfer Date); (iii) any failure to perform, improper performance, or
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other breach, default or violation by any Transferor Party of the Original Agreement; or (iv) any
obligations of the Transferor Parties under this Consent. The Original Guaranty shall remain in force
and effect and shall serve as a guaranty of the Surviving Obligations, and Transferor Guarantors
acknowledge and agree that Franchisor may seek any available remedies against them for the failure
of any Transferor Party to comply with any Surviving Obligations.

3. Representations and Warranties. The Transferor Parties and the Transferee Parties
each hereby, jointly and severally, represent and warrant to Franchisor as of the Effective Date and as
of the Transfer Date that: (i) Transferor and Transferee are each a legal entity duly organized, validly
existing and in good standing under the laws of their respective jurisdiction of organization; (ii)
Transferor and Transferee each have all requisite power and authority to be bound by the terms hereof
and to carry out and perform its obligations under this Consent, the Purchase Agreement, and in the
case of Transferee, the New Agreement (as defined below); and (iii) the parties have provided
Franchisor with a final executed and effective copy of the Purchase Agreement and no provision of the
Purchase Agreement has been modified, amended, waived, or disclaimed in any manner by the parties
thereto prior to the Effective Date.

4. Conditions to Consent. Franchisor’s consent to the Transfer is conditioned on all of
the following terms and conditions being met on or prior to the Transfer Date:

(a) The Transfer must occur no later than 30 days from the Effective Date, and if
the Transfer shall not have occurred by such date, this Consent shall be deemed void, and
Franchisor’s consent to the Transfer shall be deemed withdrawn, and any transfer that occurs
thereafter, of any kind, including the Transfer, shall be deemed an unauthorized transfer under
the terms of the Original Agreement;

(b) All of the representations and warranties made in this Consent by the
Transferor Parties and Transferee Parties must be true and correct as of the Transfer Date, and
Transferor Parties and Transferee Parties must not have violated any provision of this Consent,
the Original Agreement, the New Agreement or any other agreement between any such party
and Franchisor or Franchisor’s affiliates, or any suppliers or landlord of the Park, as applicable;

(© Transferor Parties must provide Franchisor all information or documents
Franchisor requests about the Transferee Parties to evaluate their ability to satisfy their
obligations under Franchisor’s then-current form of franchise agreement and any documents
ancillary thereto, and each such person must have completed and satisfied all of Franchisor’s
application and certification requirements;

(d) Transferor Parties must provide Franchisor executed versions of any
documents executed by Transferor Parties and Transferee Parties to effect the Transfer, and all
other information Franchisor requests about the proposed Transfer, and such Transfer meets
all of Franchisor’s requirements, including terms, closing date, purchase price, amount of debt
and payment terms, and Franchisor has determined that the purchase price and payment terms
of the Transfer will not adversely affect the Transferee’s operation of the Park;

(e) Transferor Parties must not have violated any provision of the Original
Agreement or any other agreement with Franchisor or its affiliates during both the sixty (60)
day period before Transferor Parties requested Franchisor’s consent to the Transfer and the
period between Transferor Parties’ request and the Transfer Date, including that Transferor
Parties have paid all amounts owed to Franchisor, its affiliates, and third-party vendors, and
have submitted all required reports and statements;
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€3} If the proposed Transfer (including any assignment of the lease of the premises
of the Park or subleasing of the premises of the Park) requires notice to or approval from
Transferor’s landlord, or any other action under the terms of the lease for the Park, Transferor
has taken such appropriate action and delivered Franchisor evidence of the same;

(g2) Transferee must sign Franchisor’s then-current form of franchise agreement
and related documents, including execution of a guaranty of all obligations thereunder by the
Transferee Guarantors (together, the “New Agreement”), any and all of the provisions of
which may differ materially from any and all of those in the Original Agreement; provided, the
term of the New Agreement will be the remaining term of the Original Agreement;

(h) Transferee and its required personnel satisfactorily complete Franchisor’s then-
current training program as required under the New Agreement;

(1) Transferor must pay Franchisor a transfer fee equal to $15,000;

)] If Transferor Parties finance any part of the purchase price, Transferor Parties

agree that all of the Transferee’s obligations under promissory notes, agreements, or security
interests reserved in the Park are subordinate to the Transferee’s obligation to pay amounts due
to Franchisor, Franchisor’s affiliates, and third-party vendors related to the operation of the
Park and otherwise to comply with the Original Agreement;

(k) Transferor must have corrected any existing deficiencies of the Park of which
Franchisor has notified Transferor, and/or the Transferee agrees to upgrade, remodel, and
refurbish the Park in accordance with Franchisor’s then-current requirements and
specifications for Parks within the time period Franchisor specifies following the Transfer Date
and the Transferee agrees to escrow an amount Franchisor approves for payment of the required
upgrade, remodel or refurbishment; and

()] Transferor provides Franchisor the evidence Franchisor reasonably requests to
show that appropriate measures have been taken to effect the Transfer as it relates to the
operation of the Park, including, by transferring all necessary and appropriate business licenses,
insurance policies, and material agreements, or obtaining new business licenses, insurance
policies and material agreements.

5. Terms of Purchase Agreement. Notwithstanding the terms of the Purchase
Agreement, the Transferor Parties and Transferee Parties hereby agree that the Transfer shall not
transfer or purport to transfer any assets, rights or interests reserved by, owned by or accruing to the
benefit of Franchisor, including, without limitation: (i) any assets, rights or interests associated with
the trademarks, trade dress, copyrights, goodwill, domain names, or other intellectual property used in
connection with the Park; (ii) any customer lists, databases, website data, logins and passwords, or any
other proprietary information used in connection with the Park; and (iii) any other assets, rights or
interests reserved to Franchisor under the terms of the Original Agreement and/or New Agreement.
All such assets, rights or interests of Franchisor are hereby expressly reserved by Franchisor, and the
Transferor Parties and Transferee Parties hereby expressly waive and disclaim such assets, rights or
interests in all respects.

6. Further Assurances. The Transferor Parties and Transferee Parties each covenant
and agree, at their own expense, to execute and deliver, at Franchisor’s request, such further
instruments and to take such other action as Franchisor may request to consummate the Transfer, the
effectiveness of the New Agreement, and the other terms and conditions of this Consent.
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7. Franchisor Release. The Transferor Parties, jointly and severally, and each of them,
on behalf of themselves and the other Transferor Parties (the “Releasing Parties™), hereby fully and
forever unconditionally release and discharge Franchisor, and its affiliates, parents, subsidiaries,
franchisees, area developers, owners, each such foregoing person’s or entity’s agents, insurers and our
and their respective employees, officers, directors, successors, assigns, owners, guarantors and other
representatives (the “Franchisor Parties”), of and from any and all claims, obligations, debts,
proceedings, demands, causes of action, rights to terminate and rescind, liabilities, losses, damages,
and rights of every kind and nature whatsoever, whether known or unknown, suspected or unsuspected,
at law or in equity, which any of them has, had, or may have against any of the Franchisor Parties,
from the beginning of time to the Effective Date, including as arising out of or relating to the Original
Agreement or the relationship of the Releasing Parties with the Franchisor Parties.

IF THE FRANCHISE YOU OPERATE UNDER THE AGREEMENT IS LOCATED IN
CALIFORNIA OR ANY OF THE RELEASING PARTIES IS A RESIDENT OF CALIFORNIA, THE
FOLLOWING SHALL APPLY:

SECTION 1542 ACKNOWLEDGMENT. IT IS YOUR INTENTION, ON YOUR OWN
BEHALF AND ON BEHALF OF THE RELEASING PARTIES, IN EXECUTING THIS
RELEASE THAT THIS INSTRUMENT BE AND IS A GENERAL RELEASE WHICH
SHALL BE EFFECTIVE AS A BAR TO EACH AND EVERY CLAIM, DEMAND, OR
CAUSE OF ACTION RELEASED BY YOU OR THE RELEASING PARTIES. YOU
RECOGNIZE THAT YOU OR THE RELEASING PARTIES MAY HAVE SOME CLAIM,
DEMAND, OR CAUSE OF ACTION AGAINST THE ATP PARTIES OF WHICH YOU,
HE, SHE, OR IT IS TOTALLY UNAWARE AND UNSUSPECTING, WHICH YOU, HE,
SHE, ORIT IS GIVING UP BY EXECUTING THIS RELEASE. IT IS YOUR INTENTION,
ON YOUR OWN BEHALF AND ON BEHALF OF THE RELEASING PARTIES, IN
EXECUTING THIS INSTRUMENT THAT IT WILL DEPRIVE YOU, HIM, HER, OR IT
OF EACH SUCH CLAIM, DEMAND, OR CAUSE OF ACTION AND PREVENT YOU,
HIM, HER, OR IT FROM ASSERTING IT AGAINST THE ATP PARTIES. IN
FURTHERANCE OF THIS INTENTION, YOU, ON YOUR OWN BEHALF AND ON
BEHALF OF THE RELEASING PARTIES, EXPRESSLY WAIVE ANY RIGHTS OR
BENEFITS CONFERRED BY THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 1542 OF THE
CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE, WHICH PROVIDES AS FOLLOWS:

“A  GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS THAT THE
CREDITOR OR RELEASING PARTY DOES NOT KNOW OR SUSPECT TO EXIST
IN HIS OR HER FAVOR AT THE TIME OF EXECUTING THE RELEASE AND
THAT, IF KNOWN BY HIM OR HER, WOULD HAVE MATERIALLY AFFECTED
HIS OR HER SETTLEMENT WITH THE DEBTOR OR RELEASED PARTY.”

YOU ACKNOWLEDGE AND REPRESENT THAT YOU HAVE CONSULTED WITH
LEGAL COUNSEL BEFORE EXECUTING THIS RELEASE AND THAT YOU
UNDERSTAND ITS MEANING, INCLUDING THE EFFECT OF SECTION 1542 OF THE
CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE, AND EXPRESSLY CONSENT THAT THIS RELEASE
SHALL BE GIVEN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT ACCORDING TO EACH AND ALL OF
ITS EXPRESS TERMS AND PROVISIONS, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION,
THOSE RELATING TO THE RELEASE OF UNKNOWN AND UNSUSPECTED
CLAIMS, DEMANDS, AND CAUSES OF ACTION.

4
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If the franchise you operate under the Agreement is located in Maryland or if any of the
Releasing Parties is a resident of Maryland, the following shall apply:

Any general release provided for hereunder shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

If the franchise you operate under the Agreement is located in Washington or if any of the
Releasing Parties is a resident of Washington, the following shall apply:

Any general release provided for hereunder shall not apply to any liability under the Washington
Franchise Investment Protection Act, RCW 19.100, and the rules adopted thereunder.

8. Future Assignments. Franchisor’s consent under this Consent will not be construed
as its consent to any further assignments or transfers of the Original Agreement or New Agreement,
the Park, or the membership or ownership interests of the Transferor Parties or Transferee Parties, or
to the waiver of any future rights of first refusal Franchisor may have under the Original Agreement
and/or New Agreement, as applicable. Any further transfers require Franchisor’s prior written consent
under the Original Agreement and/or New Agreement, as applicable.

9. Role of Franchisor. Transferor Parties and Transferee Parties each acknowledge and
agree that they have negotiated the Transfer without involvement by Franchisor, that Franchisor has
not effected or arranged the Transfer, and that Franchisor’s only involvement in the transaction has
been for the purpose of exercising its right of consent to the Transfer in accordance with the Original
Agreement.

10. Binding Effect. This Consent inures to the benefit of Franchisor Parties and their
respective successors and assigns and will be binding upon the parties and their respective successors,
permitted assigns and legal representatives.

11. Miscellaneous. This Consent constitutes the entire understanding between the parties
with respect to the matters it contemplates. This Consent will be construed and interpreted in
accordance with the laws of the State of Delaware, without regard to its conflicts of laws rules. The
captions and headings are only for convenience of reference, are not a part of this Consent, and will
not limit or construe the provisions to which they apply. All references in this Consent to the singular
usage will be construed to include the plural and the masculine and neuter usages to include the other
and the feminine. This Consent may be executed in multiple copies, each of which will be deemed an
original. This Consent may be executed electronically.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Consent to be

effective as of the Effective Date.

FRANCHISOR

ATP FRANCHISING, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

Sign:
Name:
Title:
TRANSFEROR TRANSFEREE
,a ,a
Sign: Sign:
Name: Name:
Title: Title:

TRANSFEROR GUARANTORS

Sign:

Sign:

TRANSFEREE GUARANTORS

Sign:

Sign:
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FRANCHISEES WHO WERE OPEN
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023

Franchisee Address City State Telephone
Number
1. ATP Huntsville, LLC 6275 University Dr. NW Huntsville AL (256) 690-5005
2. Royal Events, LLC 8581 Helena Rd. Pelham AL (205) 249-5578
3. Aecrial Entertainment LLC 701 N. Gilbert Rd. Gilbert AZ (480) 430-4051
4, William Renfro 2340 Porpoise Drive Lake Havasu | AZ (928) 231-6006
City
5. Aecrial Entertainment LLC 318 E. Indian School Rd. Phoenix AZ (602) 522-8000
6. Flying Blind, LLC 648 W. Van Asche Dr. Fayetteville AR (479) 249-9499
7. Relaxed Intensity LLC 1928 Hacienda Dr. Vista CA (760) 842-5142
8. Pueblo ATP LLC ! 3325 Dillon Dr Pueblo CcoO (719) 289-3160
9. Kiss-I-Mee Holdings, LLC ' | 2703 W Osceola Pkwy Kissimmee FL (407) 705-2123
10. | Bradenton ATP, LLC ! 201 Cortez Road Bradenton FL (941) 584-4700
11. | Sanford ATP, LLC' 1810 Rinehart Rd. Sanford FL (321) 246-3407
12. | Kermina, LLC 4340 W. Hillsborough | Tampa FL (813) 399-1529
Ave., Ste 350
13. | ZSJ Investments, LLC 4880 Lower Roswell Rd Marietta GA (770) 693-7627
14. | ATP Lawrenceville LLC 5900 Sugarloaf Pkwy Lawrencevill | GA (470) 857-6100
e
15. | Aim High Bloomington LLC | 1702 GE Rd., Unit 4 Bloomington | IL (309) 663-1988
16. | Altitude Chicago, LLC 404 N. Armour St. Chicago IL (312) 291-9057
17. | Aim High Glen Carbon, LLC | 91 Fountain Dr. Glen Carbon | IL (618) 744-6959
18. | Lombard ATP LLC ! 481 E Roosevelt Rd Lombard IL (331) 551-8755
19. | Altitude Oswego, LLC 1600 Douglas Rd. Oswego IL (331) 717-9335
20. | SBZ Adventures, LLC 7037 Central Ave. Skokie IL (847) 983-8777
21. | East Douglas Properties, 2917 Douglas Dr. Bossier City | LA (318) 716-1711
LLC
22. | LC Entertainment, LLC 3009 Gerstner Memorial Lake Charles | LA (337) 602-6650
Hwy
23. | Southeastern Jump Parks, 120 Northshore Blvd. Slidell LA (985) 649-9090
LLC
24. | Altitude Jump Park 4100 LA-59 Mandeville LA (985) 649-9090
Mandeville LLC
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25. | Delmarva Trampoline Arena, | 30174 Foskey Lane Delmar MD (410) 896-2219
Inc

26. | Crest Street Enterprises, LLC | 75 Stockwell Dr. Avon MA (508) 857-1777

27. | 3 E Parks, LLC 700 Boston Rd. Billerica MA (978) 663-5867

28. | Jump ATP Holyoke LLC 50 Holyoke St Holyoke MA (413) 322-8490

29. | Bedrock Property Solutions, | 303 E. Central St. Franklin MA (508) 317-7229
LLC

30. | Altitude of Marlborough, 180 Boston Post Road W Marlborough | MA (774) 843-2930
LLC

31. | SFB Entertainment LLC 1505 S. Washington St. North MA (508) 639-9818

Attleboro

32. | Litics ATP Group, LLC 3495 Alpine Ave. NW Walker MI (616) 419-3146

33. | Gulfstates Trampolines, LLC | 9444 Highway 49 Gulfport MS (228) 314-3316

34. | Altitude Trampoline Park of | 270 Loudon Rd. Concord NH (603) 664-4444
Concord, LLC

35. | Altitude Trampoline Park of | 360 Daniel Webster Hwy Merrimack NH (603) 261-3673
Merrimack, LLC

36. | Pelham Park, LLC 150 Bridge St. Pelham NH (603) 751-8900

37. | Altitude NJ LLC 465 Green St. Woodbridge | NJ (732) 218-5660

38. | Altitude Rochester, LLC 3333 W. Henrietta Rd. Rochester NY (585) 434-3260

39. | ATP Alpha, LLC' 3940 E. Franklin Blvd. Gastonia NC (704) 550-4709

40. | Trebur 3 Management, LLC | 1030 Henderson Dr. Jacksonville | NC (910) 378-8171

41. | Magnolia Trampolines, LLC* | 110 Market Dr. Elyria OH (440) 281-9999

42. | Altitude Heath LLC 771 S 30th St Heath OH (740) 915-4045

43. | Altitude Mansfield, LLC 2190 W. 4th St. Ontario OH (567) 303-8883

44. | PB Velocity LLC 101 Clearview Cir. Butler PA (724) 272-2303

45. | LMN Group, LLC 1045 Bustleton Pike Feasterville PA (215) 357-5867

46. | ATP York, LLC' 2142 White St. York PA (717) 325-9360

47. | Altitude West, LLC State Rd. #2 KM Hatos Bayamon PR (787) 705-4154

Tejas

48. | Altitude Costa, LLC 950 Carr. 189 Ste. #1 Gurabo PR (787) 491-0262

49. | BK Sports Nashville, LLC 3432 Lebanon Pike Nashville TN (615) 455-5800

50. | Lonestar TPLD1, LLC 6800 W. Gate Blvd, Ste. Austin X (512) 814-0090

100
51. | Lion Events, LLC 112 W Belt Line Rd Cedar Hill X (469) 272-5867
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52. | Black Pearl Recreation, LLC | 4728 Bryant Irvin Road Fort Worth TX (817) 984-3773

53. | GNG Times FW HS, LLC 5650 Kroger Drive Fort Worth TX (817) 741-5867

54. | Jump High Investments, LLC | 3530 Grapevine Mills Grapevine TX (972) 691-5867

Blvd. North

55. | GNG Times MK Hospitality | 24952 Katy Ranch Rd. Katy X (281) 394-9227
Services, LLC

56. | SaRoHo Enterprises, LLC 4525 Milwaukee Ave. Lubbock X (806) 370-3725

57. | Altitude Odessa, LLC 5161 E. 42nd St. Odessa X (432) 272-6921

58. | Thin Air Trampoline Park, 110 W. Campbell Rd. #400 | Richardson X (469) 941-4350
LLC

59. | GNG Times FW HS, LLC 2800 S I-35 Frontage Road, | Round Rock | TX (512) 373-3276

Round Rock, Texas 78681

60. | Arlington Up Entertainment, | 11075 IH-10 W. Ste. 126 San Antonio | TX (210) 697-5867
LLC

61. | Dahmen-Kraner, LLC 4710 Spring Cypress Road | Spring X (832) 698-2374

62. | ABSS Adventures, LLC? 4550 Highway 6 South Sugarland TX (713) 234-7798

63. | Altitude Utah Leasing LLC 3813 W. Center View Way | West Jordan | UT (385) 255-9188

64. | A&D Trampolines, LLC 6610 64th St. NE Marysville WA (360) 454-0099

65. | BK Sports, LLC * 1441 N. Argonne Rd. Spokane WA (509) 890-1019

66. | Appleton ATP LLC' 4914 Integrity Way Appleton WI (617) 775-0701

! These Parks were developed pursuant to an area development agreement.
2 This Park was transferred after the end of our most recent fiscal year.

3 This Park was re-acquired by us after the end of our most recent fiscal year.

ATP Franchising, LLC

2024_04 FDD | Ex D-1 — List of Current Franchisees

1360.001.013/405750



about:blank

FRANCHISEES WHO SIGNED BUT NOT YET OPENED

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023
Franchisee Address City State Telephone
Number
1. | Shafiq Samji 3054 Arbor Bend Hoover AL (205) 249-5578
2. | Airheadz, LLC 136 Paloma Drive Paso Robles CA (805) 801-5099
3 ATP San Jose, LLC 1224 N. Hwy 377 Roanoke TX (617) 775 - 0701
' (cA)!
4. | GALC Family 1240 Sarno Rd. Melbourne FL (772) 215-9893
5 Spring Hill ATP, LLC 8675 Hidden River Tampa FL (813) 480-2660
’ Parkway
Ben Thomas, Brandon 8765 Sawgrass Way Duluth GA (509) 531-3530
6. | Gadish, and Kenda
Gadish
7. | Claude Jones 1700 W. Ohio St., Suite 4 | Chicago IL (773) 706-1453
2 Michael DiCenzo & 15 Dolge Court Oxford MA (509) 551-9278
" | Bryce Richards
9 DNA Family 144 East Fairbanks Street | Marquette MI (906) 241-9115
’ Investments, LLC
10. | Highfly Sports, LLC 11 Hampton P1 East Brunswick | NJ (503) 327-4202
1 Gabriel Mora & Veronica | 1705 Storey Avenue Midland TX (432) 701-8203
" | Castillo (NM)?
12. | Altitude OKC, LLC 915 NW 8th Street Oklahoma City | OK (559) 708-2803
13 David Johnston 20 Bridge Street P.O. Box | Bluffton SC (843) 304-7176
’ 386
14. | Bryce Richards 312 Greenleaf Court Allen TX (509) 551-9278
15 Cooper Collins 405 Corporate Woods Magnolia TX (985) 414-1706
) Drive
16. | George & Jessica Atallah | 801 Jaquet Drive Bellaire X (832) 755-0002
17. | Gracelink Ventures, LLC | 413 Silver Chase Dr Keller TX (682) 220-3005
18. | Al Mirzaie 6914 Spring Creek Ct. Missouri City TX (713) 505-7017
19 Davis Trampoline Park, 12137 S Black Powder Herriman uT (672) 333-8260
" | LLC Drive
20. | Omar Alghzali 509 Golden Gate Ave Fircrest WA (253) 222-7343

! This Park will be developed in the State of California.

2 This Park will be developed in the State of New Mexico.
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Franchisees who left our system in our last fiscal year (i.e. termination, non-renewal, cancellation, transfer

FRANCHISEES WHO LEFT THE SYSTEM
IN FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

or otherwise ceased to do business) or have not communicated with us in the last 10 weeks:

Franchisee City State Last Known Reason
Telephone Number
Dhruv Shukla Tucson AZ (480) 584-9887 Failure to
Open
Mesfin Alemu Denver CO (303) 653-2300 Failure to
Open
Magnolia Elyria OH (440) 281-9999 Acquired by
Trampolines, LLC ' Affiliate of
Franchisor
Renegades of Fun, Denton TX (940) 383-5867 Termination
LLC
Gerardo & Marcos Fort Worth X (817) 718-4715 Failure to
Moreno Open
Killeen ATP, LLC Killeen TX (254) 312-8667 Termination
Bump It Up, LLC Cedar Hill TX (469) 272-5867 Transfer
ABSS Adventures, Sugarland X (713) 234-7798 Transfer
LLC'
BK Sports, LLC ! Spokane WA (509) 890-1019 Transfer

! These franchisees left the system after the end of our most recent fiscal year.

If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to buyers when you leave the

franchise system.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Member of
ATP Franchising, LLC

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ATP Franchising, LLC, (the
“Company”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022,
and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in member’s equity, and cash
flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (“GAAS”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are required to be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether
there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial
statements are issued or available to be issued.

www.btcpa.net | 3300 Riverwood Parkway, Suite 700 Atlanta, GA 30339 | Phone: 770.396.2200 | Fax:770.390.0394




BT ) tirastr

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user
based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Besmift Thaslar LLF

March 28, 2024



ATP Franchising, LL.C

Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022
Assets
Current assets:
Cash $ 289,785 $ 610,207
Restricted cash 192,840 67,144
Accounts receivable - net of allowance for
credit losses of $177,605 and $149,531, respectively 641,066 479,370
Due from affiliated franchise 2,178,729 1,097,773
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 79,167 84,163
Total current assets 3,381,587 2,338,657
Operating lease right-of-use asset, net 289,382 380,682
Property and equipment, net 216,952 155,082
Franchise agreements, net 2,458,333 2,958,333
Total assets $ 6,346,254 $ 5,832,754
Liabilities and Member's Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 878,777 $ 659,294
Accrued commission payable, current portion 249,996 249,996
Operating lease liability, current portion 99,054 87,343
Brand fund liability 192,840 67,144
Deferred revenue - 22,500
Deferred franchise fees, current portion 47,500 -
Total current liabilities 1,468,167 1,086,277
Accrued commission payable, net of current portion 372,972 583,337
Operating lease liability, net of current portion 217,903 316,957
Deferred franchise fees, net of current portion 595,941 341,441
Total liabilities 2,654,983 2,328,012
Commitments and contingencies (Note 8)
Member’s equity:
Member capital 15,210,001 15,210,001
Accumulated deficit (4,915,818) (5,146,346)
Due from Parent (6,602,912) (6,558,913)
Total member's equity 3,691,271 3,504,742
Total liabilities and member's equity $ 6,346,254 $§ 5,832,754

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ATP Franchising, LL.C

Consolidated Statements of Operations
For the Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

Revenues:
Franchise fees
Royalty fees
Brand fund fees
Other revenues

Total revenues

Expenses:
Selling expenses
General and administrative expense
Brand fund expenses

Total expenses

Net income

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2023 2022
$ 54,250 $ 227,500
7,332,133 6,941,536
673,536 346
449,060 307,516
8,508,979 7,476,898
620,168 2,473,200
6,984,747 3,773,533
673,536 346
8,278,451 6,247,079
$ 230,528 § 1,229,819




ATP Franchising, LL.C

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Member’s Equity
For the Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

Total
Member Accumulated Due from Member's
Capital Deficit Parent Equity
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 15,210,001 $ (6,376,165) $ (4,528,434) $§ 4,305,402
Advances to Parent, net - - (2,030,479) (2,030,479)
Net income - 1,229,819 - 1,229,819
Balance at December 31, 2022 15,210,001 (5,146,346) (6,558,913) 3,504,742
Advances to Parent, net - - (43,999) (43,999)
Net income - 230,528 - 230,528
Balance at December 31, 2023 $ 15,210,001 $ (4915818) §$§ (6,602,912) $ 3,691,271

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



ATP Franchising, LLC

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:
Non-cash operating lease expense
Allowance for credit losses
Depreciation and amortization
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Due from affiliated franchise
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued commission payable
Brand fund liability
Deferred revenue
Deferred franchise fees
Operating lease liability

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchases of property and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Advances to Parent, net

Net cash used in financing activities
Net decrease in cash
Cash and restricted cash, beginning of year

Cash and restricted cash, end of year

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing activity

Right-of-use asset acquired under operating lease

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2023 2022

$ 230,528 $ 1,229,819
91,725 30,286
(28,074) (51,185)
529,815 502,960
(133,622) 248,239
(1,080,956) (1,054,901)
4,996 (69,291)
219,483 (438,025)
(210,365) 833,333
125,696 67,144
(22,500) 22,500
302,000 139,500
(87,768) 1,694
(59,042) 1,462,073
(91,685) (158,042)
(91,685) (158,042)
(43,999) (2,030,479)
(43,999) (2,030,479)
(194,726) (726,448)
677,351 1,403,799

$ 482,625 $ 671,351
$ - $ 410,968




ATP Franchising, LLC

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2023 and 2022

Note 1: Organization

ATP Franchising, LLC (the “Company”), a wholly owned subsidiary of ATP Holding Company, LLC (the
“Parent™), is incorporated in the state of Delaware and commenced operations on December 3, 2018. The
Company’s operations consist of selling franchises (collectively, “Franchising Business”) that are expected to
provide services and host events for guests at an indoor trampoline park.

The Company is an affiliate of both ATPIP, LLC (“Intellectual Property”) and ATP Operations, LLC
(“Operations”). Each affiliate company performs different types of activities in the United States and are
subsidiaries of the Parent.

Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies followed in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements.

Basis of Presentation and Principals of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States (GAAP). The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
ATP Franchising, LLC and its affiliated subsidiary ATP Brand Fund, LLC (collectively, the Company). All
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Cash

The Company maintains its cash in banks in which deposits may, from time to time, exceed federally insured
limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes that it is not exposed to any
significant credit risks related to cash. The Company mitigates this risk by depositing funds with major financial
institutions.

Restricted Cash

The Company receives brand fund fees from its franchisees based on franchisee sales. Unspent brand fund fees
received from franchisees are considered restricted cash as they are to be used for the specified purpose of
providing brand promotion on behalf of the franchisees with an offsetting amount in the brand fund liability.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists primarily of receivables from franchisees and contractually determined receivables
from major suppliers. The Company monitors the financial condition of its franchisees and records provisions for
estimated losses on receivables when it believes that its franchisees are unable to make their required payments.
While the Company uses the best information available in making its determination, the ultimate recovery of
recorded receivables is also dependent upon future economic events and other conditions that may be beyond its
control. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company held an allowance for credit losses of $177,605 and
$149,531, respectively.



Franchise Operations

The Company enters into franchise agreements with third parties to build and operate parks using the Company’s
brand within a defined geographical area. The franchisee is required to operate their parks in compliance with a
franchise agreement that includes adherence to operating and quality control procedures established by the
Company. If a franchisee becomes financially distressed, the Company generally does not provide any financial
assistance. If financial distress leads to a franchisee’s noncompliance with the franchise agreement and the
Company elects to terminate the franchise agreement, the Company has the right, but not the obligation, to
acquire the assets of the franchisee at cost or fair value, as determined by an independent appraiser.

The Company generates revenues from franchising through individual franchise and development agreements. In
general, the Company’s franchise agreements provide for the payment of a franchise fee and development fee for
each opened franchised park. The agreements also require the franchisees to pay the Company a royalty of up to
7.0% of a park’s gross sales. During the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company opened 0 and 4
affiliate park locations, respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company converted 2
affiliate parks to franchise parks and converted 3 franchise parks to affiliate parks. During the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company opened 2 and 3 franchise park locations, respectively. During the
year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company closed 2 and 5 franchise park locations, respectively.
During the year ended December 31, 2023 TP Opportunity closed 3 affiliate park locations. At
December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company had 71 and 71 franchise park locations, respectively, and 9 and 12
affiliate park locations owned by TP Opportunity, respectively.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives its revenues primarily from three sources: franchise fees, royalty fees, and brand fund fees.
Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of the promised products and services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services. To
determine revenue recognition, the Company applies the following five steps:

» Identification of the contract, or contracts, with a customer;

* Identification of the performance obligations in the contract;

*  Determination of the transaction price;

» Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and
* Recognition of revenue when, or as, the performance obligation is satisfied

The Company’s primary sources of revenue are as follows:
Franchise Fees

Initial franchise fees are generated from the sale of new franchises and territories and the sale of additional
franchises and territories to existing franchise owners. Typically, franchise agreements are granted to franchise
owners for an initial term of ten years with an option to renew. The Company’s performance obligations under
franchise agreements consist of providing a license of the Company’s brand’s intellectual property, a list of
approved suppliers, certain training programs, an operations manual, and to maintain the brand fund, as defined in
the franchise agreements. These performance obligations are highly interrelated, and the Company does not
consider them to be individually distinct, and therefore accounts for them under Financial Accounting Standards
Board Accounting Standards Codification Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, as a single
performance obligation.

Deferred franchise fees at December 31, 2023 and 2022 represent fees billed or collected from franchisees related
to unopened parks.



Royalty Fees

The Company also expects to earn revenue from continuing fees based upon specific terms set forth in the
franchise agreements. Continuing fees are recognized as earned, with an appropriate provision for estimated
uncollectible amounts charged to expense and are recorded in royalty fee income. Direct costs of sales and
servicing of franchise agreements are charged to expense as incurred.

Brand Fund Fees

The Company receives brand fund fees from its franchisees based on a percentage of franchisee sales as defined
in the franchise agreements. The franchise agreements restrict the uses of the brand fund fees for the purposes of
promoting the ATP brand generally.

When the Company is determined to be the principal with respect to brand fund fees, brand fund contributions
and expenditures are reported on a gross basis in equal amounts when recognized in the consolidated statements
of operations. The Company’s obligation related to these funds is to administer the brand fund, keep unused brand
funds in segregated bank accounts and use brand funds for specified purpose of promoting the brand in
accordance with the franchise agreements. Any unspent funds collected will be due back to the franchisees in the
event that the brand fund is terminated. Therefore, brand funds are deemed earned and recorded when the
expenses of the brand funds are incurred.

Deferred Franchise Fees

Deferred franchise fees consist of initial franchise fees and area development fees paid in the current and prior
years, but for which the Company has not substantially performed or satisfied all material services or conditions
related to the sale of the franchise. Current deferred franchise fee revenue, if any, represents franchise openings
subsequent to year end as of the report issuance date and long-term deferred franchise fee revenue represents
future franchise openings, the date of which has not yet been finalized. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022,
$643,441 and $341,441 of deferred revenue, respectively, was related to initial franchise fees for unopened parks.

Accrued Commission Payable

Accrued commission payable consists of future commission payments due to an individual in accordance with an
agreed upon settlement executed during 2022 between the Company and the individual. The total settlement
amount of the agreement was $2,000,000 of which the first $1,000,000 was paid in 2022. The remaining
$1,000,000 is to be paid out in 48 monthly payments in the amount of $20,833 beginning in May 2022. The full
settlement amount of $2,000,000 was expensed in 2022 and is included in general and administrative expense in
the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Advertising and Marketing Expense

The Company expenses the costs of advertising and marketing related to the establishment of new franchises
when incurred. Advertising and marketing expense related to the establishment of new franchises was $723,876
and $1,270,765 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, and is included in general and
administrative expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.



Brand Fund

The Company established ATP Brand Fund, LLC, effective October 1, 2022, at which time franchisees began
contributing to the brand fund in accordance with the franchise agreements. The brand fund is not an advertising
fund but may be used by the Company to promote the franchise system including, but not limited to, advertising
in markets that the Company deems appropriate, developing marketing collateral, supporting public relations and
market research, or to otherwise benefit the ATP brand. The Company receives brand fund fees from its
franchisees based on a percentage of franchisee sales. The franchise agreements restrict the brand fund fees for the
purposes of promoting the ATP brand generally. The funds may be used by the Company as it deems necessary
and at its sole discretion.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Maintenance and
repairs are charged against operations as incurred. Leasehold improvements are being amortized over the shorter
of lease terms or economic lives of the assets. Depreciation and amortization are provided for using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives of the other assets as follows: computers and equipment — 5 years;
office furniture and fixtures — 7 years; website development costs — 5 years.

When property and equipment are retired or sold, the related cost and accumulated depreciation and amortization
are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is reflected in income or loss.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is
measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows
expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows,
an impairment charge is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair
value of the asset. In the opinion of management, no long-lived assets were impaired as of December 31, 2023
and 2022.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements and accompanying notes. An estimate is made in the calculations and assessments of
allowance for credit losses. Actual results could differ from those estimates under different assumptions or
conditions.
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Note 3: Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following at December 31, 2023 and 2022:

2023 2022
Website development costs $ 170,626 $ 80,316
Computers and equipment 17,931 16,556
Leasehold improvements 25,375 25,375
Office furniture and fixtures 35,795 35,795
249,727 158,042
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (32,775) (2,960)

Property and equipment, net $ 216,952 $ 155,082

Depreciation and amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 was $29,815 and
$2,960, respectively.

Note 4: Franchise Agreements
Franchise agreements represent the fair value assigned to certain acquired franchise agreements in 2018 and are
being amortized over the period of the underlying franchise agreements. For each of the years ended

December 31, 2023 and 2022, franchise agreement amortization totaled $500,000.

A summary of franchise fees as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 is as follows:

2023 2022
Franchise agreements $ 5,000,000 $ 5,000,000
Less: accumulated amortization (2,541,667) (2,041,667)

Franchise agreements, net $ 2,458,333 $ 2,958,333

Anticipated amortization expense for future periods, relating to the franchise agreements, are as follows at
December 31, 2023:

Year Ending December, 31

2024 $ 500,000
2025 500,000
2026 500,000
2027 500,000
2028 458,333

§ 2,458,333
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Note 5: Right-of-use Asset and Liability

The Company leases office space under a non-cancelable lease agreement accounted for as an operating lease,
expiring January 2027. During 2022, the Company adopted ASC 842, requiring the Company to recognize an
asset and liability for lease arrangements with terms longer than 12 months. To determine whether a contract is or
contains a lease, the Company determines at contract inception whether it contains the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. If the contract has the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefit from use of the identified asset and the right to direct the use of the
identified asset, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and lease liability. The Company uses a risk-
free rate to discount lease payments to present value. The risk-free rate is based on treasury yield curves over a
similar term of the lease at commencement date. Rental escalations, renewal options and termination options,
when applicable, have been factored into the Company’s determination of lease payments when appropriate.

ROU asset represent the Company’s right to use an underlying asset for the lease term and lease liability represent
the Company’s obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease. The Company’s leases may include
options to extend or terminate the lease. These options to extend are included in the lease term when it is
reasonably certain that the option will be exercised. While some leases provide for variable payments, they are not
included in the ROU asset and liabilities because they are not based on an index or rate.

The Company has made an accounting policy election to not recognize ROU assets and liabilities for leases with a
term of 12 months or less unless the lease includes an option to renew or purchase the underlying asset that is
reasonably certain to be exercised. The Company has also elected not to separate non-lease components from the
associated lease components and instead account for each separate lease component and its associated non-lease
component as a single lease component in determination of lease liabilities and corresponding ROU assets.

The discount rate used to determine the Company’s ROU asset and liability as of December 31, 2023 was 1.26%.
Operating lease cost for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 totaled $91,982 and $33,647, respectively.
The operating lease costs are included in general and administrative expense in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations.

Future operating lease payments as of December 31, 2023 for each of the next five years are as follows:

Years ending December 31,

2024 $ 102,478
2025 104,817
2026 107,146
2027 8,856
Total 323,297
Less: present value discount (6,340)
Present value of operating lease liability 316,957
Less: current portion (99,054)
$ 217,903
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Note 6: Income Taxes

The Company is treated as a disregarded entity for tax purposes. As a result, all taxable income or losses of the
Company are reported by the Parent. As a limited liability company, the Parent’s taxable income or loss is
allocated to the members. Therefore, no liability or asset related to income taxes has been included in the
consolidated balance sheets.

The Company applies the provisions of FASB ASC 740, Income Taxes. These standards require that a tax
position be recognized or derecognized based on a “more-likely-than-not” threshold. This applies to positions
taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The Company does not believe its consolidated financial statements
include any material uncertain tax positions. There have been no penalties or interest incurred by the Company for
the years ended December 31, 2023 or 2022.

Note 7: Related Party Transactions

Beginning on January 1, 2019 the Company paid its affiliate, ATPIP LLC, a one percent trademark royalty based
on monthly royalty billings to franchisees. Total trademark royalty fees charged by ATPIP LLC were $72,547 and
§70,706 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, and are included in general and
administrative expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

The Company funded operations of its Parent, ATP Holding, LLC, and its affiliate, ATP Operations, LLC,
through related party advances as authorized by the Parent. The Company classifies these advances as equity
given there is no intention to settle the intercompany balances. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company
had net cumulative advances to the Parent totaling $6,602,912 and $6,558,913, respectively, which are recorded
as a reduction in member’s equity given the nature of such advances.

The Company has historically shared certain overhead costs with the Parent that are allocated on a monthly basis
including sales and marketing, payroll, and other overhead activities. Allocations of shared costs to the Company
generally include employee related costs, including payroll and benefit costs as well as overhead costs related to
the support functions. During 2022, the Parent began an initiative to allocate the majority of its overhead costs to
the Company as the related costs were primarily supporting the franchise and affiliate operations of the brand with
substantially all costs having been transferred to the Company during 2023. As a result, there were no shared
overhead costs with the Parent during 2023 and shared overhead costs for the year ended December 31, 2022
totaled $410,000 and were included in general and administrative expense in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations.

During the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company funded certain parks to cover startup
and operating expenses in the amount of $1,080,956 and $756,758, respectively, on behalf of a
franchisee, TP Opportunity, owned by an affiliated investment company under common control of NRD
Capital. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, $2,178,729 and $1,097,773, respectively, was owed by TP
Opportunity and is included in due from affiliated franchise in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

The Company has a management agreement with NRD Capital, the owner of the Parent. The total management

fee expense incurred was $480,000 for the year ended December 31, 2023 and was included in general and
administrative expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
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Note 8: Commitments and Contingencies

Various legal actions and claims which have arisen in the normal course of business may be pending against the
Company from time to time. It is the opinion of management, based on consultation with counsel, that the
ultimate resolution of these contingencies will not have a material effect on the financial condition, results of
operations, or liquidity of the Company.

Note 9: Concentrations

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, two and one vendor(s) accounted for approximately 76% and 77% of total
accounts payable, respectively. During the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, one vendor accounted for
14% and 11% of total operating expenses, respectively.

Note 10: Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated for subsequent events between the balance sheet date of December 31, 2023, and the
date of the report, the date the consolidated financial statements were available for issuance, and has concluded

that all significant subsequent events requiring recognition or disclosure have been incorporated into these
consolidated financial statements and the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

seskeskoskosk
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Member of
ATP Franchising, LLC

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of ATP Franchising, LLC, (the “Company”), which
comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2021, and the related statements of operations,
changes in member’s equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2021, and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America ("GAAS"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are required to be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Prior Period Financial Statements

The financial statements of ATP Franchising, LLC were audited by other auditors whose
report dated September 14, 2021 expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the
financial statements are issued or available to be issued.

BETTER TOGETHER

A Limited Liability Partnership of Certified Public Accountants & Consultants
Riverwood 200 3300 Riverwood Parkway Suite 700 Atlanta, GA 30339 phone 770.396.2200 fax 770.390.0394

www.btcpa.net
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Bosmncflt Thaskar [LF

March 4, 2022



ATP Franchising, LLC

Balance Sheets
December 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
Assets
Current assets:
Cash $ 1,403,799 $ 195,454
Accounts receivable - net of allowance for
doubtful accounts of $200,716 and $324,222, respectively 676,424 557,481
Due from affiliated franchise 42,872 235
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 23,234 60,002
Total current assets 2,146,329 813,172
Franchise agreements, net 3,458,333 3,958,333
Total assets $ 5,604,662 $ 4,771,505
Liabilities and Member's Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 1,097,319 $ 1,214,547
Related party payables - 56,196
Deferred franchise fees, current portion 55,750 71,646
Total current liabilities 1,153,069 1,342,389
Deferred franchise fees, net of current portion 413,449 312,261
Total liabilities 1,566,518 1,654,650
Commitments and contingencies (Note 6)
Member’s equity:
Member capital 15,210,001 15,210,001
Accumulated deficit (6,643,423) (8,666,128)
Due from Parent (4,528,434) (3,427,018)
Total member's equity 4,038,144 3,116,855
Total liabilities and member's equity $ 5,604,662 $ 4,771,505

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



ATP Franchising, LLC

Statements of Operations
For the Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Revenues:
Franchise fees

Royalty fees
Other revenues

Total revenues

Expenses:
Selling expenses
General and administrative expense
Goodwill impairment

Total operating expenses

Net income (loss)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

2021 2020
71,646 $ 38,333
5,247,655 2,217,558
139,700 91,133
5,459,001 2,347,024
652,320 275,467
2,783,976 4,063,145
- 7,563,417
3,436,296 11,902,029
2,022,705 $  (9,555,005)




ATP Franchising, LL.C

Statements of Changes in Member’s Equity
For the Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Total
Member Accumulated Due from Member's
Capital Deficit Parent Equity
Balance at December 31,2019  § 15,210,001 $ 888,877 $ (2,591,510) $ 13,507,368
Advances to Parent, net - - (835,508) (835,508)
Net loss - (9,555,005) - (9,555,005)
Balance at December 31, 2020 15,210,001 (8,666,128) (3,427,018) 3,116,855
Advances to Parent, net - - (1,101,416) (1,101,416)
Net income - 2,022,705 - 2,022,705
Balance at December 31,2021 § 15,210,001 $ (6,643,423) $ (4,528,434) $ 4,038,144

See accompanying notes to financial statements.




ATP Franchising, LL.C

Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss) $ 2,022,705 $  (9,555,005)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Goodwill impairment - 7,563,417
Allowance for doubtful accounts (123,806) (141,717)
Amortization 500,000 1,445,427
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 4,863 883,565
Due from affiliated franchise (42,637) 30,757
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 36,768 (27,906)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (117,228) 512,807
Deferred revenues 85,292 159,167
Related party payables (56,196) (63,693)
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,309,761 806,819
Cash flows from financing activities:
Advances to Parent, net (1,101,416) (835,508)
Net cash used in financing activities (1,101,416) (835,508)
Net increase (decrease) in cash 1,208,345 (28,689)
Cash, beginning of year 195,454 224,143
Cash, end of year $ 1,403,799 $ 195,454

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



ATP Franchising, LLC

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Note 1: Organization

ATP Franchising, LLC (the “Company”), a wholly owned subsidiary of ATP Holding Company, LLC (the
“Parent”), is incorporated in the state of Delaware and commenced operations on December 3, 2018. The
Company’s operations consist of selling franchises (collectively, “Franchising Business™) that are expected to
provide services and host events for guests at an indoor trampoline park.

The Company is an affiliate of both ATPIP, LLC (“Intellectual Property””) and ATP Operations, LLC
(“Operations”). Each affiliate company performs different types of activities in the United States and are
subsidiaries of the Parent.

Note 2: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies followed in the preparation of these financial
statements.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements were prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (“US GAAP”).

Cash

The Company maintains its cash in banks in which deposits may, from time to time, exceed federally insured limits.
The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes that it is not exposed to any significant
credit risks related to cash. The Company mitigates this risk by depositing funds with major financial institutions.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists primarily of receivables from franchisees and contractually-determined receivables
from major suppliers. The Company monitors the financial condition of its franchisees and records provisions for
estimated losses on receivables when it believes that its franchisees are unable to make their required payments.
While the Company uses the best information available in making its determination, the ultimate recovery of
recorded receivables is also dependent upon future economic events and other conditions that may be beyond its
control. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company held an allowance for doubtful accounts of $200,716
and $324,222, respectively.



Franchise Operations

The Company enters into franchise agreements with third parties to build and operate parks using the Company’s
brand within a defined geographical area. The franchisee is required to operate their parks in compliance with a
franchise agreement that includes adherence to operating and quality control procedures established by the
Company. If a franchisee becomes financially distressed, the Company generally does not provide any financial
assistance. If financial distress leads to a franchisee’s noncompliance with the franchise agreement and the
Company elects to terminate the franchise agreement, the Company has the right, but not the obligation, to acquire
the assets of the franchisee at cost or fair value, as determined by an independent appraiser.

The Company generates revenues from franchising through individual franchise and development agreements. In
general, the Company’s franchise agreements provide for the payment of a franchise fee and development fee for
each opened franchised park. The agreements also require the franchisees to pay the Company a royalty of up to
7.0% of a park’s gross sales. During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company opened 7 and 3
franchise park locations, respectively, and closed 3 and 2 franchise park locations, respectively. At
December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company had 77 and 73 franchise park locations, respectively, and 2 corporate
park locations owned by Operations.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives its revenues primarily from two sources: franchise fees and royalty fees. Revenue is
recognized upon transfer of control of the promised products and services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those products or services. To determine revenue recognition,
we apply the following five steps:

» Identification of the contract, or contracts, with a customer;

» Identification of the performance obligations in the contract;

* Determination of the transaction price;

» Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and
* Recognition of revenue when, or as, the performance obligation is satisfied

The Company’s primary sources of revenue are as follows:
Franchise Fees

Initial franchise fees are generated from the sale of new franchises and territories and the sale of additional
franchises and territories to existing franchise owners. Typically, franchise agreements are granted to franchise
owners for an initial term of ten years with an option to renew. The Company will recognize renewal fees over the
term of the renewal. In the event a franchise agreement is terminated, any remaining deferred fees are recognized
in the period of termination. The Company’s performance obligations under franchise agreements consist of
providing a license of the Company’s brand’s intellectual property, a list of approved suppliers, certain training
programs, an operations manual, and to maintain the MAP fund, as defined in the franchise agreements, which the
Company anticipates establishing during 2022. These performance obligations are highly interrelated and we do
not consider them to be individually distinct, and therefore account for them under Financial Accounting Standards
Board Accounting Standards Codification Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, as a single
performance obligation. Revenue related to franchise fees is recognized evenly over the term of the agreement.

Royalty Fees

The Company also expects to earn revenue from continuing fees based upon specific terms set forth in the franchise
agreements. Continuing fees are recognized as earned, with an appropriate provision for estimated uncollectible
amounts charged to expense and are recorded in royalty fee income. Direct costs of sales and servicing of franchise
agreements are charged to expense as incurred.



Deferred Franchise Fees

Deferred franchise fees consists of initial franchise fees and area development fees paid in the current and prior
years, but for which the Company has not substantially performed or satisfied all material services or conditions
related to the sale of the franchise. Deferred franchise fees are reduced as fees are recognized to revenue on a
straight-line basis over the term of the underlying franchise license for the respective restaurant. As of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, $469,199 and $383,907 of deferred revenue, respectively, was related to development
fees, which are not yet being amortized.

Advertising and Marketing Expense

The Company expenses the costs of advertising and marketing related to the establishment of new franchises when
incurred. Advertising and marketing expense related to the establishment of new franchises was $568,048 and
$508,763 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and are included in general and
administrative expense in the accompanying statements of operations.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. An estimate is made in the calculations and assessments of allowance for doubtful accounts.
Actual results could differ from those estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

Goodwill Impairment

During 2020, the Company concluded that the continuing impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic was an event or
change in circumstance which may indicate that goodwill had been impaired. Accordingly, the Company evaluated
the entity level fair value of invested capital as of December 31, 2020, the identified triggering date, as compared
to the entity level carrying value of invested capital. Based on this evaluation, the Company determined that the
carrying amount of entity level invested capital exceeded the entity level fair value by an amount that exceeded the
recorded goodwill balance. Accordingly, goodwill was impaired in 2020 for the remaining balance totaling
$7,563,417.

COVID-19 Disruption

In March 2020, the World Health Organization officially designated COVID-19 as a pandemic, and as a result,
businesses across the country and the world have had to take steps to protect their employees, and employees of
companies with whom they do business. The associated business disruption has ranged from limited to significant,
depending on the nature of the business being impacted. Management is presently unable to predict what short-term
and long-term impact this level of disruption will have on the Company, and there can be no assurances that a
significant impact to the business will not take place. Other than those in 2020, there have been no adjustments to
these financial statements as a result of this uncertainty.

Reclassification

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation. These reclassifications
had no effect on previously reported results of operations. During 2021, the Company determined that the due from
parent totaling $4,476,883 and $3,427,018, at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, should be classified
within member’s equity (Note 5).



Note 3: Franchise Agreements
Franchise agreements represent the fair value assigned to certain acquired franchise agreements in 2018 and are
being amortized over the period of the underlying franchise agreements. For each of the years ended

December 31, 2021 and 2020, franchise agreement amortization totaled $500,000.

A summary of franchise fees as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

2021 2020
Franchise agreements $ 5,000,000 $ 5,000,000
Less: accumulated amortization (1,541,667) (1,041,667)
Franchise agreements, net $ 3,458,333 $ 3,958,333

Anticipated amortization expense for future periods, relating to the franchise agreements, are as follows at
December 31, 2021:

Year Ending December, 31

2022 $ 500,000

2023 500,000

2024 500,000

2025 500,000

2026 500,000
Thereafter 958,333
$ 3,458,333

Note 4: Income Taxes

The Company is treated as a disregarded entity for tax purposes. As a result, all taxable income or losses of the
Company are reported by the Parent. As a limited liability company, the Parent’s taxable income or loss is allocated
to the members. Therefore, no liability or asset related to income taxes has been included in the balance sheet.

The Company applies the provisions of FASB ASC 740, Income Taxes. These standards require that a tax position
be recognized or derecognized based on a “more-likely-than-not” threshold. This applies to positions taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return. The Company does not believe its financial statements include any material
uncertain tax positions. There have been no penalties or interest incurred by the Company for the years ended
December 31, 2021 or 2020.

Note 5:  Related Party Transactions

Beginning on January 1, 2019 the Company paid its affiliate, ATPIP LLC, a one percent trademark royalty based
on monthly royalty billings to franchisees. Total trademark royalty fees charged by ATPIP LLC were $54,239 and
$23,904 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and are included in general and
administrative expense in the accompanying statements of operations. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the
Company owed ATPIP, LLC $0 and $56,196, respectively, for unpaid trademark royalty fees.
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The Company funded operations of its Parent, ATP Holding, LLC, and its affiliate, ATP Operations, LLC, through
related party advances as authorized by the Parent. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company had net
cumulative advances to the Parent totaling $4,476,883 and $3,427,018, respectively, which is recorded as a
reduction in member’s equity given the nature of such advances. During the year ended December 31, 2021, the
Company determined there was no intention to settle the intercompany balances, therefore, the Company
determined the nature of these balances should be considered equity. Accordingly, the Company reclassified the
balances previously included in assets as a contra-equity account which is included in the accompanying statements
of changes in member's equity.

The Company shares certain overhead costs with the Parent that are allocated on a monthly basis including sales
and marketing, payroll, and other overhead activities. Allocations of shared costs to the Company generally include
employee related costs, including payroll and benefit costs as well as overhead costs related to the support functions.
Shared costs for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 totaled $816,000 and $660,000, respectively, and
are included in general and administrative expense in the accompanying statements of operations.

The Company paid certain startup expenses in the amount of $176,037 on behalf of a franchisee, TP Opportunity,
owned by an affiliated investment company under common control of NRD Capital. As of December 31, 2021 and
2020, $42,872 and $235, respectively, was owed by TP Opportunity and is included in due from affiliated franchise
in the accompanying balance sheets.

Note 6: Commitment and Contingencies

Various legal actions and claims which have arisen in the normal course of business may be pending against the
Company from time to time. It is the opinion of management, based on consultation with counsel, that the ultimate
resolution of these contingencies will not have a material effect on the financial condition, results of operations, or
liquidity of the Company.

Note 7: Concentration

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, two vendors accounted for approximately 71% and 76% of total accounts
payable, respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2021, one vendor accounted for 15% of total operating
expenses.

Note 8: Subsequent Events

The Company evaluated its December 31, 2021 financial statements for subsequent events through March 4, 2022

the date the financials were available to be issued. The Company is not aware of any subsequent events which would
require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements.

seskoskoskosk
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ATP Franchising, LLC
2024_04 FDD | Ex F — Representations Statement
1360.001.013/405753



REPRESENTATIONS STATEMENT

The purpose of this Statement is to demonstrate to ATP FRANCHISING, LLC (“Franchisor’) that the

661 bR ENT3
2

person(s) signing below (

me” or “my”), whether acting individually or on behalf of any legal

entity established to acquire the area development and/or franchise rights, (a) fully understands that
the purchase of an Altitude Trampoline Park franchise or area development rights is a significant long-
term commitment, complete with its associated risks, and (b)is not relying on any statements,
representations, promises or assurances that are not specifically set forth in Franchisor’s Franchise
Disclosure Document and Exhibits (collectively, the “FDD”) in deciding to purchase the franchise. In

that regard, I represent to Franchisor and acknowledge that:

[understand that buying a franchise is not a guarantee of success. Purchasing or establishing
any business is risky, and the success or failure of the franchise is subject to many variables
such as my skills and abilities (and those of my partners, officers, employees), the time my
associates and I devote to the business, competition, interest rates, the economy, inflation,
operation costs, location, lease terms, the market place generally and other economic and
business factors. [ am aware of and am willing to undertake these business risks. I
understand that the success or failure of my business will depend primarily upon my efforts
and not those of Franchisor.

I received a copy of the FDD at least 14 calendar days before I executed a Franchise
Agreement and/or the Area Development Agreement, or paid Franchisor or its affiliates any
fees. I understand that all of my rights and responsibilities and those of Franchisor in
connection with the franchise are set forth in these agreements and only in these agreements.
I have had the opportunity to personally and carefully review these documents and have, in
fact, done so. I have been advised to have professionals (such as lawyers and accountants)
review the documents for me and to have them help me understand these documents. I have
also been advised to consult with other franchisees regarding the risks associated with the
purchase of the franchise.

Neither the Franchisor nor any of its affiliates, officers, employees or agents (including any
franchise broker) has made a statement, promise or assurance to me concerning any matter
related to the franchise (including those regarding advertising, marketing, training, support
service or assistance provided by Franchisor) that is contrary to, or different from, the
information contained in the FDD.

My decision to purchase the franchise has not been influenced by any oral representations,
assurances, warranties, guarantees or promises whatsoever made by the Franchisor or any of
its officers, employees or agents (including any franchise broker), including as to the
likelihood of success of the franchise.

I have made my own independent determination that I have the capital necessary to fund the
franchised business and my living expenses, particularly during the start-up phase.

ATP Franchising, LLC
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PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING QUESTION CAREFULLY. THEN SELECT
YES OR NO AND PLACE YOUR INITIALS WHERE INDICATED.

Have you received any information from the Franchisor or any of its affiliates, officers,
employees or agents (including any franchise broker) concerning actual, average, projected
or forecasted sales, revenues, income, profits or earnings of the franchised business
(including any statement, promise or assurance concerning the likelihood of success) other
than information contained in the FDD?

O Yes OO No (Initial Here: )

If you selected “Yes,” please describe the information you received on the lines below:

The franchise sale is for more than $1,143,100.00, excluding the cost of unimproved land
and any financing received from the franchisor or an affiliate, and thus is exempted from the
Federal Trade Commission’s Franchise Rule disclosure requirements, pursuant to 16 CFR
436.8(a)(5)(1).

INITIAL:

INITIAL:

DO NOT SIGN THIS QUESTIONNAIRE IF YOU ARE LOCATED, OR YOUR FRANCHISED
BUSINESS WILL BE LOCATED IN: CALIFORNIA, HAWAII, ILLINOIS, INDIANA,
MARYLAND, MICHIGAN, MINNESOTA, NEW YORK, NORTH DAKOTA, RHODE

ISLAND, SOUTH DAKOTA, VIRGINIA, WASHINGTON, OR WISCONSIN.

[Signature page follows]
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FRANCHISE OWNER FRANCHISE OWNER

(IF YOU ARE A CORPORATION, (IF YOU ARE AN INDIVIDUAL):
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, OR
PARTNERSHIP):

Individual Name

Entity Name
Sign:
Sign: DATED:
Name:
Title:
DATED:
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2024_04 FDD | Ex F — Representations Statement
1360.001.013/405753



EXHIBIT G

SAMPLE GENERAL RELEASE

ATP Franchising, LLC
2024_04 FDD | Ex. G — Sample General Release
1360.001.013/405754



ATP FRANCHISING, LLC

GENERAL RELEASE AGREEMENT

ATP FRANCHISING, LLC (“we,” “us,” or “our”) and
(“you” or “your”) are currently are parties to a certain [franchise agreement or area
development agreement] (the “Agreement”) dated , 20 . You have
asked us to take the following action or to agree to the following request:

We have the right under the Agreement to obtain a general release from you and your owners as a
condition of taking this action or agreeing to this request. Therefore, we are willing to take the action
or agree to the request specified above if you and your owners give us the release and covenant not to
sue provided below in this document. You and your owners are willing to give us the release and
covenant not to sue provided below as partial consideration for our willingness to take the action or
agree to the request described above.

You and your owners, jointly and severally, on behalf of themselves and their spouses and
immediate family members, and each such foregoing person’s or entity’s respective affiliates,
employees, owners, officers, directors, successors, assigns, spouses and immediate family members
(the “Releasing Parties”) hereby fully and forever unconditionally release and discharge us and our
current and former affiliates, parents, subsidiaries, franchisees, area developers, owners, agents,
insurers and our and their respective affiliates, employees, officers, directors, successors, assigns,
owners, guarantors and other representatives (the “Franchisor Parties”), of and from any and all
claims, obligations, debts, proceedings, demands, causes of action, rights to terminate and rescind,
liabilities, losses, damages, and rights of every kind and nature whatsoever, and known or unknown,
suspected or unsuspected, whether at law or in equity, which any of them has, had, or may have against
any of the Franchisor Parties, from the beginning of time to the date of this document (together,
Claims”), including any and all Claims in any way arising out of or relating to the Agreement or the
relationship of the Releasing Parties with any of the Franchisor Parties. You and your owners, on your
own behalf and the other Releasing Parties, further covenant not to sue any of the Franchisor Parties
on any of the Claims released by this paragraph and represent that you have not assigned any of the
Claims released by this paragraph to any individual or entity.

IF THE FRANCHISE YOU OPERATE UNDER THE AGREEMENT IS LOCATED IN
CALIFORNIA OR ANY OF THE RELEASING PARTIES IS A RESIDENT OF CALIFORNIA, THE
FOLLOWING SHALL APPLY:

SECTION 1542 ACKNOWLEDGMENT. IT IS YOUR INTENTION, ON YOUR
OWN BEHALF AND ON BEHALF OF THE RELEASING PARTIES, IN
EXECUTING THIS RELEASE THAT THIS INSTRUMENT BE AND IS A
GENERAL RELEASE WHICH SHALL BE EFFECTIVE AS A BAR TO EACH
AND EVERY CLAIM, DEMAND, OR CAUSE OF ACTION RELEASED BY YOU
OR THE RELEASING PARTIES. YOU RECOGNIZE THAT YOU OR THE
RELEASING PARTIES MAY HAVE SOME CLAIM, DEMAND, OR CAUSE OF
ACTION AGAINST THE FRANCHISOR PARTIES OF WHICH YOU, HE, SHE,
ORIT IS TOTALLY UNAWARE AND UNSUSPECTING, WHICH YOU, HE, SHE,
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OR IT IS GIVING UP BY EXECUTING THIS RELEASE. IT IS YOUR
INTENTION, ON YOUR OWN BEHALF AND ON BEHALF OF THE RELEASING
PARTIES, IN EXECUTING THIS INSTRUMENT THAT IT WILL DEPRIVE YOU,
HIM, HER, OR IT OF EACH SUCH CLAIM, DEMAND, OR CAUSE OF ACTION
AND PREVENT YOU, HIM, HER, OR IT FROM ASSERTING IT AGAINST THE
FRANCHISOR PARTIES. IN FURTHERANCE OF THIS INTENTION, YOU, ON
YOUR OWN BEHALF AND ON BEHALF OF THE RELEASING PARTIES,
EXPRESSLY WAIVE ANY RIGHTS OR BENEFITS CONFERRED BY THE
PROVISIONS OF SECTION 1542 OF THE CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE, WHICH
PROVIDES AS FOLLOWS:

“A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS THAT THE
CREDITOR OR RELEASING PARTY DOES NOT KNOW OR SUSPECT TO
EXIST IN HIS OR HER FAVOR AT THE TIME OF EXECUTING THE
RELEASE AND THAT, IF KNOWN BY HIM OR HER, WOULD HAVE
MATERIALLY AFFECTED HIS OR HER SETTLEMENT WITH THE
DEBTOR OR RELEASED PARTY.”

YOU ACKNOWLEDGE AND REPRESENT THAT YOU HAVE CONSULTED
WITH LEGAL COUNSEL BEFORE EXECUTING THIS RELEASE AND THAT
YOU UNDERSTAND ITS MEANING, INCLUDING THE EFFECT OF SECTION
1542 OF THE CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE, AND EXPRESSLY CONSENT THAT
THIS RELEASE SHALL BE GIVEN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT ACCORDING
TO EACH AND ALL OF ITS EXPRESS TERMS AND PROVISIONS,
INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, THOSE RELATING TO THE RELEASE
OF UNKNOWN AND UNSUSPECTED CLAIMS, DEMANDS, AND CAUSES OF
ACTION.

If the franchise you operate under the Agreement is located in Maryland or if any of the
Releasing Parties is a resident of Maryland, the following shall apply:

Any general release provided for hereunder shall not apply to any liability under the
Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

If the franchise you operate under the Agreement is located in Washington or if any of the Releasing
Parties is a resident of Washington, the following shall apply:

Any general release provided for hereunder shall not apply to any liability under the Washington
Franchise Investment Protection Act, RCW 19.100, and the rules adopted thereunder.

[Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties have executed and delivered this document on the date
stated below.

ATP FRANCHISING, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

Sign:
Name:
Title:

DATED:

FRANCHISE OWNER FRANCHISE OWNER

(IF YOU ARE A CORPORATION, (IF YOU ARE AN INDIVIDUAL):
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, OR
PARTNERSHIP):

Individual Name

Entity Name

Sign:

Sign: DATED:
Name:
Title:

DATED:
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ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES FOR THE
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT OF
ATP FRANCHISING, LLC

The following are additional disclosures for the Franchise Disclosure Document of ATP
Franchising, LLC required by various state franchise laws. Each provision of these additional
disclosures will only apply to you if the applicable state franchise law applies to you.

FOR THE FOLLOWING STATES: CALIFORNIA, HAWAII, ILLINOIS, INDIANA,
MARYLAND, MICHIGAN, MINNESOTA, NEW YORK, NORTH DAKOTA, RHODE
ISLAND, SOUTH DAKOTA, VIRGINIA, WASHINGTON, OR WISCONSIN.

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with
the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor.
This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.

CALIFORNIA

1. THE CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW REQUIRES THAT A
COPY OF ALL PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE
BE DELIVERED TOGETHER WITH THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

2. SECTION 31125 OF THE CALIFORNIA CORPORATIONS CODE REQUIRES US
TO GIVE YOU A DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT, IN A FORM CONTAINING THE INFORMATION
THAT THE COMMISSIONER MAY BY RULE OR ORDER REQUIRE, BEFORE A
SOLICITATION OF A PROPOSED MATERIAL MODIFICATION OF AN EXISTING
FRANCHISE.

3. NEITHER WE, OUR PARENT, PREDECESSOR OR AFFILIATE NOR ANY
PERSON IN ITEM 2 OF THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT IS SUBJECT TO ANY
CURRENTLY EFFECTIVE ORDER OF ANY NATIONAL SECURITIES ASSOCIATION OR
NATIONAL SECURITIES EXCHANGE, AS DEFINED IN THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE AC
OF 1934, 15 U.S.C.A SECTIONS 78A ET SEQ., SUSPENDING OR EXPELLING SUCH PERSONS
FROM MEMBERSHIP IN THAT ASSOCIATION OR EXCHANGE.

4. OUR WEBSITE, www.altitudetrampolinepark.com, HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED
OR APPROVED BY THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION &
INNOVATION. ANY COMPLAINTS CONCERNING THE CONTENT OF THE WEBSITE MAY
BE DIRECTED TO THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION &
INNOVATION AT www.dfpi.ca.gov.

5. The following paragraph is added at the end of Item 6:

The highest rate of interest allowed by California law is 10% annually.
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6. The following paragraphs are added at the end of Item 17:

The Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement require you to sign a
general release of claims upon renewal or transfer of the Franchise Agreement or Area
Development Agreement. California Corporations Code Section 31512 provides that
any condition, stipulation or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any
franchise to waive compliance with any provision of that law or any rule or order
thereunder is void. Section 31512 might void a waiver of your rights under the
Franchise Investment Law (California Corporations Code Section 31000 — 31516).
Business and Professions Code Section 20010 might void a waiver of your rights under
the Franchise Relations Act (Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 — 20043).

The Franchise Agreement contains a liquidated damages clause. Under California
Civil Code Section 1671, certain liquidated damages clauses are unenforceable.

California Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 through 20043 provide
rights to the franchisee concerning termination, transfer or nonrenewal of a franchise.
If the Area Development Agreement or Franchise Agreement contain a provision that
is inconsistent with the law, and the law applies, the law will control.

The Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement contain a covenant not
to compete that extends beyond termination of the franchise. This provision might not
be enforceable under California law.

The Franchise Agreement provides for termination upon bankruptcy. This provision
may not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C.A Section 101 et seq.).

The Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement require binding
arbitration. The arbitration will be conducted at a suitable location chosen by the
arbitrator which is within a 50 mile radius of our then current principal place of
business (currently Dallas, Texas) with the costs being borne as provided in the
Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement. Prospective developers and
franchisees are encouraged to consult private legal counsel to determine the
applicability of California and federal laws (such as Business and Professions Code
Section 20040.5, Code of Civil Procedure Section 1281, and the Federal Arbitration
Act) to any provisions of the Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement
restricting venue to a forum outside the State of California.

Prospective franchisees are encouraged to consult private legal counsel to determine
the applicability of California and federal laws (such as Business and Professions Code
Section 20040.5, Code of Civil Procedure Section 1281, and the Federal Arbitration
Act) to any provisions of the Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement
restricting venue to a forum outside the State of California.

The Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement require application of the
laws of Delaware. This provision might not be enforceable under California law.
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Under the Franchise Agreement, we reserve the right to require that franchisees comply
with maximum and minimum prices it sets for goods and services. The Antitrust Law
Section of the Office of the California Attorney General views maximum price
agreements as per se violations of the California’s Cartwright Act (Cal. Bus. and Prof.
Code §§ 16700 to 16770).

Section 31512.1 of the California Corporations Code requires that any provision of the
Franchise Agreement, Disclosure Document, acknowledgement, questionnaire, or other
writing, including any exhibit thereto, disclaiming or denying any of the following shall be
deemed contrary to public policy and shall be void and unenforceable: (a) representations
made by the franchisor or its personnel or agents to a prospective franchisee; (b) reliance by a
franchisee on any representations made by the franchisor or its personnel or agents; (c) reliance
by a franchisee on the franchise disclosure document, including any exhibit thereto; or (d)
violations of any provision of this division.

7. The following paragraphs are added at the end of Item 19:

The earning claims figure(s) does(do) not reflect the costs of sales, operating expenses,
or other costs or expenses that must be deducted from the gross revenue or gross sales
figures to obtain your net income or profit. You should conduct an independent
investigation of the costs and expenses you will incur in operating your Park.
Franchisees or former franchisees, listed in the franchise Disclosure Document, may
be one source of this information.

HAWAII

1. THESE FRANCHISES WILL BE/HAVE BEEN FILED UNDER THE FRANCHISE
INVESTMENT LAW OF THE STATE OF HAWAIIL. FILING DOES NOT CONSTITUTE
APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION OR ENDORSEMENT BY THE DIRECTOR OF
COMMERCE AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS OR A FINDING BY THE DIRECTOR OF
COMMERCE AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED
HEREIN IS TRUE, COMPLETE AND NOT MISLEADING. THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT
LAW MAKES IT UNLAWFUL TO OFFER OR SELL ANY FRANCHISE IN THIS STATE
WITHOUT FIRST PROVIDING TO THE PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE, OR
SUBFRANCHISOR, AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS PRIOR TO THE EXECUTION BY THE
PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE OF ANY BINDING FRANCHISE OR OTHER AGREEMENT,
OR AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS PRIOR TO THE PAYMENT OF ANY CONSIDERATION BY
THE FRANCHISEE, OR SUBFRANCHISOR, WHICHEVER OCCURS FIRST, A COPY OF
THE OFFERING CIRCULAR, TOGETHER WITH A COPY OF ALL PROPOSED
AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE. THIS OFFERING
CIRCULAR CONTAINS A SUMMARY ONLY OF CERTAIN MATERIAL PROVISIONS OF
THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT. THE CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT SHOULD BE
REFERRED TO FOR A STATEMENT OF ALL RIGHTS, CONDITIONS, RESTRICTIONS
AND OBLIGATIONS OF BOTH THE FRANCHISOR AND THE FRANCHISEE.
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DO NOT SIGN THE REPRESENTATIONS STATEMENT IF YOU ARE LOCATED, OR
YOUR PARK WILL BE LOCATED IN HAWAII

ILLINOIS
The following paragraphs are added to the end of Item 17:

Except for the U.S. Federal Arbitration Act and other federal laws in the U.S., the laws
of the State of Illinois will govern the Franchise Agreement.

Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act provides that any provision in a
franchise agreement that designates jurisdiction or venue outside the State of Illinois is
void. However, a franchise agreement may provide for arbitration outside of Illinois.

Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act provides that any condition,
stipulation or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive
compliance with the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinois is
void.

Y our rights upon termination and non-renewal of a franchise agreement are subject to
sections 19 and 20 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act.

MARYLAND
1. The following language is added at the end of Items 5 and 7:

Based upon the franchisor's financial condition, the Maryland Securities Commissioner
has required a financial assurance. Therefore, all initial fees and payments owed by
franchisees shall be deferred until the franchisor completes its pre-opening obligations
under the Franchise Agreement. In addition, all development fees and initial payments
by area developers shall be deferred until the first franchise under the Area
Development Agreement opens.

2. The following language is added at the end of Item 17.

The Area Development Agreement and Franchise Agreement provides for termination
upon bankruptcy. This provision might not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy
law (111 U.S.C. Sections 101 et seq.) but we will enforce it to the extent enforceable.

3. The following is added to the end of Item 17(c) and Item 17(m):

However, any release required as a condition of renewal and/or assignment/transfer
will not apply to claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and
Disclosure Law.
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4. The following language is added at the end of Item 17(v):

A franchisee may bring a lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. Any claims arising under the Maryland
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must be brought within 3 years after the
grant of the franchise.

MINNESOTA
1. The following is added at the end of the chart in Item 17:

With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, we will comply with Minn.
Stat. Sec. 80C.14, Subds. 3, 4 and 5 which require, except in certain specified cases,
that you be given 90 days' notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) of the Franchise
Agreement and Area Development Agreement and 180 days' notice for non-renewal of
the Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement.

Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.21 and Minn. Rule 2860.4400] prohibits us from requiring
litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota, requiring waiver of a jury trial or
requiring the Area Developer or Franchisee to consent to liquidated damages,
termination penalties or judgment notes. In addition, nothing in the Disclosure
Document, Area Development Agreement or Franchise Agreement can abrogate or
reduce any of Area Developer’s or Franchisee’s rights as provided for in Minnesota
Statutes, Chapter 80C, or Area Developer’s or Franchisee’s rights to any procedure,
forum or remedies provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction.

Any release required as a condition of renewal or transfer/assignment will not apply to
the extent prohibited by Governing Law with respect to claims arising under Minn.
Rule 2860.4400D.

NEW YORK

1. The following information is added to the cover page of the Franchise Disclosure

Document:

INFORMATION COMPARING FRANCHISORS IS AVAILABLE. CALL THE
STATE ADMINISTRATORS LISTED IN EXHIBITA OR YOUR PUBLIC
LIBRARY FOR SOURCES OF INFORMATION. REGISTRATION OF THIS
FRANCHISE BY NEW YORK STATE DOES NOT MEAN THAT NEW YORK
STATE RECOMMENDS IT OR HAS VERIFIED THE INFORMATION IN THIS
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. IF YOU LEARN THAT ANYTHING IN THE
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT IS UNTRUE, CONTACT THE FEDERAL TRADE
COMMISSION AND NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF LAW, BUREAU
OF INVESTOR PROTECTION AND SECURITIES, 28 LIBERTY STREET, 2157

FLOOR, NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10005.
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WE MAY, IF IT CHOOSES, NEGOTIATE WITH YOU ABOUT ITEMS
COVERED IN THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. HOWEVER, THE
FRANCHISOR CANNOT USE THE NEGOTIATING PROCESS TO PREVAIL
UPON A PROSPECTIVE DEVELOPER OR FRANCHISEE TO ACCEPT TERMS
WHICH ARE LESS FAVORABLE THAN THOSE SET FORTH IN THIS
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.

2. The following is added at the end of Item 3:

With regard to us, our parent, predecessor or affiliate, the persons identified in Item 2, or
an affiliate offering franchises under our principal trademark:

A. No such party has an administrative, criminal, or civil action pending
against that person alleging: a felony, a violation of a franchise, antitrust, or
securities law, fraud, embezzlement, fraudulent conversion, misappropriation of
property, unfair or deceptive practices or comparable civil or misdemeanor
allegations.

B. No such party has pending actions, other than routine litigation incidental
to the business, which are significant in the context of the number of franchisees
and the size, nature or financial condition of the franchise system or its business
operations.

C. No such party has been convicted of a felony or pleaded nolo contendere to
a felony charge or, within the 10 year period immediately preceding the application
for registration, has been convicted of or pleaded nolo contendere to a misdemeanor
charge or has been the subject of a civil action alleging: violation of a franchise,
antitrust, or securities law; fraud; embezzlement; fraudulent conversion;
misappropriation of property; or unfair or deceptive practices; or comparable
allegations.

D. No such party is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive
order or decree relating to the franchise, or under a federal, State, or Canadian
franchise, securities, antitrust, trade regulation or trade practice law, resulting from
a concluded or pending action or proceeding brought by a public agency; or is
subject to any currently effective order of any national securities association or
national securities exchange, as defined in the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934,
suspending or expelling such person from membership in such association or
exchange; or is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order relating
to any other business activity as a result of an action brought by a public agency or
department, including, without limitation, actions affecting a license as a real estate
broker or sales agent.
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3. The following is added to the end of Item 4:

Neither we, our affiliate, predecessor, officers, or general partners or any other individual
who will have management responsibility relating to the sale or operation of franchises
offered by this Disclosure Document have, during the 10-year period immediately
preceding the date of the Disclosure Document: (a) filed as debtor (or had filed against it)
a petition to start an action under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code; (b) obtained a discharge of its
debts under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code; or (c) was a principal officer of a company or a
general partner in a partnership that either filed as a debtor (or had filed against it) a petition
to start an action under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or that obtained a discharge of its debts
under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code during or within 1 year after that officer or general partner
of the franchisor held this position in the company or partnership.

4. The following is added to the end of Item 5:

We apply the initial franchise fee to defray our costs for site review and approval, sales,
legal compliance, salary, and general administrative expenses and profits.

5. The following is added to Item 17:

However, to the extent required by applicable law, all rights you enjoy and any causes of
action arising in your favor from the provisions of Article 33 of the General Business Law
of the State of New York and the regulations issued thereunder shall remain in force; it
being the intent of this proviso that the non-waiver provisions of General Business Law
Sections 687.4 and 687.5 be satisfied.

6. The following is added to Item 17(d):

You may terminate the Franchise Agreement on any grounds available by law.

7. The following is added to Item 17(j)

However, to the extent required by applicable law, no assignment will be made except to
an assignee who, in our good faith judgment, is willing and financially able to assume our
obligations under the Area Development Agreement or Franchise Agreement.

8. The following is added to Item 17(v) and 17(w):

However, the governing choice of law and choice of forum shall not be considered a waiver

of any right conferred upon you by the provisions of Article 33 of the General Business
Law of the State of New York.
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NORTH DAKOTA

1. The following is added to the end of Item 17(c) and Item 17(m):

However, any release required as a condition of renewal and/or assignment/transfer will
not apply to the extent prohibited by the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

2. The following is added to the end of Item 17(r):

Covenants not to compete such as those mentioned above are generally considered
unenforceable in the State of North Dakota; however, we and you will enforce the
covenants to the maximum extent the law allows.

3. The following is added to the end of Item 17(u):

To the extent required by the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law (unless such
requirement is preempted by the Federal Arbitration Act), arbitration will be at a site
to which we and you mutually agree.

4. The following is added to the end of Item 17(v):

However, subject to your mediation and arbitration obligations, to the extent required
by North Dakota Franchise Investment Law, you may bring an action in North Dakota.

5. Item 17(w) is deleted and replaced with the following:

Except as otherwise required by North Dakota law, the laws of the State of Delaware
shall apply.

RHODE ISLAND

1. The following language is added to the end of Item 17(v) and 17(w):

Section 19-28.1-14 of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act provides that “A
provision in a franchise agreement restricting jurisdiction or venue to a forum outside
this state or requiring the application of the laws of another state is void with respect
to a claim otherwise enforceable under this Act. To the extent required by applicable
law Rhode Island law will apply to claims arising under the Rhode Island Franchise
Investment Act.”

VIRGINIA
1. The following language is added to the end of Item 17(h):

Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for
a franchisor to cancel a franchise without reasonable cause. If any grounds for default
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or termination stated in the Franchise Development Agreement or Franchise
Agreement does not constitute “reasonable cause,” as that term may be defined in the
Virginia Retail Franchising Act or the laws of Virginia, that provision may not be
enforceable.

WASHINGTON

1. The following language is added at the end of Items 5 and 7:

Pursuant to an order of the Director of the Department of Financials Institutions, we
will defer collection of the Initial Franchise Fee and other initial payments you owe us
until we have completed all of our pre-opening obligations to you under the Franchise
Agreement and you begin operating your Park. If you sign an Area Development
Agreement, the Area Development Fee and other initial payments will be prorated for
the number of Parks in your Development Quota, and the prorated portion of such fees
and initial payments attributable to each Park will be deferred by us until that Park
opens for business.

2. The following paragraph is added at the end of Item 17:

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise
Investment Protection Act, Chapter 19.100 RCW will prevail.

RCW 19.100.180 may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the
franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise. There may
also be court decisions which may supersede the franchise agreement in your
relationship with the franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your
franchise.

In any arbitration or mediation involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the
arbitration or mediation site will be either in the state of Washington, or in a place
mutually agreed upon at the time of the arbitration or mediation, or as determined by
the arbitrator or mediator at the time of arbitration or mediation. In addition, if litigation
is not precluded by the franchise agreement, a franchisee may bring an action or
proceeding arising out of or in connection with the sale of franchises, or a violation of
the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, in Washington.

The Securities Division of the State of Washington Department of Financial
Institutions requires the following language:

A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee may not include rights under the
Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act or any rule or order thereunder
except when executed pursuant to a negotiated settlement after the agreement is in
effect and where the parties are represented by independent counsel. Provisions such
as those which unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of limitations period for claims
under the Act, or rights or remedies under the Act such as a right to a jury trial, may
not be enforceable.
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Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable
estimated or actual costs in effecting a transfer.

Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable
against an employee, including an employee of a franchisee, unless the employee’s
earnings from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $100,000 per
year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). In addition, a
noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an independent contractor
of a franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless the independent contractor’s earnings
from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $250,000 per year (an
amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). As a result, any provisions
contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere that conflict with these limitations
are void and unenforceable in Washington.

RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from restricting, restraining, or prohibiting a
franchisee from (i) soliciting or hiring any employee of a franchisee of the same
franchisor or (ii) soliciting or hiring any employee of the franchisor. As a result, any
such provisions contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere are void and
unenforceable in Washington.

3. The following language is added at the end of Item 5:

If you receive financial incentives for the reference of franchise prospects to us, you
may be required to register as a franchise broker under the laws of the State of
Washington.
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THE FOLLOWING PAGES IN THIS EXHIBIT ARE
STATE-SPECIFIC RIDERS TO THE
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
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RIDER TO THE ATP FRANCHISING, LLC
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR USE IN ILLINOIS

THIS RIDER is made and entered into by and between ATP FRANCHISING, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company with its principal business address at 12222 Merit Drive, Suite
1300, Dallas, Texas 75251 (“we” or “us”), and ,
whose principal business address is (“you” or “your”).

1. BACKGROUND. We and you are parties to that certain Area Development Agreement
dated ,20__ (the “Area Development Agreement”) that has been signed concurrently
with the signing of this Rider. This Rider is annexed to and forms part of the Area Development
Agreement. This Rider is being signed because (a) you are domiciled in the State of Illinois, or (b) the
offer of the franchise is made or accepted in the State of Illinois and the Parks that you develop under
your Area Development Agreement are or will be located in the State of Illinois.

2. LIMITATIONS OF CLAIMS AND CLASS ACTION BAR. The following is added to
the end of the first paragraph of Section 10J of the Area Development Agreement:

Nothing contained in this section shall constitute a condition, stipulation, or provision
purporting to bind any person to waive compliance with any provision of the Illinois
Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of the State of Illinois, to the extent applicable.

3. ILLINOIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE ACT. The following language is added to the
end of the Area Development Agreement:

Except for the U.S. Federal Arbitration Act and other federal laws in the U.S., the laws of the
State of Illinois will govern this Agreement.

Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act provides that any provision in an area
development agreement that designates jurisdiction or venue outside the State of Illinois is
void. However, an area development agreement may provide for arbitration outside of Illinois.

Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act provides that any condition, stipulation or
provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with the
[llinois Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinois is void.

Y our rights upon termination and non-renewal of an area development agreement are subject
to sections 19 and 20 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Rider to be effective as
of the effective date of the Area Development Agreement.

ATP FRANCHISING, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

Sign:
Name:

Title:

AREA DEVELOPER

(IF YOU ARE A CORPORATION,
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, OR
PARTNERSHIP):

Entity Name

Signature

Name:

Title:

DATED:
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AREA DEVELOPER

(IF YOU ARE AN INDIVIDUAL AND NOT
AN ENTITY):

Signature

Print Name

DATED:




RIDER TO THE ATP FRANCHISING, LLC
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR USE IN MARYLAND

THIS RIDER is made and entered into by and between ATP FRANCHISING, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company with its principal business address at 12222 Merit Drive, Suite
1300, Dallas, Texas 75251 (“we” or “us”), and ,
whose principal business address is (“you” or “your”).

1. BACKGROUND. We and you are parties to that certain Area Development Agreement
dated , 20 (the “Area Development Agreement”) that has been
signed concurrently with the signing of this Rider. This Rider is annexed to and forms part of the Area
Development Agreement. This Rider is being signed because (a) you are a resident of the State of
Maryland; or (b) the Parks that you develop under your Area Development Agreement are or will be
operated in the State of Maryland; or (c) the offer to sell is made in the State of Maryland; or (d) the
offer to buy is accepted in the State of Maryland.

2. DEVELOPMENT FEE. The following is added to the end of Section 3A of the Area
Development Agreement

All development fees and initial payments by you shall be deferred until the first franchise you
acquire under this Agreement opens.

3. RELEASES. The following is added to the end of Sections 6B and 6C(3) of the Area
Development Agreement:

Pursuant to COMAR 02.02.08.16L, any release required as a condition of renewal
and/or assignment/transfer will not apply to claims arising under the Maryland
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

4. INSOLVENCY. The following is added to the end of Section 7B(8) of the Area
Development Agreement:

The provision which provides for termination upon your bankruptcy might not be
enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C. Sections 101 et seq.).

5. CONSENT TO JURISDICTION. Section 10D of the Area Development Agreement is
supplemented by adding the following to the end of the Section:

A franchisee may bring a lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

6. ARBITRATION. Section 10B of the Area Development Agreement is supplemented by
adding the following to the end of the Section:

A Maryland franchise regulation states that it is an unfair or deceptive practice to
require a franchisee to waive its right to file a lawsuit in Maryland claiming a violation
of the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. In light of the Federal
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Arbitration Act, there is some dispute as to whether this forum selection requirement
is legally enforceable.

7. LIMITATIONS OF CLAIMS AND CLASS ACTION BAR. The following is added to
the end of the first paragraph of Section 10J of the Area Development Agreement:

Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law
must be brought within 3 years after the grant of the franchise.

8. RELEASES. The Area Development Agreement is further amended to state that “All
representations requiring prospective franchisees to assent to a release, estoppel or waiver of liability
are not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred under the
Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.”

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Rider to be effective
as of the effective date of the Area Development Agreement.

ATP FRANCHISING, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

Sign:
Name:

Title:

AREA DEVELOPER

(IF YOU ARE A CORPORATION,
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, OR
PARTNERSHIP):

Entity Name

Signature

Name:

Title:

DATED:
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AREA DEVELOPER

(IF YOU ARE AN INDIVIDUAL AND NOT
AN ENTITY):

Signature

Print Name

DATED:




RIDER TO THE ATP FRANCHISING, LLC
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR USE IN MINNESOTA

THIS RIDER is made and entered into by and between ATP FRANCHISING, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company with its principal business address at 12222 Merit Drive, Suite
1300, Dallas, Texas 75251 (“we” or “us”), and ,
whose principal business address is (“you” or “your”).

1. BACKGROUND. We and you are parties to that certain Area Development Agreement
dated , 20 (the “Area Development Agreement”) that has been
signed concurrently with the signing of this Rider. This Rider is annexed to and forms part of the Area
Development Agreement. This Rider is being signed because (a) the Parks that you will develop under
the Area Development Agreement will be operated wholly or partly in the State of Minnesota; and/or
(b) you either a resident of, domiciled it, or actually present in the State of Minnesota.

2. RELEASES. The following is added to the end of Sections 6B and 6C(3) of the Area
Development Agreement:

Any release required as a condition of renewal and/or assignment/transfer will not
apply to the extent prohibited by the Minnesota Franchises Law.

3. INJUNCTIVE RELIEF. The following language is added to the end of Section 10H of
the Area Development Agreement:

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a court will determine if a bond is required.

4. LIMITATIONS OF CLAIMS:; WAIVER OF CLASS ACTION. The following is
added to the end of the first paragraph of Section 10J of the Area Development Agreement:

; provided, however, that Minnesota law provides that no action may be commenced
under Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.17 more than 3 years after the cause of action accrues.

5. MINNESOTA LAW. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Area
Development Agreement, Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.21 and Minn. Rule 2860.4400] prohibit us from
requiring you to waive your rights to a jury trial or to waive your rights to any procedure, forum or
remedies provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction, or to consent to liquidated damages, termination
penalties or judgment notes.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Rider to be effective
as of the effective date of the Area Development Agreement.

ATP FRANCHISING, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

Sign:
Name:

Title:

AREA DEVELOPER

(IF YOU ARE A CORPORATION,
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, OR
PARTNERSHIP):

Entity Name

Signature

Name:

Title:

DATED:
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AREA DEVELOPER

(IF YOU ARE AN INDIVIDUAL AND NOT
AN ENTITY):

Signature

Print Name

DATED:




RIDER TO THE ATP FRANCHISING, LLC
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR USE IN NEW YORK

THIS RIDER is made and entered into by and between ATP FRANCHISING, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company with its principal business address at 12222 Merit Drive, Suite
1300, Dallas, Texas 75251 (“we” or “us”), and ,
whose principal business address is (“you” or “your”).

I. BACKGROUND. We and you are parties to that certain Area Development
Agreement dated , 20 (the “Area Development Agreement”)
that has been signed concurrently with the signing of this Rider. This Rider is annexed to and forms
part of the Area Development Agreement. This Rider is being signed because (a) an offer to sell is
made in the State of New York; or (b) an offer to buy is accepted in the State of New York; or (¢) if
you are domiciled in the State of New York, the Park is or will be operated in the State of New York.

2. RELEASES AND WAIVERS. The following is added to the end of Sections 6B and
6C(3) of the Area Development Agreement:

Notwithstanding the foregoing all rights enjoyed by you and any causes of action arising in
your favor from the provision of Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New
York and the regulations issued there under shall remain in force to the extent required by the
non-waiver provisions of GBL Sections 687.4 and 687.4, as amended.

3. CHOICE OF FORUM AND CHOICE OF LAW. The following sentence is added
to the end of Section 10C and 10D of the Franchise Agreement:

This Section shall not be considered a waiver of any right conferred upon you by the
provisions of Article 33 of the New York State General Business Law as amended, and the
regulations issued thereunder.

I. TRANSFER. The following sentence is added to the end of Section 6B of the Area
Development Agreement:

However, to the extent required by applicable law, no assignment will be made except to an
assignee who, in our good faith judgment, is willing and financially able to assume our
obligations under this Agreement.

5. TERMINATION. The following sentence is added to the end of Section 7A of the
Area Development Agreement:

You also may terminate this Agreement on any grounds available by law under the provisions
of Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New York.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]

ATP Franchising, LLC
2024_04 FDD | Ex. H — State Addenda/Riders
1360.001.013/405755 3



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Rider to be effective as
of the effective date of the Area Development Agreement.

ATP FRANCHISING, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

Sign:
Name:

Title:

AREA DEVELOPER

(IF YOU ARE A CORPORATION,
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, OR
PARTNERSHIP):

Entity Name

Signature

Name:

Title:

DATED:
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AREA DEVELOPER

(IF YOU ARE AN INDIVIDUAL AND NOT
AN ENTITY):

Signature

Print Name

DATED:




RIDER TO THE ATP FRANCHISING, LLC
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR USE IN NORTH DAKOTA

THIS RIDER is made and entered into by and between ATP FRANCHISING, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company with its principal business address at 12222 Merit Drive, Suite
1300, Dallas, Texas 75251 (“we” or “us”), and ,
whose principal business address is (“you” or “your”).

1. BACKGROUND. We and you are parties to that certain Area Development Agreement
dated , 20 (the “Area Development Agreement”) that has been
signed concurrently with the signing of this Rider. This Rider is annexed to and forms part of the Area
Development Agreement. This Rider is being signed because (a) an offer to sell is made in the State
of North Dakota; or (b) an offer to buy is accepted in the State of North Dakota; or (c) if you are
domiciled in the State of North Dakota, the Parks that you develop under your Area Development
Agreement are or will be operated in the State of North Dakota.

2. RELEASES. The following is added to the end of Sections 6B and 6C(3) of the Area
Development Agreement:

Any release required as a condition of renewal and/or assignment/transfer will not
apply to the extent prohibited by the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

3. COVENANT NOT TO COMPETE. The following is added to the end of Section 8B of
the Area Development Agreement:

Covenants not to compete such as those mentioned above are generally considered
unenforceable in the State of North Dakota; however, we will enforce the covenants to
the maximum extent the law allows.

4. ARBITRATION. The following language is added to the end of Section 10B of the Area
Development Agreement:

Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent required by the North Dakota Franchise
Investment Law (unless such a requirement is preempted by the Federal Arbitration Act),
arbitration shall be held at a site to which we and you mutually agree.

5. GOVERNING LAW. The second sentence of Section 10C of the Area Development
Agreement is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following language:

Except to the extent governed by the Federal Arbitration Act, the United States
Trademark Act of 1946 (Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. Sections 1051 et seq.), or other federal
law, and except as otherwise required by North Dakota law, this Agreement, the
franchise, and all claims arising from the relationship between us and you will be
governed by the laws of the State of Delaware, without regard to its conflict of laws
rules, except that any state law regulating the sale of franchises or governing the
relationship of a franchisor and its franchisee will not apply unless its jurisdictional
requirements are met independently without reference to this section.
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6. CONSENT TO JURISDICTION. The following is added to the end of Section 10D of
the Area Development Agreement:

Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent required by the North Dakota Franchise
Investment Law, you may bring an action in North Dakota for claims arising under the
North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

7. WAIVER OF PUNITIVE DAMAGES AND JURY TRIAL. To the extent required by
the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law, Section 10G of the Area Development Agreement is
deleted.

8. LIMITATIONS OF CLAIMS AND CLASS ACTION BAR. The following is added to
the end of the first paragraph of Section 10J of the Area Development Agreement:

The statutes of limitations under North Dakota Law applies with respect to claims
arising under the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Rider to be effective as
of the effective date of the Area Development Agreement.

ATP FRANCHISING, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

Sign:

Name:

Title:

AREA DEVELOPER

(IF YOU ARE A CORPORATION,
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, OR
PARTNERSHIP):

Entity Name

Signature

Name:

Title:

DATED:
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AREA DEVELOPER

(IF YOU ARE AN INDIVIDUAL AND NOT
AN ENTITY):

Signature

Print Name

DATED:




RIDER TO THE ATP FRANCHISING, LLC
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
FOR USE IN RHODE ISLAND

THIS RIDER is made and entered into by and between ATP FRANCHISING, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company with its principal business address at 12222 Merit Drive, Suite
1300, Dallas, Texas 75251 (“we” or “us”), and ,
whose principal business address is (“you” or “your”).

1. BACKGROUND. We and you are parties to that certain Area Development Agreement
dated , 20 (the “Area Development Agreement”) that has been
signed concurrently with the signing of this Rider. This Rider is annexed to and forms part of the Area
Development Agreement. This Rider is being signed because (a) an offer to sell is made or accepted
in the State of Rhode Island, or (b) an offer to buy is accepted in the State of Rhode Island, or (c¢) you
are a resident of the State of Rhode Island and the Parks you develop under your Area Development
Agreement are or will be operated in the State of Rhode Island.

2. GOVERNING LAW. The following is added at the end of Section 10C of the Area
Development Agreement:

Section 19-28.1-14 of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act provides that “A
provision in a area development agreement restricting jurisdiction or venue to a forum
outside this state or requiring the application of the laws of another state is void with
respect to a claim otherwise enforceable under this Act.”

3. CONSENT TO JURISDICTION. The following is added at the end of Section 10D of
the Area Development Agreement:

Section 19-28.1-14 of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act provides that “To
the extent required by applicable law, Rhode Island law will apply to claims arising
under the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act.”

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Rider to be effective
as of the effective date of the Area Development Agreement.

ATP FRANCHISING, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

Sign:
Name:

Title:

AREA DEVELOPER

(IF YOU ARE A CORPORATION,
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, OR
PARTNERSHIP):

Entity Name

Signature

Name:

Title:

DATED:
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AREA DEVELOPER

(IF YOU ARE AN INDIVIDUAL AND NOT
AN ENTITY):

Signature

Print Name

DATED:




WASHINGTON RIDER TO THE AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT,
AND RELATED AGREEMENTS

THIS RIDER is made and entered into by and between ATP FRANCHISING, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company with its principal business address at 12222 Merit Drive, Suite
1300, Dallas, Texas 75251 (“we” or “us”), and ,
whose principal business address is (“you” or “your”).

1. BACKGROUND. We and you are parties to that certain Area Development Agreement
dated , 20 (the “Area Development Agreement”) that has been
signed concurrently with the signing of this Rider. This Rider is annexed to and forms part of the Area
Development Agreement. This Rider is being signed because (a) the offer is directed into the State of
Washington and is received where it is directed; or (b) you are a resident of the State of Washington;
or (c) the Parks that you develop under your Area Development Agreement are or will be located or
operated, wholly or partly, in the State of Washington.

2. DEVELOPMENT FEE. The following is added to the end of Section 3A of the Area
Development Agreement:

All development fees and initial payments by you will be prorated for the number of Parks in
your Development Quota, and the prorated portion of fees and initial payments attributable to
each Park will be deferred by us until that Park opens for business.

3. WASHINGTON LAW. The following paragraphs are added to the end of the Area
Development Agreement:

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise
Investment Protection Act, Chapter 19.100 RCW will prevail.

RCW 19.100.180 may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the
franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise. There may
also be court decisions which may supersede the franchise agreement in your
relationship with the franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your
franchise.

In any arbitration or mediation involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the
arbitration or mediation site will be either in the state of Washington, or in a place
mutually agreed upon at the time of the arbitration or mediation, or as determined by
the arbitrator or mediator at the time of arbitration or mediation. In addition, if litigation
is not precluded by the franchise agreement, a franchisee may bring an action or
proceeding arising out of or in connection with the sale of franchises, or a violation of
the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, in Washington.

The Securities Division of the State of Washington Department of Financial
Institutions requires the following language:

A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee may not include rights under the
Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act or any rule or order thereunder
except when executed pursuant to a negotiated settlement after the agreement is in
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effect and where the parties are represented by independent counsel. Provisions such
as those which unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of limitations period for claims
under the Act, or rights or remedies under the Act such as a right to a jury trial, may
not be enforceable.

Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable
estimated or actual costs in effecting a transfer.

Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable
against an employee, including an employee of a franchisee, unless the employee’s
earnings from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $100,000 per
year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). In addition, a
noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an independent contractor
of a franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless the independent contractor’s earnings
from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $250,000 per year (an
amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). As a result, any provisions
contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere that conflict with these limitations
are void and unenforceable in Washington.

RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from restricting, restraining, or prohibiting a
franchisee from (i) soliciting or hiring any employee of a franchisee of the same
franchisor or (ii) soliciting or hiring any employee of the franchisor. As a result, any
such provisions contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere are void and
unenforceable in Washington.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Rider to be effective
as of the effective date of the Area Development Agreement.

ATP FRANCHISING, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

Sign:

Name:

Title:

AREA DEVELOPER

(IF YOU ARE A CORPORATION,
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, OR
PARTNERSHIP):

Entity Name

Signature

Name:

Title:

DATED:
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AREA DEVELOPER

(IF YOU ARE AN INDIVIDUAL AND NOT
AN ENTITY):

Signature

Print Name

DATED:




THE FOLLOWING PAGES IN THIS EXHIBIT ARE
STATE-SPECIFIC RIDERS TO THE
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
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RIDER TO THE ATP FRANCHISING, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FOR USE IN ILLINOIS

THIS RIDER is made and entered into by and between ATP FRANCHISING, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company with its principal business address at 12222 Merit Drive, Suite
1300, Dallas, Texas 75251 (“we” or “us”), and ,
whose principal business address is (“you” or “your”).

1. BACKGROUND. We and you are parties to that certain Franchise Agreement dated
, 20 (the “Franchise Agreement”) that has been signed
concurrently with the signing of this Rider. This Rider is annexed to and forms part of the Franchise
Agreement. This Rider is being signed because (a) you are domiciled in the State of Illinois, or (b) the
offer of the franchise is made or accepted in the State of Illinois and the Park that you develop under
your Franchise Agreement is or will be operated in the State of Illinois.

2. LIMITATIONS OF CLAIMS. Section 18] of the Franchise Agreement is amended by
adding the following:

However, nothing contained in this section shall constitute a condition, stipulation, or provision
purporting to bind any person to waive compliance with any provision of the Illinois Franchise
Disclosure Act or any other law of the State of Illinois, to the extent applicable.

3. ILLINOIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE ACT. The following language is added to the
end of the Franchise Agreement:

Except for the U.S. Federal Arbitration Act and other federal laws in the U.S., the laws
of the State of Illinois will govern this Agreement.

Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act provides that any provision in a
franchise agreement that designates jurisdiction or venue outside the State of Illinois is
void. However, a franchise agreement may provide for arbitration outside of Illinois.

Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act provides that any condition,
stipulation or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive
compliance with the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinois is void.

Your rights upon termination and non-renewal of a franchise agreement are subject to
sections 19 and 20 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Rider to be effective
as of the effective date of the Franchise Agreement.

ATP FRANCHISING, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

Sign:
Name:
Title:
FRANCHISEE FRANCHISEE
(IF YOU ARE A CORPORATION, (IF YOU ARE AN INDIVIDUAL AND NOT
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, OR AN ENTITY):
PARTNERSHIP):
Entity Name Signature
Signature Print Name
Name:
DATED:
Title:
DATED:
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RIDER TO THE ATP FRANCHISING, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FOR USE IN MARYLAND

THIS RIDER is made and entered into by and between ATP FRANCHISING, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company with its principal business address at 12222 Merit Drive, Suite
1300, Dallas, Texas 75251 (“we” or “us”), and ,
whose principal business address is (“you” or “your”).

1. BACKGROUND. We and you are parties to that certain Franchise Agreement dated
, 20 (the “Franchise Agreement”) that has been signed
concurrently with the signing of this Rider. This Rider is annexed to and forms part of the Franchise
Agreement. This Rider is being signed because (a) you are a resident of the State of Maryland; or (b)
the Park that you develop under your Franchise Agreement is or will be operated in the State of
Maryland; or (¢) the offer to sell is made in the State of Maryland; or (d) the offer to buy is accepted
in the State of Maryland.

2. INITIAL FRANCHISE FEE. The following is added to the end of Section 3A of the
Franchise Agreement:

All initial fees and payments will be deferred until such time as we complete our initial
obligations under this Agreement and you have begun operating your Park.

3. RELEASES. The following is added to the end of Sections 13B, 13C(3), 14A(5), and 16E
of the Franchise Agreement:

Pursuant to COMAR 02.02.08.16L, any release required as a condition of renewal
and/or assignment/transfer will not apply to claims arising under the Maryland
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

4. INSOLVENCY. The following is added to the end of Sections 15B(19) and (20) of the
Franchise Agreement:

This Section might not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C.
Sections 101 et seq.).

5. CONSENT TO JURISDICTION. Section 18D of the Franchise Agreement is
supplemented by adding the following to the end of the Section:

A franchisee may bring a lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

6. ARBITRATION. Section 18B of the Franchise Agreement is supplemented by adding
the following to the end of the Section:

A Maryland franchise regulation states that it is an unfair or deceptive practice to
require a franchisee to waive its right to file a lawsuit in Maryland claiming a violation
of the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. In light of the Federal
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Arbitration Act, there is some dispute as to whether this forum selection requirement
is legally enforceable.

7. LIMITATIONS OF CLAIMS. The following is added to the end of Section 18J of the
Franchise Agreement:

Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law
must be brought within 3 years after the grant of the franchise.

8. RELEASES. The Franchise Agreement is further amended to state that “All
representations requiring prospective franchisees to assent to a release, estoppel or waiver of liability
are not intended to nor shall they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred under the
Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Rider to be effective
as of the effective date of the Franchise Agreement.

ATP FRANCHISING, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

Sign:
Name:
Title:
FRANCHISEE FRANCHISEE
(IF YOU ARE A CORPORATION, (IF YOU ARE AN INDIVIDUAL AND NOT
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, OR AN ENTITY):
PARTNERSHIP):
Entity Name Signature
Signature Print Name
Name:
DATED:
Title:
DATED:
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RIDER TO THE ATP FRANCHISING, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FOR USE IN MINNESOTA

THIS RIDER is made and entered into by and between ATP FRANCHISING, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company with its principal business address at 12222 Merit Drive, Suite
1300, Dallas, Texas 75251 (“we” or “us”), and ,
whose principal business address is (“you” or “your”).

1. BACKGROUND. We and you are parties to that certain Franchise Agreement dated
, 20 (the “Franchise Agreement”) that has been signed
concurrently with the signing of this Rider. This Rider is annexed to and forms part of the Franchise
Agreement. This Rider is being signed because (a) the Park that you will develop under the Franchise
Agreement will be operated wholly or partly in the State of Minnesota; and/or (b) you either a resident
of, domiciled it, or actually present in the State of Minnesota.

2. INTEREST ON LATE PAYMENTS. The following language is added to the end of the first
paragraph of Section 3E of the Franchise Agreement:

Notwithstanding the foregoing, you and we acknowledge that under Minnesota Statute
604.113 your penalty for an insufficient funds check will be limited to $30 per
occurrence.

3. RELEASES. The following is added to the end of Sections 13B, 13C(3), 14A(5), and 16E
of the Franchise Agreement:

Any release required as a condition of renewal and/or assignment/transfer will not
apply to the extent prohibited by the Minnesota Franchises Law.

4. RENEWAL AND TERMINATION. The following is added to the end of Sections 14
and 15 of the Franchise Agreement:

However, with respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, we will comply with
Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.14, Subds. 3, 4 and 5 which require, except in certain specified
cases, that you be given 90 days' notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180
days' notice of non-renewal of this Agreement.

5. LOST REVENUE DAMAGES. The following language is added to the end of Section
16C of the Franchise Agreement

We and you acknowledge that certain parts of this provision might not be enforceable
under Minn. Rule Part 2860.4400]J. However, we and you agree to enforce the
provision to the extent the law allows.

6. INJUNCTIVE RELIEF. Section 10H of the Franchise Agreement is deleted and replaced
with the following:

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a court will determine if a bond is required.
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7. LIMITATIONS OF CLAIMS AND CLASS ACTION BAR. The following is added to
the end of Section 18] of the Franchise Agreement:

; provided, however, that Minnesota law provides that no action may be commenced
under Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.17 more than 3 years after the cause of action accrues.

8. MINNESOTA LAW. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the
Franchise Agreement, Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.21 and Minn. Rule 2860.4400J prohibit us from requiring
you to waive your rights to a jury trial or to waive your rights to any procedure, forum or remedies
provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction, or to consent to liquidated damages, termination penalties
or judgment notes.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Rider to be effective
as of the effective date of the Franchise Agreement.

ATP FRANCHISING, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

Sign:
Name:
Title:
FRANCHISEE FRANCHISEE
(IF YOU ARE A CORPORATION, (IF YOU ARE AN INDIVIDUAL AND NOT
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, OR AN ENTITY):
PARTNERSHIP):
Entity Name Signature
Signature Print Name
Name:
DATED:
Title:
DATED:
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RIDER TO THE ATP FRANCHISING, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FOR USE IN NEW YORK

THIS RIDER is made and entered into by and between ATP FRANCHISING, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company with its principal business address at 12222 Merit Drive, Suite
1300, Dallas, Texas 75251 (“we” or “us”), and ,
whose principal business address is (“you” or “your”).

I. BACKGROUND. We and you are parties to that certain Franchise Agreement dated
, 20 (the “Franchise Agreement”) that has been signed
concurrently with the signing of this Rider. This Rider is annexed to and forms part of the Franchise
Agreement. This Rider is being signed because (a) an offer to sell is made in the State of New York;
or (b) an offer to buy is accepted in the State of New York; or (¢) if you are domiciled in the State of
New York, the Park is or will be operated in the State of New York.

2. RELEASES AND WAIVERS. The following is added to the end of Sections 13B
and 13C(3) of the Franchise Agreement:

Notwithstanding the foregoing all rights enjoyed by you and any causes of action arising in
your favor from the provision of Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New
York and the regulations issued there under shall remain in force to the extent required by the
non-waiver provisions of GBL Sections 687.4 and 687.4, as amended.

1. CHOICE OF FORUM AND CHOICE OF LAW. The following sentence is added
to the end of Section 18C and 18D of the Franchise Agreement:

This Section shall not be considered a waiver of any right conferred upon you by the
provisions of Article 33 of the New York State General Business Law as amended, and the
regulations issued thereunder.

3. TRANSFER. The following sentence is added to the end of Section 13A of the
Franchise Agreement:

However, to the extent required by applicable law, no assignment will be made except to an
assignee who, in our good faith judgment, is willing and financially able to assume our
obligations under this Agreement.

4. TERMINATION. The following sentence is added to the end of Section 15A of the
Franchise Agreement:

You also may terminate this Agreement on any grounds available by law under the provisions
of Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New York.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Rider to be effective as
of the effective date of the Franchise Agreement.

ATP FRANCHISING, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

Sign:
Name:
Title:
FRANCHISEE FRANCHISEE
(IF YOU ARE A CORPORATION, (IF YOU ARE AN INDIVIDUAL AND NOT
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, OR AN ENTITY):
PARTNERSHIP):
Entity Name Signature
Signature Print Name
Name:
DATED:
Title:
DATED:
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RIDER TO THE ATP FRANCHISING, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FOR USE IN NORTH DAKOTA

THIS RIDER is made and entered into by and between ATP FRANCHISING, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company with its principal business address at 12222 Merit Drive, Suite
1300, Dallas, Texas 75251 (“we” or “us”), and ,
whose principal business address is (“you” or “your”).

1. BACKGROUND. We and you are parties to that certain Franchise Agreement dated
, 20 (the “Franchise Agreement”) that has been signed
concurrently with the signing of this Rider. This Rider is annexed to and forms part of the Franchise
Agreement. This Rider is being signed because (a) an offer to sell is made in the State of North Dakota;
or (b) an offer to buy is accepted in the State of North Dakota; or (¢) if you are domiciled in the State
of North Dakota, the Park that you develop under your Franchise Agreement is or will be operated in
the State of North Dakota.

2. RELEASES. The following is added to the end of Sections 13B, 13C(3), 14A(5) and 16E
of the Franchise Agreement:

Any release required as a condition of renewal and/or assignment/transfer will not apply to the
extent prohibited by the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

3. COVENANT NOT TO COMPETE. The following is added to the end of Section 16F
of the Franchise Agreement:

Covenants not to compete such as those mentioned above are generally considered
unenforceable in the State of North Dakota; however, we will enforce the covenants to
the maximum extent the law allows.

4. LOST REVENUE DAMAGES. The following language is added to the end of Section
16C of the Franchise Agreement:

We and you acknowledge that certain parts of this provision might not be enforceable
under the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law. However, we and you agree to
enforce the provision to the extent the law allows.

5. ARBITRATION. The following language is added to the end of Section 18B of the
Franchise Agreement:

Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent required by the North Dakota Franchise
Investment Law (unless such a requirement is preempted by the Federal Arbitration
Act), arbitration shall be held at a site to which we and you mutually agree.

6. GOVERNING LAW. The second sentence of Section 18C of the Franchise Agreement
is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following language:

Except to the extent governed by the Federal Arbitration Act, the United States
Trademark Act of 1946 (Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. Sections 1051 et seq.), or other federal
ATP Franchising, LLC
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law, and except as otherwise required by North Dakota law, this Agreement, the
franchise, and all claims arising from the relationship between us and you will be
governed by the laws of the State of Delaware, without regard to its conflict of laws
rules, except that any state law regulating the sale of franchises or governing the
relationship of a franchisor and its franchisee will not apply unless its jurisdictional
requirements are met independently without reference to this section.

7. CONSENT TO JURISDICTION. The following is added to the end of Section 18D of
the Franchise Agreement:

Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent required by the North Dakota Franchise
Investment Law, you may bring an action in North Dakota for claims arising under the
North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

8. WAIVER OF PUNITIVE DAMAGES AND JURY TRIAL. To the extent required by
the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law, Section 18G of the Franchise Agreement is deleted.

9. LIMITATIONS OF CLAIMS AND CLASS ACTION BAR. The following is added to
the end of the first paragraph Section 18J of the Franchise Agreement:

The statutes of limitations under North Dakota Law applies with respect to claims
arising under the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Rider to be effective
as of the effective date of the Franchise Agreement.

ATP FRANCHISING, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

Sign:
Name:
Title:
FRANCHISEE FRANCHISEE
(IF YOU ARE A CORPORATION, (IF YOU ARE AN INDIVIDUAL AND NOT
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, OR AN ENTITY):
PARTNERSHIP):
Entity Name Signature
Signature Print Name
Name:
DATED:
Title:
DATED:
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RIDER TO THE ATP FRANCHISING, LLC
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT
FOR USE IN RHODE ISLAND

THIS RIDER is made and entered into by and between ATP FRANCHISING, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company with its principal business address at 12222 Merit Drive, Suite
1300, Dallas, Texas 75251 (“we” or “us”), and ,
whose principal business address is (“you” or “your”).

1. BACKGROUND. We and you are parties to that certain Franchise Agreement dated

, 20 (the “Franchise Agreement”) that has been signed

concurrently with the signing of this Rider. This Rider is annexed to and forms part of the Franchise

Agreement. This Rider is being signed because (a) an offer to sell is made or accepted in the State of

Rhode Island, or (b) an offer to buy is accepted in the State of Rhode Island, or (c) you are a resident

of the State of Rhode Island and the Park that you develop under your Franchise Agreement is or will
be operated in the State of Rhode Island.

2. GOVERNING LAW. The following is added at the end of Section 18C of the Franchise
Agreement:

Section 19-28.1-14 of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act provides that “A
provision in a franchise agreement restricting jurisdiction or venue to a forum outside
this state or requiring the application of the laws of another state is void with respect
to a claim otherwise enforceable under this Act.”

3. CONSENT TO JURISDICTION. The following is added at the end of Section 18D of
the Franchise Agreement:

Section 19-28.1-14 of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act provides that “To
the extent required by applicable law, Rhode Island law will apply to claims arising
under the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act.”

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Rider to be effective
as of the effective date of the Franchise Agreement.

ATP FRANCHISING, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

Sign:
Name:
Title:
FRANCHISEE FRANCHISEE
(IF YOU ARE A CORPORATION, (IF YOU ARE AN INDIVIDUAL AND NOT
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, OR AN ENTITY):
PARTNERSHIP):
Entity Name Signature
Signature Print Name
Name:
DATED:
Title:
DATED:
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WASHINGTON RIDER TO THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT,
AND RELATED AGREEMENTS

THIS RIDER is made and entered into by and between ATP FRANCHISING, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company with its principal business address at 12222 Merit Drive, Suite
1300, Dallas, Texas 75251 (“we” or “us”), and ,
whose principal business address is (“you” or “your”).

1. BACKGROUND. We and you are parties to that certain Franchise Agreement dated

, 20 (the “Franchise Agreement”) that has been signed

concurrently with the signing of this Rider. This Rider is annexed to and forms part of the Franchise

Agreement. This Rider is being signed because (a) the offer is directed into the State of Washington

and is received where it is directed; or (b) you are a resident of the State of Washington; or (d) the Park

that you develop under your Franchise Agreement is or will be located or operated, wholly or partly,
in the State of Washington.

2. INITIAL FRANCHISE FEE. The following is added to the end of Section 3A of the
Franchise Agreement:

Pursuant to an order of the Director of the Department of Financials Institutions, we
will defer collection of the initial franchise fee and other initial payments you owe us
until we have completed all of our pre-opening obligations to you under the this
Agreement and you have begun operating your Park.

3. WASHINGTON LAW. The following paragraphs are added to the end of the Franchise
Agreement:

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise
Investment Protection Act, Chapter 19.100 RCW will prevail.

RCW 19.100.180 may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the
franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise. There may
also be court decisions which may supersede the franchise agreement in your
relationship with the franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your
franchise.

In any arbitration or mediation involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the
arbitration or mediation site will be either in the state of Washington, or in a place
mutually agreed upon at the time of the arbitration or mediation, or as determined by
the arbitrator or mediator at the time of arbitration or mediation. In addition, if litigation
is not precluded by the franchise agreement, a franchisee may bring an action or
proceeding arising out of or in connection with the sale of franchises, or a violation of
the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, in Washington.

The Securities Division of the State of Washington Department of Financial
Institutions requires the following language:

A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee may not include rights under the
Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act or any rule or order thereunder
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except when executed pursuant to a negotiated settlement after the agreement is in
effect and where the parties are represented by independent counsel. Provisions such
as those which unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of limitations period for claims
under the Act, or rights or remedies under the Act such as a right to a jury trial, may
not be enforceable.

Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable
estimated or actual costs in effecting a transfer.

Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable
against an employee, including an employee of a franchisee, unless the employee’s
earnings from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $100,000 per
year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). In addition, a
noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an independent contractor
of a franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless the independent contractor’s earnings
from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $250,000 per year (an
amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). As a result, any provisions
contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere that conflict with these limitations
are void and unenforceable in Washington.

RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from restricting, restraining, or prohibiting a
franchisee from (i) soliciting or hiring any employee of a franchisee of the same
franchisor or (i1) soliciting or hiring any employee of the franchisor. As a result, any
such provisions contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere are void and
unenforceable in Washington.

4. SITE SELECTION. The following language is deleted from Section 2A of the
Franchise Agreement:

If we provide you any information regarding a site for the Premises, such information is
not a representation or warrant of any kind (express, implied, or collateral) of the site’s
suitability for a Park or any other purpose. Our acceptance of your proposed site is not
intended to be relied on by you as an indicator of likely success, but that we believe the
site meets our then acceptable criteria, which we have established for our own purposes.

5. LEASE OF THE SITE. The following language is deleted from Section 2B of the
Franchise Agreement:

If we provide you any information regarding a site for a Park, such information is not a
representation or warrant of any kind (express, implied or collateral) of the site’s
suitability for a Park or any other purpose. Our approval of your proposed site is not
intended to be relied on by you as an indicator of likely success, but that we believe the
site meets our then acceptable criteria, which we have established for our own purposes.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered this Rider to be effective
as of the effective date of the Franchise Agreement.

ATP FRANCHISING, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

Sign:
Name:
Title:
FRANCHISEE FRANCHISEE
(IF YOU ARE A CORPORATION, (IF YOU ARE AN INDIVIDUAL AND NOT
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, OR AN ENTITY):
PARTNERSHIP):
Entity Name Signature
Signature Print Name
Name:
DATED:
Title:
DATED:
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NEW YORK REPRESENTATIONS PAGE

FRANCHISOR REPRESENTS THAT THIS PROSPECTUS DOES NOT KNOWINGLY
OMIT ANY MATERIAL FACT OR CONTAIN ANY UNTRUE STATEMENT OF A
MATERIAL FACT.
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State Effective Dates

The following states have franchise laws that require that the Franchise Disclosure
Document be registered or filed with the state, or be exempt from registration: California,
Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota,
Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin.

This document is effective and may be used in the following states, where the document is
filed, registered or exempt from registration, as of the Effective Date stated below:

State Effective Date
California Pending
Hawaii
[linois Pending
Indiana Pending
Maryland Pending
Michigan March 29, 2024, as amended April 2, 2024
Minnesota Pending
New York Pending
North Dakota Pending
Rhode Island April 14, 2023, as amended , 2024
South Dakota Pending
Virginia Pending
Washington Pending
Wisconsin March 29, 2024, as amended April 2, 2024

Other states may require registration, filing, or exemption of a franchise under other laws,
such as those that regulate the offer and sale of business opportunities or seller-assisted
marketing plans.
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EXHIBIT I

RECEIPTS
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ITEM 23
RECEIPT

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the Area Development Agreement and Franchise Agreement and
other information in plain language. Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully.

If ATP Franchising, LLC offers you a franchise, it must provide this Disclosure Document to you 14 calendar-days before you
sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale.
Under lowa law, ATP Franchising, LLC must give you this Disclosure Document at the earlier of the 1st personal meeting or 14
calendar days before you sign an agreement with, or make a payment to, franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed
franchise sale. Under Michigan law, ATP Franchising, LLC must provide this Disclosure Document at least 10 business days
before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed
franchise sale. Under New York law, ATP Franchising, LLC must provide this Disclosure Document at the earlier of the first
personal meeting or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration
that relates to the franchise relationship.

If ATP Franchising, LLC does not deliver this Disclosure Document on time or if it contains a false or misleading statement, or
a material omission, a violation of federal and state law may have occurred and should be reported to the Federal Trade
Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580 and the appropriate state agency identified on Exhibit A.

Issuance date: March 29, 2024, as amended April 2, 2024

The Franchisor is ATP Franchising, LLC, located at 12222 Merit Drive, Suite 1300, Dallas, Texas 75251. Its telephone number
is (866) 414-0616. The franchise seller who offered you an Altitude Trampoline Park franchise is:

U Mike Rotondo U Michal Stout a

ATP Franchising, LLC ATP Franchising, LLC ATP Franchising, LLC

12222 Merit Drive, 12222 Merit Drive, 12222 Merit Drive,

Suite 1300, Dallas, Texas 75251 Suite 1300, Dallas, Texas 75251 Suite 1300, Dallas, Texas 75251
(866) 414-0616 (866) 414-0616 (866) 414-0616

ATP Franchising, LLC authorizes the respective state agencies identified on Exhibit A to receive service of process for it in the
particular state.

I received a disclosure document dated March 29, 2024, as amended April 2, 2024 that included the following Exhibits:
Exhibit A - State Administrators/Agents for Service Exhibit D - List of Franchisees

of Process Exhibit E - Financial Statements

Exhibit B-1 - Franchise Agreement Exhibit F - Representations Statement
Exhibit B-2 - Area Development Agreement Exhibit G - Sample General Release
Exhibit B-3 - Consent to Transfer Exhibit H - State Addenda and Agreement Riders
Exhibit C - Table of Contents to Operations Manual Exhibit I - Receipts

PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE:

If a business entity: If an individual:

Name of Business Entity (Print Name):

By:

Its: Dated:

(Print Name):

Dated:

Please sign this copy of the receipt, print the date on which you received this Disclosure Document, and return it, by mail or e-
mail, to Michael Stout, ATP Franchising, LLC, 12222 Merit Drive, Suite 1300, Dallas, Texas 75251; franchising@atphq.com.
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ITEM 23
RECEIPT

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of the Area Development Agreement and Franchise Agreement and
other information in plain language. Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully.

If ATP Franchising, LLC offers you a franchise, it must provide this Disclosure Document to you 14 calendar-days before you
sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale.
Under lowa law, ATP Franchising, LLC must give you this Disclosure Document at the earlier of the 1st personal meeting or 14
calendar days before you sign an agreement with, or make a payment to, franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed
franchise sale. Under Michigan law, ATP Franchising, LLC must provide this Disclosure Document at least 10 business days
before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed
franchise sale. Under New York law, ATP Franchising, LLC must provide this Disclosure Document at the earlier of the first
personal meeting or ten (10) business days before the execution of the franchise or other agreement or the payment of any
consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.

If ATP Franchising, LLC does not deliver this Disclosure Document on time or if it contains a false or misleading statement, or
a material omission, a violation of federal and state law may have occurred and should be reported to the Federal Trade
Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580 and the appropriate state agency identified on Exhibit A.

Issuance date: March 29, 2024, as amended April 2, 2024

The Franchisor is ATP Franchising, LLC, located at 12222 Merit Drive, Suite 1300, Dallas, Texas 75251. Its telephone number
is (866) 414-0616. The franchise seller who offered you an Altitude Trampoline Park franchise is:

U Mike Rotondo U Michael Stout a

ATP Franchising, LLC ATP Franchising, LLC ATP Franchising, LLC

12222 Merit Drive, 12222 Merit Drive, 12222 Merit Drive,

Suite 1300, Dallas, Texas 75251 Suite 1300, Dallas, Texas 75251 Suite 1300, Dallas, Texas 75251
(866) 414-0616 (866) 414-0616 (866) 414-0616

ATP Franchising, LLC authorizes the respective state agencies identified on Exhibit A to receive service of process for it in the
particular state.

I received a disclosure document dated March 29, 2024, as amended April 2, 2024 that included the following Exhibits:
Exhibit A - State Administrators/Agents for Service Exhibit D - List of Franchisees

of Process Exhibit E - Financial Statements

Exhibit B-1 - Franchise Agreement Exhibit F - Representations Statement
Exhibit B-2 - Area Development Agreement Exhibit G - Sample General Release
Exhibit B-3 - Consent to Transfer Exhibit H - State Addenda and Agreement Riders
Exhibit C - Table of Contents to Operations Manual Exhibit I - Receipts

PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE:

If a business entity: If an individual:

Name of Business Entity (Print Name):

By:

Its: Dated:

(Print Name):

Dated:

You may keep this copy of the receipt for your own records.
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	B2.pdf
	AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
	1. GRANT OF DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS.
	1A. BACKGROUND
	(1) We and our predecessors and affiliates have developed (and continue to develop and modify) a franchise system to establish, operate and promote distinctive trampoline park businesses providing recreational entertainment facilities featuring trampo...
	(2) We grant franchises for Parks pursuant to a written franchise agreement and related agreements signed by us and a franchisee and its owners (each a “Franchise Agreement”), under which we grant the right to operate a Park using the trademarks, serv...
	(3) We also grant certain qualified persons the right to acquire multiple franchises for the development and operation of Parks (the “Development Rights”) within a defined geographic area (the “Development Area”) pursuant to an agreed upon schedule fo...

	1B. GRANT AND TERM OF DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS.
	1C. YOUR RIGHTS IN THE DEVELOPMENT AREA.
	1D. RESERVATION OF TERRITORIAL RIGHTS.
	(1) establish and operate, and allow others to establish and operate, other Parks using the Marks and the System at any location, on such terms and conditions we deem appropriate, subject only to your Right of First Refusal;
	(2) establish and operate, and allow others to establish and operate, any other type business, including any business that may offer products and services which are identical to, similar to, or competitive with products and services offered by Parks, ...
	(3) establish, and allow others to establish businesses and distribution channels other than a Park (including, selling products at retail or through any online presence), wherever located or operating, regardless of the nature or location of the cust...
	(4) establish and operate, and allow others to establish and operate, any Park, or other business using the Marks and/or the System, and/or offering and selling any of the products or services that are similar to, the same, or competitive with those p...
	(5) be acquired by or acquire (whether through acquisition of assets, ownership interests or otherwise, regardless of the form of transaction), any other business, including businesses that operate or allow others to establish and operate businesses s...
	(6) engage in all other activities not expressly prohibited by this Agreement.

	1E. IF YOU OPERATE AS A LEGAL BUSINESS ENTITY.
	You must identify one of your owners on Exhibit B who is a natural person with at least a fifty-one percent (51%) ownership interest and voting power in you to act as your “Principal Owner” and supervise your business under this Agreement. You acknowl...
	Each of your owners and their respective spouses must execute a guaranty in the form we prescribe, agreeing to be personally bound, jointly and severally, by all provisions of this Agreement and any ancillary agreements between you and us and/or our a...
	Your business under this Agreement and the operation of Parks under valid Franchise Agreements with us will be the only business that such Entity operates.


	2. EXERCISE OF DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS.
	2A. DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE.
	2B. PROPOSED SITES FOR PARKS.
	2C. EXECUTION OF FRANCHISE AGREEMENTS.
	2D. APPROVED AFFILIATES
	2E. LIQUIDITY.
	2F. RECORDS AND REPORTING.
	(1) within sixty (60) days after the Effective Date, a business plan covering your projected revenues, costs and operations under this Agreement. This business plan will include your detailed projections of costs for the development of Parks and detai...
	(2) within fifteen (15) days after the end of each month during the Term, a report of your business activities during that month, including information about your efforts to find sites for Parks in the Development Area and the status of development an...
	(3) within fifteen (15) days after the end of each month, a profit and loss statement for you and your affiliates covering that month and the year-to-date, and a balance sheet as of such date; and
	(4) within forty-five (45) days after the end of each calendar year, with an annual profit and loss statement and sources and use of funds statement for the previous calendar year and a balance sheet as of the end of that calendar year.
	An officer must certify and sign each report and financial statement. We may disclose data derived from these reports, although we will not without your consent (unless required by law) disclose your identity in any materials that we circulate publicly.


	3. FEES.
	3A. DEVELOPMENT FEE.
	3B. METHOD OF PAYMENT.

	4. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.
	(a) process, retain, use, collect, and disclose our Confidential Information strictly to the limited extent, and in such a manner, as necessary for exercise of your Development Rights in accordance with this Agreement, and/or the operation of Parks un...
	(b) process, retain, use, collect, and disclose our Confidential Information strictly in accordance with the privacy policies and System Standards we establish from time to time, and our and our representative’s instructions;
	(c) keep confidential and not disclose, sell, distribute, or trade our Confidential Information to any person other than those of your personnel and representatives who need to know such Confidential Information for the purpose of assisting you in exe...
	(d) not make unauthorized copies of any of our Confidential Information;
	(e) adopt and maintain administrative, physical and technical safeguards to prevent unauthorized use or disclosure of any of our Confidential Information, including by establishing reasonable security and access measures, restricting its disclosure to...
	(f) at our request, destroy or return any of the Confidential Information.

	5. EXCLUSIVE RELATIONSHIP DURING TERM.
	5A. COVENANTS AGAINST COMPETITION.
	(a) have any direct or indirect interest as an owner (whether of record, beneficially, or otherwise), investor, partner, director, officer, employee, consultant, lessor, representative, or agent in any Competitive Business (as defined below), wherever...
	(b) perform services or act as a director, officer, manager, employee, consultant, lessor, representative, or agent for a Competitive Business, wherever located or operating; or
	(c) divert or attempt to divert any actual or potential business or customer of any Park to a Competitive Business.

	5B. NON-INTERFERENCE.
	During and after the Term, you (and if you are conducting business as an Entity, each of your owners) agree not to, and to cause your respective current and former spouses, immediate family members, owners, officers, directors, employees, representati...

	5C. NON-DISPARAGEMENT.

	6. TRANSFER.
	6A. BY US.
	You acknowledge that we maintain a staff to manage and operate the franchise system and that staff members can change as employees come and go. You acknowledge that you did not sign this Agreement in reliance on the continued participation by or emplo...
	6B. BY YOU.
	You acknowledge that the rights and duties under this Agreement creates are personal to you and your owners , and that we have granted you the franchise in reliance on our perception of your and your owners’ individual or collective character, skill, ...
	Notwithstanding anything in this Section 6B to the contrary, if you enter into this Agreement as an individual, if you are in full compliance with this Agreement, you may transfer this Agreement to an Entity in which you maintain management control, a...
	6C. CONDITIONS FOR APPROVAL OF TRANSFER.
	(1) you submit an application in writing requesting our consent and providing us all information or documents we request about the proposed transfer, the transferee, and its owners that we request, and each such person must have completed and satisfie...
	(2) you provide us executed versions of any documents executed by you (or your owners) and transferee (and its owners) to effect the transfer, and all other information we request about the proposed transfer, and such transfer meets all of our require...
	(3) you (and your owners) and the transferee (and its owners) sign all of the documents we are then requiring in connection with a transfer, in a form satisfactory to us, including: (i) a release of any and all claims (except for claims which cannot b...
	(4) you and your owners have not violated any provision of this Agreement or any other agreement with us or our affiliates during both the sixty (60) day period before you requested our consent to the transfer and the period between your request and t...
	(5) you and your owners have satisfied all conditions to transfer your Parks under the terms of each applicable Franchise Agreement for such Parks, including transfer of any applicable real estate leases, vendor contracts, and transfer fees;
	(6) the transferee must (if the transfer is of this Agreement or your Development Rights), sign our then-current form of area development agreement and related documents, any and all of the provisions of which may differ materially from any and all of...
	(7) the transferee must (if the transfer is of an ownership interest in you or your owners), and/or any other parties that are direct or indirect owners of the transferee must (if the transfer is of this Agreement or your Development Rights), sign our...
	(8) other than for a transfer of a non-controlling interest in you, you pay us a transfer fee equal to $15,000;
	(9) if you or your owners finance any part of the purchase price, you and/or your owners agree that all of the transferee’s obligations under promissory notes, agreements, or security interests reserved in your Development Rights or any Park are subor...
	(10) you provide us the evidence we reasonably request to show that appropriate measures have been taken to effect the transfer as it relates to the exercise of your rights under this Agreement, including, by transferring all necessary and appropriate...
	We may review all information regarding your Development Rights and/or any Park that you give the transferee, correct or supplement any information that we believe is inaccurate or incomplete, and give the transferee copies of any reports that you hav...

	6D. OUR RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL.
	(1) we notify you or your selling owner(s) that we intend to purchase the interest within thirty (30) days after we receive a copy of the offer and all other information we request;
	(2) we may substitute cash for any form of payment proposed in the offer (such as ownership interests in a privately-held entity);
	(3) our credit will be deemed equal to the credit of any proposed buyer (meaning that, if the proposed consideration includes promissory notes, we or our designee may provide promissory notes with the same terms as those offered by the proposed buyer);
	(4) we will have an additional sixty (60) days to prepare for closing after notifying you of our election to purchase; and
	(5) we must receive, and you and your owners agree to make, all customary representations and warranties given by the seller of the assets of a business or the ownership interests in any legal business entity, as applicable, including representations ...

	6E. YOUR DEATH OR DISABILITY.

	7. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT.
	7A. TERMINATION BY YOU – OUR BREACH.
	7B. TERMINATION BY US – YOUR BREACH.
	(1) you or any of your owners or affiliates have made or make any material misrepresentation or omission in acquiring or exercising your Development Rights;
	(2) you fail to satisfy any deadline in your Development Schedule;
	(3) you abandon your Development Rights, cease or threaten to cease exercising your Development Rights, or fail to make good faith progress in exercising your Development Rights, such that in our determination you will not be able to satisfy any appli...
	(4) you or any of your owners make or attempt to make any transfer in violation of Section 6;
	(5) you or any of your owners are or have been convicted by a trial court of, or pleaded guilty or no contest to, an indictable or hybrid offense;
	(6) you or any of your owners or affiliates knowingly make any unauthorized use or disclosure of any Confidential Information;
	(7) you violate any of your obligations under Section 5 of this Agreement;
	(8) you or any of your owners make an assignment for the benefit of creditors or admit in writing your insolvency or inability to pay your debts generally as they become due; you or any of your owners consent to the appointment of a receiver, trustee,...
	(9) your business or any of its assets are attached, seized, subjected to a writ or distress warrant, or levied on, unless the attachment, seizure, writ, warrant, or levy is vacated within thirty (30) days; or any order appointing a receiver, trustee,...
	(10) your or any of your owners’ assets, property, or interests are blocked under any law, ordinance, or regulation relating to terrorist activities, or you or any of your owners otherwise violate any such law, ordinance, or regulation; or
	(11) you or your owners breach any other provision or obligation under this Agreement, or any other agreement between you or any of your owners or affiliates, and us or our affiliates, and such breach has not been cured within thirty (30) days after w...


	8. RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS UPON TERMINATION OR EXPIRATION.
	8A. DE-IDENTIFICATION.
	Unless we expressly notify you in writing that we are waiving any of the requirements below in connection with the transfer of your Development Rights to another person (and in such case you agree to comply with our instructions regarding an orderly t...
	(a) cease to directly or indirectly exercise your Development Rights or otherwise conducting any business under this Agreement, including to cases searching for or soliciting or negotiating sites or leases for any Park, or;
	(b) cease to directly or indirectly identify yourself or your business as a current or former area developer or franchise owner or as one of our current or former area developer or franchise owner (except in connection with other Parks you operate in ...
	(c) return to us or destroy (as we require) all items, forms and materials containing any Mark or otherwise identifying or relating to a Park or the System, including copies of any and all Confidential Information; and
	(d) comply with all other system standards that we establish from time to time (and all applicable laws) in connection with the termination of development rights.
	If you fail to take any of the actions or refrain from taking any of the actions described above, we may take whatever action and sign whatever documents we deem appropriate on your behalf to cure the deficiencies. You must reimburse us for all costs ...


	8B. COVENANT NOT TO COMPETE.
	8C. CONTINUING OBLIGATIONS.

	9. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES/INDEMNIFICATION.
	9A. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS.
	9B. NO LIABILITY FOR ACTS OF OTHER PARTY.
	9C. TAXES.
	9D. INDEMNIFICATION.

	10. ENFORCEMENT.
	10A. MEDIATION.
	10B. ARBITRATION.
	10C. GOVERNING LAW.
	10D. CONSENT TO JURISDICTION.
	10E. COSTS AND ATTORNEYS’ FEES.
	10F. RIGHTS OF PARTIES ARE CUMULATIVE.
	10G. WAIVER OF PUNITIVE DAMAGES AND JURY TRIAL.
	10H. INJUNCTIVE RELIEF.
	10I. BINDING EFFECT.
	10J. LIMITATIONS OF CLAIMS AND CLASS ACTION BAR.
	10K. SEVERABILITY AND SUBSTITUTION OF VALID PROVISIONS.
	10L. WAIVER OF OBLIGATIONS.
	10M. CONSTRUCTION.

	11. DELEGATION OF PERFORMANCE.
	12. NOTICES AND PAYMENTS.
	13. PROHIBITED PARTIES.
	14. EXECUTION
	The Development Area is:
	The Development Schedule is:
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	1. GRANT OF FRANCHISE.
	1A. BACKGROUND
	(1) We and our predecessors and affiliates have developed (and continue to develop and modify) a franchise system to establish, operate and promote distinctive trampoline park businesses providing recreational entertainment facilities featuring trampo...
	(2) We and our affiliates use and promote, and license others to use and promote, certain trademarks, service marks and other commercial symbols in operating Parks, which have gained and will continue to gain public acceptance and goodwill, and we and...
	(3) Parks will operate using distinctive and proprietary business formats, methods, procedures, designs, layouts, standards, and specifications, all of which we may improve, substitute, further develop, or otherwise modify from time to time (together,...
	(4) We grant franchises to persons who meet our qualifications and are willing to undertake the investment and effort to own and operate a Park, and you have applied and been approved for a franchise to own and operate a Park.

	1B. GRANT AND TERM OF FRANCHISE.
	1C. CORPORATION, LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, OR PARTNERSHIP.
	You must identify one of your owners on Exhibit A who is a natural person with at least a fifty-one percent (51%) ownership interest and voting power in you to act as your “Principal Owner” and supervise the day-to-day operation of your Park in accord...
	Each of your owners and their respective spouses must execute a guaranty in the form we prescribe, agreeing to be personally bound, jointly and severally, by all provisions of this Agreement and any ancillary agreements between you and us and/or our a...
	If you are an Entity, your Park will be the only business that such Entity operates, unless we approve you to acquire and operate additional Parks pursuant to additional Franchise Agreements between us and you.

	1D. PROTECTED TERRITORY.
	1E. RESERVATION OF TERRITORIAL RIGHTS.
	(1) establish and operate, and allow others to establish and operate, other Parks using the Marks and the System, at any location outside the Protected Territory, on such terms and conditions we deem appropriate;
	(2) establish and operate, and allow others to establish and operate, any other type business, including any business that may offer products and services which are identical to, similar to, or competitive with products and services offered by Parks, ...
	(3) establish, and allow others to establish businesses and distribution channels other than a Park (including, selling products at retail or through any Online Presence, as defined in Section 5A), wherever located or operating, regardless of the natu...
	(4) establish and operate, and allow others to establish and operate, any Park, or other business using the Marks and/or the System, and/or offering and selling any of the products or services that are similar to, the same, or competitive with those p...
	(5) be acquired by or acquire (whether through acquisition of assets, ownership interests or otherwise, regardless of the form of transaction), any other business, including businesses that operate or allow others to establish and operate businesses s...
	(6) engage in all other activities not expressly prohibited by this Agreement.


	2. ACQUIRING YOUR PARK
	2A. SITE SELECTION.
	2B. LEASE OF THE SITE
	2C. DEVELOPMENT OF YOUR PARK.
	(1) obtain and submit to us for approval detailed construction plans and specifications and space plans for your Park that comply with any design specifications or prototypical plans provided by us and all applicable federal, state, or local law, code...
	(2) obtain all required zoning changes, planning consents, building, utility, sign and business permits and licenses, and any other consents, permits and licenses necessary to lawfully open and operate your Park;
	(3) construct all required improvements in compliance with construction plans and specifications approved by us;
	(4) purchase and install all Operating Assets and decorate your Park, in all respects in compliance with System Standards; and
	(5) obtain all customary contractors’ sworn statements and partial and final waivers of lien for construction, remodeling, decorating and installation services.


	3. YOUR FEES TO US.
	3A. INITIAL FRANCHISE FEE.
	3B. ROYALTY FEE.
	3C. GROSS SALES DEFINED.
	3D. TECHNOLOGY FEE.
	3E. INTEREST ON LATE PAYMENTS.
	3F. APPLICATION OF PAYMENTS.
	3G. METHOD OF PAYMENT.

	4. TRAINING AND ASSISTANCE.
	4A. INITIAL AND ONGOING TRAINING.
	4B. ON-SITE ASSISTANCE.
	4C. GENERAL GUIDANCE.
	4D. BRAND STANDARDS MANUAL.

	5. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY.
	5A. YOUR LICENSE.
	5B. USE OF MARKS.
	5C. OWNERSHIP AND GOODWILL.
	5D. NOTIFICATION OF INFRINGEMENTS AND CLAIMS.
	5E. CHANGES TO THE MARKS AND SYSTEM.
	5F. INDEMNIFICATION FOR USE OF MARKS.

	6. SYSTEM STANDARDS.
	6A. COMPLIANCE WITH SYSTEM STANDARDS.
	(1) amounts and types of Operating Assets and inventory you must purchase and/or maintain;
	(2) sales, marketing, advertising, and promotional campaigns, including prize contests, special offers and other national, regional or location marketing programs, and materials and media used in these programs;
	(3) use and display of the Marks at your Park and on uniforms, labels, forms, paper, products, and other supplies;
	(4) issuing and honoring gift cards, gift certificates and similar items, and participating in loyalty programs;
	(5) minimum staffing levels, qualifications, training, uniforms, and appearance (although you have sole responsibility and authority concerning all other matters relating to employees and personnel, including hiring and promotion, hours worked, rates ...
	(6) days and hours of operation;
	(7) customer service standards and policies, and participation in any quality assurance or customer satisfaction programs;
	(8) product and service offerings, memberships, and packages;
	(9) product and service development programs, including participation in market research and testing;
	(10) accepting credit and debit cards, other payment systems, currencies, and check verification services;
	(11) designated and approved suppliers of Operating Assets, inventory and other supplies;
	(12) bookkeeping, accounting, data processing, and recordkeeping systems and forms; formats, content, and frequency of reports to us of sales, revenue, financial performance, and condition; and
	(13) any other aspects of operating and maintaining your Park that we determine to be useful to preserve or enhance the “Altitude Trampoline Park” brand-image, and goodwill of the Marks and the System.

	6B. OPERATING ASSETS.
	6C. CHANGES TO SYSTEM STANDARDS.
	6D. VARIATION IN SYSTEM STANDARDS.

	7. OPERATION OF YOUR PARK.
	7A. MANAGEMENT.
	7B. CONDITION AND APPEARANCE OF YOUR PARK.
	7C. APPROVED PRODUCTS AND SERVICES.
	7D. APPROVED DISTRIBUTORS AND SUPPLIERS.
	7E. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND GOOD BUSINESS PRACTICES.
	7F. INFORMATION SECURITY
	7G. EMPLOYEES, AGENTS & INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS.
	7H. INSURANCE.
	7I. LIABILITY WAIVERS.
	7J. PRICING.
	7K. MEMBERSHIPS.

	8. MARKETING.
	8A. GRAND OPENING ADVERTISING.
	8B. YOUR ADVERTISING.
	8C. APPROVAL OF ADVERTISING.
	8D. BRAND FUND.
	8E. LOCAL ADVERTISING COOPERATIVE.
	8F. MAXIMUM ADVERTISING EXPENDITURE
	8G. FRANCHISE SYSTEM WEBSITE.
	8H. CONTACT INFORMATION AND LISTINGS.

	9. RECORDS, REPORTS, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
	(a) on or before each Royalty payment, a report on your Park’s Gross Sales during the applicable reporting period;
	(b) within fifteen (15) days after the end of each calendar month, the operating statements, financial statements, statistical reports and other information we request regarding your Park covering the preceding month;
	(c) within the time limits specified in the Brand Standards Manual, such other periodic operating statements, financial statements, statistical reports and other information we request regarding you and your Park;
	(d) by March 15th of each year, annual profit and loss and source and use of funds statements and a balance sheet for your Park as of the end of the prior calendar year; and
	(e) within ten (10) days after our request, exact copies of federal and state income tax returns, tax returns for sales, or similar taxes, and any other forms, records, books, and other information we may periodically require relating to you and your ...

	10. INSPECTIONS AND AUDITS.
	10A. OUR RIGHT TO INSPECT YOUR PARK.
	10B. OUR RIGHT TO AUDIT.

	11. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.
	(a) process, retain, use, collect, and disclose our Confidential Information strictly to the limited extent, and in such a manner, as necessary for the development and operation of the Park in accordance with this Agreement, and not for any other purp...
	(b) process, retain, use, collect, and disclose our Confidential Information strictly in accordance with the privacy policies and System Standards we establish from time to time, and our and our representative’s instructions;
	(c) keep confidential and not disclose, sell, distribute, or trade our Confidential Information to any person other than those of your employees and representatives who need to know such Confidential Information for the purpose of assisting you in ope...
	(d) not make unauthorized copies of any of our Confidential Information;
	(e) adopt and maintain administrative, physical and technical safeguards to prevent unauthorized use or disclosure of any of our Confidential Information, including by establishing reasonable security and access measures, restricting its disclosure to...
	(f) at our request, destroy or return any of the Confidential Information.

	12. EXCLUSIVE RELATIONSHIP.
	12A. COVENANTS AGAINST COMPETITION.
	(a) have any direct or indirect interest as an owner (whether of record, beneficially, or otherwise), investor, partner, director, officer, employee, consultant, lessor, representative, or agent in any Competitive Business (as defined below), wherever...
	(b) perform services or act as a director, officer, manager, employee, consultant, lessor, representative, or agent for a Competitive Business, wherever located or operating; or
	(c) divert or attempt to divert any actual or potential business or customer of any Park to a Competitive Business.

	12B. NON-INTERFERENCE.
	During and after the Term, you (and if you are conducting business as an Entity, each of your owners) further agree not to, and to cause your respective current and former spouses, immediate family members, owners, officers, directors, employees, repr...

	12C. NON-DISPARAGEMENT.

	13. TRANSFER.
	13A. BY US.
	13B. BY YOU.
	13C. CONDITIONS FOR APPROVAL OF TRANSFER.
	(1) you submit an application in writing requesting our consent and providing us all information or documents we request about the proposed transfer, the transferee, and its owners that we request, and each such person must have completed and satisfie...
	(2) you provide us executed versions of any documents executed by you (or your owners) and transferee (and its owners) to effect the transfer, and all other information we request about the proposed transfer, and such transfer meets all of our require...
	(3) you (and your owners) and the transferee (and its owners) sign all of the documents we are then requiring in connection with a transfer, in a form satisfactory to us, including: (i) a release of any and all claims (except for claims which cannot b...
	(4) you and your owners have not violated any provision of this Agreement or any other agreement with us or our affiliates during both the sixty (60) day period before you requested our consent to the transfer and the period between your request and t...
	(5) the transferee and its Key Personnel satisfactorily complete our then-current Management Training Program;
	(6) if the proposed transfer (including any assignment of the Lease or subleasing of the Premises) requires notice to or approval from your landlord, or any other action under the terms of the Lease, you have taken such appropriate action and delivere...
	(7) the transferee must (if the transfer is of this Agreement or your Park), sign our then-current form of franchise agreement and related documents, any and all of the provisions of which may differ materially from any and all of those contained in t...
	(8) the transferee must (if the transfer is of an ownership interest in you or your owners), and/or any other parties that are direct or indirect owners of the transferee must (if the transfer is of this Agreement or your Park), sign our then-current ...
	(9) other than for a transfer of a non-controlling interest in you, you pay us a transfer fee equal to $15,000;
	(10) if you or your owners finance any part of the purchase price, you and/or your owners agree that all of the transferee’s obligations under promissory notes, agreements, or security interests reserved in your Park are subordinate to the transferee’...
	(11) you have corrected any existing deficiencies of your Park of which we have notified you, and/or the transferee agrees to upgrade, remodel, and refurbish your Park in accordance with our then-current requirements and specifications for Parks withi...
	(12) you provide us the evidence we reasonably request to show that appropriate measures have been taken to effect the transfer as it relates to the operation of the Park, including, by transferring all necessary and appropriate business licenses, ins...
	We may review all information regarding your Park that you give the transferee, correct or supplement any information that we believe is inaccurate or incomplete, and give the transferee copies of any reports that you have given us or we have regardin...

	13D. OUR RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL.
	(1) we notify you or your selling owner(s) that we intend to purchase the interest within thirty (30) days after we receive a copy of the offer and all other information we request;
	(2) we may substitute cash for any form of payment proposed in the offer (such as ownership interests in a privately-held entity);
	(3) our credit will be deemed equal to the credit of any proposed buyer (meaning that, if the proposed consideration includes promissory notes, we or our designee may provide promissory notes with the same terms as those offered by the proposed buyer);
	(4) we will have an additional sixty (60) days to prepare for closing after notifying you of our election to purchase; and
	(5) we must receive, and you and your owners agree to make, all customary representations and warranties given by the seller of the assets of a business or the ownership interests in any legal business entity, as applicable, including representations ...

	13E. YOUR DEATH OR DISABILITY.

	14. RENEWAL OF YOUR FRANCHISE.
	14A. YOUR RIGHT To RENEW YOUR FRANCHISE.
	(1) if you are renewing your franchise upon the expiration of the Term, you must have given us written notice of your election no more than five hundred forty (540) days and no less than one hundred eighty (180) days before the expiration of the Term;
	(2) you (and each of your owners) have substantially complied with this Agreement and all System Standards during the Term;
	(3) you maintain possession of and agree to remodel and/or expand your Park, add or replace improvements and Operating Assets, and otherwise modify your Park as we require to comply with System Standards then-applicable for new Parks, or, at your opti...
	(4) you and your owners sign the franchise agreement and all other ancillary documents and guaranties we then use to grant franchises for Parks (modified as necessary to reflect the fact that it is for a renewal franchise), which may contain provision...
	(5) you and your owners agree to sign, in a form satisfactory to us, a general release of any and all claims (except for claims which cannot be released or waived pursuant to an applicable franchise law statute) against us and our shareholders, office...
	(6) you pay us a renewal fee equal to 25% of our then-current Initial Franchise Fee; and
	(7) at the time you give us written notice of your election to acquire a renewal franchise, we are then-offering franchises for Parks in your geographic market area.

	14B. ACQUIRING A RENEWAL FRANCHISE.

	15. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT.
	15A. TERMINATION BY YOU – OUR BREACH.
	15B. TERMINATION BY US – YOUR BREACH.
	(1) you or any of your owners or affiliates have made or make any material misrepresentation or omission in acquiring the franchise or operating your Park;
	(2) you fail to satisfy all of your development obligations specified in this Agreement, including obtaining our approval prior to opening your Park, and open your Park for business by the deadline specified in Section 2C;
	(3) you do not obtain lawful possession of a Premises we have approved and deliver to us a fully executed copy of the Lease and Lease Rider we have approved for such Premises, in each case by the deadline set forth in 2B;
	(4) you abandon or fail to actively operate your Park for more than two (2) consecutive days of operation or seven (7) days of operation in the aggregate during any twelve-month period, or you provide us or any other party notice (written or oral) tha...
	(5) you or any of your owners make or attempt to make any transfer in violation of Section 13;
	(6) your Key Personnel do not satisfactorily complete the Management Training Program in accordance with Section 4A;
	(7) you or any of your owners are or have been convicted by a trial court of, or pleaded guilty or no contest to, an indictable or hybrid offense;
	(8) you or any of your owners or affiliates fail to pay us or our affiliates any amounts due and do not correct the failure within ten (10) days after we deliver written notice of that failure to you;
	(9) you or any of your owners or affiliates fail to pay any other third-party, including the lessor of your Premises, any other amounts owed in connection with your Park when due, and do not cure such failure within any applicable cure period granted ...
	(10) you fail to maintain the insurance we require and do not correct the failure within ten (10) days after we deliver written notice of that failure to you;
	(11) an event of default occurs under the terms of your Lease, your Lease is terminated by either party thereto, or you otherwise lose the right to occupy the Premises, whether or not through any fault of yours;
	(12) you or any of your owners or affiliates knowingly make any unauthorized use or disclosure of any Confidential Information;
	(13) you violate any of your obligations under Section 12 of this Agreement;
	(14) you violate any health, safety, or sanitation law, ordinance, or regulation, or operate your Park in an unsafe manner, and do not begin to cure the violation immediately, and correct the violation within seventy-two (72) hours after you receive n...
	(15) you create or allow to exist any condition in connection with your operation of your Park that we reasonably determine to present an immediate health or safety concern for the Park’s customers or employees;
	(16) you have insufficient funds in your designated account to cover your payments owed for Royalties, Brand Fund Contributions and other amounts due on three (3) separate occasions within a twelve (12) month period;
	(17) you understate your Park’s Gross Sales three (3) times or more during the Term or by more than three percent (3%) on any one occasion;
	(18) you or any of your owners make an assignment for the benefit of creditors or admit in writing your insolvency or inability to pay your debts generally as they become due; you or any of your owners consent to the appointment of a receiver, trustee...
	(19) your Park or any of its assets are attached, seized, subjected to a writ or distress warrant, or levied on, unless the attachment, seizure, writ, warrant, or levy is vacated within thirty (30) days; or any order appointing a receiver, trustee, or...
	(20) your or any of your owners’ assets, property, or interests are blocked under any law, ordinance, or regulation relating to terrorist activities, or you or any of your owners otherwise violate any such law, ordinance, or regulation;
	(21) you breach this Agreement on three (3) or more occasions within any twelve (12) consecutive month period, whether or not you correct the failures; or
	(22) you or your owners breach any other provision under this Agreement, or any other agreement between you or any of your owners or affiliates, and us or our affiliates, and such breach has not been cured within thirty (30) days after written notice ...


	16. RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS UPON TERMINATION OR EXPIRATION.
	16A. INTERIM OPERATIONS.
	16B. PAYMENT OF AMOUNTS OWED TO US.
	16C. LOST REVENUE DAMAGES
	16D. DE-IDENTIFICATION.
	(a) close the Park for business to customers and cease to directly or indirectly sell any products and services of any kind and in any manner from the Park and/or using the Marks, unless we direct you otherwise in connection with our exercise of our o...
	(b) cease to directly or indirectly use any Mark, any colorable imitation of a Mark, any other indicia of a Park, or any trade name, trade-mark, service mark or other commercial symbol that indicates or suggests a connection or association with us, in...
	(c) cease to directly or indirectly identify yourself or your business as a current or former Park or as one of our current or former franchise owners (except in connection with other Parks you operate in compliance with the terms of a valid Franchise...
	(d) if we do not exercise our option to purchase the Park, promptly and at your own expense, remove all materials bearing our Marks and remove from both the interior and exterior of the Premises all materials and components of our trade dress as we de...
	(e) cease using and, at our direction, either disable or transfer, assign or otherwise convey to us full control of all Contact Information and Online Presences that you used to operate your Park or that displays any of the Marks or any reference to t...
	(f) return to us or destroy (as we require) all items, forms and materials containing any Mark or otherwise identifying or relating to a Park, including copies of any and all Confidential Information (including the Brand Standards Manual and any and a...
	(g) comply with all other System Standards we establish from time to time (and all applicable laws) in connection with the closure and de-identification of your Park, including as it relates to disposing of Personal Information, in any form, in your p...
	If you fail to take any of the actions or refrain from taking any of the actions described above, we may take whatever action and sign whatever documents we deem appropriate on your behalf to cure the deficiencies, including, without liability to you ...

	16E. OUR RIGHT TO PURCHASE YOUR PARK.
	If you lease the Premises from an unaffiliated lessor, or if we choose not to purchase the Premises from you (or one of your owners or affiliates owning the Premises), you agree, at our election to (i) assign your Lease to us or our designee, (ii) ent...
	We or our designee will pay the purchase price for the Park and/or Premises (calculated as described below) at the closing, which will take place not later than sixty (60) days after the purchase price is determined, although we or our designee may de...
	(a) good and merchantable title to the assets purchased, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances (other than liens and security interests acceptable to us), with all taxes paid by you, including sales, goods and services, harmonized sales, use, v...
	(b) any and all of your Park’s licenses and permits which may be assigned or transferred; and
	(c) the ownership interest or leasehold interest (as applicable) in the Premises and improvements or a lease assignment or lease or sublease, as applicable.

	If you cannot deliver clear title to all of the purchased assets, or if there are other unresolved issues, we and you will close the sale through an escrow. You and your owners further agree to execute releases, in a form satisfactory to us, of any a...
	If we purchase any or all of the assets of your Park upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, the purchase price for such assets will be their reasonable fair market value, provided that these items will not include any value for the rights g...

	16F. COVENANT NOT TO COMPETE.
	16G. MEMBERSHIP OBLIGATIONS.
	16H. CONTINUING OBLIGATIONS.

	17. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES/INDEMNIFICATION.
	17A. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS.
	17B. NO LIABILITY FOR ACTS OF OTHER PARTY.
	17C. TAXES.
	17D. INDEMNIFICATION.

	18. ENFORCEMENT.
	18A. MEDIATION.
	18B. ARBITRATION.
	18C. CONSENT TO JURISDICTION.
	18D. GOVERNING LAW.
	18E. COSTS AND ATTORNEYS’ FEES.
	18F. RIGHTS OF PARTIES ARE CUMULATIVE.
	18G. WAIVER OF PUNITIVE DAMAGES AND JURY TRIAL.
	18H. INJUNCTIVE RELIEF.
	18I. BINDING EFFECT.
	18J. LIMITATIONS OF CLAIMS AND CLASS ACTION BAR.
	18K. SEVERABILITY AND SUBSTITUTION OF VALID PROVISIONS.
	18L. WAIVER OF OBLIGATIONS.
	18M. SECURITY INTEREST.
	18N. CONSTRUCTION.

	19. DELEGATION OF PERFORMANCE.
	20. NOTICES AND PAYMENTS.
	21. PROHIBITED PARTIES.
	22. EXECUTION
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	Item 12.   TERRITORY
	(1) establish and operate, and allow others to establish and operate, other Parks using the Marks and the System in any location, on such terms and conditions we deem appropriate, subject only to your Right of First Refusal;
	(2) establish and operate, and allow others to establish and operate, any other type business, including any business that may offer products and services which are identical to, similar to, or competitive with products and services offered by Parks, ...
	(3) establish, and allow others to establish businesses and distribution channels other than a Park (including, selling products at retail or through any online presence), wherever located or operating, regardless of the nature or location of the cust...
	(4) establish and operate, and allow others to establish and operate, any Park, or other business using the Marks and/or the System, and/or offering and selling any of the products or services that are similar to, the same, or competitive with those p...
	(5) be acquired by or acquire (whether through acquisition of assets, ownership interests or otherwise, regardless of the form of transaction), any other business, including businesses that operate or allow others to establish and operate businesses s...
	(6) engage in all other activities not expressly prohibited by the Area Development Agreement.
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